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Date: 03.09.2020 

Manager, 

Listing Compliance Department, 

BSE Limited, 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 

Dalal Street, 

Mumbai — 400 001. 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Intimation - 30" Annual General Meeting Notice and Annual Report 2019-2020 
. | 

| 

Ref: ISIN INE998Y07030, Script ID: 13BFL21, Script Code: 959857 

This is to inform you that the 30th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the members of Berar Finance 

Limited will be held on Monday, the 28th day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. (IST), through Video 

Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility in accordance with the General Circular 

issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated May 5, 2020 read with General Circular circulars dated April 

8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated May 12,2020. 

We hereby submit the copy of Annual Report of the Company for financial year 2019-2020 and 30th 

Annual General Meeting Notice of the Company for your record under Regulation 51(2) and Schedule III 

(Part B) (16) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

We request you to take the above on record. 

Thanking you, 

Yours faithfully, 

For Berar Finance Limited 

ZBNCESS 
Sora jepssen 

Deepali Balpande) /« “aN. 
! eue\= 

Company Secretary i = ac }=a 
Tf 

Encl: As above YS PP iy 
A? “ie 

 



-----1-----  

BERAR FINANCE LIMITED 
            CIN: U65929MH1990PLC057829 

Registered Office: Avinisha Tower, Mehadia Chowk, Dhantoli, 
Nagpur -440012. 

Tel No.0712-6663999 
Email: info@berarfinance.com 

Website: www.berarfinance.com 
 
 

AGM NOTICE  
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 30th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) of the members of Berar Finance Limited will be held on Monday, 
the 28th day of September, 2020 at 11.00 A.M. (IST), through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) / Other Audio Visual Means (‘OAVM’) facility 

to transact the business mentioned below. 

Ordinary Business 

1.       To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2020 and the Board’s and 
Auditors’ Reports thereon, be and are hereby approved and adopted.” 
 

2.       To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the final dividend at the rate of ₹ 0.50 per share as recommended by the Directors be and is hereby declared 
for the financial year ended 31st March 2020 and that the same be paid to those  shareholders whose names stand on the Register 
of Members as on 28th day of September,2020.”   
 

3.      To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Shantaram Krishnarao Mahakalkar (DIN: 00379988), the retiring Director, be and is hereby re-elected as 
Director of the Company, liable to retirement by rotation.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 

4. APPROVING THE AMENDMENT, RE-STATEMENTAND ENTRENCHMENT OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF 
THE COMPANY: 
 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special Resolution: 
 

“RESOLVED THAT in accordance with Section 5 and Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions, if 
any, including statutory modification(s), enactment(s), re-enactment(s), thereof for the time being in force, the consent of the 
members be and is hereby accorded, by way of a special resolution, for  adopting the amended and re-stated Articles of 
Association of the Company (a copy of which is attached as Annexure 1 to this Notice), which incorporate the relevant provisions 
of  the  share subscription agreement dated December 20,  2019 entered into among Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP (“ACPE”), 

Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I (“ACPIF” and together with ACPE, the “ Investors”), the Company, Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. 

Sandeep Jawanjal, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal and Avino 
Capcons Private Limited (together, the “Transaction Parties” and such agreement, the “SSA”) and the shareholders’ agreement 

dated December 20, 2019 entered into among the Transaction Parties (the “SHA” and together with the SSA, the “Transaction 
Documents”) and are consonant with the provisions of the Companies Act,  2013, in substitution and exclusion of the existing 
Articles of Association of the Company. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to Section 5(3) and (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the  
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder, the consent of the members of the Company by way of a special 
resolution be and is hereby accorded for the inclusion and adoption of entrenchment provisions set out in the amended and re-
stated Articles of Association. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Executive Director (DIN: 01490054), and the Company Secretary of  the 
Company (“Authorised Representatives”) be and are hereby jointly or severally authorised to carry out all such acts and execute 
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all necessary deeds, documents, agreements, forms and instruments, for and on behalf of the Company, as may be necessary or 
desirable to give effect to the foregoing resolutions including filing the Form MGT-14 with the Registrar of Companies. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives be and are hereby jointly or severally, authorised to delegate to 
any other officers or  employees of the Company, or any lawyers, consultants or advisors as may be deemed necessary or prudent 
by such Authorised Representatives, their power to execute all documents and take all steps and do all such acts, matters, deeds 
and give such directions as may be required, necessary, or considered expedient or desirable for giving effect to the 
aforementioned resolutions, and to further comply with the requirements, if any, of applicable law including the Companies Act, 
2013, the relevant rules framed thereunder and the secretarial standards. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives are hereby jointly or severally authorised on behalf of the Company 
to certify a copy of these resolutions and issue the same to all concerned authorities or parties.” 
 

5. REGULARISATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF MR.  MAHESH PARASURAMAN (DIN: 00233782), ADDITIONAL 
DIRECTOR, AS A DIRECTOR LIABLE TO RETIRE BY ROTATION: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules framed thereunder read with the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of 
the Company, Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman (holding DIN 00233782) (the “Investor Director”),who has been appointed as an 

Additional Director at the meeting of the board of  directors of the Company (“Board”), held on February 20, 2020, and who holds 
office until the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting 
should have been held, whichever is earlier, in terms of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, and pursuant to the 
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its meeting dated February 20, 2020 
proposing the Investor Director as a candidate for the office of a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Director 
of the Company liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Company is hereby authorized to make necessary intimations to the Reserve Bank of India 
and any other applicable Governmental authority in relation to the appointment of the Investor Director on the Board and the 
consequent change in the Board. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Executive Director (DIN: 01490054), and the Company Secretary of the 
Company (“Authorised Representatives”) be and are hereby jointly or severally authorised by the Company to carry out all such 

acts and execute all necessary deeds, documents, agreements, forms and instruments, for and on behalf of the Company, as may 
be necessary or desirable to give effect to the foregoing resolutions including without limitation in relation to intimating the Reserve 
Bank of India regarding the appointment of the Investor Director on the Board and the consequent change in the Board and the 
filing of necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies such as the Form DIR-12. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives be and are hereby jointly or severally, authorised to delegate to 
any other officers or employees of the Company, or any lawyers, consultants or advisors as may be deemed necessary or prudent 
by such authorised Representatives, their power to execute all documents and take all steps and do all such acts, matters, deeds 
and give such directions as may be required, necessary, or considered expedient or desirable for giving effect to  the 
aforementioned resolutions, and to further comply with the requirements, if any, of applicable law including  the Companies Act, 
2013, the relevant rules framed thereunder and the secretarial standards. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives are hereby jointly or severally authorised on behalf of the Company 
to certify a copy of these resolutions and issue the same to all concerned authorities or parties.” 
 

6. REVISION IN TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT OF MR. SANDEEP JAWANJAL 
(DIN:01490054) EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and approval 
of the Board each at its meeting dated February 20, 2020 and subject to the provisions of the Sections 196,197,198, 203 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof) read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the Members of the Company be and is hereby 
accorded to revise the terms and conditions (as detailed in the explanatory statement annexed to the notice calling this Annual 
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General Meeting) of the employment agreement dated March 21,2016 executed between the Company and Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal 
(DIN:01490054) Executive Director (Whole-Time Director) of the Company (the “Erstwhile Employment Agreement”), for the 

remainder of the term of appointment of Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal (DIN:01490054) as an Executive Director (Whole-Time Director) 
of the Company and any further period therefrom subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at duly convened 
meeting of the shareholders. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the remuneration payable to Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, shall be as per the Erstwhile Employment 
Agreement and shall not exceed the overall ceiling of the total managerial remuneration as provided under Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 or such other limits as may prescribed from time to time. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the members of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company and the 
Company Secretary of the Company (“Authorised Representatives”) be and are hereby jointly or severally authorised on  behalf 
of the Company to sign and execute all forms, agreements and documents as may be required to give effect to this resolution and 
all such forms and documents as may be required to be filed or submitted with the Registrar of Companies, in relation thereto as 
per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and do all other acts, deeds and things that may be required to give effect to this 
resolution. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives be and are hereby jointly or severally, authorised to delegate to 
any other officers or employees of the Company, or any lawyers, consultants or advisors as may be deemed necessary or prudent 
by such Authorised Representatives, their power to execute all documents and take all steps and do all such acts, matters, deeds 
and give such directions as may be required, necessary, or considered expedient or desirable for giving effect to the 
aforementioned resolutions, and to further comply with the requirements, if any, of applicable law including the Companies Act, 
2013, the relevant rules framed thereunder and the secretarial standards. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Authorised Representatives are hereby jointly or severally authorised on behalf of the Company 
to certify a copy of these resolutions and issue the same to all concerned authorities or parties.” 
 

7. AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUANCE OF TRANCHE 2 SERIES A CUMULATIVE COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE 
PARTICIPATING PREFERENCE SHARES: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as a Special Resolution. 
 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 55 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, and/or other applicable provisions of law as may be required and on such 
conditions and modifications as may be prescribed, and subject further to such other terms, conditions, stipulations, alterations, 
amendments, modifications or variations, the consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to authorize, 
create, offer and issue fully paid-up Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of face 
value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per Tranche 2 Series 
A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference share, carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum 
(the “Tranche 2 Series A CCPS”) to Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP (“ACPE”); and Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I 

(“ACPIF” and together with ACPE, the “Investors”) in the manner set out below and, on the terms and conditions as provided in 

Annexure 2 hereto. 
 

Name of Investor No. of Tranche 2 

Series A CCPS 

Consideration for Tranche 2 

Series A CCPS (INR) 

Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 3,45,829 7,26,24,090 

Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I 35,124 73,76,040 

Total 3,80,953 8,00,00,130 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT that the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS shall be subject to the following terms and conditions: 
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S. No. Item Terms of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS 

1.  Priority with respect to payment 

of dividend or repayment of 

capital vis-à-vis equity shares. 

Yes. The Tranche 2 Series A CCPS will carry a preferential right vis-à-vis 

equity shares of the Company with respect to the payment of dividend 

and repayment of capital or repayment in case of winding up in 

accordance with Annexure 2, the share subscription agreement dated 

December 20, 2019 entered into among the Investors, the Company, Mr. 

Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), 

Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal and 

Avino Capcons Private Limited (together, the “Transaction Parties” and 

such agreement, the “SSA”), as amended, the shareholders’ agreement 

dated December 20, 2019 entered into among the Transaction Parties 

(the “SHA”), as amended (the SSA and the SHA, each as amended, 

together, the “Transaction Documents”). 

2.  Participation in surplus funds. Yes. In accordance with Annexure 2 and the Transaction Documents.  

3.  Participation in surplus assets 

and profits, on winding-up which 

may remain after the entire 

capital has been repaid. 

Yes. In accordance with Annexure 2 and the Transaction Documents. 

4.  Payment of dividend on 

cumulative basis or non-

cumulative basis. 

To be paid on a cumulative basis in accordance with Annexure 2 and the 

Transaction Documents. 

5.  Conversion of preference shares 

into equity shares. 

Yes. The Tranche 2 Series A CCPS are compulsorily convertible into 

equity shares in accordance with Annexure 2 and the terms of the 

Transaction Documents. 

6.  Voting rights. As per applicable law. 

7.  Redemption of preference 

shares. 

Not be redeemed but shall be compulsorily convertible into equity shares 

of the Company, at the option of the Investors, in one or more tranches 

in accordance with Annexure 2 and the terms of the Transaction 

Documents. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT to give effect to the aforesaid resolutions, Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Executive Director (DIN:01490054) 

and the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby authorized severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 

as may be deemed necessary including modification and/or amendment to the terms of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS as agreed in 

the Transaction Documents and settle any or all questions/matters arising with respect to the offer, issue and allotment (including 

deciding the terms and conditions for the same), utilization of the proceeds of the issue of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, execute all 

such deeds, documents, agreements and writings as may be necessary for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid resolution, 

take such further steps as are required for the issuance of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS as aforesaid, to take such other steps that 

are incidental and ancillary in this regard; and to do, take or accept actions, as may be considered desirable or expedient by such 

Director in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders in relation to the foregoing.” 

 

8. ISSUANCE OF TRANCHE 2 SERIES A EQUITY SHARES AND TRANCHE 2 SERIES A CCPS THROUGH PRIVATE 
PLACEMENT: 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as a Special Resolution. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Articles of Association of the Company, Section 42 read with Section 62(1)(c) and 

all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
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Rules, 2014 and Rule 14 of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification 

or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications and circulars, if any, issued 

by the Government of India, the Reserve Bank of India, or any other competent authority, whether in India or abroad, from time to 

time, to the extent applicable, the consent of the Members of the Company is hereby accorded to the Company to issue:  

 

(a) 5,18,742 (five lakhs eighteen thousand seven hundred and forty two) equity shares of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten 

only) each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) (the “ACPE Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares”) per 

equity share; and 3,45,829 (three lakhs forty five thousand eight hundred and twenty nine only) Tranche 2 Series A cumulative 

compulsorily convertible participating preference shares carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face 

value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) (the “ACPE Tranche 

2 Series A CCPS”) per Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference share, for an aggregate 

subscription amount of INR 18,15,59,910 (Indian Rupees Eighteen Crores Fifteen Lakhs Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred 

and Ten only) (the “ACPE Additional Primary Investment Amount”), to Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP (“ACPE”); and  

 

(b) 52,686 (fifty two thousand six hundred and eighty six) equity shares of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a 

premium of INR 200 per equity share (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) (the “ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares” 

and together with the ACPE Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares, the “Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares”); and 35,124 (thirty 

five thousand one hundred and twenty four) Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference 

shares carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at 

a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible 

participating preference share (“ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A CCPS” and together with the ACPE Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, 

the “Tranche 2 Series A CCPS”), for an aggregate subscription amount of INR 1,84,40,100 (Indian Rupees One Crore Eighty 

Four Lakhs Forty Thousand and One Hundred only) (the “ACPIF Additional Primary Investment Amount” and together with 

the ACPE Additional Primary Investment Amount, the “Additional Primary Investment Amount”), to Amicus Capital Partners 

India Fund I (together with ACPE, the “Investors”),  

on a private placement basis. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Valuation Certificate dated 17th August, 2020 issued by M. B. Brahme & Co., Chartered 

Accountants, annexed hereto as Annexure 3 is hereby perused. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the necessary filings with the statutory authorities, including but not limited to, the Registrar of 

Companies be made by the Company. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Executive Director (DIN: 01490054) and the Company Secretary of the 

Company (“Authorised Representatives”) be and are hereby severally authorized to: 
 

(a) issue the Private Placement Offer Letter to the Investors for and on behalf of the Company; 
 

(b) negotiate, finalise, execute, ratify or amend the Private Placement Offer Letter and to do all such acts, deeds and things as 

may be necessary or expedient to implement this resolution and to do and execute all acts and deeds as may be required in 

connection with the aforesaid; 
 

(c) open/designate a specific bank account with a nationalised bank for the purpose of receiving the Additional Primary Investment 

Amount; 
 

(d) to sign letters of undertaking, declarations, agreements, forms and other papers which may be required including without 

limitation with respect to the issuance of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS and the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares in 

dematerialised form and generation of a separate ‘International Securities Identification Number’ as may be required in this 

regard; and 
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(e) to sign and/or dispatch all forms, filings, documents and notices to be signed, submitted and/or dispatched by it under or in 

connection with the documents to which it is a party with any statutory authorities including but not limited to the Registrar of 

Companies and Reserve Bank of India and to take all such further steps as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid 

resolutions. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS once issued and allotted shall be convertible into equity shares of the 

Company of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each, in one or more tranches and at the discretion of the Investors as per 

the provisions of Annexure 2, and the terms of the Transaction Documents, without any further approval of the shareholders prior 

to or at the time of conversion. 
 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the equity shares to be issued on conversion of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS shall rank pari passu 

in all respects with the existing fully paid-up equity shares of the Company of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the aforesaid resolutions shall come into effect immediately and the board of directors of the 

Company be and is hereby also accorded the authority to furnish a certified copy of the foregoing resolutions to any person, as may 

be required, under the signature of the Authorised Representatives certifying the same to be a true and correct copy.” 
 
 

 

 

                                                                                                                                               By order of the Board of Directors       
Registered Office:                                                                                                        For Berar Finance Limited                         
Avinisha Tower,                                                                                                 
Mehadia Chowk,                                                                                                              Deepali Balpande                                                                                                                                                                                         
Dhantoli,                                                                                                                           Company Secretary 
Nagpur- 440012. 
 
Place: Nagpur 
Date: 29.08.2020 
 
 

Notes: 

i. In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular 

No. 20/2020 dated 5th May, 2020 read together with General Circular Nos. 14/2020 & 17/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and 

13th April, 2020 respectively, (collectively referred to as “MCA Circulars”)  and Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(“SEBI”) Circular No SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79  dated 12th May, 2020, permitted the holding of this AGM 

through VC/OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions 

of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

(“Listing Regulations”) and the MCA & SEBI Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM, without 

the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. 

In accordance with the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries 

of India (“ICSI”) read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability of Secretarial Standards - 1 and 2 dated 15th April, 2020 

issued by the ICSI, the proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company 

which shall be the deemed venue of the AGM. Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, the Route Map is not 

annexed to this Notice. 

ii. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 setting out material facts in respect of 

the business under Item No. 4 to 8 above is annexed hereto. Further, the relevant details, pursuant to Clause 1.2.5 of the 

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) by ICSI, with respect to Item No.3 and 5 is also annexed hereto. 

The Board of Directors had conveyed Extra-ordinary General Meeting on 13 th April, 2020 for considering the items at Sr. 

No.4 to 6 but could not be held due to Government guidance on public gathering on account of COVID-19 and was 
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postponed. Now the Board of Directors (The Board) has considered and decided to include these items as Special 

Business in this AGM as they are unavoidable in nature. Resolutions at item no. 7 and 8 are also unavoidable in nature. 

iii. M/S. Pravin Dhiran & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the Twenty - 

Ninth AGM held on 21st September, 2019. Pursuant to the Notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs on 7th 

May, 2018 amending Section 139 of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, the mandatory requirement for ratification 

of appointment of Auditors by the Members at every AGM has been omitted, and hence the Company is not proposing an 

item on ratification of appointment of Auditors at this AGM.  

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible to continue with their appointment and 

that they have not been disqualified in any manner from continuing as Statutory Auditors.  

iv. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 

MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA AND SEBI CIRCULARS 

THROUGH VC/OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED 

WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY 

THE MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND ATTENDANCE SLIP 

ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE. 

v. Corporate/Institutional Members are entitled to appoint authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC /OAVM 

on their behalf and cast their votes through remote e-voting or at the AGM. Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e. other 

than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a scanned  copy  of  the  Board  Resolution/Authority Letter, etc., 

authorising their  representative to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM on their behalf and to vote through remote e -voting 

or during the AGM. 

The said Resolution/Authorisation shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to 

cssunilzore@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@cdslindia.com and to the Company at 

deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com. 

Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Shareholders are encouraged to attend and participate in 

the AGM through VC/ OAVM and vote thereat. 

 
vi. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing has to be a pre-requisite. 

 
Pursuant to the above mentioned MCA Circulars, physical attendance of the Members is not required at the AGM, and 
attendance of the Members through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 
of the Act.  
 

vii. The Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents for its Share Registry Work are M/s.  Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., our 
Registrar & Share Transfer Agent (RTA) at 1st floor, Bharat Tin works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059 Ph.no.  022-62638200. 
 

viii. In line with the MCA General Circular dated 5 th May, 2020 and SEBI Circular dated 12 th May, 2020, the Notice of the AGM 
along with the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2019-2020 is being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ M/s. Bigshare Services Private Limited/ Depositories. 
A copy of the Notice of this AGM along with the Annual Report is available on the website of the Company at 
www.berarfinance.com, website of the Stock Exchange where the NCDs of the Company are listed, viz. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com. For any communication, the Members may also send a request to the Company’s email ID: 
deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com. The Company will not be dispatching physical copies of the Annual Report for the 
Financial Year 2019-2020 and the Notice of AGM to any Member. 
 

ix. Pursuant to the provisions of Section124(5)of the Companies Act,2013,any amount transferred by the Company to the 

unpaid dividend account and remaining unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer shall be 

transferred to a fund called ‘Investor Education and  Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Central Government . 

Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend amounts in respect of F.Y. from 2006-2007 to 2011-2012 were transferred by the 

Company to the said fund in the F.Y. from 2014-2015 to 2019-2020 respectively. No claim lies against the Company in 

respect of these dividend. 

mailto:cssunilzore@gmail.com
mailto:deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com
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x. The Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on 21st September, 

2019 (date of last AGM) on the website of the Company viz: http://www.berarfinance.com as well as on the website of the 

Ministry of Corporate affairs. 

xi. Due dates of transferring unclaimed and unpaid dividends declared by the Company for the Financial Year 2012 -13 and 
thereafter to the IEPF are as under: 
 

Financial year  
Ended 

Date of declaration  
of dividend  

Last date for claiming  
Unpaid/unclaimed dividend 

Proposed period for transfer of 
unclaimed dividend to IEPF 

31st March, 2013 03.08.2013 01.09.2020 02.09.2020 to 01.10.2020 
31st March, 2014 23.08.2014 21.09.2021 22.09.2021 to 21.10.2021 

 
 

31st March, 2015 26.09.2015 25.10.2022 26.10.2022 to 24.11.2022 
31st March, 2016 27.08.2016 25.09.2023 26.09.2023 to 25.10.2023 
31st March, 2017 02.09.2017 01.10.2024 02.10.2024 to 31.10.2024 
31st March, 2018 08.09.2018 07.10.2025 08.10.2025 to 06.11.2025 
31st March, 2019 21.09.2019 20.10.2026 21.10.2026 to 19.11.2026 

 
The Company urges all the Members to encash/ claim their respective dividend during the prescribed period. Members 
who have not encashed the dividend so far in respect of the aforesaid period(s), are requested to make their claim to the 
Company well in advance of the above due dates. 

xii. Pursuant to Section124(6) of the Companies Act,2013, as amended  and Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting ,Audit ,Transfer and Refund) Rules,2016( the IEPF Rules,2016)  and any further amendment thereof, all 
shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred  
to the IEPF Authority. 

Accordingly, during F.Y.2019-2020, the Company has transferred 1,750 equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each 
pertaining to 3 shareholders whose dividend has not been claimed for seven consecutive years or more to the demat  
account of the IEPF Authority. 

In due compliance of the provisions of rule 6(3) of the IEPF Rules, the Company will send individual letters through speed 
post to all such members requesting them to claim the amount of unpaid dividend before the Company proceeds with the 
transfer of related shares to demat account of the IEPF Authority.  

The Company will also be publishing notice in the Newspapers intimating the members of the said provisions and these 
details will be available on the Company’s website www.berarfinance.com 

As provided under the IEPF Rules, a member can claim such dividend and shares transferred to the Fund by the following 
procedure prescribed in the IEPF Rules which is available on the Company’s website www.berarfinance.com.  

xiii. The Ministry of Corporate affairs by virtue of notification dated 10 th September, 2018 has amended the Companies 
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014. According to this notification ; 
 
Every holder of securities of an unlisted public company,  
 
(a) who intends to transfer such securities on or after 2nd October, 2018, shall get such securities dematerialised before 
the transfer; or  
 
(b) who subscribes to any securities of an unlisted public company (whether by way of private placement or bonus shares 
or rights offer) on or after 2nd October, 2018 shall ensure that all his existing securities are held in dematerialized form 
before such subscription.  
 
To facilitate the shareholders of the Company to demat their shareholding in the Company, the Company has made 
admission of its securities on both Depositories namely Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and National 
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) .The Company has appointed M/s.  Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., Mumbai as share 
Transfer Agent (RTA). 
 
The members who are holding shares in Physical Form are requested to avail dematerialization facility. For further 
information, please refer to the FAQs posted by NSDL on its website www.nsdl.co.in and CDSL on its website 
www.cdslindia.com.  
 

http://www.berarfinance.com/
http://www.berarfinance.com/
http://www.nsdl.co.in/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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xiv. Members can avail of the facility of nomination in respect of shares held by them pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. 
 
For the said purpose 
1) Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode may approach their respective depository participants (DP) 
And  
2) Shareholders holding shares in physical mode can approach M/s. Bigshare Services Pvt. Ltd., our Registrar & Share 
Transfer Agent (RTA) at 1st floor, Bharat Tin works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, Andheri (East), 
Mumbai 400059 ph.no. 022-62638200. 
 

xv. Members are requested to support the Green Initiative by registering / updating their e-mail addresses, with the Depository 
participants (in case shares held in dematerialized form) or with Big share Services Private Limited (in case shares held in physical 
form). 
 

xvi. The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the following statutory registers at its registered office at Nagpur-440012. 
 
a) Register of contracts or arrangements in which directors are interested under section 189 of the Act.  
b) Register of directors and key managerial personnel and their shareholding under section 170 of the Act. 

 
In accordance with the MCA circulars, the said registers will be made accessible for inspection through electronic mode, 
and shall remain open and be accessible to any member during the continuance of the meeting.  

 
xvii. Relevant documents referred to in this Notice of AGM and Explanatory Statement, will be available electronically for 

inspection by the Members during the AGM. All documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic 
inspection without any fee by the Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 28 th 
September 2020. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email to 
deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com. 
 

xviii. Those Members who have not yet registered their email addresses are requested to get their email addresses registered 
by following the procedure given below: 

 

a) Members holding shares in demat form can get their email ID registered by contacting their respective Depository 
Participant. 

b) Members holding shares in physical form may register their email address by informing the Company Secretary of 
the Company at her email id deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com.  

Those Members who have already registered their email addresses are requested to keep their email addresses  
validated/updated with their DPs/ the Company to enable servicing of notices/documents/Annual Reports and other 
communications electronically to their email address in future. 

 
xix. The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Sunil Purushottam Zore, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.11837), having 

office at “A-wing, 202, Kolshet Road, Dhokali Naka, Cosmos Nest, Thane(W)– 400 607”and at “Block No.98,Wing III, Rajat 
Sankul, Baidyanath Square,Nagpur-440024” as the Scrutinizer for conducting E-Voting process(both remote e-voting as 
well as e-voting during the AGM) in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

xx. It may be noted that the remote e-voting facility is optional. The remote e-voting facility will be available at the link 
www.evotingindia.com during the following voting period: 
 
The remote e-voting would commence on Thursday, the 24th September 2020 (9:00 A.M.) and end on Sunday, the 27th 
September 2020 (5:00 P.M.). 
 

xxi. During the above period, shareholders of the Company as on the cut-off date of 21st September 2020 may cast their vote 

electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting after 5.00 p.m. on 27th September 2020. Once 

the vote on a resolution is cast by the shareholder, the shareholder cannot change it subsequently . 

 

xxii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to the shares held by them in the paid up equity share capital of the 

Company as on Monday, 21st September, 2020. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the 

Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the cut-off date (21st September, 2020) only shall be 

entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting / e-voting at the time of the meeting. 
 

mailto:deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com
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The facility for voting through electronic voting system shall also be made available at the time of the meeting and 

Members attending the meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e -voting shall be able to exercise their 

right at the meeting. 
 

xxiii. Notice is being sent to all the shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members in the Register of Beneficial 
Owners maintained by the Depositories as at the close of business hours on Wednesday, 2nd September, 2020 and who 
have registered their email IDs with the Company/Depositories. 
Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member after dispatch of the Notice, but holds shares 
as on the cut-off date for remote e-voting i.e. Monday, 21st September,2020 may obtain the login Id and password by 
sending a request to helpdesk.evoting@ cdslindia.com or contact our Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at their address 
mentioned at point xiv. 
 

xxiv. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not 
be entitled to cast their vote again. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may 
also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 
 

xxv. Members can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e., either by remote-evoting or e-voting during the meeting. In case 
Members cast their votes through both the modes, voting done by remote e-voting shall prevail and votes cast through e-
voting during the meeting shall be treated as invalid. 
 

xxvi. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) who shall be providing 
facility for voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the AGM through VC/ OAVM facility and e-voting during the 
AGM. The procedures and instructions for ‘remote e-voting’, ‘attending the meeting’ and ‘e-voting at the meeting’. Issued 
by CDSL, are furnished as part of this Notice. 
 

xxvii. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Company after completion of the scrutiny and the results of the remote e-
voting / e-voting during the AGM, will be announced by the Company on its website – www.berarfinance.com within 48 
hours of the conclusion of the AGM. 
 

xxviii. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies Act, 2013 
requires the Company to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details,  email address, Aadhar Card 
Number etc. Members are requested to submit their details and changes therein; 
a) In case shares held in Demat Form, to their respective depository participant 
 
b) In case shares held in physical form, the member can approach the Company’s RTA M/s.  Big share Services Pvt. Ltd., 
our Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at 1st floor, Bharat Tin works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, Makwana Road, Marol, 
Andheri (East), Mumbai 400059 ph.no. 022-62638200. 

  
xxix. Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable at the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020 and the Company 

is required to deduct tax at source from the dividend paid at the prescribed rates, if the dividend amount exceeds ₹ 5,000/-. For 
the prescribed rates for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments 
thereof. A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly declaration in 
Form No. 15G/15H , to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by email to deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com  by 
Thursday, 10th September, 2020. Shareholders are requested to note that in case their PAN is not registered, tax will be deducted 
at a higher rate of 20%. 
 

  

mailto:deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

Resolution at Item No. 4: 

 

Pursuant to the share subscription agreement dated December 20, 2019 entered into among Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP (“ACPE”), 

Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I (“ACPIF ” and together with ACPE, the “Investors”), the Company, Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr.Sandeep 

Jawanjal, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal and Avino Capcons Private Limited 
(“Avino ”  and such parties, together, the “Transaction Parties” and such agreement, the “SSA”)   and the shareholders’ agreement dated 

December 20, 2019 entered into among the Transaction Parties (the “SHA” and together with the SSA, the “Transaction Documents”), 

the Investors propose to invest upto INR 50,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Fifty Crores only) or such amount as mutually decided between the 
Transaction Parties in the Company. In terms of the Transaction Documents, the Company is required to substitute the existing Articles of 
Association of the Company with the revised Articles of Association of the Company. 

The Revised Articles incorporate certain terms of the Transaction Documents and are in consonance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

The provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) 
require the Company to seek the approval of the members of the Company by way of a special resolution for amending and re-stating its 
Articles of Association by way of substitution of  its  existing Articles of Association with  the Revised Articles. Further, in terms of Section 
5(3) read with Section 5(4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company may, by passing a special resolution, include entrenchment 
provisions in its Article of Association. Accordingly, the entrenchment provisions contained in the Revised Articles need to be approved by 
its members by way of a special resolution. 

This item was a part of notice of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company scheduled to be held on 13th April, 2020 but 
due to COVID -19 , the said EGM was postponed and now the Board recommends to consider this item at this ensuing  AGM.  

A copy of the Revised Articles of Association of the Company is annexed to this Notice as Annexure 1 and also available for inspection by 
the members through electronic mode. 

None of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company including their relatives are concerned or interested, directly or 
indirectly, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 4, except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company. 

In view of the above, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) recommends passing of the resolution set out as Item No. 4 as 
a Special Resolution. 

 

Resolution at Item No. 5: 

 

Pursuant to the terms of the Transaction Documents and the recommendation made by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of 
the Company in its meeting dated February 20, 2020, Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman holding DIN 00233782 (the “Investor Director”), has 

been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company at the meeting of the Board, held on February 20, 2020 in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules 
framed thereunder read with the applicable provisions of the Articles of Association of the Company. 

The Investor Director has been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company and is entitled to hold office up to the date of ensuing 
Annual General Meeting of the Company or the last date on which the Annual General Meeting of the Company should have been held, 
whichever is earlier. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its meeting dated February 20, 2020 had 
recommended to regularize the appointment of the Investor Director as a Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation, at the Extra-
ordinary General Meeting of the Company (EGM) or the Annual General Meeting of the Company, whichever is earlier. 

This item was a part of notice of the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the Company scheduled to be held on 13th April, 2020 but 
due to COVID -19 , the said EGM was postponed and now the Board recommends to consider this item at this ensuing AGM.  

The Investor Director holds a valid DIN as per Section 154 of Companies Act, 2013 and further is not disqualified as per Section 164 of 
Companies Act, 2013. Additionally, the Company has received his consent to act as a Director of the Company in Form DIR- 2 along with 
other requisite documents required for his appointment as a Director. Accordingly, the Board recommends this resolution for the 
appointment of the Investor Director, who has been appointed as an Additional Director of the Company, as a Director of the Company 
liable to retire by rotation, for the approval by the shareholders of the Company. 

In terms of SS-2 –Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the 
Central Government under Section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (revised version effective from October 1, 2017), a brief profile of 
the Investor Director, including names of companies in which he holds directorships and memberships/chairmanships of committees of 
the board of directors of other companies, is provided below: 
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S. No. Nature of Information Particulars 
1. Name of the Director Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman 
2. Director Information Number (DIN) 00233782 

3. Date of Birth November 19, 1975 

4. Date of Appointment on the Board February 20, 2020 

5. Terms and Conditions of Appointment Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman has been appointed pursuant to the terms of the 
Transaction Documents. He shall be a Non-Executive Director on the Board 
and be liable to retire by rotation. 

6. Details of Remuneration Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman shall be entitled to all rights and privileges of 
other Non-Executive Directors and to the sitting fees and expenses as 
well as all reasonable out-of-pocket-expenses (including travel, 
boarding and lodging expenses) for attending any shareholders’ 

meeting or Board meeting of the Company or a meeting of the board of 
directors of subsidiaries of the Company (if any) and any other 
reasonable expenses incurred by him in the course of fulfilling his duties 
and obligations as a Director of the Company and/or a director of the 
subsidiaries of the Company (if appointed) in  terms of the policy of the 
Company. 

7. Number of Shares held in the Company and 

the Shareholding in the Company 

Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman does not hold any shares directly in the 
Company. Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman is a Designated Partner and 
Sponsor of ACPE and is a Sponsor of ACPIF. ACPE holds 997,778 
equity shares of the Company and 498,889 cumulative compulsorily 
convertible participating preference shares of the Company, 
aggregating to 12.25% of the total share capital of the Company on a 
fully diluted basis. ACPIF holds 113,333 equity shares of the Company 
and 56,667 cumulative compulsorily convertible participating 
preference shares of the Company, aggregating to 1.39% of the total 
share capital of the Company on a fully diluted basis. 

8. Relationship with other Directors, Manager 
and other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

 
 
Nil. 

9. Qualifications Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman is an associate member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (membership no. 212433). He is a qualified 
Cost Accountant (Grad CWA) and holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce 

(B.Com) from Bangalore University. 

10. Experience Prior to co-founding Amicus Capital in 2015, Mahesh was a Managing 
Director in the Asia Growth Capital team of The Carlyle Group based in 
Mumbai. During his ten plus years at Carlyle, Mahesh led investments across 
sectors such as technology, financial services and consumer. 

Before joining Carlyle, Mahesh worked for EY in their Corporate Finance 
Team for four years where he was closely involved in M&A engagements in 
the technology sector. 

Mahesh also worked for Arthur Andersen in their Tax and Business Advisory 
Group for four years. 

11. Number of meetings of the Board attended/ 
held 

Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman has been appointed as an Additional Director of 
the Company pursuant to a meeting of the Board dated February 20, 2020. 
He has not attended/been part of any other meeting of the Board. 

12. Directorship held in other companies as on 

31.03.2020 

As on March 31, 2020, Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman holds directorship in the 
following companies: 

(a) AAUM Investment Advisers Private Limited; 

(b) D2C Consulting Services Private Limited; 

(c) D2C Insurance Broking Private Limited; 

(d) Capital Small Finance Bank Limited; and 

(e) Wonderchef Home Appliances Private Limited. 
13. Chairmanship/Membership of the committees 

of the board of directors of other companies 
as on 31.03.2020 

As on March 31, 2020 Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman holds chairmanship/ 
membership of the committees of the board of directors of the following 
companies: 

* Audit Committee of Wonderchef Home Appliances Private Limited; and· 
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* Compensation Committee of Wonderchef Home Appliances Private 
Limited. 

 
Other than the Investor Director, none of the directors and key managerial personnel of the Company including their relatives are concerned 
or interested, directly or indirectly, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 5, except to the extent of their shareholding 
in the Company. 

In view of the above, the Board recommends passing of the resolution set out as Item No. 5 as an Ordinary Resolution.  

 
Resolution at Item No. 6: 

 
Pursuant to the share subscription agreement dated December 20, 2019 entered into among Transaction Parties and the shareholders 
agreement dated December 20, 2019 entered into among the Transaction Parties, the Company is required to revise the terms and 
conditions of employment agreement dated March 21,2016 of Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal (DIN:01490054) Executive Director of the Company 

Pursuant to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company at its meeting dated February 20, 2020 
and the approval of the Board at its meeting held on February 20, 2020, the terms and conditions of employment agreement dated March 
21,2016 with respect to Mr. Sandeep Marotrao Jawanjal (DIN:01490054) Executive Director(Whole-time Director) of the Company (the 
“Employee”) have been revised for the remainder of his term as Executive Director(Whole-time Director) of the Company and any further 
period there from subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at  duly convened meeting of  the shareholders pursuant to 
the Revised Employment Agreement dated February 20, 2020 (the “Revised Employment Agreement”). This revision was subject to 
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) scheduled to be held on 13th April,2020 but 
due to COVID- 19 ,the said meeting was postponed and hence Board has now recommended to consider this item at this ensuing AGM.  
. 

The summary of the key terms as contained in the Revised Employment Agreement are reproduced below: 

1. Duties and Responsibilities of Employee 
1.1 The Employee shall be in  full-time employment of  the Company and shall devote his whole time and all his attention and 

skill to the duties of his office and shall faithfully and diligently perform such duties in relation to the Business as may from 
time to time be assigned to him by the Board or any Person who has been authorized in this regard by the Board. 

1.2 The Employee hereby agrees and undertakes to employ the best of  his skills and abilities to  promote the interest and  
welfare of the Company and shall not utilize or divulge any of the Company’s trade secrets to any persons, during or after   
his Association. 

1.3 The Employee shall report to the Board and shall have and exercise all the powers and authorities that are consistent with 
his role as the Executive Director subject to the supervision, control and direction of the Board. The Employee shall operate   
in accordance with the directions given by the Board and shall report to the Board at regularly scheduled meetings of the 
Board on at least a quarterly basis each calendar year regarding the Company’s progress in achieving the goals set forth 
in the most current Business Plan and on such matters as the Board may require him to report, in his capacity as the 
Executive Director. 

1.4 The Employee will forthwith on receipt of written instructions from the Board, cease to perform and/or exercise any of the 
duties, powers and/or responsibilities delegated to him by the Board. 

1.5 The Employee shall, both during and after termination of his appointment, maintain strict confidentiality with respect to third 
parties as to all Confidential Information received or prepared by him during the Term, irrespective of how he has obtained 
such Confidential Information. All notes, memoranda, records and writings made by or made available by the Company to 
the Employee relating to the Business shall be and remain the exclusive property of the Company and shall be handed 
over by him to the Board from time to time on  demand and in  any event upon the expiry of  the Term  or  termination of 
this Agreement. 

1.6 The Employee shall not at any time make any untrue or misleading statement in relation to the Company. After the expiry 
or termination of his employment hereunder, he shall not represent himself as being directly or indirectly employed by the 
Company or connected with (except as a Shareholder and a Board member of the Company, if applicable) the Company. 

1.7 The remuneration payable to the Employee as stated in  this Agreement shall be  deemed to  include valuable consideration 
in respect of the non-competition and non-solicitation covenant and undertaking given by the Employee as stated in this 
Agreement and the Employee hereby acknowledges and admits the adequacy and sufficiency of such consideration. 

1.8 Notwithstanding anything provided in this Agreement, the Employee shall not, during the Term, carry on any business or 
occupation for compensation or otherwise, or devote any part of his time in any capacity in the service of, or be employed 
by any firm, company or Person other than the Company. 

1.9 The Employee shall at all times perform all of his obligations under this Agreement and shall on a best efforts basis cause 
the other employees of the Company to perform their obligations in strict conformity with applicable Law and the Policies. 
Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, the Employee shall at all times comply with the Anticorruption Laws and 
the Policies and shall cause the other employees of the Company to perform their obligations in strict conformity with the 
Anticorruption Laws and the Policies. 
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1.10 The Employee shall, in addition to paragraphs 1.1 to 1.9, have the specific powers, authority, duties and responsibilities 
as per paragraph 2 which be altered in the sole discretion of the Board. 

 

2. Powers, Authorities, Duties and Responsibilities of the Employee 

A. Key Responsibility: 

(a) Managing the operations of the Company and achieving the targets of the Company as per the Business Plan; and 

(b) Providing leadership to the organization, ensure a robust organizational structure and development of the teams at all 
levels. 

B. Duties and responsibilities of the Employee include: 

(a) Preparation of strategies of the Business in consultation with the Board to meet the Business Plan; 

b) Building and appointing a core team of professionals in the Company to support the Business and manage the operations, 
business and delivery quality of the Company; 

c) Setting up infrastructure for the Business; 

(d) Providing assistance for the day-to-day management of all logistics, infrastructure, back-end, call-center, service back-up 
and support to the Company, subject to the direction, control and superintendence of the Board; and 

(e) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, complying with all obligations and responsibilities as laid down by the  Board 
from time to time that are not obligations/responsibilities as stated in B(a) to (e). 

3. The remuneration and compensation payable to the Employee shall not change pursuant to the Revised Employment Agreement. 

4. The Employee shall also be subject to confidentiality, non-compete and non-solicit obligations in terms of the Revised Employment 
Agreement. 

 

Capitalised terms used in paragraphs 1-4 but not defined therein shall have the meaning assigned to such term in the Revised 
Employment Agreement. 
 
A copy of the Revised Employment Agreement is available for inspection through electronic mode upto and including the date of AGM. 
The Board recommends passing of the resolution set out in Item no.6 of the accompanying Notice as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 

Except Mr. Maroti Gendaru Jawanjar, Mr.Sandeep Marotrao Jawanjal and their relatives, none of the other Directors and their relatives 
are concerned or interested financially or otherwise in this resolution set out in Item no.6. 
 
 
Resolution at Item No. 7: 
 

Resolution at item no. 7 is a “Matter Pertaining to Fundamental Issues” as per the SHA (defined below), as amended. 

 

A share subscription agreement, as amended dated December 20, 2019 has been entered into among Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 

(“ACPE”), Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I (“ACPIF” and together with ACPE, the “Investors”), Berar Finance Limited (the “Company”), 

Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal 

and Avino Capcons Private Limited (together, the “Transaction Parties” and such agreement, the “SSA”); and (b) a shareholders’ 

agreement, as amended dated December 20, 2019 has been entered into among the Transaction Parties (the “SHA” and together with the 

SSA, the “Transaction Documents”).  

 

Pursuant to the terms of the Transaction Documents, the Investors have on February 20, 2020 invested an aggregate amount of INR 

30,00,00,060 (Indian Rupees Thirty Crores and Sixty only) in the Company by way of subscription to 11,11,111 (eleven lakhs eleven 

thousand one hundred and eleven only) equity shares of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each (the “Tranche 1 Series A Equity 

Shares”) and 5,55,556 (five lakhs fifty five thousand five hundred and fifty six) cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference 

shares carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each (the “Tranche 

1 Series A CCPS”). 

 

In terms of the Transaction Documents, as amended, the Investors are desirous of making an additional investment in the Company and in 

this regard the Company proposes to issue:  

 

(a) 5,18,742 (five lakhs eighteen thousand seven hundred and forty two) equity shares of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) 

each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per equity share (the “ACPE Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares”); 
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and 345,829 (three lakhs forty five thousand eight hundred and twenty nine) Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible 

participating preference shares carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees 

Ten only) each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily 

convertible participating preference share (“ACPE Tranche 2 Series A CCPS”), for an aggregate subscription amount of 

INR 18,15,59,910 (Indian Rupees Eighteen Crores Fifteen Lakhs Fifty Nine Thousand Nine Hundred and Ten only) (the “ACPE 

Additional Primary Investment Amount”), to ACPE; and  

 

(b) 52,686 (fifty two thousand six hundred and eighty six) equity shares of face value INR 10 each (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a 

premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per equity share (the “ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares” and 

together with the ACPE Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares, the “Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares”); and 35,124 (thirty five thousand 

one hundred and twenty four) Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares carrying a 

coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face value INR 10 each (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of INR 

200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference share 

(“ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A CCPS” and together with the ACPE Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, the “Tranche 2 Series A CCPS”), for 

an aggregate subscription amount of INR 1,84,40,100 (Indian Rupees One Crore Eighty Four Lakhs Forty Thousand and One Hundred 

only) (the “ACPIF Additional Primary Investment Amount” and together with the ACPE Additional Primary Investment Amount, the 

“Additional Primary Investment Amount”), to ACPIF,  

 

on a private placement basis (the “Proposed Transaction”). 

 

The terms applicable to the Tranche 1 Series A Equity Shares and the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares will be identical and the terms 

applicable to the Tranche 1 Series A CCPS and the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS will be distinct on account of the distinct ‘Conversion Ratios’ 

applicable to Tranche 1 Series A CCPS and the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, respectively, as set out in Annexure 2. 

 

Pursuant to Section 55 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (the 

“SCD Rules”), the Company is required to specifically authorize an issuance of preference shares by way of a special resolution. Given that 

the Company intends to issue the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS to the Investors, the Members of the Company are required to authorize the 

issuance of such preference shares. In this regard, set out below is the information required to be provided by the Company in the notice 

and explanatory statement of the shareholders meeting in accordance with Rule 9 of the SCD Rules: 

 

1. Size of issue and number of preference shares to be issued and the nominal value of each share: 3,80,953 (three lakhs eighty thousand 

nine hundred and fifty three only) fully paid up Tranche 2 Series A cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares 

of face value Rs.10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each. 

 

2. Nature of shares: Each Tranche 2 Series A CCPS shall be a cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference share 

carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum of face value. 

 

3. Objectives of the issues: The Company shall utilize the proceeds from the issue for expansion of its business and to improve its 

Capital Adequacy Ratio. 

 

4. Manner of issue of shares: Private Placement. 

 

5. The price at which such shares are proposed to be issued: INR. 210 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Ten only) each including a 

premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) each. 

 

6. Basis on which the price has been arrived at: As set out in the valuation certificate enclosed as Annexure 3.  

 

7. Terms of Issue including terms and rate of dividend on each share, etc.: As provided under Annexure 2 and the Transaction 

Documents.  
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8. Terms of redemption, including the tenure of redemption, redemption of shares at premium and if the preference shares are 

convertible, the terms of conversion: As provided under Annexure 2 and the Transaction Documents. 

 

9. Manner and modes of redemption: As provided under Annexure 2. 

 

10. Current Shareholding Pattern of the Company: As provided under Annexure 4.  

 

11. Expected Dilution in equity share capital upon conversion of preference shares: As provided under Annexure 2. 

 

Interest of the Directors and KMP: Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman, who is a director on the board of directors of the Company is also a 

designated partner of ACPE, which proposes to subscribe to ACPE Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, and a Sponsor of ACPIF, which proposes 

to subscribe to ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A CCPS. Accordingly, he is interested in this resolution. Except Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman, none 

of the other directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company and their relatives are interested in this resolution except to the 

extent of their shareholding in the Company. 

 

In view of above, the board of directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution set out at Item No. 7 as a Special 

Resolution. 
 
 
Resolution at Item No. 8:  
 

Resolution at item no. 8 is a “Matter Pertaining to Fundamental Issues” as per the SHA, as amended. 

 

In addition to the issuance of Tranche 2 Series A CCPS to the Investors (referred in S No. 7 above), the Company is also proposing to issue 

the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares to the Investors. Both the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS and the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares are 

proposed to be issued under Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with all 

applicable rules framed thereunder. Accordingly, the consent of the shareholders by way of special resolution is being sought pursuant to 

the provisions of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for the issuance of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS as well as the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares 

on a private placement basis. The Members of the Company are, therefore, requested to accord their approval for the board of directors of 

the Company to issue the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS and Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares to the Investors on a private placement basis. 

 

In terms of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 

2014 (the “PAS Rules”) and Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13(2)(d) of the SCD Rules, please see below the 

details required to be disclosed in the explanatory statement of a shareholders meeting with respect to the proposed issuance of the Tranche 

2 Series A CCPS and the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares to the Investors, on a private placement basis: 

I. Details as required under Section 62(1)(c) of the Act read with Rule13(2)(d) of the SCD Rules:  

 

S. No Subject Particulars 

1.  The objects of the issue The Company shall utilize the proceeds from the issue for expansion of its 

business and to improve its Capital Adequacy Ratio. 

2.  The total number of 

shares or other 

securities to be issued 

5,71,428 (five lakhs seventy one thousand four hundred and twenty eight) 

equity shares of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each and 380,953 (three 

lakhs eighty thousand nine hundred and fifty three) Tranche 2 Series A 

cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of INR 10 

(Indian Rupees Ten only) each. 

3.  The price or price band 

at/within which the 

allotment is proposed 

Tranche 2 Series A CCPS: INR 210 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and Ten 

only) each including a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) 

each; and 
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Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares: INR 210 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred and 

Ten only) each including a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred 

only) each. 

4.  Basis on which the price 

has been arrived at 

along with report of the 

registered valuer 

Please see enclosed the valuation certificate dated 17th August, 2020 issued 

by M. B. Brahme & Co., Chartered Accountants, annexed hereto as 

Annexure3. 

5.  Name and address of 

the valuer 

M. B. Brahme & Co. Chartered Accountants, 901, Great Eastern Heights, 

Marve Road, Malad (W), Mumbai- 400 064. 

6.  Relevant date with 

reference to which the 

price has been arrived 

at 

30th June, 2020. The Tranche 2 Series A CCPS shall be convertible in the 

manner set out in Annexure 2.  

7.  The class or classes of 

persons to whom the 

allotment is proposed to 

be made 

Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP (“ACPE”), non-promoter, financial 

investor (SEBI registered Category II AIF). 

 

Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I (“ACPIF”), non-promoter, financial 

investor (SEBI registered Category II AIF). 

8.  Intention of promoters, 

directors or key 

managerial personnel to 

subscribe to the offer 

Nil. 

9.  The proposed time 

within which the 

allotment shall be 

completed 

Before November 30, 2020. 

10.  The names of the 

proposed allottees and 

the percentage of post 

preferential offer capital 

that may be held by 

them. 

1. Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP: 17.66% (seventeen point six six 

percent) on a fully diluted basis; and 

 

2. Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I: 1.93% (one point nine three 

percent) on a fully diluted basis. 

11.  The change in control, if 

any, in the company that 

would occur 

consequent to the 

preferential offer. 

There is no change of control pursuant to the issuance and subscription of the 

Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares and Tranche 2 Series A CCPS. The 

Promoters of the Company will continue to be in control of the Company. 

12.  The number of persons 

to whom allotment on 

preferential basis have 

already been made 

during the year, in terms 

of number of securities 

as well as price 

2 (two). 

 

1. The Company has issued and allotted 9,97,778 (nine lakhs ninety seven 

thousand seven hundred and seventy eight) equity shares of face value 

INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of INR 170 and 

4,98,889 (four lakhs ninety eight thousand eight hundred and eighty nine) 

cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares 

carrying a coupon of 0.1% per annum of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees 

Ten only) each at a premium of INR 170 (Indian Rupees One Hundred 

Seventy only) to ACPE on February 20, 2020. 
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2. The Company has issued and allotted 1,13,333 (one lakh thirteen 

thousand three hundred and thirty three) equity shares of face value INR 

10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium of INR 170 (Indian 

Rupees One Hundred Seventy only) and 56,667 (fifty six thousand six 

hundred and sixty seven)cumulative compulsorily convertible participating 

preference shares carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per 

annum of face value INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each at a premium 

of INR 170 (Indian Rupees One Hundred Seventy only) to ACPIF on 

February 20, 2020. 

 

13.  The justification for the 

allotment proposed to 

be made for 

consideration other than 

cash together with 

valuation report of the 

registered valuer 

Not applicable. 

14.  The pre-issue and post-

issue shareholding 

pattern of the Company 

shall be as follows 

Please refer to enclosed Annexure 5. 

 

II. Details as required under Section 42 read with Rule 14(1) of the PAS Rules: 

 

S. No Subject Particulars 

1.  Particulars of offer including the 

date of board resolution 

The offer is a private placement of the Tranche 2 Series A Equity 

Shares and the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS in accordance with the 

terms as set out in Table I above and Table II herein. The date of 

the board meeting approving the issuance is 29th August, 2020. 

2.  Kinds of securities offered and price 

at which securities are being offered 

Please see S. No. 2 of Table I above. 

3.  Basis or justification for the price 

(including premium, if any) at which 

the offer or invitation is being made; 

Please see enclosed the valuation certificate dated 17th August, 

2020 issued by M. B. Brahme & Co., Chartered Accountants, 

annexed hereto as Annexure 3 

4.  Name and address of the valuer Please see S. No. 5 of Table I above. 

5.  Amount which the Company intends 

to raise by way of such securities 

INR 200,000,010 (Indian Rupees Twenty Crores and Ten only) 

6.  Material terms of raising such 

securities. 

The terms of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS are set out in 

Annexure 2. 

 

The Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares will have the same 

characteristics as an ordinary share of the Company. 

7.  Proposed time schedule for which 

the offer letter is valid. 

Within 90 days from the date of passing resolution by the 

shareholders. 

8.  Purposes or objects of offer. Please see S. No. 1 of Table I above. 

9.  Contribution being made by the 

promoters or directors either as part 

Nil. 
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of the offer or separately in 

furtherance of objects; 

10.  The details of significant and 

material orders passed by the 

Regulators, Courts and Tribunals 

impacting the going concern status 

of the company and its future 

operations 

Nil. 

11.  Principal terms of assets charged as 

securities 

Not Applicable. 

 

Interest of the Directors and KMP: Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman, who is a director on the board of directors of the Company is also a 

designated partner of ACPE, which proposes to subscribe to ACPE Tranche 2 Series A CCPS and the ACPE Tranche 2 Series A Equity 

Shares, and a Sponsor of ACPIF, which proposes to subscribe to ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A CCPS and the ACPIF Tranche 2 Series A 

Equity Shares. Accordingly, he is interested in this resolution. Except Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman, none of the other directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel (KMP) of the Company and their relatives are interested in this resolution except to the extent of their shareholding in the 

Company. 

 

In view of above, the board of directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution set out at Item No. 8 as a Special 

Resolution. 
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Information regarding Resolution at Item No.3 on Director being re-appointed as required under Secretarial Standard-2 on General 
Meetings: 

Name of the Director Mr. Shantaram Krishnarao Mahakalkar 

DIN 00379988 

Date of Birth 04.07.1953 

Date of Appointment on the 
Board 

25.09.2002 

Number of shares held in the 
Company 

29,900 

Relationship with Directors None 

Qualification M.Com 

Experience 33 years of experience in academics 

Number of meetings of the 
Board attended/held 

7/8 

Directorship held in other 
Public companies (excluding 
Foreign companies and 
Government Bodies) as on 
31.03.2020 

Nil 

Chairman /Member of the 
Committee of the Board of 
Directors of the Company as 
on 31.03.2020  

Risk Management Committee & Asset Liability 
Management Committee: Member 

Stakeholder Relationship Committee: Chairman 
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PROCEDURES / INSTRUCTIONS 

 

CDSL E-Voting System – For Remote E-Voting and E-Voting during AGM 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the general meetings of the  companies 
shall be conducted as per the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
April 8, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. The forthcoming AGM 
will thus be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can attend and 
participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. 

2. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, 
the Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting 
as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will be provided by CDSL. 

3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the   commencement 
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM 
will be made available to at least 1,000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 

4. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/ OAVM will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

5. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members 
is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
representatives of the members such as the President of India or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the 
AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their votes through e-voting. 

MEMBERS INSTRUCTIONS FOR E-VOTING  

6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM has 
been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.berarfinance.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites 
of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM) i.e. www.evotingindia. com. 

7. The AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020 and MCA Circular No. 
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020. 

 

A) THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER: 

   (i) The voting period begins on Thursday, 24th September, 2020 (9:00 A.M.) and ends on Sunday, 27th September, 2020 (5:00 
P.M.) During this period shareholders of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as 
on the cut-off date (record date) of Monday, 21st September, 2020 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module 
shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

    (ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting. 

   (iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

   (iv) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
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   (v) Now enter your User ID 

         a.   For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

         b.   For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

        c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

   (vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

  (vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e- voting of any 
company, then your existing password is to be used. 

  (viii)  If you are a first time user follow the steps given below: 

          For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form 

PAN  Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for 
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank 
Details 
OR Date of Birth 
(DOB) 

 Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your 
demat account or in the company records in order to login. 
 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter the member 
id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v). 

 (ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their 

login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL 
platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. 

(xi) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained   in this 
Notice. 

(xii) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

(xiii) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select 

the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you 
dissent to the Resolution. 

(xiv) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

(xvi) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

(xvii) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

(xviii) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
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(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from 
respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while Remote Voting on your mobile. 

(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians 

   • Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

   • A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance 
User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

   • The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the  accounts 
they would be able to cast their vote. 

• A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the   Custodian, if 
any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

  • Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company 
at the email address viz; deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in 
the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting 
manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact Mr. 
Nitin Kunder (022- 23058738 ) or Mr. Mehboob Lakhani (022-23058543) or Mr. Rakesh Dalvi (022-23058542). 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Manager, (CDSL), 
Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, 
Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call on 022-23058542/43. 

Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are not registered with the depositories for obtaining login 
credentials for e-voting for the resolutions proposed in this notice: 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self- attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com. 

2. For Demat shareholders, please provide Demat account details (CDSL-16 digit beneficiary ID or NSDL-16 digit DPID + CLID), 
Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 
(self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com. 

3. The Company/RTA shall co-ordinate with CDSL and provide the login credentials to the above mentioned shareholders. 

B) INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE MEMBERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Shareholders will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the CDSL e-Voting system. 
Shareholders may access the same at https://www.evotingindia.com under shareholders/ members login by using the remote 
e-voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in shareholder/ members login where the EVSN of Company will 
be displayed. 

2. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through laptops / IPads for better experience. 

3. Further shareholders will be required to allow camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during 
the meeting. 
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4. Please note that Participants connecting from mobile devices or tablets or through laptops connecting via mobile hotspot 
may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Members who would like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by 
sending their request from their registered email address mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, 
mobile number at deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com from 22nd September, 2020 (9:00 A.M. IST) to 24th September, 2020 
(5:00 P.M. IST). Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ 
ask questions during the AGM. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the 
availability of time for the AGM. 

 
Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries, may send their queries by e-mail to 
deepali.balpande@berarfinance.com mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN, mobile number from 22nd 
September, 2020 (9:00 A.M. IST) to 24th September, 2020 (5:00 P.M. IST). These queries will be replied to by the Company suitably 
by email. 
 

C) INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING DURING THE AGM  

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

2. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC / OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the 
Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system available during the AGM. 

3. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the same shareholders have 
not participated in the meeting through VC / OAVM facility , then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered 
invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

4. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be eligible 
to vote at the AGM. 
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ANNEXURE 1 

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF 

BERAR FINANCE LIMITED 
 

The Articles of Association of the Company is divided in two parts i.e. Part A and Part B.  The provisions of Part A shall apply to all matters to 
which they pertain, to the extent, and only insofar as they are not inconsistent with the provisions of Part B.  Notwithstanding anything 
contained in these Articles, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of Articles contained in Part  A  and  Part  B,  
the  provisions of the Articles contained in Part B shall  override and prevail over the provisions of the Articles contained in Part A. 

The provisions of Articles 1 to 18(both inclusive) of Part B of these Articles shall have effect notwithstanding anything contained in any other 
provision of these Articles. 

PART – A 

1. The regulations contained in Table ‘F’ of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 shall apply to the Company so far as are applicable 
to  public companies except so far as they have been impliedly or expressly modified by what is contained in these Articles. In the 
event of a conflict between the regulations contained in Table ‘F’ of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 and these Articles, the 
provisions contained in these Articles shall prevail. 

I. Definitions 

2. In Part A of these Articles— 

(i) “Act” means the Companies Act, 2013; 

(ii) “Article” or “Articles” means the Articles of Association of the Company, as altered or amended from time to time; 

(iii) “Board” means the board of Directors; 

(iv) “Company” means Berar Finance Limited; 

(v) “Director(s)” means a director of the Company; and 

(vi) “Seal” means common seal of the Company. 

3. Unless the context otherwise requires, words or expressions contained in these Articles shall bear the same meaning as in the Act or 
any statutory modification thereof in force at the date at which these Articles become binding on the Company. 

II. Share capital and variation of rights 

4. Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Articles, the  shares in the capital of  the  Company shall be  under the  control   of  the  
Directors who  may  issue, allot or  otherwise dispose of  the  same or  any  of  them to  such persons, in  such proportion and on such 
terms and conditions  and  either  at  a  premium  or  at  par  and  at  such  time  as  they  may  from  time  to  time  think fit. 

5. 

(i) The Company may exercise the powers of paying commissions conferred by sub-section (6) of  section  40  of  the  Act, provided 
that the rate percent or the amount of the commission paid  or  agreed  to  be  paid  shall  be  disclosed  in  the  manner required 
by that section and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) The rate or amount of the commission shall not exceed the rate or amount prescribed in rules made under sub-section 
(6) of section 40 of the Act. 

(iii) The commission may be satisfied by the payment of cash or the allotment of fully or partly paid shares or partly in the one way 
and partly in the other. 

6. 

(i) Subject to the  provisions  of  Part  B  of  these  Articles,  if  at  any  time  the  share  capital  is  divided  into  different  classes of 
shares, the rights attached to any  class  (unless  otherwise  provided  by  the  terms  of  issue  of  the  shares  of  that  class) 
may, subject  to  the  provisions  of  section  48  of  the  Act,  and  whether  or  not  the  Company  is  being  wound  up,  be varied 
with the consent in writing of the holders of three-fourths  of  the  issued  shares  of  that  class,  or  with  the  sanction of a 
special resolution passed at a separate meeting of the holders of the shares of that class. 

(ii) To every such separate meeting, the provisions of these  Articles  relating  to  general  meetings  shall  mutatis  mutandis  apply, 
but so that the necessary quorum shall be  at  least  2  (two)  persons  holding  at  least  one-third  of  the  issued  shares of the 
class in question, subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles. 

7. Subject to the provisions of Part B of  these  Articles,  the  rights  conferred  upon  the  holders  of  the  shares  of  any  class  issued 
with preferred  or  other  rights  shall  not,  unless  otherwise  expressly  provided  by  the  terms  of  issue  of  the  shares  of that 
class, be deemed to be varied by the creation or issue of further shares ranking pari passu therewith. 

8. Subject to the  provisions of  section  55  of  the  Act,  any  preference shares  may,  with  the  sanction of  an  ordinary resolution,  be 
issued on the terms that  they  are  to  be  redeemed  on  such  terms  and  in  such  manner  as  the  Company  before  the  issue of 
the shares may, by special resolution, determine. 



-----26-----  

III. Lien 

9. 

(i) The Company shall have a first and paramount lien— 

(a) on  every  share  (not  being  a  fully  paid  share),  for  all  monies  (whether  presently  payable  or  not)  called,  or  payable  at 
a fixed time, in respect of that share; and 

(b) on all shares (not being fully paid shares) standing registered in the name of a single  person,  for  all  monies  presently payable 
by him or his estate to the Company: 

Provided that the Board  may  at  any  time  declare  any  share  to  be  wholly  or  in  part  exempt  from  the  provisions  of  this 
Article. 

(ii) The  Company’s lien, if  any, on  a  share shall extend to  all  dividends payable and  bonuses declared from time to  time          in 
respect of such shares. 

10. The Company may sell, in such manner as the Board thinks  fit,  any  shares  on  which  the  Company  has  a  lien:  Provided 

that no sale shall be made— 

(i) unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists is presently payable; or 

(ii) until the expiration of 14 (fourteen) days after a notice in writing  stating  and  demanding  payment  of  such  part  of  the amount 
in respect of  which  the  lien  exists  as  is  presently  payable,  has  been  given  to  the  registered  holder  for  the time being 
of the share or the person entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency. 

11.  

(i) To give effect to any such sale, the Board may authorise some  person  to  transfer  the  shares  sold  to  the  purchaser  
thereof. 

(ii) The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the shares comprised in any such transfer. 

(iii) The purchaser shall not be bound to see to the  application  of  the  purchase  money,  nor  shall  his  title  to  the  shares  be 
affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the sale. 

12.  

(i) The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the  Company  and  applied  in  payment  of  such  part  of  the  amount  in 
respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable. 

(ii) The residue, if  any,  shall,  subject  to  a  like  lien  for  sums  not  presently  payable  as  existed  upon  the  shares  before  
the sale, be paid to the person entitled to the shares at the date of the sale. 

IV. Share Certificate 

13. Every person whose name is  entered as  a  member in  the register of  members shall be  entitled to  receive within two months   after 
allotment or within one month after the  application for  the  registration of  transfer or  transmission or  within such other period as 
the conditions of issue shall be provided: 

(i) One certificate for all his shares without payment of any charges; or 

(ii) Several certificates, each for one or more of  his  shares,  upon  payment  of  twenty  rupees  for  each  certificate  after  the first. 

14. Every certificate  shall  be  under  the  Seal  and  shall  specify  the  shares  to  which  it  relates,  and  the  amount  paid-up  there on  
and  shall be  signed by  two  directors or  by  a  director and  the  company secretary, wherever the  company has  appointed    a 
company secretary: 

Provided that in case the company has a Seal it shall be affixed in the presence of the persons required to sign the certificate. 

15. In respect of any  share  or  shares  held  jointly  by  several  persons,  the  Company  shall  not  be  bound  to  issue  more  than one 
certificate, and delivery of  a  certificate  for  a  share  to  one  of  several  joint  holders  shall  be  sufficient  delivery  to  all  such 
holders. 

V. Duplicate Share Certificates 

16. If  any  share certificate be  worn out, defaced, mutilated or  torn or  if  there be  no  further space on  the  back for  endorsement     of 
transfer, then upon production  and  surrender  thereof  to  the  Company,  a  new  certificate  may  be  issued  in  lieu  thereof, and if  
any  certificate  is  lost  or  destroyed  then  upon  proof  thereof  to  the  satisfaction  of  the  Company  and  on  execution  of such 
indemnity as the  Company  deem  adequate, a  new  certificate in  lieu  thereof  shall  be  given.  Every  certificate under this Article 
shall be issued on payment of twenty rupees for each certificate. 

17. The provisions of Articles 13, 14, 15and 16 shall mutatis mutandis apply to debentures of the Company. 

18. Except as required by law, no person shall be recognised by the Company as holding  any  share  upon  any  trust,  and  the Company 
shall not be bound by, or be compelled in any way to recognise (even when having notice thereof) any equitable, contingent, future or 
partial interest in any share,  or  any  interest  in  any  fractional  part  of  a  share,  or  (except  only  as  by these Articles or by law 
otherwise provided) any other rights in respect of any  share except an  absolute right to  the  entirety thereof in the registered holder. 

VI. Calls on shares 

19.  

(i) The Board may, from time to time, make calls upon the members in  respect  of  any  monies  unpaid  on  their  shares  (whether 
on account of the nominal value of the shares or by way  of  premium) and  not  by  the  conditions of  allotment thereof made 
payable at fixed times: 
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Provided that no call shall  exceed  one-fourth  of  the  nominal  value  of  the  share  or  be  payable  at  less  than  one  month  
from the date fixed for the payment of the last preceding call. 

(ii) Each  member  shall,  subject  to  receiving  at  least  14  (fourteen)  days’  notice  specifying  the  time  or  times  and  place  
of payment, pay to the Company, at the time or times and place so specified, the amount called on his shares. 

(iii) A call may be revoked or postponed at the discretion of the Board. 

20. A call shall be deemed to have  been  made  at  the  time  when  the  resolution  of  the  Board  authorising  the  call  was  passed 
and may be required to be paid by instalments. 

21. The joint holders  of  a  share  shall  be  jointly  and  severally  liable  to  pay  all  calls  in  respect  thereof.  

22. 

(i) If a sum called  in  respect  of  a  share  is  not  paid  before  or  on  the  day  appointed  for  payment  thereof,  the  person  from 
whom the sum is  due shall pay interest thereon from the day appointed for payment thereof to  the time of  actual   payment at 
ten percent per annum or at such lower rate, if any, as the Board may determine. 

(ii) The Board shall be at liberty to waive payment of any such interest wholly or in part. 

23. 

(i) Any sum which by  the terms of  issue of  a  share becomes payable on  allotment or  at  any fixed date, whether on  account     of  
the  nominal  value  of  the  share  or  by  way  of  premium,  shall,  for  the  purposes  of  these  Articles,  be  deemed  to  be a 
call duly made and payable on the date on which by the terms of issue such sum becomes payable. 

(ii) In case of non-payment of such sum, all the relevant provisions of these Articles as to payment of interest and expenses, forfeiture 
or otherwise shall apply as if such sum had become payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified. 

24. The Board— 

(i) may, if it thinks  fit,  receive  from  any  member  willing  to  advance  the  same,  all  or  any  part  of  the  monies  uncalled  and 
unpaid upon any shares held by him; and 

(ii) upon all or  any of  the monies so  advanced, may (until the same would, but for such advance, become presently payable)    pay 
interest at such rate not exceeding, unless the Company in general meeting shall otherwise direct, 12%  (twelve  percent)per 
annum, as may be agreed upon between the Board and the member paying the sum in advance. 

VII. Transfer of shares 

25. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be executed by or on  behalf of  both the  transferor and transferee 

(ii) The transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the  share  until  the  name  of  the  transferee  is  entered  in  the  register 
of members in respect thereof. 

26. Subject to the provisions of applicable law and Part B of these Articles, the  Board  may,  subject  to  the  right  of  appeal  conferred 
by section 58 of the Act, decline to register— 

(i) the transfer of  a  share,  not  being  a  fully  paid  share,  to  a  person  of  whom  they  do  not  approve;  or  any 

transfer of shares on which the Company has a lien. 

27. Subject to the  provisions of  applicable law  and  Part  B  of  these  Articles, the  Board  may  decline  to  recognise any  instrument of 
transfer unless— 

(i) the instrument of transfer is in the form as prescribed in rules made under sub-section (1) of section 56 of the Act; 

(ii) the instrument of  transfer is  accompanied by  the  certificate of  the  shares  to  which  it  relates, and  such  other  evidence 
as the Board may reasonably require to show the right of the transferor to make the transfer; and 

(iii) the instrument of transfer is in respect of only 1 (one) class of shares. 

28. On  giving not  less than 7  (seven) days’ previous notice in  accordance with section 91  of  the  Act  and  rules made thereunder, the 
registration of transfers may be suspended at such times and for such periods as the  Board  may  from  time  to  time determine: 

Provided that such registration  shall  not  be  suspended  for  more  than  30  (thirty)  days  at  any  1  (one)  time  or  for  more  than 
45 (forty-five) days in the aggregate in any year. 

VIII. Transmission of shares 

29.  

(i) On the death of  a  member, the  survivor or  survivors where the  member was  a  joint holder, and  his  nominee or  nominees  or 
legal representatives where he was a  sole  holder,  shall  be  the  only  persons  recognised by  the  Company  as  having any 
title to his interest in the shares. 

(ii) Nothing in Article 29(i) above, shall release the  estate  of  a  deceased  joint  holder  from  any  liability  in  respect  of  any share 
which had been jointly held by him with other persons. 

30.  

(i) Any person becoming entitled to a share in consequence of the death  or  insolvency  of  a  member  may,  upon  such  evidence 
being produced as may from time to time properly be required by the Board and subject as hereinafter provided, elect, either— 

(a) to be registered himself as holder of the share; or 
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(b) to make such transfer of the share as the deceased or insolvent member could have made. 

(ii) The Board shall, in either case, have the same right to decline or suspend registration  as  it  would  have  had,  if  the  
deceased or insolvent member had transferred the share before his death or insolvency. 

31.  

(i) If the  person  so  becoming entitled shall  elect  to  be  registered as  holder  of  the  share  himself, he  shall  deliver  or  send to 
the Company a notice in writing signed by him stating that he so elects. 

(ii) If the person aforesaid shall elect to transfer the  share,  he  shall  testify  his  election  by  executing  a  transfer  of  the  share. 

(iii) All the limitations, restrictions and provisions of these Articles relating to the right  to  transfer  and  the  registration  of transfers 
of shares shall  be  applicable  to  any  such  notice  or  transfer  as  aforesaid  as  if  the  death  or  insolvency  of  the member 
had not occurred and the notice or transfer were a transfer signed by that member. 

32. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, a person becoming entitled  to  a  share  by  reason  of  the  death  or insolvency 
of the  holder  shall  be  entitled  to  the  same  dividends  and  other  advantages  to  which  he  would  be  entitled  if  he were the  
registered  holder  of  the  share,  except  that  he  shall  not,  before  being  registered  as  a  member  in  respect  of the share, be 
entitled in respect of it to exercise any right conferred by membership in relation to meetings of the Company: 

Provided that the  Board  may,  at  any  time,  give  notice  requiring  any  such  person  to  elect  either  to  be  registered  himself  or  
to  transfer the  share, and  if  the  notice is  not  complied with within ninety days, the  Board may  thereafter withhold payment of all 
dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of the share, until the  requirements  of  the  notice  have  been complied with. 

IX. Dematerialisation of Securities 

33.  

(i) Definition(s) for the purpose of this Article: 

(a) “Beneficial Owner” shall mean beneficial owner as defined in clause (a) of sub-section (1) of Section 2 of  the  
Depositories Act, 1996. 

(b) “Depositories Act 1996” shall include any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof. 

(c) “Depository” shall mean a  Depository  as  defined  in  clause  (e)  of  subsection  (1)  of  section  2  of  the  Depository  
Act, 1996. 

(d) “Member ” means members of the Company holding a  share  or  shares  of  any  class  and  includes  the  beneficial 
owner in the records of the Depository. 

(e) “Register” means the  Register of  Members  to  be  kept  pursuant to  the  Companies Act  and  where  shares  are  held 
in dematerialised form, the ‘Register’ includes the Register of Beneficial owners maintained by a Depository. 

Provided  that  the  Company  may  exercise  the  powers  conferred  on  it  by  the  Act  with  regard  to  the  keeping  of   a 
foreign register; and the Board may (subject to the provisions of the Act  and  the  provisions  of  Part  B  of  these Articles) 
make and vary such regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any such register. 

(ii) The Company shall be entitled to dematerialise its existing shares,  debenture  and  other  securities,  re-materialise  its shares, 
debentures and other securities held in the Depositories and/ or offer its fresh shares,  debentures  and  other securities, in  a  
dematerialised  form  pursuant  to  the  Depositories  Act,  1996  and  the  Securities  and  Exchange  Board  of India (Depositories 
and Participants) Regulations, 1996. 

(iii) Subject to the provisions of Part  B  of  these  Articles,  every  person  subscribing  to  securities  offered  by  the  Company shall  
have  the  option  to  receive  security  certificates  or  to  hold  the  securities  with  a  Depository.  Such  a   person  who is the 
Beneficial  Owner  of  the  securities  can  at  any  time  opt  out  of  a  Depository,  if  permitted  by  the  law,  in  respect of any 
security  in  the  manner  provided  by  the  Depositories  Act,  and  the  Company  shall,  in  the  manner  and  within  the time 
prescribed, issue to the Beneficial Owner the required certificate of securities. 

If a person opts to  hold his  security with a  Depository, the  Company shall intimate such Depository the  details of  allotment  of 
the  security,  and  on  receipt  of  the  information,  the  Depository  shall  enter  in  its  record  the  name  of  the  allottee  as 
the Beneficial Owner of the security. 

(iv) All securities held by a Depository  shall  be  dematerialised  and  be  in  fungible  form.  Nothing  contained  in  Sections  89 and 
186 of the Act shall apply to a  Depository in respect of the securities held by it on behalf of the Beneficial Owners.No   share 
certificate(s) shall be issued for the shares held in a dematerialized form. 

(v) Subject to the provisions of  Part  B  of  these  Articles,  the  Depository  shall  be  deemed  to  be  the  registered  owner  for  the 
purposes of effecting transfer of ownership of security on behalf of the Beneficial Owner. 

Save as  otherwise provided above, the  Depository as  the  registered owner of  the  securities shall not  have any  voting rights 
or any other rights in respect of the securities held by it. 

The Beneficial Owner shall be deemed to be a member of the  Company.  The  Beneficial  Owner  of  securities  shall  be entitled 
to  all  the  rights  and  benefits  and  be  subject  to  all  the  liabilities  in  respect  of  his  securities,  which  are  held by a 
Depository. 

Where securities are  held in  a  Depository, the  records of  the  Beneficial Ownership may  be  served by  such Depository     on 
the Company by means of electronic mode. 

(vi) Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, every holder of shares in or debentures of the Company may, at any time, 
nominate in the manner prescribed under the Act, a person to whom his shares in or debentures of the Company shall vest in the 
event of his death. Such nomination and right of nominee to be registered as holder of shares and/or debentures (as the case may 
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                       be) or for transfer of the shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) shall be governed by the provisions of section 72 and other   
applicable provisions of the Act. 

(vii) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, a transfer of securities effected by transferor and transferee both of whom are entered as 
Beneficial Owners in the records of a Depository shall be subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles. 

(viii) Any reference to a registered holder or a shareholder or member shall deem to include Beneficial Owner. 

X. Forfeiture of shares 

34. If a member fails to pay any call, or instalment of a call, on the day appointed for payment thereof, the Board may, at any time thereafter 
during such time as any part of the call or instalment remains unpaid, serve a notice on him requiring payment of so much of the call or 
instalment as is unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued. 

35. The notice aforesaid shall— 

(i) name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of 14 (fourteen) days from the date of service of the notice) on or before which 
the payment required by the notice is to be made; and 

(ii) state that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the shares in respect of which the call was made shall be 
liable to be forfeited. 

36. If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any share in respect of which the notice has been given may, 
at any time thereafter, before the payment required by the notice has been made, be forfeited by a resolution of the Board to that effect. 

37.  

(i) A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the Board thinks fit. 

(ii) At any time before a sale or disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit. 

38.  

(i) A person whose shares have been forfeited shall cease to be a member in respect of the forfeited shares, but shall, notwithstanding 
the forfeiture, remain liable to pay to the Company all monies which, at the date of forfeiture, were presently payable by him to the 
Company in respect of the shares. 

(ii) The liability of such person shall cease if and when the Company shall have received payment in full of all such monies in respect of 
the shares. 

39.  

(i) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director, the manager or the secretary, of the Company, and that a share 
in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence of the facts therein stated 
as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share; 

(ii) The Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal thereof and may execute a transfer 
of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed of; 

(iii) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holder of the share; and 

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the share be affected 
by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture, sale or disposal of the share. 

40. The provisions of this Chapter Xof the Articles, shall apply in the case of non-payment of any sum which, by the terms of issue of a share, 
becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of premium, as if the same had been 
payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified. 

XI. Alteration of capital 

41. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the Company may, from time to time, by ordinary resolution increase the share capital 
by such sum, to be divided into shares of such amount, as may be specified in the resolution. 

42. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and provisions of section 61 of the Act, the Company may, by ordinary resolution— 

(i) consolidate and divide all or any of its share capital into shares of larger amount than its existing shares; 

(ii) convert all or any of its fully paid-up shares into stock, and reconvert that stock into fully paid-up shares of any denomination; 

(iii) sub-divide its existing shares or any of them into shares of smaller amount than is fixed by the memorandum; and 

(iv) cancel any shares which, at the date of the passing of the resolution, have not been taken or agreed to be taken by any person. 

43. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, where shares are converted into stock— 

(i) the holders of stock may transfer the same or any part thereof in the same manner as, and subject to the same Articl s under 
which, the shares from which the stock arose might before the conversion have been transferred, or as near thereto as 
circumstances admit: 

                      Provided that the Board may, from time to time, fix the minimum amount of stock transferable, so, however, that such minimum shall not         
exceed the nominal amount of the shares from which the stock arose; 

(ii) the holders of stock shall, according to the amount of stock held by them, have the same rights, privileges and advantages as 
regards dividends, voting at meetings of the Company, and other matters, as if they held the shares from which the stock arose; but 
no such privilege or advantage (except participation in the dividends and profits of the Company and in the assets on winding up) 
shall be conferred by an amount of stock which would not, if existing in shares, have conferred that privilege or advantage; and 

(iii) such of the provisions of these Articles as are applicable to paid-up shares shall apply to stock and the words “share” and 
“shareholder” in those Articles shall include “stock” and “stock-holder” respectively. 

44. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the Company may, by special resolution, reduce in any manner and with, and subject 
to, any incident authorised, and consent required by law— 
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(i) its share capital; 

(ii) any capital redemption reserve account; or 

(iii) any share premium account. 

XII. Capitalisation of Profits 

45.  

(i) The Company in general meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Board, resolve— 

(a) that it is desirable to capitalise any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit of any of the Company’s reserve 
accounts, or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise available for distribution; and 

(b) that such sum be accordingly set free for distribution in the manner specified in Article 45(ii) below, amongst the members who would 
have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of dividend and in the same proportions. 

(ii) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision contained in Article 45(ii)(d), either in or 
towards— 

(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any shares held by such members respectively; 

(b) paying up in full, unissued shares of the Company to be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid-up, to and amongst such 
members in the proportions aforesaid; 

(c) partly in the way specified in Article 45(ii)(a) and partly in that specified in Article 45(ii)(b); 

(d) a securities premium account and a capital redemption reserve account may, for the purposes of this Article, be applied in the paying 
up of unissued shares to be issued to members of the Company as fully paid bonus shares; and 

(e) The Board shall give effect to the resolution passed by the Company in pursuance of this Article45. 

46.  

(i) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Board shall— 

(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalised thereby, and all allotments and issues 
of fully paid shares if any; and 

(b) generally do all acts and things required to give effect thereto. 

(ii) The Board shall have power— 

(a) to make such provisions, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as it thinks fit, for the case of 
shares becoming distributable in fractions; and 

(b) to authorise any person to enter, on behalf of all the members entitled thereto, into an agreement with the Company providing for the 
allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid-up, of any further shares to which they may be entitled upon such capitalisation, 
or as the case may require, for the payment by the Company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions 
of profits resolved to be capitalised, of the amount or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing shares. 

(iii) Any agreement made under such authority shall be effective and binding on such members. 

XIII. Buy-back of shares 

47. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and the provisions of sections 68 to 70 and any other applicable provision of the Act 
or any other law for the time being in force, the Company may purchase its own shares or other specified securities. 

XIV. General meetings 

48. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, all general meetings other than annual general meeting shall be called extraordinary 
general meeting. 

49. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) The Board may, whenever it thinks fit, call an extraordinary general meeting. 

(ii) If at any time Directors capable of acting who are sufficient in number to form a quorum are not within India, any Director or any 2 
(two) members of the Company may call an extraordinary general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in 
which such a meeting may be called by the Board. 

XV. Proceedings at general meetings 

50. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum of members is present at the time when the meeting 
proceeds to business. 

(ii) Save as otherwise provided herein, the quorum for the general meetings shall be as provided in section 103 of the Act. 

51. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the chairperson, if any, of the Board shall preside as chairperson at every general 
meeting of the Company. 

52. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, if there is no such chairperson, or if he is not present within 15 (fifteen) minutes after 
the time appointed for holding the meeting, or is unwilling to act as chairperson of the meeting, the Directors present shall elect 1 (one) 
of their members to be chairperson of the meeting. 

53. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, if at any meeting no Director is willing to act as chairperson or if no Director is present 
within 15 (fifteen) minutes after the time appointed for holding the meeting, the members present shall choose 1 (one) of their members 
to be chairperson of the meeting. 
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XVI. Adjournment of meeting 

54. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) The chairperson may, with the consent of any meeting at which a quorum is present, and shall, if so directed by the meeting, adjourn 
the meeting from time to time and from place to place. 

(ii) No business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the meeting from which the 
adjournment took place. 

(iii) When a meeting is adjourned for 30 (thirty) days or more, notice of the adjourned meeting shall be given as in the case of an original 
meeting. 

(iv) Save as aforesaid, and as provided in section 103 of the Act, it shall not be necessary to give any notice of an adjournment or of the 
business to be transacted at an adjourned meeting. 

XVII. Voting rights 

55. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and any rights or restrictions for the time being attached to any class or classes of 
shares— 

(i) on a show of hands, every member present in person shall have 1 (one) vote; and 

(ii) on a poll, the voting rights of members shall be in proportion to his share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. 

56. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) a member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with section 108 of the Act and shall vote only once; 
and 

(ii) the Company shall seek approval of shareholders through postal ballot with respect to the matters and in the manner prescribed in 
the Act from time to time and postal ballot shall include voting through electronic mode. 

57. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be accepted to the 
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders. 

(ii) For this purpose, seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the register of members. 

58. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, a member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any 
court having jurisdiction in lunacy, may vote, whether on a show of hands or on a poll, by his committee or other legal guardian, and any 
such committee or guardian may, on a poll, vote by proxy. 

59. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, any business other than that upon which a poll has been demanded may be 
proceeded with, pending the taking of the poll. 

60. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, no member shall be entitled to vote at any general meeting unless all calls or other 
sums presently payable by him in respect of shares in the Company have been paid. 

61. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) No objection shall be raised to the qualification of any voter except at the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the vote objected 
to is given or tendered, and every vote not disallowed at such meeting shall be valid for all purposes. 

(ii) Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the chairperson of the meeting, whose decision shall be final and 
conclusive. 

XVIII. Proxy 

62. The instrument appointing a proxy and the power-of-attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarised copy of that 
power or authority, shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the time for 
holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less 
than 24 (twenty four) hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll; and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated 
as valid. 

63. An instrument appointing a proxy shall be in the form as prescribed in the rules made under section 105 of the Act. 

64. A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or insanity of the 
principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed, or the transfer of the shares in respect of 
which the proxy is given: 

               Provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity, revocation or transfer shall have been received by the Company at its office before         
the commencement of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy is used. 

XIX. Board of Directors 

65. The First Directors of the Company are: 

(i) Mr. Maroti S/o Gendaru Jawanjar 

(ii) Mr. Shantaram S/o Krishnarao Mahakalkar 

(iii) Mr. Pradeep S/o Namdeorao Wasurkar. 

66. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) The remuneration of the Directors shall, in so far as it consists of a monthly payment, be deemed to accrue from day-to-day. 

(ii) In addition to the remuneration payable to them in pursuance of the Act, the Directors may be paid all travelling, hotel and other 
expenses properly incurred by them— 

(a) in attending and returning from meetings of the Board or any committee thereof or general meetings of the Company; or 
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(b) in connection with the business of the Company. 

67. The Board may pay all expenses incurred in getting up and registering the Company. 

68. The Company may exercise the powers conferred on it by section 88 of the Act, with regard to the keeping of a foreign register; and the 
Board may (subject to the provisions of that section 88) make and vary such regulations as it may think fit respecting the keeping of any 
such register. 

69. All cheques, promissory notes, drafts, hundis, bills of exchange and other negotiable instruments, and all receipts for monies paid to the 
Company, shall be signed, drawn, accepted, endorsed, or otherwise executed, as the case may be, by such person and in such manner 
as the Board shall from time to time by resolution determine. 

70. Every Director present at any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof shall sign his name in a book to be kept for that purpose. 

71. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and subject to the provisions of section 149 of the Act, the Board shall have power at 
any time, and from time to time, to appoint a person as an additional Director, provided the number of the Directors and additional 
Directors together shall not at any time exceed the maximum strength fixed for the Board by these Articles.Such person shall hold office 
only up to the date of the next annual general meeting of the Company but shall be eligible for appointment by the Company as a Director 
at that meeting subject to the provisions of the Act. 

XX. Proceedings of the Board 

72. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles - 

(i) The Board may meet for the conduct of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate its meetings, as it thinks fit. 

(ii) A Director may, and the manager or secretary on the requisition of a Director shall, at any time, summon a meeting of the Board. 

73. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, questions arising at any meeting of 
the Board shall be decided by a majority of votes. 

74. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the continuing Directors may act notwithstanding any vacancy in the Board; but, if 
and so long as their number is reduced below the quorum fixed by the Act for a meeting of the Board, the continuing Directors or Director 
may act for the purpose of increasing the number of Directors to that fixed for the quorum, or of summoning a general meeting of the 
Company, but for no other purpose. 

75. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles- 

(i) The Board may elect a chairperson of its meetings and determine the period for which he is to hold office. 

(ii) If no such chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the chairperson is not present within 5 (five) minutes after the time appointed for 
holding the meeting, the Directors present may choose 1 (one)amongst themselves to be chairperson of the meeting. 

76. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles – 

(i) The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Act, delegate any of its powers to committees consisting of such member or 
members of its body as it thinks fit. 

(ii) Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations that may be imposed on it by 
the Board. 

77. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles – 

(i) A committee may elect a chairperson of its meetings. 

(ii) If no such chairperson is elected, or if at any meeting the chairperson is not present within 5 (five) minutes after the time appointed 
for holding the meeting, the members present may choose 1 (one)amongst themselves to be chairperson of the meeting. 

78. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles – 

(i) A committee may meet and adjourn as it thinks fit. 

(ii) Questions arising at any meeting of a committee shall be determined by a majority of votes of the members present. 

79. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, all acts done in any meeting of the Board or of a committee thereof or by any person 
acting as a Director, shall, notwithstanding that it may be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of any 1 
(one) or more of such Directors or of any person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every 
such Director or such person had been duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director. 

80. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and save as otherwise expressly provided in the Act, a resolution in writing, signed 
by all the members of the Board or of a committee thereof, for the time being entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board or 
committee, shall be valid and effective as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Board or committee, duly convened and held. 

XXI. Chief Executive Officer, Manager, Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer 

81. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and of the Act— 

(i) A chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer may be appointed by the Board for such term, at such 
remuneration and upon such conditions as it may think fit; and any chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief 
financial officer so appointed may be removed by means of a resolution of the Board; 

(ii) A Director may be appointed as chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer. 

82. A provision of the Act or these Articles requiring or authorising a thing to be done by or to a Director and chief executive officer, manager, 
company secretary or chief financial officer shall not be satisfied by it being done by or to the same person acting both as Director and as, 
or in place of, chief executive officer, manager, company secretary or chief financial officer. 

XXII. Dividends and Reserve 

83. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the Company in general meeting may declare dividends, but no dividend shall exceed 
the amount recommended by the Board. 
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84. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and provisions of section 123 of the Act, the Board may from time to time pay to the 
members such interim dividends as appear to it to be justified by the profits of the Company. 

85. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles: 

(i) The Board may, before recommending any dividend, set aside out of the profits of the Company such sums as it thinks fit as a 
reserve or reserves which shall, at the discretion of the Board, be applicable for any purpose to which the profits of the Company may 
be properly applied, including provision for meeting contingencies or for equalising dividends; and pending such application, may, 
at the like discretion, either be employed in the business of the Company or be invested in such investments (other than shares of 
the Company) as the Board may, from time to time, thinks fit. 

(ii) The Board may also carry forward any profits which it may consider necessary not to divide, without setting them aside as a reserve. 

86. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles - 

(i) Subject to the rights of persons, if any, entitled to shares with special rights as to dividends, all dividends shall be declared and paid 
according to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares in respect whereof the dividend is paid, but if and so long as nothing 
is paid upon any of the shares in the Company, dividends may be declared and paid according to the amounts of the shares. 

(ii) No amount paid or credited as paid on a share in advance of calls shall be treated for the purposes of this Article 86(ii), as paid on the 
share. 

(iii) All dividends shall be apportioned and paid proportionately to the amounts paid or credited as paid on the shares during any portion 
or portions of the period in respect of which the dividend is paid; but if any share is issued on terms providing that it shall rank for 
dividend as from a particular date such share shall rank for dividend accordingly. 

87. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, the Board may deduct from any dividend payable to any member all sums of money, 
if any, presently payable by him to the Company on account of calls or otherwise in relation to the shares of the Company. 

88. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles - 

(i) Any dividend, interest or other monies payable in cash in respect of shares may be paid by cheque or warrant sent through the post 
directed to the registered address of the holder or, in the case of joint holders, to the registered address of that one of the joint 
holders who is first named on the register of members, or to such person and to such address as the holder or joint holders may in 
writing direct 

(ii) Every such cheque or warrant shall be made payable to the order of the person to whom it is sent. 

89. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, any one of two or more joint holders of a share may give effective receipts for any 
dividends, bonuses or other monies payable in respect of such share. 

90. Notice of any dividend that may have been declared shall be given to the persons entitled to share therein in the manner mentioned in the 
Act. 

91. No dividend shall bear interest against the Company. 

XXIII. Accounts 

92. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles – 

(i) The Board shall from time to time determine whether and to what extent and at what times and places and under what conditions or 
regulations, the accounts and books of the Company, or any of them, shall be open to the inspection of members not being Directors. 

(ii) No member (not being a Director) shall have any right of inspecting any account or book or document of the Company except as 
conferred by law or authorised by the Board or by the Company in general meeting. 

XXIV. Borrowing Powers 

93. Subject to Part B of these Articles, section 73 and 179 of the Act and directions issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the then Directors 
may, from time to time, raise or borrow any sums of money for and on behalf of the Company from the member or other persons, 
companies or banks or they may themselves advance money to the Company on such interest as may be approved by the Directors in 
accordance with the provisions of these Articles. 

94. Subject to Part B of these Articles, the Directors may, from time to time, secure the payment of such money in such manner and upon 
such terms and conditions in all respects as they deem fit and in particular by the issue of bonds or debentures or by pledge, mortgage, 
charge or any other security on all or any properties of the Company (both present and future) including its uncalled capital for the time 
being. 

95. Subject to Part B of these Articles, the Directors, may, from time to time at their discretion raise or borrow or secure the payment of any 
sum(s) of money for the purposes of the Company at such time and in such manner and upon such terms and conditions in all respects 
as they think fit, and in particular by promissory notes, or by opening current accounts, or by receiving deposits and advances with or 
without security, or by the issue of bonds, perpetual or redeemable, debentures, or debenture stock of the Company (both present and 
future) including its uncalled capital for the time being or by mortgaging or charging or pledging any lands, buildings, plant & machinery, 
goods or other property and securities of the Company or by such other means as to them may seem expedient. 

XXV. Winding up 

96. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles and provisions of Chapter XX of the Act and rules made thereunder— 

(i) If the Company shall be wound up, the liquidator may, with the sanction of a special resolution of the Company and any other 
sanction required by the Act, divide amongst the members, in specie or kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the Company, 
whether they shall consist of property of the same kind or not. 

(ii) For the purposes of Article 96(i) above, the liquidator may set such value as he deems fair upon any property to be divided as 
aforesaid and may determine how such division shall be carried out as between the members or different classes of members. 
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(iii) The liquidator may, with the like sanction, vest the whole or any part of such assets in trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of the 
contributories if he considers necessary, but so that no member shall be compelled to accept any shares or other securities whereon 
there is any liability. 

XXVI. Indemnity 

97. Subject to the provisions of Part B of these Articles, every officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of the assets of the Company 
against any liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour or in 
which he is acquitted or in which relief is granted to him by the court or the tribunal. 

XXVII. Common Seal 

98.  

(i) The Board shall provide for the safe custody of the Seal. 

(ii) The Seal shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the Board or of a committee of the Board 
authorised by it in that behalf, and except in the presence of any of the Directors or such other person as the Board may appoint for 
the purpose; and that Director or other person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the Seal is so affixed in their presence. 

XXVIII. Secrecy 

99. Subject to the provisions of applicable law and the Act, every manager, auditor, trustee, member of a committee, officer servant, agent 
accountant or other persons employed in the business of the Company shall, if so required by the Board before entering upon his duties, 
sign, declaration, pledging himself to observe strict secrecy respecting all transactions of the Company with its customers and the state 
of account with individuals and in matters relating thereto and shall by such declaration pledge himself, not to reveal any of the matters 
which may come to his knowledge in the discharge of his duties except when required to do so by the Directors or by any court of law and 
except so far as may be necessary in order to comply with their duties. 

We the several  persons,  whose names, addresses, and descriptions are hereunder subscribed below are desirous of being formed into a Company   in 
pursuance of these ARTICLE OF ASSOCIATION and we respectively agree to take the number of shares in the capital of the Company set opposite to 
our respective names : 

Names, Addresses, and 
Description of Subscribers 

No. of Equity Shares 
taken by each Subscriber 

Signature of 
Subscribers 

Name, Addresses and 
Description of witness 

 
 

1) Maroti 
S/o Gendaru Jawanjar 
19, Process Servers Colony, 
Swawlambinagar, 
NAGPUR-440 022. 
(Service) 

 
 

100 
(One hundred) 

 
 

S/d  
(M.G. Jawanjar) 

 

2) Shantaram 
S/o Krishnarao Mahakalkar 
188, Reshimbag, 
NAGPUR-440 009. 
(Service) 

100 
(One hundred) 

S/d 
(S.K. Mahakalkar) 

 

3) Vishwas 
S/o Bhaskarrao Pathak 
89, Ujjwalnagar, 
NAGPUR-440 025. 
(Service) 

 
4) Pundlikrao 

S/o Sitaramji Mathurey 
64, Dindayalnagar, 
NAGPUR-440 022. 
(Pensioner) 

100 
(One hundred) 

 
 
 
 

100 
(One hundred) 

S/d 
(V.B. Pathak) 

 
 
 
 

S/d 
(P.S. Mathurey) 

 
Witness to Sr. No. 1 to 5 

S/d 
Omprakash 

S/o Shyamsunder Bagdia 
Dharmik Bhavan, 
Fawara Chowk, 

Gandhibag, NAGPUR. 
(Chartered Accountant) 

5) Pradeep 
S/o Namdeorao Wasurkar 
50, Sitanagar, 
Post : Khamla, 
NAGPUR-440 025. 
(Medical Practioner) 

100 
(One hundred) 

S/d 
(P.N. Wasurkar) 

 

T O T A L 500 
(Five hundred) 

  

 
Dated 26th day of July, 1990 
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PART – B 
Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, in the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of Articles contained in Part A 
and Part B, the provisions of the Articles contained in this Part B shall override and prevail over the provisions of the Articles contained in Part–A. 

1. Definitions and Interpretation 
 
 

1.1 Definitions. In Part B of these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise provided in Part B of these Articles, 
the following expressions shall have the following meanings: 

“2019 ESOP Plan” means the Employee Stock Option Plan of 2019 of the Company; 

“2019 ESOP Plan Options” mean 240,000 (two hundred forty thousand) stock options issued pursuant to the 2019 ESOP Plan;  

“Act” means the CA 1956 and the CA 2013, as the case may be; 

“Additional Primary Investor Securities” has the meaning assigned to it in clause 7.1 of the SSA; 

“Additional Primary Investment Amount” has the meaning assigned to it in clause 1.1 of the SSA; 

“Affiliate” means, in respect of a Person (“Affiliate Person”), any other Person existing as of the Effective Date or at any time in the future: 

(a) who is a Relative of the Affiliate Person; 

(b) who, is Controlling, Controlled by, or is under the common Control of, the relevant Affiliate Person; and 

(c) where more than 26% (twenty six percent) of the voting securities or voting interest of the Affiliate Person are directly or indirectly 
owned, legally and beneficially, by such Person; 

without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, the term “Affiliate”, in respect of the Investors shall be deemed to include (a) any fund, 
collective investment scheme, trust, partnership (including, any co-investment partnership), special purpose or other vehicle, in which an Investor 
is a general or limited partner, majority shareholder or majority unit holder, investment manager (directly or indirectly) or advisor, settlor, member 
of a management or investment committee or trustee; (b) any general or limited partner of an Investor; (c) any fund, collective investment 
scheme, trust, partnership (including, any co-investment partnership), special purpose or other vehicle in which any general partner of an 
Investor is a general partner, majority shareholder or majority unit holder, investment manager or advisor, settlor, member of a management or 
investment committee or trustee; and (d) any onshore or offshore fund managed by the same investment manager/advisor (or any investment 
manager/advisor comprising the key management of the current investment manager/advisor, or having the same ultimate beneficial owners 
as the current investment manager/advisor) as that of the Investor; whether on the Effective Date or any time thereafter, and further the term 
“Affiliate” shall not include (a) any portfolio company in which an Investor has made an investment; or (b) any Competitor; 

“Agreed Form” means a document in a form agreed between the Promoters and the Investors and initialled for the purposes of identification 
by or on behalf of each of them (in each case with such amendments as may be agreed by or on behalf of such parties); 

“Agreement” means the Shareholders’ Agreement dated December 20, 2019, executed by and between the Company, the Investors, the 
Individual Promoters, the Corporate Promoter and Other Founding Shareholders, together with its recitals, annexures and schedules, as may 
be amended and supplemented from time to time; 

“Anticorruption Laws” mean laws, regulations or orders relating to anti-bribery or anticorruption (governmental or commercial), which apply to 
the Business and dealings of the Company, its Subsidiaries and their shareholders including, without limitation, laws that prohibit the corrupt 
payment, offer, promise, or authorization of the payment or transfer of anything of value (including gifts or entertainment), directly or indirectly, 
to any Government Official, commercial entity, or any other Person to obtain a business advantage; such as, without limitation, the Unlawful 
Activities (Prevention) Act, 1967; the Prevention of Corruption Act, 1988; Whistle Blowers Protection Act, 2011; the U.S. Foreign Corrupt 
Practices Act, 1977, as amended from time to time; the UK Bribery Act, 2010 and all national and international laws enacted to implement the 
OECD Convention on Combating Bribery of Foreign Officials in International Business Transactions; 

“Applicable Accounting Standards” means Indian GAAP or Ind AS or accounting standards applicable to the Company, as may be applicable; 

“As If Converted Basis” means as if all instruments, options or securities issued and allotted by the Company had been converted into Equity 

Shares of the Company in accordance with the terms of its issuance; 

“ Assets” mean assets or properties of every kind, nature, character and description (whether immovable, movable, tangible, intangible, 
absolute, accrued, fixed or otherwise), including cash, cash equivalents, receivables, real estate, plant and machinery, equipment, Intellectual 
Property rights, raw materials, inventory, furniture, fixtures and insurance; 

“Association” or “Associated” means any form of affiliation or association with the Company, its Subsidiaries, their respective Affiliates or 
Affiliates of the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders, including but not limited to affiliation or association as: 

(a) a shareholder, promoter, founder or principal; 

(b) an employee, consultant or advisor; and / or 

(c) a director, manager or officer, 

of the Company, its Subsidiaries, their respective Affiliates or the Affiliates of the Promoters; 

“Avino/Corporate Promoter” means Avino Capcons Private Limited; 

“Avino Charter Documents” mean the memorandum of association and the articles of association of Avino; “ 

Avino Promoter Shareholders” mean the Avino Shareholders who are Promoters; 
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“Avino Shares” mean the equity shares, preference shares or any other class or series of shares or securities that may be issued by Avino 
from time to time; 

“Avino Shareholder” means any Person holding any Avino Shares; 

“Board” means the board of Directors of the Company; 

“Business” means the business of the Company whether through itself or through its Subsidiaries, as carried out at present or to be carried out 
at any time in the future in accordance with the terms of the Transaction Documents and these Articles, and comprising the business of providing 
two wheeler loans, four wheeler loans, unsecured, loan, secured loans and ‘Small and Medium Enterprises’ loans and any other financial activity 

that is being undertaken by the Company in accordance with the regulations applicable to NBFCs; 

“Business Day” means a day (excluding Saturdays and Sundays) on which banks are generally open in Nagpur (India), Bengaluru (India) and 
Mauritius for the transaction of normal banking business; 

“Business Plan” has the meaning assigned to it in Article 5.28 of Part B of these Articles; 

“CA 1956” means the Companies Act, 1956 together with the rules made thereunder to the extent not repealed and replaced by notified 
provisions of the CA 2013, as amended from time to time and shall include any statutory replacement or re-enactment thereof; 

“CA 2013” means the Companies Act, 2013together with the rules made thereunder, as amended from time to time and shall include any 
statutory replacement or re-enactment thereof; 

“Charter Documents” mean the memorandum and articles of association of the Company; 

“Claim” means any contractual, legal, administrative or regulatory proceedings against any Person or Persons alleging in writing any act or 
omission or non-performance or failure by such Persons to perform any of their respective obligation, representation, warranty or covenants 
under any contract or agreement (including theSSA), or Law and includes the issue of a writ or notice or summons or cross claim or counter 
claim issued or initiated against or fixed upon such Person; 

“Company” means Berar Finance Limited; 

“Company Representative” means any of the Promoters, Key Management, or any director, officer, employee of the Company and its 

Subsidiaries or any representative, consultant, or any other person, acting for or on behalf of the Company or its Subsidiaries (individually or 
collectively); 

“Competing Business” means: (a) any business which directly competes with Business or any business substantially similar or identical to the 

Business; (b) non-banking financial companies involved in microfinance and vehicle finance lending; and (c) banks; 

“Competitor” means any (i) Person engaged in the Competing Business (“Competing Person”), (ii) Subsidiaries of such Competing Person, 

and (iii) any other Person who is Controlling, Controlled by, or is under the common Control of, such Competing Person. Notwithstanding the 
aforesaid, a Financial Investor shall not be considered a “Competitor” for the purposes of these Articles; 

“Consent ” means any permit, permission, license, approval, authorization, consent, clearance, grant, franchise, concession, agreement, 
exemption, report or notice of, registration, declaration, filing, waiver, no objection certificate or other authorization of whatever nature and by 
whatever name called which is required to be granted by any Person, Governmental Authority, creditor, or under any applicable Law; 

“Conditions Precedent” means the conditions precedent as set out in clause 3 read with annexure 5 of the SSA; 

“Control” together with its grammatical variations when used with respect to any Person, means the power to direct the management and 
policies of such Person, directly or indirectly, whether through the ownership of the vote carrying securities, by contract or otherwise howsoever; 

“Conversion Ratio” has the meaning assigned to it in Annexure 2toPart B of these Articles; 

“Corporate Event” means any Shares split, issue of Shares including by way of bonus, consolidation of Shares or reduction of Share Capital, 

reconstruction, combinations, amalgamations, merger, demerger, recapitalisations and similar other event; 

“ Corporate Promoter Representative” means the Individual Promoters, any other promoter of the Corporate Promoter or its Subsidiaries, or 

any key management personnel, director, officer, employee of the Corporate Promoter and its Subsidiaries, or any representative, consultant 
or any other person acting for or on behalf of the Corporate Promoter or its Subsidiaries (individually or collectively); 

“Deed of Adherence” means the deed of adherence annexed as annexure 4 to the Agreement; 

“Dilution Instrument” has the meaning assigned to it in Article 4.1.2of Part B of these Articles; 

“Director(s)” means a director of the Company; 

“Effective Date” means December 20, 2019; 

“Electronic Mode” means any video conferencing facility (i.e., audio visual electronic communication facility) employed by the Company which 
enables all Persons participating in that meeting to communicate concurrently with each other without an intermediary and to participate 
effectively in the meeting; 

“Encumbrance” means any: 

(a) encumbrance including any security interest, Claim, mortgage, pledge, charge, hypothecation, lien, lease, assignment, deed of 
trust, title retention, deposit by way of security, beneficial ownership (including usufruct and similar entitlements), or any other 
interest held by a third Person with respect to title, ownership, possession or use; 

(b) security interest or other encumbrance of any kind securing, or conferring any priority of payment in respect of, any obligation of 
any Person, including without limitation any right granted by a transaction which, in legal terms, is not the granting of security but 
which has an economic or financial effect similar to the granting of security under applicable Law; and/or 

(c) power of attorney in relation to the Shares, voting trust agreement, interest, option or right of pre-emption, right of first offer, or 
right of first refusal or transfer restriction in favour of any Person; 
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“Equity Shares” means fully paid-up equity shares of the Company of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each; 

“ESG Laws” mean all applicable Laws that relate to issues concerning environmental, social and governance related matters including all 
codes, regulations, by-laws and standards, including those that are prescribed pursuant to the United Nations Principles of Responsible 
Investing; 

“ESG Policy” has the meaning assigned to it in the Agreement; 

“Exempted Issuance” means: (a) issuance of Shares pursuant to adjustment to the Conversion Ratio in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement; (b) clause 10 of the SSA (Indemnification by the Company and the Promoters); (c) Equity Shares issuable upon conversion of any 
of the Investor Securities, or as bonus shares dividend or other distribution on the Investor Securities; (d) Equity Shares issued to an Investor 
pursuant to the anti-dilution rights under Article 4.1of Part B of these Articles; (e) issuance of Dilution Instruments pertaining to the 2019 ESOP 
Plan Options or an employee stock option plan approved in accordance with the Agreement or exercise of any options pursuant to such 
ESOP/employee stock option plan; (f) issuance of sweat equity Shares to the Individual Promoters; (g) issue of Shares pursuant to any IPO or 
QIPO undertaken in accordance with the Agreement; and (h) any issuance of Shares pursuant to Article 7.8of Part B of these Articles; 

“Final Purchase Price” means the price per Investor Security determined by dividing the Primary Investment Amount by the total number of 

Investor Securities, on a Fully Diluted Basis (as adjusted for any Corporate Event). The Final Purchase Price shall be re- computed upon any 
additional investment made by the Investor(s), including the Additional Primary Investment Amount (or part thereof)) and thereafter Final 
Purchase Price on a blended basis shall be applicable; 

“Financial Investor” means any Person who is engaged in the business of making investments in an entity in order to gain a financial return 

and includes entities with pooled capital for investment purposes such as angel investors, venture capitalists, private equity investors, 
institutional investors, collective or alternative investment funds or vehicles, separate accounts managed by a third party investment manager, 
pension funds, provident funds, sovereign wealth funds, hedge funds, banks, non-banking financial institutions, trust companies and other 
financial institutions, family offices and high net worth individuals (that are engaged in the business of financial investment); 

“Financial Year” means the 12 (twelve) month period commencing on April 1 and ending on March 31 of the succeeding year or such other 12 
(twelve) month period as may be mandated under applicable Law; 

“First Closing” has the meaning assigned to it in clause 5.2 of the SSA; 

“First Closing Date” means the date when the First Closing occurs; 

“First Tranche Post Money Equity Valuation” means Pre-Money Equity Valuation plus the Primary Investment Amount as may be adjusted 
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the SSA; 

“FMV” means the fair market value determined in accordance with generally accepted valuation principles by any investment banker of 
international repute to be appointed by the Board; 

“Fresh Issue” shall mean issue, by the Company, of any Shares; 

“Fully Diluted Basis” shall mean that the calculation is to be made assuming that all outstanding securities (whether or not by their terms then 
currently convertible, exercisable exchangeable or granted) whether or not due to the occurrence of an event or otherwise, have been converted, 
exercised or exchanged into the maximum number of Equity Shares issuable upon such conversion, exercise and exchange, as the case may 
be, and giving effect to any accrued anti-dilution protection rights attached to such securities; 

“Fundamental Issues” means the matters covered in Article 6of Part B of these Articles read with Annexure 1 to Part B of these Articles; 

“Government Official” means (i) any official, officer, employee, or representative of, or any Person acting in an official capacity for or on behalf 
of, any Governmental Authority, (ii) any political party or party official or candidate for political office; or (iii) any company, business, enterprise 
or other entity owned, in whole or in part, or controlled by any Person described in the foregoing clause (i) or (ii) of this definition; 

“Governmental Approvals” mean any Consent, approval, authorization, waiver, permit, grant, franchise, concession, agreement, license, 

certificate, exemption, order, registration, declaration, filing, report or notice, of, with or to any Governmental Authority; 

“Governmental Authority(ies)” means (i) any national, federal, state, county, municipal, local, or foreign government or any entity exercising 

executive, legislative, judicial, regulatory, taxing, or administrative functions of or pertaining to government, municipality or any local or other 
authority, trade agency, regulatory authority, court, tribunal or arbitral tribunal, (ii) any public international organization, (iii) any agency, division, 
bureau, department, or other political subdivision of any government, entity or organization described in the foregoing clauses (i) or (ii) of this 
definition; or (iv) any company, business, enterprise, or other entity owned, in whole or in part, or controlled by any government, entity, 
organization, or other Person described in the foregoing clauses (i), (ii) or (iii) of this definition; 

“Income Tax Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961 together with all applicable bye-laws, rules, regulations, orders, ordinances, policies, 
directions and the like issued thereunder; 

“Ind AS” means the Indian accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the CA 2013 as notified under the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015; 

“Indebtedness” as applied to any Person, means, without duplication, (i) all indebtedness for borrowed money, (ii) all obligations evidenced by 
a note, bond, debenture, letter of credit, draft or similar instrument, (iii) that portion of obligations with respect to capital leases that is properly 
classified as a liability on a balance sheet in conformity with Applicable Accounting Standards, (iv) notes payable and drafts accepted 
representing extensions of credit, (v) any obligation owed for all or any part of the deferred purchase price of property or services, (vi) all 
guarantees of any nature extended by such Person with respect to Indebtedness of any other Person and (vii) all indebtedness and obligations 
of the types described in the foregoing clauses (i) through (vi) to the extent secured by any Encumbrance on any property or asset owned or 
held by that Person regardless of whether the indebtedness secured thereby shall have been assumed by that Person or is non-recourse to the 
credit of that Person; 
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“Indemnified Parties” has the meaning assigned to it in the SSA; 

“Indemnifying Parties” has the meaning assigned to it in the SSA; 

“Indian GAAP” means the generally accepted accounting principles applicable in India; 

“Indian Rupees” or “Rs.” or “INR” means the lawful currency of the Republic of India; 

“Individual Promoters” shall collectively mean Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Maroti Jawanjar and Sandeep Jawanjal; 

“Intellectual Property” means any registered intellectual property and/or intellectual property in respect of which registration has been applied 
for and is pending, in any jurisdiction and any and all registrations or rights to apply for (or applications for the grant of) the same, Know-how, 
patents, trademarks, service marks, designs, copyrights, moral rights and related rights, data base rights and mask works, trade or business 
names, internet domain names, inventions, processes, geographical indications, trade secrets, integrated circuits, exploitation of any present 
or future technologies, proprietary information, and other industrial property rights, and all rights or forms of protection having equivalent or 
similar effect to any of the foregoing which may subsist anywhere in the world; 

“Investor A” means Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP; 

“Investor B” means Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I; 

“Investor Consent” means the prior written consent of the Investors; 

“Investor Securities” mean the Primary Investor Securities and the Additional Primary Investor Securities issued and allotted to the 
Investors. The term “Investor Securities” shall also include such other Shares as may be held by the Investors from time to time; 

“Investors” mean collectively, the Investor A and Investor B; 

“IPO” means an offering to the public of equity shares/ordinary shares/common shares of the Company, except for a QIPO; 

 “Key Management” has the meaning assigned to it in the Agreement; 

“ Know-how ” for this purpose means the techniques, formulae, patterns, compilations, processes, inventions, practices, methodology, 
techniques, improvement, utility model, procedures, designs, skills, know-how, technical information, notes, experimental results, manufacturing 
techniques, samples, specifications of the products, labelling specifications, rights on software, and any other knowledge of any nature 
whatsoever throughout the world whether registered or unregistered and including all applications and rights to apply for the same generated 
by the licensee in the pre-development and post-development of the licensed patents; 

“Law” means to the extent it applies to a Person, all applicable: 

(a) statutes, enactments, acts of legislature or parliament, laws, ordinances, rules, bye-laws, regulations, listing agreements, 
notifications, guidelines or policies issued by any Governmental Authority; 

(b) administrative interpretation, writ, injunction, directions, directives, judgement, arbitral award, decree, orders or Governmental 
Approvals of, or agreements with, any Governmental Authority or recognized stock exchange; and 

(c) international treaties, conventions and protocols including Anticorruption Laws and Sanctions Law and Regulations; 

as may be in force from time to time; 

“Litigation” means and includes any notice, action, cause of action, Claim, demand, suit, proceeding, citation, summons, subpoena, inquiry, or 
investigation of any nature, civil, criminal, regulatory or otherwise, in Law or in equity, pending or threatened (with notice), by or before any 
court, tribunal, arbitrator, or any Governmental Authority; 

“Liquidity Event” shall mean the following: 

(a) liquidation, winding-up or dissolution of the Company or its Subsidiaries; 

(b) Strategic Sale; 

(c) with the Investor Consent, a merger, acquisition, change of Control, consolidation, sale of Shares, trade sale or other transaction 
or series of transactions in which the Company’s shareholders post such transaction will not, (i) retain a majority of the voting 
power of the surviving entity, or (ii) control the board of directors of the surviving entity; 

(d) transaction in accordance with Article 7 (other than a QIPO) and Article 10of Part B of these Articles; 

“Liquidity Preference Amount” has the meaning assigned to the term in the Agreement; 

“ Losses ” mean all losses, liabilities, obligations, Claims, demands, actions, suits, judgments, awards, fines, Taxes, interest, penalties, fees, 
settlements and proceedings, fines, costs, expenses incurred (whether or not resulting from any Third Party Claims), deficiencies, damages, 
out-of-pocket expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ and accountants’ fees and disbursements, and deposits and guarantees required to 

be made in any proceedings and/or judicial awards and all related Taxes but excluding any indirect or exemplary damages; 

“NBFCs” mean Non-Banking Financial Companies holding a license issued by the RBI under Chapter IIIB of the RBI Act;  

“Other Founding Shareholders” shall collectively mean Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar and Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal; 

“Other Founding Shareholder Shares” means the Shares held by the Other Founding Shareholders; 

“Ordinary Course of Business” means, in reference to a Person, an action taken by or on behalf of such Person that is: 

(a) recurring in nature and is taken in the ordinary course of such Person’s normal day-to-day operations; 

(b) taken in accordance with sound and prudent business practices; 

(c) not required to be authorized by such Person’s shareholders, board of directors or any committee of the board of directors and 
which does not require any other separate or special authorization of any nature by such Person; and 

(d) consistent with the past practice and existing policies of such Person (including with respect to quantity and frequency); 
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“Parties” has the meaning assigned to the term in the Agreement; 

“ Person(s) ” means any individual, Hindu undivided family, sole proprietorship, unincorporated association, unincorporated organization, body 
corporate, corporation, company, partnership (including a limited liability partnership), limited liability company, joint venture, Governmental 
Authority or trust or any other entity or organization whether acting in an individual, fiduciary or other capacity; 

“Pre-Money Equity Valuation” has the meaning assigned to the term under clause 1.1 of the SSA; 

“Primary Investment Amount” has the meaning assigned to it in clause 1.1 of the SSA; 

“Primary Investor Securities” has the meaning assigned to it in clause 1.1 of the SSA;  

“Promoters” shall collectively mean the Individual Promoters and Avino/Corporate Promoter; 

 “Promoter Shares” mean the Shares held by the Promoters; 

“Public Shareholders” mean Shareholders other than the Promoters and Other Founding Shareholders; 

“QIPO” means closing of a public offering of Equity Shares, managed by one of the reputed investments banks, with listing on BSE Limited or 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited or such other stock exchange as may be approved by the Company and the Investors in writing, with 
gross proceeds of the issue being at least the QIPO Amount at the QIPO Valuation; 

“QIPO Amount” has the meaning assigned to the term under the Agreement; 

“QIPO Minimum Number of Shares” mean the minimum number of Shares required to be offered to the public under the QIPO to cause a 

listing of the Shares on the relevant recognised stock exchange under applicable Law; 

“QIPO Valuation” has the meaning assigned to the term under the Agreement;  

“RBI” means the Reserve Bank of India established under the RBI Act; 

“RBI Act” means the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to time 

“Relative” has the meaning ascribed to it in the Act; 

“Sanctions Law and Regulations” mean (i) any of The Trading With The Enemy Act of 1917, the International Emergency Economic Powers 

Act of 1977, the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria Human Rights Act, the United Nations Participation Act of 1945, or the Syria Accountability 
and Lebanese Sovereignty Restoration Act of 2003, all as amended, or regulations of the US Treasury Department Office of Foreign Assets 
Controls, sanctions imposed on or any export control law or regulation applicable to US-origin goods, or any enabling legislation or executive 
order relating to any of the above, as collectively interpreted and applied by the US Government at the prevailing point in time (ii) any U.S. 
sanctions related to or administered by the Department of State; (iii) any sanctions measures or embargos imposed by the United Nations 
Security Council, Her Majesty’s Treasury (UK), the European Union or other relevant sanctions authority; and (iv) the (Indian) Unlawful Activities 
(Prevention) Amendment Act, 2008 and the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002 read with the applicable rules issued thereto; 

“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India established under the SEBI Act; 

“SEBI Act” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as amended from time to time; 

“Second Closing Date” means the date of completion of the issue and allotment of Additional Primary Investor Securities to the Investors on 

the payment of the Additional Primary Investment Amount in terms of the SSA; 

“Series A CCPS” means the (i) Tranche 1 Series A CCPS; and (ii) Tranche 2 Series A CCPS (if subscribed to by the Investors in terms of 

clause 7of the SSA); 

“Share Capital” means the total share capital of the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis and the reference to “ Shareholding” of any 

Shareholder in these Articles shall mean the Shares held by such Shareholder in the Company on a Fully Diluted Basis; 

“SSA” means the share subscription agreement dated December 20, 2019 executed by and between the Company, the Investors, the 
Individual Promoters, the Corporate Promoter and Other Founding Shareholders; 

“Shares” mean the Equity Shares, preference shares or any other class or series of shares or securities that may be issued by the Company 
including shares or securities convertible or exchangeable for Equity Shares, from time to time; 

“Shareholder” means a Person holding any Shares; 

“Special Rights Period” has the meaning assigned to the term in the Agreement; 

“Strategic Sale” means (i) the Transfer of 50% (fifty percent) or more of Shares on a Fully Diluted Basis of the Company; (ii) a transfer of the 
Control of the Company or its Subsidiaries to any Person who is not a party to the Agreement except for Transfers to Affiliates as may be 
permitted in the Agreement and these Articles; or (iii)the sale, assignment, securitization (including pass through certificates) or licensing of all 
or substantially all of the Business or Assets or loan portfolio or the Intellectual Property of the Company or its Subsidiaries, in each case 
whether achieved through one or more transactions 

“Subsidiaries” has the meaning as assigned to it in the Act and shall include any foreign subsidiaries or joint venture companies; “ 

Tax”, “Taxes” or “Taxation ” means: 

(a) all forms of tax, levy, duty, charge, impost, withholding or other amount whenever or wherever created or imposed by, or payable 
to any Governmental Authority or claimed to be owed in any relevant jurisdiction or country; 

(b) any income-tax, advance tax, self-assessment tax, tax deducted and/or deductible at source, withholding tax, or any income-tax 
payable in the capacity of a representative assessee, together with interest, penalties and shall include any cess and surcharge 
thereto in respect of the aforementioned taxes computed as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act; and 

(c) all charges, interest, penalties and fines incidental or relating to any tax falling within (a) and (b) above or which arise as a result 
of the failure to pay any tax on the due date or to comply with any obligation relating to tax; 
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“Third Party Claims” has the meaning assigned to the term under clause 10.5.1 of the SSA; 

“Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio” has the meaning assigned to the term in Paragraph 2.1 of Annexure 2toPart B of these Articles; 

“Tranche 2 Conversion Ratio” has the meaning assigned to the term in Paragraph 2.2 of Annexure 2toPart B of these Articles; 

“Tranche 1 Series A CCPS” means fully paid-up cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of the Company 
having a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each, carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum and 
carrying the rights set out in Annexure 2to Part B of these Articles issued to the Investors in terms of the Transaction Documents; 

“Tranche 1 Series A Equity Shares” has the meaning assigned to the term in the SSA; 

“Tranche 2 Series A CCPS” means fully paid-up cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of the Company having 
a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each, carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum and carrying the rights 
set out in Annexure 2 to Part B of these Articles to be issued to the Investors in terms of the Transaction Documents 

“Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares” has the meaning assigned to the term in the SSA; 

“Transaction Assistance” includes (i) providing full co-operation and assistance to a Person to conduct diligence on the Company and its 
Subsidiaries including legal, financial, technical, commercial, tax or other due diligence whether by setting-up a virtual data room or otherwise; 
(ii) interaction and meetings with the Promoters, Directors, the Key Management, the employees of the Company and/or its Subsidiaries or any 
representative of the Promoter; (iii) providing detailed forward looking business plans as may be required to evaluate the Business; (iv) entering 
into definitive agreements such as share subscription, share purchase and shareholders’ agreements, as may be required; (v) undertaking the 
requisite corporate actions (including passing the requisite resolutions at the Board and shareholders meetings); (vi) appointing intermediaries 
and advisors (including legal and financial) to facilitate the process, to the extent reasonably and customarily required; (vii) obtaining all 
necessary Consents from third parties and all regulatory approvals, whether Governmental Approvals or otherwise, as, when and to the extent 
required; (viii) providing intimations to third parties, whether Governmental Authorities or otherwise, as, when and to the extent reasonably and 
customarily required; and (ix) doing such other acts, deeds and things as may be required to be done in connection with a sale or issuance of 
the Shares; 

“ Transaction Documents” mean the Agreement, the SSA, the Charter Documents, the Avino Charter Documents and any amendments 
executed thereto, and shall include any other document executed in relation to the Agreement or the investment by the Investors in the Company; 

“Transfer” means (in either the noun or the verb form and including all conjugations thereof with their correlative meanings) with respect to any 
ownership interests, the direct or indirect sale, assignment, Encumbrance, transfer or other disposition (whether for or without consideration, 
whether directly or indirectly, whether voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law) of any such ownership interests or of any direct or indirect 
beneficial interest therein or the creation of any third party interest in or over such ownership interests; and 

Undefined capitalized terms used in this Part B of these Articles shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Agreement. 

a. Interpretation. In these Articles, unless the context otherwise requires: 

i. the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or interpretation of these Articles; 

ii. references to one gender include all genders; 

iii. any reference to any enactment or statutory provision is a reference to it as it may have been, or may from time to time be, 
amended, modified, consolidated or re-enacted; 

iv. words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa; 

v. “including”, “includes” or “in particular” means including, includes or in particular without limitation; 

vi. references to an “agreement” or “document” shall be construed as a reference to such agreement or document as the same may 
have been amended, varied, supplemented or novated in writing at the relevant time in accordance with the requirements of such 
agreement or document and, if applicable, of these Articles with respect to amendments; 

vii. unless stated otherwise, all rights available to the Investors under these Articles and the Transaction Documents shall be 
exercised by the Investors collectively; 

viii. obligations of the Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters under these Articles are joint and several 

ix. when any particular date prescribed in these Articles is not a Business Day, the next succeeding day which is a Business Day shall 
be considered as such date; and 

2. USE OF PROCEEDS 

The Investment Amount shall be utilized by the Company only for expansion of the Business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in accordance 
with Article 5.28 of Part B of these Articles. 

3. TRANSFER PROVISIONS FOR THE SHAREHOLDERS 

3.1 As long as either of the Investors hold any Shares, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall not, directly or indirectly, 
Transfer their Shares to any Person except as provided for in these Articles and any such Transfer shall be null and void ab initio, and 
the Company shall not register such Transfer and shall reject any such Transfer made or attempted, suo moto, without the necessity 
of a Board decision or an order of any Governmental Authority. 

3.2 Lock-in of the Promoter Shares and the Other Founding Shareholder Shares 

3.2.1   The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall not, directly or indirectly, Transfer any Shares without Investor Consent. The 
Investor Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld but shall be required for a Transfer of Shares between the Promoters, the Other 
Founding Shareholders and their Affiliates subject to the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) providing 
satisfactory documentation to the Investors in relation to such Transfer and such Transfer being solely for the purpose of Tax or estate 
planning of the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as 
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the case maybe). Provided, however, that as a condition precedent to such Transfer of the Promoter Shares to an Affiliate of the 
Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholder Shares to an Affiliate of the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) as 
contemplated in this Article 3.2.1, such Affiliate shall execute, and the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders shall ensure 
that such Affiliate executes, a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. It is however clarified for the avoidance of doubt that any transfer 
of Shares by the Promoters and/or Other Founding Shareholder to their Affiliates pursuant to this Article 3.2.1 shall not relieve the 
Promoters and/or Other Founding Shareholders of their obligations under the Agreement or any other Transaction Documents or 
change their roles and responsibilities as Promoters or Other Founding Shareholders or member(s) of Key Management unless the 
Investors provide otherwise. Provided that, if such Affiliate should subsequently cease to qualify as an Affiliate, then the Promoters and 
the Other Founding Shareholder (including such Affiliate) shall procure that, prior to its ceasing to qualify as an Affiliate, such Affiliate 
transfers the entire legal and beneficial interest and title in and to the Shares held by such Affiliate to another Person who is an Affiliate 
of the Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholder and such Person who is an Affiliate complies with the provisions of the 
Transaction Documents, including the execution of a Deed of Adherence. 

3.3 Inter-se Transfer between Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders 

3.3.1 Each Promoter shall be entitled to Transfer any or all of the Shares held by such Promotor to other Promoters except to Avino, 
with prior written intimation to the Investors of at least 3 (three) Business Days. For the avoidance of doubt, it is clarified that no 
Promoter shall be entitled to Transfer its Shares to Avino. 

3.3.2 Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 3, Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal and Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF) shall, at all times, 
hold at least 75% (seventy five percent) of their Shareholding as of the Effective Date, adjusted for any Corporate Event. 

3.3.3 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents: (a) the Promoters shall not be entitled to Transfer their 
Shares to the Other Founding Shareholders; (b) the Other Founding Shareholders shall not be entitled to Transfer any Shares 
other than inter-se between themselves or to the Individual Promoters, which Transfer of Shares by the Other Founding 
Shareholders shall only be with prior written intimation of at least 3 (three) Business Days to the Investors. 

3.4 Personal Exigencies and Right of First Offer 

3.4.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in Article 3.2of Part B of these Articles, and subject to the procedure set out in this Article 
3.4, each Promoter and/or Other Founding Shareholder may, without Investor Consent, Transfer Shares to meet the relevant 
Promoter’s and/or Other Founding Shareholder’s (as the case maybe) personal exigencies, subject however to all Shares 
Transferred by all the Promoters and all the Other Founding Shareholders not exceeding an aggregate value of INR 75,000,000 
(Indian Rupees Seventy Five Million only) (“Liquidity Shares”). 

3.4.2 In the event that any of the Promoters and/or Other Founding Shareholders are desirous of Transferring the Liquidity Shares 
pursuant to Article 3.4.1of Part B of these Articles, then the relevant Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholder shall 
first offer such Liquidity Shares exclusively to the Investors by sending a written notice to the Investors (“Liquidity Shares 
Offer Notice”), which shall specify the number of Liquidity Shares proposed to be Transferred and shall call upon the Investors 
to offer a price per Liquidity Share (“Liquidity Share Offer Price”) as well as any other terms and conditions, for the purchase 
of the Liquidity Shares. It is hereby clarified that the Investors will have the right to exercise their right of first offer under this 
Article 3.4 and purchase the Liquidity Shares either directly themselves, jointly or severally, or through or together with any of 
their Affiliates. 

3.4.3 In the event the Investors propose to purchase the Liquidity Shares set out in the Liquidity Shares Offer Notice, then within 15 
(fifteen) days of the receipt of the Liquidity Shares Offer Notice, the Investors shall issue written notice to the relevant Promoter 
and/or the Other Founding Shareholder (as the case maybe) for the purchase of the Liquidity Shares (“Liquidity Shares 
Acceptance Notice”), setting out (i) the Liquidity Share Offer Price; (ii) the date of the proposed purchase; and (iii) the terms 
and conditions of the proposed purchase of the Liquidity Shares. In the event, the Liquidity Shares Acceptance Notice is not 
issued within the period set out herein, then the Liquidity Shares Offer Notice shall be deemed to have been rejected. The 
Investors shall purchase all of the Liquidity Shares being offered by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as 
the case maybe). 

3.4.4 If the Investors have rejected (or deemed to have rejected) the Liquidity Shares Offer Notice, then the relevant Promoter and/ 
or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall have the right to sell the Liquidity Shares to a liquidity purchaser 
(the “Liquidity Purchaser”), subject to Article 3.4.5.2of Part B of these Articles. 

3.4.5 In the event that any of the terms contained in the Liquidity Shares Acceptance Notice are not acceptable to the relevant 
Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe), such Promoter and/or the Other Founding 
Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall provide a written notice to the Investors in writing confirming the rejection of the 
Liquidity Shares Acceptance Notice within 7 (seven) Business Days of receipt such notice (“Rejection Notice”). Failure by the 
relevant Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) to respond within such time period shall be 
treated as a deemed rejection by such Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) of the Liquidity 
Shares Acceptance Notice. Upon issue of the Rejection Notice or deemed rejection as aforesaid, the relevant Promoter and/ 
or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall have the right to sell the Liquidity Shares to the Liquidity 
Purchaser, subject to: 

3.4.5.1 The sale of the Liquidity Shares being on terms no more favourable as set out in the Liquidity Shares Acceptance 
Notice and the price at which such sale is proposed to be undertaken being not less than the Liquidity Share Offer 
Price; 

3.4.5.2 The Liquidity Purchaser shall not be entitled to any rights in the Company or bound by the obligations set out in the 
Agreement save for Article 3.5 (Right of First Refusal)of Part B of these Articles, whereby the term “Promoter” shall 
refer to mean Liquidity Purchaser for the purpose of Article 3.5 (Right of First Refusal)of Part B of these Articles; 
and 

3.4.5.3 The Liquidity Purchaser executing a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. 
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3.4.6 Any sale of Liquidity Shares by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) to the Investors or 
the Liquidity Purchaser, as the case may be, shall be completed within a period of 90 (ninety) days from the date of issuance of 
the Liquidity Shares Offer Notice, failing which the sale shall again be subject to the provisions of this Article 3.4. For the 
purpose of computing the said 90 (ninety) day period, any time taken for receipt of necessary regulatory approvals shall be 
ignored provided such approvals are obtained within a period of 90 (ninety) days from the date of issuance of the Liquidity 
Shares Offer Notice. 

3.4.7 The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall act in good faith to obtain all Consents that may be required for 
transfer of the Liquidity Shares. 

3.5 Right of First Refusal 

3.5.1 Without prejudice to the obligations of the Promoters or the Other Founding Shareholders under this Article 3, in the event that 
any of the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders are desirous of Transferring any of the Shares held by them in 
the Company, the relevant Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall send a written notice 
(“Offer Notice”) to the Investors indicating the total number of Shares that are proposed to be Transferred (“Offer Shares”), 

the name, identity and beneficial ownership of the proposed purchaser of such Shares (“Purchaser”), the price per Share at 
which such Offer Shares are proposed to be sold to the Purchaser, (“Offer Price”) and the terms and conditions of the proposed 
Transfer. Upon receipt of the Offer Notice, the Investors shall have the first right to acquire the Offer Shares in accordance with 
the provisions of this Article 3.5.Provided however, that the Investors shall not be entitled to the right of first refusal under this 
Article 3.5, if the Shares are being Transferred by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) 
in terms of Articles 3.2 (Transfer to Affiliates), 3.3 (Inter-se Transfer) or 3.4(Personal Exigencies)of Part B of these 
Articles. 

3.5.2 Within a period of 15 (fifteen) Business Days, from the date of receipt of the Offer Notice (“Offer Period”), the Investors 

shall, by written notice, communicate to the relevant Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) 
their intent to purchase the Offer Shares at the Offer Price on the same terms and conditions set out in the Offer Notice 
(“Offer Response”). 

3.5.3 If the Investors have not exercised their rights to acquire the Offer Shares as set out above, the Promoters and/or the Other  
Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall, subject to Article 3.6of Part B of these Articles, be entitled to sell the 
Offer Shares to the Purchaser, who shall not be a Competitor, subject to the Purchaser signing a Deed of Adherence to the 
Agreement; provided that the price at which such Offer Shares are sold to the Purchaser shall not be lower than the Offer 
Price and the terms and conditions of the sale shall be no more favourable than those set out in the Offer Notice.  

 

3.5.4 Any sale of Offer Shares by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) to the Investors 
and the Purchaser, as the case may be, shall be completed within a period of 90 (ninety) days after the expiry of the Offer 
Period, failing which the sale shall again be subject to the provisions of this Article 3. For the purpose of computing the said 
90 (ninety) day period, any time taken for receipt of necessary regulatory approvals shall be ignored provided such approvals  
are obtained within a period of 90 (ninety) days from the expiry of the O ffer Period. 

3.5.5 The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall act in good faith to obtain all Consents and 
approvals that may be required for Transfer of the Offer Shares.  

3.6 Co-Sale Rights 

3.6.1 If the Investors do not exercise their right of first refusal as provided in Article 3.5of Part B of these Articles above, the Investors 
shall be entitled to co-sell their Shares with the Shares of the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case 
maybe) in the manner set out herein. Provided however, that the Investors shall not be entitled to the co-sale rights under this 
Article 3.6, if the Shares are being Transferred by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) 
in terms of Articles 3.2 (Transfer to Affiliates), 3.3 (Inter-se Transfer) or 3.4 (Personal Exigencies)of Part B of these 
Articles. 

3.6.2 The Investors shall have the right to co-sell such number of Shares as is provided in this Article 3.6 (“Co-Sale Shares”) by 
issuing a notice in writing to the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) during the Offer 
Period, requiring the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) to ensure that the Purchaser 
shall also purchase the Co-Sale Shares from the Investors at the Offer Price and on the same terms and conditions as are set 
out in the Offer Notice. Provided however, that the Investors shall not be required to make to the Purchaser any (i) 
representations, warranties and indemnities with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries (other than title to the Shares 
held by the Investors and their respective legal standing); or (ii) any non-competition or similar agreements that would bind the 
Investors or their respective Affiliates. Any Transfer of Shares to the Purchaser under this Article 3.6 shall be subject to the 
Purchaser executing a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. 

3.6.3 If the Investors decide to exercise their right to co-sell any Shares, the number of Co-Sale Shares that the Investors shall be 
entitled to sell on a Fully Diluted Basis shall bear the same proportion to the total number of Shares held by them respectively 
on a Fully Diluted Basis, which the Offer Shares bear as a percentage to the total Shares held by the Promoters and/or the Other 
Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) on a Fully Diluted Basis. 

3.6.4 Without prejudice to the rights of the Investors under Article 3.7, Article 4.4,Article 7 and Article 10of Part B of these 
Articles and notwithstanding anything stated in this Article 3.6, the Investors shall be entitled to co-sell all their Shares in the 
event the Offer Shares proposed to be Transferred by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders equals or 
exceeds 50% (fifty percent) of the Promoter Shares. 

3.6.5 In the event the Purchaser is not willing to purchase the Offer Shares along with all the Co Sale Shares, the Promoters and/or 
the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall ensure that the Offer Shares and Co-Sale Shares being sold to the 
Purchaser shall be in proportion to the Offer Shares and the Co-Sale Shares originally offered for sale, such that the total 
number of Shares being sold to the Purchaser does not exceed the number of Shares that the Purchaser is willing to purchase. 
This provision is illustrated by the following example: 
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If the Offer Shares being sold by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders equal 150 (one hundred fifty) Shares, the Co-
Sale Shares of the Investors equal 50 (fifty) Shares, and the Purchaser is only willing to purchase 100 (one hundred) Shares, the Offer 
Shares and the Co-Sale Shares to be sold to the Purchaser shall be in the ratio of 1.5:0.5 respectively, such that the Purchaser 
purchases 100 (one hundred) Shares i.e. the Purchaser will acquire 75 (seventy five) Shares from the Promoters and/or the Other 
Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) and 25 (twenty five) Shares from the Investor. 

It is however clarified for the avoidance of doubt, where the Investors elect to co-sell all their Shares pursuant to Article 3.6.4of Part B 
of these Articles above, the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall ensure that the Purchaser 
simultaneously acquires all the Co-Sale Shares and any Offer Shares. 

3.6.6 In the event the Purchaser is not willing to purchase all of the Co-Sale Shares in terms of either Articles 3.6.3, 3.6.4 or 3.6.5of 
Part B of these Articlesabove, the Parties agree that the Promoters and/ or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case 
maybe) shall not be able to sell its Shares to such Purchaser and any such sale shall again be subject to the provisions of 
Articles 3.5 and 3.6of Part B of these Articles. 

3.6.7 In the event that: 

3.6.7.1 the Investors do not exercise the co-sale right within the Offer Period, the Promoters and/ or the Other Founding 
Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall be free to sell the Offer Shares to the Purchaser, provided that: (i) the sale 
price shall not be lower than the Offer Price and the terms and conditions of the sale shall be no more favourable 
than those in the Offer Notice; and (ii) the Purchaser shall execute a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement; or  

3.6.7.2 the Investors exercise the co-sale right within the Offer Period to sell their Co Sale Shares in terms of this Article 
3.6, the sale of the Offer Shares by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) to 
the Purchaser would be subject to the Purchaser executing a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. Notwithstanding 
anything contained in Article 3.5of Part B of these Articles and this Article 3.6, if the Investors elect to exercise their 
co-sale right, the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders shall not be entitled to Transf er their Shares 
to the Purchaser, if on exercise of the co-sale right by the Investors in terms of this Article 3.6, the Investors do not 
receive at least the Liquidity Preference Amount; provided however that in the event that the Investors do not receive  
the entire Liquidity Preference Amount from the Purchaser on the Transfer of their Co -Sale Shares, the Promoters 
and/or the Other Founding Shareholders shall, simultaneously with the receipt of any payment from the Purchaser 
for their Offer Shares, ensure that the Investors receive at least the Liquidity Preference Amount by one or more of 
the following methods. It being clarified that the order of preference of the methods by which the Investors will 
receive its Liquidity Preference Amount is as follows: 

(a) adjustment of the Conversion Ratio of the Series A CCPS; 

(b) transfer of such number of Shares by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders to the Investors; 
and/or 

(c) cash payment to the Investors by the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders. 
It is further clarified for the avoidance of doubt that, (a) if the Investors do not receive the Liquidity Preference 
Amount in accordance with this Article 3.6.7, the Promotors and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case 
maybe) shall not be entitled to transfer any of their Shares to the Purchaser unless the Investors receive at least 
the Liquidity Preference Amount with respect to the Co-Sale Shares; and (b) the aggregate liability of the Promoters 
and the Other Founding Shareholders under Article 3.6.7.2(c)of Part B of these Articles above shall not exceed the 
aggregate value of all the Shares held by the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders in the Company. In 
the event, the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders Transfer any  Shares after the Effective Date to 
their respective Affiliates pursuant to the terms of the Agreement and these Articles, the Shares so Transferred after 
the Effective Date shall be included in computing the value of the total Shareholding of the Promoter s and/or the 
Other Founding Shareholders under Article 3.6.7.2(c)of Part B of these Articles.  

3.6.8 The sale of the Offer Shares along with the Co-Sale Shares, if any, to the Purchaser shall be completed within a period of 60 (sixty) 
days from the expiry of the Offer Period. The Promoters and/ or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall co-operate 
in good faith to obtain all Consents and approvals that may be required for transfer of the Co-Sale Shares, including Consents from the 
lenders, if required. In the event of a failure to so consummate the sale within the stipulated 60 (sixty) days period, the sale shall again 
be subject to the provisions of Articles 3.5 and 3.6 of Part B of these Articles. For the purpose of computing the said 60 (sixty) day 
period, any time taken for receipt of necessary regulatory approvals shall be ignored provided such approvals are obtained within a 
period of 60 (sixty) days from the date of the Offer Period. The time period of 60 (sixty) days as set out in this Article 3.6.8,may be 
extended by mutual agreement between the Investors and the Promoters. 

3.6.9 In the event that the Investors are exercising their rights under this Article 3.6 prior to conversion of all the Series A CCPS, the number 
of Co-Sale Shares, which they shall be entitled to sell shall be determined on the basis of the Shareholding of the Parties in the 
Company on a Fully Diluted Basis, and the Offer Price to be paid to the Investors for the Series A CCPS held by the Investors shall be 
determined based on the number of underlying Equity Shares based on the applicable Conversion Ratio. 

3.7 Transfer of Investors’ Shares 

3.7.1 The Investors shall have the right to Transfer all or part of their Shares to any Person subject to provisions of this Article 3.7, 
and the Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall provide Transaction Assistance to the prospective 
third party buyer of the Shares held by the Investors. Provided however, that except with the prior written consent of the 
Promoters, the Investors shall not Transfer their Shares to a Competitor prior to the expiry of 63 (sixty three) months from the 
First Closing Date, other than any Transfer of Shares by the Investors to a Competitor pursuant to Article 10.3.2 of Part B of 
these Art ic les. The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall  also provide necessary 
representations and warranties and indemnities pertaining to the Company and its Subsidiaries (other than title to the Shares 
held by the Investors and their respective legal standing) to such third party acquirer. It is hereby clarified that the Investors 
shall not be required to make any (i) representations, warranties and indemnities with respect to the Company and its 
Subsidiaries (other than title to the Shares held by the Investors and their legal standing); or (ii)any non-competition or similar 
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              agreements that would bind the Investors or their respective Affiliates. The representations, warranties and indemnities 
provided by the Company, Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters to such third party acquirer shall be no less 
favourable than those provided to the Investors under the Transaction Documents. 

3.7.2 In the event the Investors are desirous of Transferring any of their Shares to any Affiliate of the Investors, such Affiliate shall 
execute a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. It is clarified that the rights acquired by an Affiliate of the Investors shall be 
exercised by the Investor and the Affiliate under the Agreement and these Articles collectively acting as a single block of 
Shareholders. 

3.7.3 In the event the Investors are desirous of Transferring more than 7.5% (seven point five percent) of the Share Capital, the 
transferee shall acquire all the rights of the Investors under the Agreement and these Articles by signing a Deed of Adherence 
to the Agreement. 

3.7.4 Subject to the provisions of Article 15of Part B of these Articles, in the event the Investors are desirous of Transferring less than 7.5% (seven 
point five percent) of the Share Capital, save and except the following rights, the transferee shall not acquire any rights of the Investors 
under the Agreement and these Articles. 

3.7.4.1 Article 3.5 (Right of First Refusal) of Part B of these Articles; 

3.7.4.2 Article 3.6 (Co-Sale Rights) of Part B of these Articles; 

3.7.4.3 Article 3.7 (Transfer of Investors’ Shares) of Part B of these Articles; 

3.7.4.4 Article 4.1 (Anti-dilution rights) of Part B of these Articles; 

3.7.4.5 Article 4.2 (Pre-Emptive Rights) of Part B of these Articles; 

3.7.4.6 Article 4.3 (Information Rights) of Part B of these Articles; and 

3.7.4.7 Article 4.4 (Liquidity Preference) of Part B of these Articles. 

3.7.5 In the event the Investors are desirous of Transferring 7.5% (seven point five percent) or more of the Share Capital and the Investors 
continue to hold at least 7.5% (seven point five percent) after such Transfer, both the transferee and the Investors shall be entitled to 
similar rights and privileges under the Agreement and these Articles by signing a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement. Provided that such 
transferee and the Investors shall collectively be entitled to appoint only such number of Directors as the Investors are entitled to 
appoint under the terms of the Transaction Documents; and provided further that the transferee shall be entitled to independently exercise 
its voting rights under the Agreement and these Articles including with respect to the Fundamental Issues, except only if such transferee 
is an Affiliate of the Investors that is not a limited partner of the Investor or any entity not directly or indirectly under the Control or 
ownership of a limited partner of the Investors (the “Non- LP Affiliate”), in which event, such Non-LP Affiliate and the Investors shall 
vote on Fundamental Issues as a single block of Shareholders. 

3.7.6 It is however clarified for the avoidance of doubt, that in the event the shareholding of the Investors and the transferee cumulatively 
falls below 5% (five percent) of the Share Capital, the rights of the Investors and the transferee remaining under the Agreement and these 
Articles will be as per Article 15of Part B of these Articles. 

4. OTHER RIGHTS OF THE INVESTORS 

4.1 Anti-dilution rights. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Investors shall have the following anti-
dilution rights: 

4.1.1 The Investors shall be protected against any dilution of their Shareholding in the event of a Corporate Event, any distribution 
in cash or kind by the Company or any other events of a similar nature. 

4.1.2 If the Company (i) issues or proposes to issue (“Dilution Event”) any Shares, or any rights, options, warrants, debentures, 
securities, appreciation rights or instruments entitling the holder to receive, subscribe, convert into and/or exchange for Equity 
Shares (“Dilution Instrument”), at a price (“Dilution Price”) less than the Final Purchase Price; or (ii) makes any distribution 
of any nature whether in cash or kind to any holder of any Dilution Instrument, such that the effective price pertaining to such 
Dilution Instrument is less than the Final Purchase Price i.e. the Dilution Price, then the Investors shall be entitled to anti 
dilution rights. In such a case the revised Final Purchase Price under various scenarios shall be computed as follows: 

4.1.2.1 If the Dilution Event occurs prior to the Second Closing Date, the Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted or the 
Promoters shall transfer Equity Shares to the Investors, as applicable, in the following manner: 

(a) Scenario 1. If the Investors hold any Tranche 1 Series ACCPS, then the Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio shall be 
adjusted such that upon conversion of such Tranche 1 Series A CCPS, the revised Final Purchase Price is equal 
to the Dilution Price. 

(b) Scenario 2. If (i) the Investors do not hold any Tranche 1 Series A CCPS, or (ii) the adjustment envisaged under 
Article 4.1.2.1(a)of Part B of these Articles is not possible due to any restrictions under applicable Law or 
otherwise, then the Company shall issue or the Promoters shall sell such number of Equity Shares to the 
Investors at the lowest permissible consideration under applicable Law as may be necessary such that the 
revised Final Purchase Price, taking into account such transfer of Equity Shares and the consideration paid, is 
equal to the Dilution Price. Such sale of Equity Shares shall be completed prior to the issuance of the Dilution 
Instrument. 

4.1.2.2 If the Dilution Event occurs on or after the Second Closing Date, the Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio and/or the Tranche 
2 Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted or the Promoters shall transfer Equity Shares to the Investors, as applicable, in 
the following manner: 

(a) Scenario 1 . If the Investors hold any Tranche 1 Series A CCPS and any Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, then the 
Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio and the Tranche 2 Conversion Ratio shall both be adjusted such that upon 
conversion of all such Series A CCPS, the revised Final Purchase Price is equal to the Dilution Price. 



-----45-----  

(b) Scenario 2. If the Investors hold any Tranche 1 Series A CCPS but do not hold any Tranche 2 Series A CCPS, 
then the Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted such that upon conversion of such Tranche 1 Series A 
CCPS, the revised Final Purchase Price is equal to the Dilution Price. 

(c) Scenario 3. If the Investors hold any Tranche 2 Series A CCPS but do not hold any Tranche 1 Series A CCPS, 
then the Tranche 2 Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted such that upon conversion of such Tranche 2 Series A 
CCPS, the revised Final Purchase Price is equal to the Dilution Price. 

(d) Scenario 4. If (i) the Investors do not hold any Series A CCPS, or (ii) the adjustments envisaged under Articles 
4.1.2.2(a), (b),or (c)of Part B of these Articles are not possible due to any restrictions under applicable Law or 
otherwise, then the Company shall issue or the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders shall sell 
such number of Equity Shares to the Investors at the lowest permissible consideration under applicable Law as 
may be necessary such that the revised Final Purchase Price, taking into account such transfer of Equity Shares 
and the consideration paid, is equal to the Dilution Price. Such sale of Equity Shares shall be completed prior to 
the issuance of the Dilution Instrument. 

                                                    It is clarified for the avoidance of doubt that the non-subscription or non participation to the Dilution Instrument by the 
Investors in    terms of Article 4.1 (Anti-dilution rights) of Part B of these Articles, shall in no way prejudice the right 
available to the Investors under this Article 4.1 (Anti dilution rights) . 

4.1.3 In addition to Articles 4.1.2.1 and 4.1.2.2 of Part B of these Articles above, the Investors shall also be entitled to all pre emptive 
rights provided for in Article 4.2 (Pre-emptive rights) of Part B of these Articles. For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby 
clarified that the non-subscription or non participation to the Dilution Instrument by the Investors in terms of this Article 4.1 
(Anti-dilution rights), shall in no way prejudice the right available to the Investors in accordance with Article 4.2 (Pre-emptive 
rights) of Part B of these Articles. 

4.1.4 For the purpose of this Article 4.1, the Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall extend full co- 
operation to the Investors such that the Company forthwith takes all necessary steps to give effect to the terms and conditions 
of this Article 4.1, including by way of exercising all rights and powers available to them, voting at general meetings, and 
causing their nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes to give effect thereto. 

4.1.5 Nothing contained in this Article 4.1, shall apply to an issuance of Shares pursuant to the exercise of any of the 2019 ESOP 
Plan Options or any other employee stock option plan of the Company approved by the Board and the Investors in writing. 

4.2 Pre-emptive Rights. 

4.2.1 Save and except in case of an Exempted Issuance, the Investors (without prejudice to rights of the Investors in Article 4.1 of 
Part B of these Articles) and the Promoters shall be entitled to a pre emptive right to purchase such proportion of Shares or any 
rights, options, warrants, debentures, securities, appreciation rights or instruments entitling the holder to receive, subscribe, 
convert into and/or exchange for Shares (“Further Shares”) offered by the Company to any other Person, on the same price, 
terms and conditions as the Company proposes to offer such Further Shares to such other Persons, as would enable the 
Investors and Promoters to maintain their proportion of Shareholding on a Fully Diluted Basis. The Investors shall also be 
entitled to subscribe to Further Shares not subscribed to by such other Persons (including the Promoters). 

4.2.2 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, Promoters shall not have any right to subscribe to Further 
Shares under this Article 4.2 in the case of: 

4.2.2.1 investment of Additional Primary Investment Amount in accordance with clause 7 of the SSA; 

4.2.2.2 adjustment to the Conversion Ratio in accordance with the terms of the Agreement and these Articles and clause 10 
of the SSA; and 

4.2.2.3 any issuance of Equity Shares pursuant to the conversion of the Investor Securities. 

4.2.3 In the event the Investors or Promoters are desirous of purchasing or subscribing to any Further Shares, but are unable to 
participate due to any restrictions under Law or for any reason beyond the control of the Investors or Promoters, as the case 
may be, the Parties shall determine, in good faith, alternate legally viable means by which the Investors and Promoters may 
maintain their proportion of Shareholding after the conversion, allotment or exercise of the Further Shares. 

4.2.4 The Company shall ensure that the following procedure is followed in issuing any Further Shares: 

4.2.4.1 At least 30 (thirty) days prior to the meeting of the Board held to approve the issuance of any Further Shares, the 
Company shall send a written notice (“Pre Emptive Notice”) to the Investors and Promoters informing them of the 
proposed plan of the Company to issue Further Shares, providing details of the number of Further Shares to be 
issued, the price at which they are to be issued and such other terms and conditions regarding the issue of Further 
Shares (“ Dilution Notice”). The Dilution Notice shall also specify the number of Further Shares to be issued to the 
Investors and Promoters (“Entitlement”) such that the Investors and Promoters can maintain their proportion of 
Shareholding. 

4.2.4.2 Within 15 (fifteen) days after the date of receipt of the Pre-Emptive Notice, the Investors and Promoters shall have the 
option of subscribing to their respective Entitlement specified in the Dilution Notice and the Investors shall have the 
option of subscribing to any portion of the Further Shares remaining unsubscribed (the “Pre-emptive Right Period”). 

4.2.4.3 Within 45 (forty-five) Business Days of the expiry of the Pre-emptive Right Period, the Company shall ensure that the 
issue of Further Shares is approved by the Board and/or the Shareholders, as may be required under Law (“Approval 
Date”). 

4.2.4.4 The allotment of Further Shares, including to the Investors or Promoters, as the case may be, shall be completed 
within 30 (thirty) Business Days of the Approval Date, failing which the provisions of this Article 4.2 shall become 
applicable again to any issuance of Further Shares thereafter. All Consents and approvals required in issuing the 
Further Shares shall be obtained by the Company. 
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4.2.4.5 It is agreed that the procedure under this Article 4.2 shall not be required to be followed if any Further Shares are 
being issued pursuant to Articles 4.2.2.1; 4.2.2.2 or 4.2.2.3 of Part B of these Articles. 

4.2.5 The Company agrees and undertakes that it shall not issue any securities in contravention of the provisions of Articles 4.1 and 
4.2 and Article 6of Part B of these Articles. 

4.2.6 For the purpose of this Article 4.2, the Company and the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall extend full co- 
operation to the Investors such that the Company forthwith takes all necessary steps to give effect to the terms and conditions 
of this Article 4.2, including by way of exercising all rights and powers available to them, voting at general meetings, and 
causing their nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes to give effect thereto. 

4.2.7 The Investors agrees that the aggregate Shareholding of the Investor shall not exceed the Shareholding of the Promoters, 
provided however that the foregoing limitation shall not apply in case of the following issuances of Shares to the Investors: 

4.2.7.1 Pursuant to the Investors’ anti-dilution rights under Article 4.1of Part B of these Articles; 

4.2.7.2 Pursuant to an adjustment to the Conversion Ratio on account of the Investors’ indemnification rights under clause 
10 of the SSA, on account of Liquidity Preference or otherwise in terms of the Agreement and the Articles; 

4.2.7.3 Any Transfer of Shares by the Promoters pursuant to Article 3 of Part B of these Articles; 

4.2.7.4 Any further investment by the Investors in the Company post the Second Closing Date, as may be mutually agreed 
between the Company, Promoters and the Investors; and/or 

4.2.7.5 The occurrence of an Event of Default that has not been cured in terms of Article 10.3of Part B of these Articles. 

 

4.3 Information Rights. 

4.3.1 As long as the Investors hold any Shares, the Company shall, and the Promoters shall procure that the Company shall:  

4.3.1.1 Deliver to the Investors the following relating to the Company and its Subsidiaries in a form acceptable to the 
Investors: 

(a) audited consolidated annual financial statements and management report within 90 (ninety) days after the 
end of each fiscal year; 

(b) unaudited consolidated quarterly financial statements and management report within 30 (thirty) days after 
the end of each fiscal quarter; 

(c) unaudited consolidated monthly financial statements and management report within 30 (thirty) days after 
the end of each month till March 31, 2020 and 15 (fifteen) days after the end of each month after March 31, 
2020 in the Agreed Form; 

(d) copies of all documents or other information sent to any Shareholder on the same day it is sent to any other 
Shareholder; 

(e) a quarterly budget within 30 (thirty) days prior to end of each fiscal quarter till March 31, 2020 and 15 
(fifteen) days prior to the end of each fiscal quarter after March 31, 2020; and 

(f) an annual budget within 30 (thirty) days prior to the end of each fiscal year.  
Provided that all financial statements to be provided to the Investors under Article 4.3.1.1(a) to Article 
4.3.1.1(f)of Part B of these Articles, shall be prepared in accordance with the Applicable Accounting 
Standards, and all management reports to be provided to the Investors shall include a comparison of 
financial results with the corresponding quarterly and annual budgets; 

(g) on a regular basis any information required for ensuring compliance with Anti -corruption Laws and Sanction 
Laws and ESG reporting on part of the Company and its Subsidiaries;  

(h) copies of any reports filed by the Company and its Subsidiaries with any relevant securities exchange, 
regulatory authority or governmental agency, as may be requested by the Investors from time -to-time; 

(i) details of any disputes, actions, Claims, suits, proceedings, by or against the Company including those in 
relation to lenders of the Company, immediately on the occurrence of any of the foregoing, save and except 
the disputes set out in Article 4.3.1.1(j)of Part B of these Articles;  

(j) details of any disputes, actions, Claims, suits, proceedings, by or against the Company in rela tion to 
customers or borrowers of the Company, immediately, once the disputed amounts under such proceedings 
is in excess of INR 5,000,000 (Indian Rupees Five Million only) individually or INR 20,000,000 (Indian 
Rupees Twenty Million only) cumulatively in a Financial Year; 

(k) on a regular basis any updates on Business, discussions with regulatory authorities, inorganic growth 
initiatives and any other significant business-related matter with respect to the Company and its 
Subsidiaries as may be requested by the Investors from time to time; and 

(l) allow the Investors, after receipt of a prior notice of 5 (five) days from the Investors, as the case may be, 
to examine the books and records of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and/or to discuss the Business, 
operations and conditions of the Company and its Subsidiaries with their respective directors, officers, 
employees, accountants, legal counsel and investment bankers;  

4.3.1.2 deliver a compliance certificate on a quarterly basis at each Board meeting and the meeting of the  board of 
directors of the Subsidiaries; 

4.3.1.3 update the Investors on the status of D&O Policy on a regular basis and as may be requested by the Investors 
from time to time; and 
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4.3.1.4 provide to the Investors details of any defaults under material contracts, notices having material effect on the 
Business immediately upon the occurrence of such event.  

4.4 Liquidity Preference. 

4.4.1 In any Liquidity Event, the distribution (whether from capital, reserves, surplus, earnings or sale consideration or otherwise) 
of proceeds realized from the occurrence of the relevant Liquidity Event (the “Distributable Proceeds”) shall be distributed in 
the following manner: 

4.4.1.1 First, on a pari passu basis, prior to any payments being made to any other Shareholder, to the Investors to the extent 
of the Liquidity Preference Amount. 

4.4.1.2 Second, all remaining proceeds realized from the occurrence of such Liquidity Event shall be distributed to the 
Shareholders other than the Investors, in proportion to their inter-se Shareholding. 

4.4.2 In the event that the Distributable Proceeds is lesser than the sum of the aggregate amounts invested by the Investors in the 
Company, then the entire proceeds will be distributed amongst the Investors, whether in one or more tranches. 

4.4.3 In the event Article 4.4.1 and Article 4.4.2 of Part B of these Articles above is not enforceable under applicable Law, the 
following shall apply: after payment or provision for payment of the debts and other liabilities of the Company, the remaining 
proceeds realized from such Liquidity Event shall be distributed amongst the Shareholders in proportion to their respective 
Shareholding on a Fully Diluted Basis. In the event the amount received by the Investors is less than the Liquidity Preference 
Amount, then, the Investors may at their sole discretion, chose to receive the following, either independently or in a 
combination: (a) where after such Liquidity Event, the Investors continue to hold any Series A CCPS, then, subject to applicable 
Law, the Conversion Ratio of the Series A CCPS shall be adjusted, such that on conversion of such Series A CCPS, the 
Investors receive the Liquidity Preference Amount; and/or (b) the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall, out 
of the amounts received by them net of any Taxes, pay to the Investors such amount so that the Investors receive the Liquidity 
Preference Amount. It is clarif ied that in the event of a part sale of Shares by the Promoters and the Other Founding 
Shareholders, the obligation of the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders to pay the Investors the Liquidity 
Preference Amount shall continue and survive until the Investors receive the Liquidity Preference Amount. 

4.4.4 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, in the event that the applicable Law does not 
permit the Investors from receiving payments set out in Articles 4.4.1,4.4.2 or 4.4.3  of Part B of these Articles, the 
Parties shall determine in good faith the manner in which the Investors shall be compensated to the extent of the  
Liquidity Preference Amount, including by way of making adjustments to the Conversion Ratio.  

4.4.5 For the purpose of this Art icle 4.4, the Company and the Promoters shal l extend ful l co -operation to the Investors 
such that the Company forthwith takes al l necessary steps to give effect to the terms and conditions of this Article 
4.4, including by way of exercising all rights and powers avai lable to them, voting at general meetings, and causing 
their nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes to give effe ct thereto.  

4.4.6 For avoidance of doubt, the Parties agree that on the occurrence of a Liquidity Event pursuant to Article 3.6, Article 
7 or Article 10of Part B of these Articles, then the process for implementing the Liquidity Event shal l be that as set 
out in Article 3.6, Article 7 or Article 10of Part B of these Articles (as the case maybe). Provided however, that the 
Investors shall always be ent it led to the Liquidity Preference Amounts as per this Article 4.4 in case of a Liquidity 
Event under Article 7 and Article 10of Part B of these Articles.  

4.4.7 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, Promoter’s and the Other Founding Shareholders’ l iabil ity to 

pay any shortfall  of the Liquidity Preference Amount to the Investor shall not exceed the aggregate v alue of all the 
Shares held by the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders in the Company. In the event, the Promoters 
and the Other Founding Shareholders Transfer any Shares after the Effective Date to their respective Affi l iates 
pursuant to the Agreement and these Articles, the Shares so Transferred after the Effective Date shall be included 
in computing the l iability of the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders with respect to computing the 
Liquidity Preference Amount under this Art icle 4.4 .7. 

4.4.8 It is hereby clarif ied that in case of partial  sale of Investor Securit ies, the Liquidity Preference Amount shall be 
recomputed accordingly.  

4.5 ESOP: In addition to the 2019 ESOP Plan, the Company shall,  after obtaining Investor Consent, reserve further employee 
stock options as per business necessity, which shall dilute every Shareholder proport ionately, and which shall be 
available for al location subject to applicable Laws to the employees, officers and Directors (other than the 
Promoters) or such other person pursuant to any bona-fide employee stock option plan that may be approved by 
the Board and compensation committee of the Company. The Board and the compensation committee of the 
Company shall jointly determine the eligibi l ity criteria for any futur e employee stock option grant.  

4.6 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Agreement and these Articles, the liabi lity of the Other Founding Shareholders 
in any event whatsoever shall only be limited to the aggregate value of all the Shares held by the Other  Founding 
Shareholders in the Company. In the event, the Other Founding Shareholders Transfer any Shares after the Effective Date 
to their respective Affi l iates pursuant to the Agreement and these Articles, the Shares so Transferred after the Effective 
Date shall be included in computing the l iability of the Other Founding Shareholders with respect to computing the Liquidity 
Preference Amount under this Article 4.6.  

5. MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY 
The provisions of this Art icle 5 shall  mutatis mutandis apply to the Company and each of the Subsidiaries and accordingly 
for the purpose of this Art icle 5, the term “Board” and “committee” shall mean the board of directors or committees, as 

the case may be, of the Company and each of its Subsidiaries, the term “Directo rs” shall mean the directors of the 

Company and each of its Subsidiaries, and the term “Company” shall  include each of its Subsidiaries, as may be 

applicable.  

5.1 Board Composition. The maximum number of Directors shall not at any time exceed 12 (twelve). The number of 
Directors shal l not be changed except by way of amendment to the Charter Documents.  
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5.2 Without prejudice to Article 5.3of Part B of these Articles, subject to applicable Law, the Investors and the Promoters 
shall be entit led to appoint such number o f Directors (rounded off to the nearest integer) in proportion to their 
Shareholding on a Fully Di luted Basis. Provided however that the Investors shall at all t imes be entit led to appoint a 
minimum of 1 (one) Director (such Director, the “ Investor Director”) subject to the Investors holding at least 5% 
(five percent) of the Share Capital.  

5.3 On the First Closing Date Investors shall have the right to appoint 1 (one) Investor Director(s), and thereafter the 
appointment of any   Director, if any, shall be in accordance with Article 5.2of Part B of these Articles.  

5.4 Independent Directors. Appointment of new Independent Directors shal l be after obtaining Investor Consent. Re -
appointment of existing Independent  Directors as on the First Closing Date will not require Investor Consent. The 
composition of the Board, other than the Investor Directors and Promoter Directors, shall be mutually agreed 
between the Investors and the Promoter within 12 (twelve) months from the First Closing Date.  

5.5 Save and except the Independent Directors, if any, the board of directors of the Subsidiaries shall be identical to the 
Board. 

5.6 The Investor Directors shall be non-executive Directors, shall not be responsible for the day -to-day management 
of the Company and shall not be liable for any failure by the Company to comply with Law. The Company shall  
nominate a Director or persons other than the Investor Directors as “persons in charge” or “principal officer” as 

contemplated under Law and shall ensure that the Investor Directors are no t included within the scope of “off icer 

who is in default” under Law or shown as such in any applications, fi l ings, returns, registers or otherwise. The 

Investor Directors shall not be required to hold any qualif ication shares.  

5.7 Committees of the Board.  The Investors shall have the right to appoint the Investor Director(s) on all committees 
of the Board. The Company shall ensure that the Board constitutes an Audit Committee, Risk Management 
Committee, Asset Liabil ity Management Committee, Credit Committee, C ompensation Committee, Corporate Social 
Responsibil ity Committee and Corporate Governance Committee. Further, the Investors, the Promoters and the 
Company shall mutually agree on the scope of such committees so constituted and their respective policies wit hin 
90 (ninety) days from the First Closing Date.  

5.8 Alternate Directors. The Investors shall  be entit led to nominate persons to be appointed as alternate directors to 
the Investor Directors as permitted under applicable Law. Such alternate directors shall have the same rights as 
the Investor Directors.  

5.9 Removal/Resignation of Directors . The Investors may remove or require the removal of Investor Directors by written 
notice and nominate another individual as an Investor Director in their place, and all Partie s shall exercise all r ights 
and powers available to them and shal l cause their nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes to give effect 
thereto. In the event of resignation, retirement or vacation of office of the Investor Director, the Investors shal l be 
entit led to appoint another Director in place of such resigning Director, and the Parties shall exercise all rights and 
powers available to it and shall cause its nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes to give effect thereto.  

5.10 Observer. The Investors shal l also be entit led to nominate 1 (one) observer to the Board, and the board of each of 
the Subsidiaries and to all the committees of the Board and the committees of the board of each of the Subsidiaries 
(“Observer”). The Observer shall be entit led to receive all notices and other communications given to the Directors 
or committee members and shall  be entit led to attend all meetings of the Board and committees of the Board. For 
the avoidance of doubt, the Observer shall not be entit led to vote at the meetings of the Board and/or their 
committees or be counted towards the quorum for such meetings.  

5.11 To retire by rotation. It is clarif ied for the avoidance of doubt that the Investor Director(s) shall be liable to retire 
by rotation. Where any Director is required to retire in compliance with the provision of the Act, the Parties shal l  
ensure that they shall  be reappointed to the Board. The Parties hereby undertake to vote at general meetings and 
board meetings of the Company and cause their nominee Directors to vote in such manner so as to ensure 
reappointment of Directors in accordance with this Article 5.11.  

5.12 Meetings of the Board. 

5.12.1 The Board of the Company shall meet at least once every 3 (three) calendar months at such locations as may be 
decided by the Board, provided that such location is approved, in writing, by the Investor Directors and Promoter 
Directors. A meeting of the Board or its committee shall be convened pursuant to a written notice of at least 7 (seven) 
Business Days to each of the Directors and their alternate directors. Any Director shall have the right to convene a 
meeting of the Board or committee through issue of a written notice as above. Notice may be waived, or a Board or 
committee meeting may be called by giving shorter notice with the consent of the majority of the Directors, provided 
that the consent of at least 1 (one) Investor Director is also obtained. The notice of each Board or committee meeting 
shall include a detailed agenda setting out the business proposed to be transacted at such meeting, and copies of all 
relevant papers connected therewith and/or proposed to be placed before or tabled before the Board or committee. 
Any Director may require any additional item to be put on the agenda by written notice sent to the company secretary 
or such other person as may be designated by the Board or to all the other Directors of the Board at least 7 (seven) 
Business days before the relevant meeting. Any matter outside the agenda shall not be discussed at such meeting, 
except with consent of at least 1 (one) Investor Director. 

5.12.2 Subject to applicable Law, all matters shall be passed or decided at a Board or a committee meeting only if at a validly 
constituted meeting, such resolutions are approved by a simple majority of the Directors present and voting at such 
Board or committee meeting. Provided however that, if it relates to a Fundamental Issue, Investor Consent should 
have been obtained in the manner contained in Article 6of Part B of these Articles. No matter relating to any 
Fundamental Issue will be included in the agenda of any Board or committee meeting under any heading other than 
the heading “ Matter Pertaining to Fundamental Issues”.  It is c lari f ied for the avoidance of doubt that no 
Fundamental Issue shall be passed, approved or authorised in any Board meeting unless such Fundamental Issue is 
in verbatim either (i) approved in writing by the Investor Director; or (ii) where the Investor Director is not present in 
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such Board meeting, the Investor Consent has been obtained with respect to such Fundamental Issue prior to such 
Board meeting. 

5.13 The Directors may in accordance with the applicable Law participate in a Board meeting through Electronic Mode as may be set 
out in the notice of the Board meeting, provided the Director intending to participate in the Board meeting by Electronic Mode 
intimates the Company in writing of his intention to participate in the particular Board meeting by Electronic Mode at least 
1(one) day prior to the scheduled date of such Board meeting. Participation in the Board meeting through Electronic Mode shall constitute 
presence “in person” for purposes of constituting quorum for the Board Meeting only if each Director participating in the Board meeting 
by Electronic Mode attends at least 1 (one) Board meeting physically in every Financial Year. The place where the Chairman of the 
Board meeting is located shall be taken as place of the Board meeting and all recording shall be done at that place. In the event any 
Director participates in a Board meeting through the Electronic Mode, the Chairman of the Board meeting will be responsible for the 
conduct of such meeting in accordance with applicable Laws. All meetings of the Board undertaken through Electronic Mode shall be 
subject to the provisions relating to the conduct of a Board meeting under Part B of these Articles. 

5.14 Minutes. All minutes of the meetings of the Board shall be an accurate reflection and representation of the meeting of the Board to which 
they relate and shall be circulated to the Directors as soon as practicable after the meeting to which they relate, and in any case no later 
than 10 (ten) Business Days after such meeting. All minutes of the meetings of the Board shall be confirmed by nominee Directors of all 
Parties who had attended such meeting to ensure that such minutes are an accurate reflection and representation of the meeting of the 
Board to which they relate. Notwithstanding anything stated in Article 5 of Part B of these Articles, the minutes of meetings of the Board 
attended by the Investor Directors shall only be conclusive evidence of any resolution of such meeting conducted in the manner as 
aforesaid and treated as ‘confirmed’ once they are confirmed in writing including by way of e-mail within 20 (twenty) Business Days from 
the date on which the relevant meeting of the Board is held, by such Investor Directors who had attended such meeting. Notwithstanding 
anything contained in Article 5 of Part B of these Articles, the minutes of the meetings of the Board, which are not attended by the 
Investor Directors and a decision on a Fundamental Issue is approved at such meeting, shall be conclusive evidence of any resolution 
passed at such meeting if such resolution is passed in accordance with the Investor Consent obtained for such Fundamental Issue. 

5.15 At the end of every quarter of a Financial Year, a whole-time Director of the Company shall provide a compliance certificate to the Board, 
substantially in the form provided under annexure 6of the Agreement, stating that the business and affairs of the Company have been, 
are being and shall be conducted in compliance with Law and in the interest of the Company. 

5.16 Quorum. The quorum for a meeting of the Board shall comprise 3 (three) Directors unless a higher quorum is prescribed by applicable 
Law; provided however, at least 1 (one) Investor Director and 1 (one) Promoter Director shall have to be present in person or through 
an alternate director, at the beginning of the meeting and throughout the meeting. If the quorum is not present within 30 (thirty) minutes 
from the time when the meeting should have begun or if during the meeting there is no longer a quorum and the Company has received 
a notice of waiver in writing from the Investor Director from attending such meeting, then the meeting shall be conducted subject to 
applicable Law. If such waiver is not obtained, the, meeting shall be adjourned and reconvened, with the same agenda, at the same 
place and time 10 (ten) days later, or such shorter period as may be agreed to by the majority of the Directors, provided that the consent 
of at least 1 (one) Investor Director and 1 (one) Promoter Director is also obtained. At the reconvened meeting, the Directors present 
shall constitute the quorum; provided however that at such reconvened meeting, no decision on the Fundamental Issues can be passed, 
approved or authorized unless the Investor Consent has been obtained. 

5.17 Chairman. Subject to there being no pending or unresolved notice of dispute issued by the Investors against the Company, the Promoters 
or the Other Founding Shareholders alleging any breach of the terms of the Transaction Documents, the Promoters shall be entitled to 
appoint the Chairman of each meeting of the Board. In the event any such notice of dispute is either issued or remains unresolved and 
outstanding, the Directors so present in the relevant meeting of the Board shall appoint the Chairman of such meeting of the Board. The 
Chairman shall not, in case of equality of votes, have a second and casting vote in any meeting of the Board or of any committee thereof. 

5.18 Circular resolutions. A resolution by circulation shall be as valid and effectual as a resolution duly passed at a Board meeting called and 
held, provided it has been circulated in draft form, together with the relevant papers, if any, to all the Directors and has been approved 
by a majority of the Directors entitled to vote thereon. Provided however that, if it relates to a Fundamental Issue, Investor Consent 
should have been obtained in the manner contained in Article 6of Part B of these Articles. No circular resolution shall be valid unless the 
same has been circulated to all the Directors whether in India or abroad with at least 5 (five) days’ notice. No decision on the Fundamental 
Issues set out in Article 6of Part B of these Articles can be passed, approved or authorized by a circular resolution unless Investor 
Consent has been obtained. In all other cases, no circulation resolution can be passed, approved or authorized, unless the same has 
been signed by a majority of the Directors. The said period of 5 (five) days may be reduced if a majority of the Directors on the Board 
consent, provided at least 1 (one) Investor Director and at least 1 (one) Promoter Director consents to the circular resolution being 
circulated with less than 5 (five) days’ notice. If any Director fails or refuses to sign such circular resolution within 7 (seven) days from 
the date of circulation, he shall be deemed to have disapproved of the resolution circulated to the Directors for approval. 

5.19 Sitting fees of the Investor Directors. The Investor Directors shall be entitled to all the rights and privileges of other non- executive 
Directors and to the sitting fees and expenses; provided that if the Investors so advise the Company, the sitting fees in relation to the 
Investor Directors shall accrue to the Investors and the same shall accordingly be paid by the Company to the Investors. 

5.20 Expenses. The Investor Directors shall be paid all reasonable out-of-pocket-expenses (including travel, boarding and lodging expenses) 
by the Company for attending any Shareholders’ meeting and Board meeting of the Company or a meeting of the board of directors of 
the Subsidiaries and any other reasonable expenses incurred by the Investor Directors in the course of fulfilling their duties and 
obligations as directors of the Company and/or the Subsidiaries in terms of the policy of the Company; provided that if the Investors so 
advise the Company, such expenses incurred by the Investor Directors shall accrue to the Investors and the same shall accordingly be 
paid by the Company to the Investors. 

5.21 D&O insurance. The Company shall within 90 (ninety) days from the First Closing Date and at all times thereafter maintain and procure 
the maintenance of director and officer indemnity insurance policies (“D&O Policy”) which are customary for similar companies in respect 

of all Directors and officers of the Company. In all such insurance policies, the Investor Directors shall be named as an insured in such 
a manner so as to provide such Investor Directors the same rights and benefits equal to or more than the other Directors and to protect 
such Investor Directors from Losses suffered on account of any acts or omissions by them in executing their role as non-executive 
Directors of the Company. Such insurance policies shall require prior written approval of the Investors (including any modification or 
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agreement to any terms and conditions therein) and shall be reviewed periodically by the Investors at least once in each calendar year 
and that all recommendations by the Investors shall be complied with. 

5.22 Directors’ indemnity. 

5.22.1 Without prejudice to Article 5.21of Part B of these Articles above, the Company agrees to indemnify every person who 
is and has been an Investor Director (“Indemnitee”) against any and all Losses and expenses (including all Losses 
incurred in connection with investigating, defending, appealing, being a witness in or otherwise participating in or 
preparing to defend, appeal, be a witness in or otherwise participate in a proceeding, amounts paid in settlement (if 
such settlement is approved in advance by the Company, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld) and 
other charges in connection therewith (“D&OExpenses”), incurred by the Indemnitee in connection with any pending 
or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (including without 
limitation a Claim, demand, discovery request, formal or informal investigation, inquiry, administrative hearing, 
arbitration or other form of alternative dispute resolution), including an appeal from any of the foregoing, which is in 
any way connected with, resulting from or related to the fact that the Indemnitee is or was a director of the Company, 
or by reason of any action or inaction on the part of the Indemnitee while serving in such capacity (“Proceeding”). The 
Company shall, in addition, pay the Indemnitee an amount equal to any Taxes imposed on the said Indemnitee in any 
jurisdiction as a result of the actual or deemed receipt of any payments under the Agreement and these Articles (“D&O 
Taxes”). The Company shall advance all D&O Expenses and D&O Taxes incurred by the Indemnitee. Such advances 
will be made by the Company as soon as practicable but in any event no later than 14 (fourteen) days after written 
demand by the Indemnitee is presented to the Company. 

5.22.2 No indemnification shall be provided to the Indemnitee to the extent that the D&O Expenses and D&O Taxes are 
covered by a policy of insurance and fully paid or reimbursed by an insurer to the Indemnitee. 

5.22.3 The right of indemnification provided herein shall not affect any other rights to which any Indemnitee may be entitled. 

5.23 Exercise of rights. All Parties agree to use all their rights, including their voting rights in relation to any Equity Shares held by 
them, to effectuate the appointment and election of the Investor Directors as contemplated herein and to ensure that the 
Company abides by the terms and conditions imposed in this Article 5. 

5.24 Quorum and Voting at Shareholder meeting. Voting on all matters to be considered at a general meeting of the Shareholders 
shall be by way of a poll unless otherwise agreed upon in writing by the Investor, subject however that if required by applicable 
Law, the Company shall provide postal ballot voting facility and e-voting facility to its Shareholders. The quorum for a general 
meeting shall be as per appl icable Law subject to a minimum of 1 (one) representat ive of the Investors and 1 (one) 
representative of the Promoters, who are present and voting unless the Investors and/or the Promoters (as the case maybe) 
have waived their right to form quorum in writing to the Company. If the quorum is not present within 30 (thirty) minutes from the 
time when the meeting should have begun or if during the meeting there is no longer a quorum, the meeting shall be adjourned 
and reconvened, with the same agenda, at the same place and time 7 (seven) days later, or such shorter period as maybe 
agreed to by the Board. It is however agreed between the Parties that in the event the quorum of the Shareholders’ meeting is 
not met solely on account of the absence of the Investors’ representative, then, such meeting of the Shareholders will not be 
required to be adjourned, subject to: (a) the agenda for such Shareholders’ meeting containing only such items that have been 
approved in writing by the Investor Directors in the Board meeting convening such Shareholders’ meeting and no item outside 
such agenda is taken up at such Shareholders’ meeting; and (b) no decision on a Fundamental Issue is passed, approved or 
authorized at such Shareholders’  meeting unless such Fundamental Issue has been approved in writing by the Investor 
Directors in the meeting of the Board in which the decision to convene the Shareholders’ meeting was taken and the notice of 
such Shareholders meeting has reproduced such Fundamental Issue in verbatim, that was (i) approved at such Board meeting 
in verbatim, or (ii) has been approved in writing by the Investors separately. 

5.25 Notice for Shareholding meeting. Subject to the provisions of applicable Law, at least 21 (twenty one) days written notice of 
every Shareholder meeting of the Company shall be given to all Shareholders. The notice of each Shareholder meeting shall 
include a detailed agenda setting-out the business proposed to be transacted at the meeting, together with copies of all 
relevant papers connected therewith and/or proposed to be placed before or tabled at the Shareholder meeting. The business 
conducted at any meeting of the Shareholders shall only comprise those matters expressly stated in the notice convening such 
meeting unless otherwise agreed prior to in writing by the Investors. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the 
Transaction Documents, all decisions of the Company in respect of any of the Fundamental Issues shall be taken only in 
accordance with Article 6 of Part B of these Articles. No matter relating to any Fundamental Issue will be tabled in the agenda 
of any Shareholders’ meeting under any heading other than the heading “Matter Pertaining to Fundamental Issues”. 

5.26 Chairman. Subject to Article 5.17of Part B of these Articles, the Chairman of the Board shall be the Chairman of the Company. 
In the event that such Chairman is not present at a Shareholders’ meeting or a notice of dispute by the Investors, is either issued 
or remains unresolved or outstanding, the Shareholders so present shall appoint the Chairman to preside over such meeting. 
The Chairman shall not, in case of equality of votes, have a second and casting vote in any meeting of the Shareholders. 

5.27 Minutes. All minutes of the meetings of the Shareholders shall be an accurate reflection and representation of the meeting of 
the Shareholders to which they relate and shall be circulated to the Shareholders on request as soon as practicable after the 
meeting to which they relate, and in any case no later than 15 (fifteen) days after such meeting. All minutes of the meetings of 
the Shareholders shall be confirmed by the representatives of the Parties who had attended such meeting to ensure that such 
minutes are an accurate reflection and representation of the meeting of the Shareholders to which they relate. Notwithstanding 
anything stated in this Article 5.27, the minutes of general meetings of the Company attended by a representative of the 
Investors shall only be conclusive evidence of any resolution of any meeting conducted in the manner as aforesaid and treated 
as ‘confirmed’ once they are confirmed in writing including by way of e-mail by the representatives of the Investors who had 
attended such meeting. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 5, the minutes of the meetings of the Shareholders, 
which are not attended by the Investors’ representatives and a decision on a Fundamental Issue is approved at such meeting 
shall be conclusive evidence of any resolution passed at such meeting if such resolution is passed in accordance with the 
Investor Consent obtained for such Fundamental Issue. 
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5.28 Business Plan. Without prejudice to the rights of the Investors under Article 6 of Part B of these Articles, the Parties agree that 
the Investors shall be closely involved in the short, medium and long term business plan of the Company and its Subsidiaries, 
including budgeting, capex decisions, recruitment of senior management personnel, mergers and acquisitions, fund raising, 
financial forecasting, strategic planning exercises and sale of shares undertaken by the Company. A detailed business plan for 
the Company (which shall include details of operations, employment and social standards and polices, financials, projected 
financials, capital expenditure and other relevant targets for the Company and its Subsidiaries shall be presented to the Board 
for approval at least 30 (thirty) days prior to the commencement of the new Financial Year (such business plan, the “Business 
Plan”). The summary of the Business Plan for the Financial Years ending on March 31, 2020, March 31, 2021, March 31, 2022, 
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2024 have been annexed as annexure 7of the Agreement. The consideration received by the 
Company on account of the issue and allotment of Investor Securities to the Investors in accordance with the Agreement and 
these Articles and funds received by the Company through any debt financing shall be used solely in accordance with the 
Business Plan. 

5.29 Monthly Management Meeting: Each month the Company shall prepare a Management Information System Report (“MIS 
Report ”) and circulate such report to the Investors. The Promoters, the Key Management and the Investors shall hold a 
meeting either as a physical meeting at the registered office of the Company or such other place as maybe mutually decided by 
the Promoters and the Investors; or through Electronic Mode to review the performance of the Company based on the 
information set out in such MIS Report. 

6. FUNDAMENTAL ISSUES 

6.1 The provisions of this Article 6 and Annexure 1to Part B of these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to the Company and to 
each of the Subsidiaries and accordingly for the purpose of this Article 6 and Annexure 1to Part B of these Articles, the term 
“Board” and “committee” shall mean the board of directors or committees, as the case may be, of the Company and each of its 
Subsidiaries or companies Controlled by or under common Control of the Company and the term “Company” shall include each 
of its Subsidiaries and such companies. 

6.2 Voting on Fundamental Issues. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Transaction Documents, in the event 
that the Company, or the Shareholders (other than the Investors), as the case may be, wish to take any action with respect to 
the Fundamental Issues at any general meeting of Shareholders (if such issue requires the approval of the Shareholders in 
general meeting) or by way of postal ballot as may be required under the Act, or at any meeting of the Board or committee (if 
such matters are delegated by the Board to such committee) or by way of a circular resolution, as the case may be, the 
Company shall obtain Investor Consent without which, the Company shall not be able to take any such action. In the event that 
Investor Consent is not obtained within a period of 7 (seven) days from the date on which it is sought, then such approval shall 
be deemed to have been refused. 

7. EXIT OPTION FOR THE INVESTORS 

7.1 The Company shall provide, and the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall procure that the Company 
provides, a complete exit to the Investors on or before the expiry of 4 (four) years from the First Closing Date, through either of 
the following options: (i) a QIPO or (ii) a Strategic Sale, or (iii) a sale to any Financial Investor, or strategic investor or other 
investor (together an “Exit Event”). 

7.2 The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders agree that if required for the purpose of complying with the provisions of 
Law or requirements of any underwriter or investment banker appointed for the QIPO (including any provision in respect of 
minimum offer size), the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall offer their Shares for sale in a QIPO. In the 
event the Investors decide to sell their Shares through an Exit Event, the Investors shall not be obliged to provide any 
representations, warranties or indemnities to the prospective buyer(s), except for the title and ownership of such Shares and 
on the authority to sell such Shares. 

7.3 Notwithstanding anything contained in Articles 7.1 or 7.2of Part B of these Articles, the Investors shall, in their sole discretion, 
be ent i t led to offer a part or all of their Shares for sale in the QIPO ahead of the Promoters and the Other Founding 
Shareholders but will have no obligation to do so. If the Investors do not offer such number of Shares that meets or exceeds the 
QIPO Minimum Number of Shares, then the remaining Shares shall be offered by the (i) Company and/or (ii) Promoters and the 
Other Founding Shareholders in proportion to their then inter-se Shareholding as per the sole discretion of the Investors. 

7.4 If the Company and/or the Promoters do not provide a complete exit to the Investors as provided in Article 7.1of Part B of these 
Articles above on or before 54 (fifty four) months from the First Closing Date (such period, the “First Exit Period”), then at the 
sole discretion of the Investors, the Investors may require the fulfilment of either or all of the following options: 

7.4.1 Offer for Sale. The Company and the Promoters to arrange an offer for sale of all Shares held by the Investors through an IPO 
on a recognised stock exchange on terms and conditions determined by the Investors within a period of 180 (one hundred and 
eighty) days of receipt of a notice to such effect from the Investors. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 7.4.1, the 
Investors shall, in their sole discretion, be entitled to offer a part or all of their Shares for sale in the IPO ahead of the Promoters 
and the Other Founding Shareholders, but will have no obligation to do so; 

7.4.2 Buyback. The Company shall and the Promoters shall procure the Company to, subject to Governmental Approvals, use, all of 
its surplus funds, free cash flows and reserves available to buy back the Shares held by the Investors at the FMV. In respect of 
the Series A CCPS, the FMV for such Series A CCPS shall be determined based on the FMV of the underlying Equity Shares. 
The computation of the FMV of the Equity Shares shall be done in accordance with generally accepted valuation principles by 
any investment banker of international repute who shall be jointly appointed by the Promoters and the Investors. It is agreed 
that the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall provide all assistance including by way of exercising all rights 
and powers available to them, voting at general meetings, and causing their nominee Directors on the Board to cast their votes 
to enable the Company to complete the buyback of Shares held by the Investors as envisaged under this Article 7.4.2. 

 

Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and their 
respective Affiliates, shall abstain from offering their Shares in a buy-back of Shares by the Company; and 
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7.4.3 Fresh Issue. 

(a) In the event the Company proposes to raise additional funds through a Fresh Issue at any time after the First Exit Period, 
the Company shall provide a written notice to the Investors indicating the following (i) amount of capital proposed to be 
raised by the Company; (ii) the terms of issuance; (iii) the identity of and the price per Share payable by the Person 
proposing to subscribe to such Share (the “Future Investor(s))”; and (iv) the indicative timeframe within which such Fresh 
Issue will be completed (the “Fresh Issue Intimation”). Within 30 (thirty) days of the receipt of the Fresh Issue Intimation 
(the “ Fresh Issue Decision Period”), the Investors may, by a written notice to the Company and the Promoters, 
communicate their willingness to participate in the Fresh Issue by way of sale of any or all of the Investor Securities (the 
“Fresh Issue Acquisition Securities”) held by the Investors or their Affiliate, to the Future Investor(s) (the “Fresh Issue 
Participation Notice”). 

(b) If the Company receives a Fresh Issue Participation Notice from the Investors, the Company can undertake the Fresh 
Issue only after, or simultaneously with, the completion of the sale of the Fresh Issue Acquisition Securities. 

(c) Within a period of 15 (fifteen) days from the expiry of the Fresh Issue Decision Period and subject to the issuance of the 
Fresh Issue Participation Notice from the Investors, the Company shall provide a written notice to the Investors (the 
“Fresh Issue Acquisition Notice”), setting out particulars of the Future Investor(s) who is/are proposing to invest in the 
Fresh Issue and the number of Shares that the Future Investor(s) intends to acquire (the “ Fresh Issue Acquisition 
Price ”). 

(d) The Investors and/or their Affiliates, as the case may be, shall provide representations or indemnities only in relation to the 
title of the Investor Shares, and the Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company shall provide (if 
required) representations and indemnities with respect to the Business.The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders 
and the Promoters shall provide all necessary Transaction Assistance to the Future Investor in connection with the 
Fresh Issue. 

(e) Within 15 (fifteen) days from the receipt of the Fresh Issue Acquisition Notice or such extended period, as may be required, 
due to any approval pending from the Governmental Authority, the Company shall, and the Promoters and the Other 
Founding Shareholders shall ensure consummation of the acquisition of Fresh Issue Acquisition Securities by the Future 
Investor(s) on the same terms as mentioned in the Fresh Issue Participation Notice including the Fresh Issue Acquisition 
Price. 

(f) If the Investors do not provide the Fresh Issue Participation Notice within the time period specified above, then the 
Company may, subject to the rights of Investors set forth in the Agreement and these Articles, proceed with the issuance 
of Shares to the Future Investor(s) at the price and terms mentioned hereinabove and within the period specified in the 
Fresh Issue Intimation for completing the Fresh Issue, failing which, the Company shall have to once again follow the 
process set out in this Article 7.4.3. 

(g) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 7.4.3, if the Future Investor does not purchase all of the Fresh Issue 
Acquisition Securities set out in the Fresh Issue Participation Notice, then the Company shall not be entitled to undertake 
the Fresh Issue without Investor Consent.It is hereby clarified that in the event any issue of Shares requires Investor 
Consent pursuant to terms of the Agreement and these Articles, any Fresh Issue by the Company shall be subject to the 
receipt of Investor Consent. 

(h) The provisions of this Article 7.4.3 shall apply with respect to every Fresh Issue proposed to be undertaken by the 
Company at any time until the Investors and their Affiliates (if applicable) are provided complete exit from the Company. 

(i) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 7.4, the Investors shall be entitled to Anti-dilution rights under Article 
4.1of Part B of these Articles for any Fresh Issue by the Company. 

(j) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 7.4.3, if the indicative terms of a Fresh Issue have been agreed between 
the Company and the prospective investor on or before the expiry of the First Exit Period by way of a signed term sheet and 
such Fresh Issue has not been completed on or before the expiry of the First Exit Period, then such expiry of the First Exit 
Period shall be extended for a period of 3 (three) months or such longer period as decided at the sole discretion of the 
Investors. It is hereby clarified that nothing under this Article 7.4.3 shall affect the time periods set out under Article 7.8 
and Article 7.9of Part B of these Articles. 

7.5 The Company, Promoters and the Investors shall jointly decide on the execution procedure for the exit transactions 
contemplated in Article 7.1 and Article 7.4of Part B of these Articles including without limitation with respect to the ideal 
corporate structure of the Company for facilitating an exit and the requirement for any restructuring thereof, appointment of the 
investment bankers and valuation of the Shares for a QIPO/IPO. 

7.6 The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall provide and shall ensure that the Company provides all Transaction 
Assistance required by the Investors for completing the exit transactions contemplated under Article 7.1 and Article 7.4of Part 
B of these Articles. 

7.7 Notwithstanding anything contained in Article 7.5of Part B of these Articles, the Parties agree that any QIPO/IPO undertaken 
pursuant to Articles 7.1 and 7.4.1 of Part B of these Articles shall be conducted as follows: 

7.7.1 The Company shall and the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall procure that the Company shall undertake 
all steps and do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required, and extend all cooperation to the Investors, investmen 
banks, lead managers, underwriters and other Persons as may be required for the purpose of expeditiously making and 
completing an QIPO/IPO, including: 

 
 
 

7.7.1.1 Undertaking the requisite corporate act ions, including passing the requisite resolut ions at the Board and 
Shareholders’ meetings. The Other Founding Shareholders shall also vote at general meetings and cause their 
nominee Directors on the Board if any to cast their votes to give effect thereto; 
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7.7.1.2 Appointing intermediaries and advisors (including legal and financial) to facilitate the process; 
 

7.7.1.3 Providing reasonable access to various intermediaries and advisors (including legal, accounting, banking and 
financial), to the documents, offices and facilities of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in order to provide adequate 
disclosures under the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 or other applicable 
Law; 

7.7.1.4 Extending all such co-operation to the QIPO/IPO merchant banker, the syndicate members, underwriters and all 
other advisors; 

7.7.1.5 Conducting road shows with adequate participation of the Key Management; 

7.7.1.6 Providing all necessary information and documents necessary to prepare the offer documents; 

7.7.1.7 Preparation of all necessary marketing material and documents to position the Company appropriately for the QIPO/ 
IPO; 

7.7.1.8 Filing all requisite documents with appropriate Governmental Authorities; 

7.7.1.9 Obtaining any necessary Consents in relation to the QIPO/IPO; 

7.7.1.10 Providing all necessary resources and personnel (including members of the Key Management) to ensure compliance 
of the obligations set out in this Article 7.7; 

7.7.1.11 Filing the draft red herring prospectus with SEBI and providing true, fair and correct responses to SEBI’s observations 
on the draft red herring prospectus and finalizing and filing the red herring prospectus after the receipt of SEBI 
observations; 

7.7.1.12 Finalizing the financial statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries as required for the QIPO/IPO and ensuring 
that the Company’ s and its Subsidiar ies’ auditors co-operate with the investment banks, lead managers, 
underwriters, managers and other advisors to the offer and provide all required certifications and comfort letters in 
customary form; 

7.7.1.13 Satisfying the minimum promoter’s contribution requirement; 

7.7.1.14 Signing the final draft red herring prospectus prior to the same being filed with SEBI; 

7.7.1.15 Settling or resolving such legal or regulatory proceedings as may be advised by the QIPO/IPO merchant banker as 
advisable for purposes of the QIPO/IPO; 

7.7.1.16 Complying with and completing all necessary formalities to ensure listing; and 

7.7.1.17 Doing such other acts, deeds and things as may be required to be done by the Company, the Other Founding 
Shareholders and the Promoters under applicable Law or as reasonably requested by the Investors to facilitate the 
consummation of the QIPO/IPO. 

7.7.2 The QIPO/IPO shall be structured in a way such that none of the Investors will be considered as, or deemed to be, a “promoter”, 

and none of the Shares held by any of the Investors will be considered as, or deemed to be, “promoter shares” under applicable 
Laws with respect to any public offerings by the Company (including the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018) and the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall offer their Shares towards the satisfaction 
of any lock in requirements under applicable Law; and subject to applicable Law, the QIPO/IPO shall be undertaken in a manner 
that does not result in the imposition of any lock-in/moratorium or other Encumbrance in respect of any dealing in Shares by the 
Investors. 

7.7.3 The Company shall, and the Promoters shall procure that the Company shall, make at its own cost any and all applications to 
statutory and regulatory authorities which may be required to ensure that the Shares held by the Investors are not subject to any 
such statutory or regulatory lock-in/moratorium or other Encumbrance. 

7.7.4 The Investors shall not be required to give any representation, warranty or indemnity whatsoever in connection with the QIPO/ 
IPO, including to the investment bank appointed for the purpose of the QIPO/IPO, other than that the Shares offered for sale by 
the Investors in the QIPO/IPO have clear title. 

7.7.5 To the extent that the Investor Directors are required under applicable Law to give any other representation, warranty, indemnity 
or covenant (collectively, the “Director Undertaking”) in connection with the QIPO/IPO, the Company shall be liable to in turn 
secure, reimburse, indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Investor Directors on demand, from and against any and all loss, 
damage, liability or other cost or expenses whatsoever arising out of, in relation to or resulting from such Director Undertaking. 

7.7.6 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders (if 
applicable) shall exercise, and shall procure that their nominee Directors on the Board exercise, their voting rights in meetings 
of the Board, and the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall exercise their votes in meetings of the 
Shareholders in support of the QIPO/IPO and the Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company shall not take 
any steps that could reasonably be adverse to the QIPO/IPO. 

7.7.7 In the event that a QIPO/IPO is being effected by way of an offer for sale, the Investors shall have the right (and the Promoters, 
the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company shall ensure that the Investors shall be entitled) to offer up to all of its 
Shares in the offer for sale provided that where the aggregate of the number of Shares proposed to be offered for sale by the 
Investors exceeds the maximum number of shares that can be offered under applicable Law, then the Investors shall be entitled 
to offer for sale such number of Shares that can be offered under applicable Law. It is agreed that post the Investors offering all 

                              of its Shares in the offer for sale, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall have the right to offer up to all of their   
Shares. 

7.7.8 In the event, the Investors invest any additional funds, whether by way of the Additional Primary Investment Amount or 
otherwise, into the Company after the First Closing Date, the QIPO Amount shall be revised upwards. The Investors may agree 
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in writing to lower thresholds for the QIPO Amount or the QIPO Valuation, after consultations with the investment bank and the 
Company. 

 

7.8 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, if the Company does not provide a complete exit to the 
Investors as set out in Article 7.1 or Article 7.4of Part B of these Articles above on or before 60 (sixty) months from the First 
Closing Date, then the Investors shall, at its sole option, either (i) have the right to sell, merge or amalgamate, in terms of 
Article 7.9 of of Part B of these Articles; and/or (ii) liquidate the Company, in whole or in part. The Promoters, the Other 
Founding Shareholders, their respective Affiliates (in the event any Promoter or Other Founding Shareholder Transfers its 
Shares to any of their respective Affi l iates pursuant to Article 3 of Part B of these Articles), the members of the Key 
Management (the “ Key Shareholders”) shall be required to offer their Shares at a valuation not less than the valuation being 
paid to the Investors in case of such a sale, merger or liquidation provided that the Investors shall receive the Liquidity 
Preference Amount. In the event the Investors do not receive the Liquidity Preference Amount, the valuation offered to the 
Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall be adjusted downwards, and the Promoters and the Other Founding 
Shareholders shall ensure that the valuation offered to the other Key Shareholders is adjusted downwards, and/or the 
Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted such that the Investors receive the Liquidity Preference Amount. The Key Shareholders 
shall be obliged to co-operate and to offer the Shares held by them, in part or in full and in terms of Article 7.9of Part B of these 
Articles below, to facilitate an exit to the Investors on the terms and conditions set out in the Agreement and these Articles. 

7.9 Drag Rights. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, if the Company does not provide a complete   
exit to the Investors as set out in Article 7.1 and Article 7.4of Part B of these Articles above on or before 63 (sixty three) months 
from the First Closing Date, then the Investors shall at their sole option have the right to require the Key Shareholders to sell, 
merge or amalgamate their Shareholding, in part or in full, in the Company to such third party bona fide buyer (“Drag Buyer”) 

including a Competitor as may be identified by the Investors and to whom the Investors sell their entire Shareholding. In such 
an event, the procedure set out below shall apply: 

7.9.1 The Investors shall notify the Key Shareholders (together “Drag Shareholders”) of their decision to exercise their rights under 
this Article 7.9 by delivering a notice in writing to the Drag Shareholders (“Exit Notice”) giving the name and address of the 
Drag Buyer along with the terms and conditions, including the price (“Exit Price”), offered by the Drag Buyer to purchase all or 
part of the Shares held by the Drag Shareholders (“Exit Shares”). 

7.9.2 Upon delivery of the Exit Notice, the Drag Shareholders shall be required to Transfer the Exit Shares to the Drag Buyer, upon 
the same terms and conditions (including, without limitation, the Exit Price as adjusted downwards for the Drag Shareholders, 
if applicable) as agreed by the Investors and the Drag Buyer, and shall provide Transaction Assistance to the Drag Buyer and 
shall agree to the same conditions to the Transfer as the Investors agree. The Company and the Promoters shall also provide 
necessary representations and warranties and indemnities pertaining to the Company and its Subsidiaries (other than title to 
the Shares held respectively by the Investors and their respective legal standing) to such Drag Buyer. It is hereby clarified that 
the Investors shall not be required to make to any (i) representations, warranties and indemnities with respect to the Company 
and its Subsidiaries (other than title to the Shares held respectively by the Investors and their respective legal standing); or (ii) 
any non-competition or similar agreements that would bind the Investors, or their respective Affiliates. Notwithstanding the 
above, in the event the Investors do not receive the Liquidity Preference Amount on account of the Exit Price, the price per 
share for the Shares held by the Drag Shareholders shall be adjusted downwards and/or the Conversion Ratio shall be adjusted 
such that the Investors receive the Liquidity Preference Amount. It is agreed that the Exit Price at which the drag right is being 
exercised shall be higher than the exit price procured by the Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company 
pursuant to a legally binding offer through a Strategic Sale and/or sale to a Financial Investor, or strategic investor or other 
investor as contemplated in Article 7.1of Part B of these Articles. 

7.9.3 The sale of Shares by the Investors and Drag Shareholders, as the case may be, to the Drag Buyer shall be completed within 
a period of 120 (one hundred twenty) days from the date of the Exit Notice. The Drag Shareholders shall co-operate in good faith 
to obtain all Consents and approvals that may be required to consummate such sale of Shares, including Consents from the 
lenders, if required. 

7.10 Each Party shall bear their own costs and expenses relating to the exit being provided to the Investors under Article 7.1 of Part B 
of these Articles (including but not limited to all registration, filing, qualification and similar fees, merchant bankers’ fees, 
attorney and accounting fees and disbursements, statutory fees, registration fees and brokerage, discount, underwriting, 
selling and distribution costs), subject however, the Company bearing the due diligence costs for exit under Article 7.3 of Part 
B of these Articles. All other costs with respect to an exit under this Article 7 shall be borne by the Company and if the Company 
is not permitted to bear the entire amount of these costs and expenses under applicable Law, then the Parties participating in 
the exit shall bear such portion of costs and expenses which is proportionate to their participation. 

8. ROLE OF THE PROMOTERS / KEY MANAGEMENT, NON–COMPETE AND NON SOLICIT OBLIGATIONS/RIGHT OF FIRST 
REFUSAL FOR NEW VENTURES 

8.1 For the purpose of the protection of the interests of the Investors, the Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the 
Company jointly and severally undertake to the Investors as follows: 

Role of the Promoters and Key Management 

8.1.1 As long as the Investors hold any Shares: (i) Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal shall devote his whole time and attention to the Business 
and shall not be involved or concerned in any other business or profit-making activity; and (ii) Mr. Maroti Jawanjar shall not work 
for or associate in any way (including but not limited to as shareholder or partner) with, or conduct business as a Competitor. 

 
 

8.1.2 As long as the Investors hold any Shares, the Promoters and the Company shall, on best efforts and in good faith, procure that 
the Key Management shall devote their whole time and attention to the Business and shall not be involved or concerned in any 
other business or profit-making activity. 

Right of First Refusal for New Ventures 



-----55-----  

8.1.3 Subject to the obl igat ions of the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders under this Article 8 and after 
obtaining Investor Consent, the Promoters are entitled to undertake any new business or venture, whether or not the business 
of such new undertaking/venture is identical or similar to the Business subject to the Investors having a right of first refusal to 
invest in such business or venture. 

9. COMPLIANCE WITH ANTI-CORRUPTION, ESG LAWS & SANCTIONS LAW AND REGULATIONS 

9.1 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company agree that the Company and its Subsidiaries shall not and 
shall ensure that no Company Representat ive or Corporate Promoter Representative, directly or indirectly, makes or 
authorizes any offer, gift, payment, or transfer, or promise of, any money or anything else of value, or provide any benefit, to any 
Government Official, Governmental Authority or Person that would result in a breach of any Anticorruption Laws, by the 
Company or its Subsidiaries or any Promoter or any Other Founding Shareholder. Any breach by the Company Representative 
or a Corporate Promoter Representative of this Article 9.1, shall automatically result in immediate removal of such person by 
the Company or its Subsidiaries and/or the Corporate Promoter (as the case maybe) from any position held, or any engagement 
with, the Company and/or its Subsidiaries and/or the Corporate Promoter (as the case maybe). 

9.2 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company agree that the Company and its Subsidiaries shall remain 
in full compliance with applicable Laws, Anticorruption Laws, Sanctions Law and Regulations and ESG Laws and ESG Policies. 

9.3 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholder and the Company agree that no Government Official will serve in any capacity 
within the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, including as a board member, employee, consultant, agent or otherwise. 

9.4 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company agree that the Company and its Subsidiaries shall make 
and keep books, records and accounts, which in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the Company and its Subsidiaries’ assets, and devise and maintain a system of internal accounting controls 
sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that: 

9.4.1 transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization and are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with Applicable Accounting Standards to maintain accountability of 
such assets; 

9.4.2 access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management’s general or specific authorization; and 

9.4.3 the recorded accountability for assets is compared with existing assets at reasonable levels and appropriate action is taken 
with respect to any differences. 

9.5 The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters agree that so long as the Investors hold any Shares, the 
Company and its Subsidiaries shall provide the Investors and their Affiliates with a quarterly compliance certificate in relation 
to (i) ESG Laws; and (ii) Sanctions Law and Regulations, in the form attached as annexure 8 and annexure 9 respectively to the 
Agreement, with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries. The Parties acknowledge that such certificates shall confirm 
statements on the lines set out in annexure 8 and annexure 9 of the Agreement as intimated by the Investors from time to time. 

9.6 The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters agree that within 90 (ninety) days of the First Closing Date: 
(a) the Company and its Subsidiaries shall adopt or suitably amend and implement, to the satisfaction of the Investors, the ESG 
Policy; and (b) the Company and its Subsidiaries shall adopt or suitably amend and implement the anti money laundering policy, 
ethics and whistle-blower policy and sexual harassment policy anti corruption policy, and compliance procedures, training and 
monitoring programs in relation to new compliance policies. The Investors shall provide such co-operation as maybe 
reasonably required for such intimation. In the event of any adverse findings with respect to ESG Laws and ESG Policy, the 
Company and the Promoters shall, within 30 (thirty) days of such finding, such non-compliances will be remedied. The 
Company, its Subsidiaries, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall arrange, and ensure attendance by 
selected officers and managers, training sessions in relation to the above. 

9.7 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Company shall co-operate with any compliance audit or investigation 
by the Investors and provide all reasonable information and assistance requested upon an investigation or inquiry by a 
Governmental Authority including the RBI directed to the Company or its Subsidiaries or the Promoters or the Other Founding 
Shareholders. 

10. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

10.1 Each of the events set out in clause 10.1 of the Agreement shall independently be an “Event of Default”: 

10.2 Consequences of an Event of Default. 

10.2.1  The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholder and the Company shall immediately upon and in any event within 7 (seven) days of 
any of them becoming aware of the occurrence of any Event of Default, notify the Investors in writing of such occurrence. 

10.3 Effect of an Event of Default. 

                              In addition to and without prejudice to any other rights that the Investors have under the Transaction Documents, applicable Law or  
otherwise: 

10.3.1 if an Event of Default occurs after the First Closing Date, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholder shall cure/remedy 
such Event of Default and pending such cure/remedy, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholder shall not, 
notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents including Article 3of Part B of these Articles, Transfer or 
otherwise dispose of any of the legal and beneficial right, title and interest in and to any of the Shares held by the Promoters or 
the Other Founding Shareholder including to their Affiliates. 

 
 

10.3.2 in the event that an Event of Default is not capable of being cured or an Event of Default is not cured by the Promoters and/or the 
Other Founding Shareholder within 30 (thirty) days from the earlier of (i) the occurrence of an Event of Default; and (ii) 
notification of the same to the Investors in accordance with Article 10.2of Part B of these Articles above (“EOD Timeline”), then 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Transaction Documents, the Investors shall, at their sole discretion, 
have the right to: 
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10.3.2.1 sell all or part of the Shares held by the Investors to the Promoters through a sale or to the Company through a buy 
back, or at the discretion of the Investors to both the Company and the Promoters, at the FMV at the relevant time by 
issuing a notice in writing (“EOD Notice”) to the Promoters and/or the Company (as the case may be). In case the FMV 
computed on a per Share basis is lower than the Final Purchase Price: 

(a) The Promoters and/or Company shall pay the Liquidity Preference Amount to the Investors (and/or adjust the 
Conversion Ratio, if required to give effect to this Article 10.3.2.1) and complete the Transfer of the Shares held 
by the Investors within 30 (thirty) Business Days from the date of the EOD Notice. 

(b) Subject to applicable Law, the Promoters and Other Founding Shareholders shall cause (through exercise of all 
their voting and other rights) the Company to use, all of its surplus funds, free cash flows and reserves available 
to complete such buyback of Shares held by the Investors. 

(c) The Investors shall not be obliged to provide any representations and warranties, except for any representations 
and warranties on the title and ownership of the Shares held by the Investors and on the authority to sell such 
Shares. 

                                                       In respect of the Series A CCPS, the FMV for such Series A CCPS shall be determined based on the FMV of the 
underlying Equity Shares. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Promoters, the Other 
Founding Shareholders and their respective Affiliates shall abstain from offering their Shares in a buy- back of Shares by 
the Company. 

Or 

10.3.2.2 Sell all or any part of the Shares held by the Investors to any third party including any Competitor (“EODDrag Buyer”). 

In the event that the Investors so require, the Investors shall have the right to require the Key Shareholders to sell all 
or part of their Shareholding to the EOD Drag Buyer (“EOD Drag Right”). The EOD Drag Right shall be undertaken, 
exercised and performed in accordance with below: 

(a) The Investors shall notify the Key Shareholders (collectively “EOD Drag Shareholders”) of their decision to exercise their 

rights under this Article 10.3 by delivering a notice in writing to the EOD Drag Shareholders (“EOD Exit Notice”) giving 

the name and address of the EOD Drag Buyer along with the terms and conditions, including the price (“EOD Exit Price”), 

offered by the EOD Drag Buyer to purchase all or part of the Shares held by the EOD Drag Shareholders (“EOD Exit 
Shares”). 

(b) Upon delivery of the EOD Exit Notice, the EOD Drag Shareholders shall be required to Transfer the EOD Exit 
Shares to the EOD Drag Buyer, upon the same terms and conditions (including, without limitation, the EOD 
Exit Price as adjusted downwards if applicable) as agreed by the Investors and the EOD Drag Buyer, and shall 
provide Transaction Assistance to the EOD Drag Buyer and shall agree to the same conditions to the Transfer as 
the Investors agree. The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall also provide 
necessary representations and warranties and indemnities pertaining to the Company and its Subsidiaries (other 
than title to the Shares held by the Investors and their respective legal standing) to such EOD Drag Buyer. It is 
hereby clarified that the Investors shall not be required to make to any (i) representations, warranties and 
indemnities with respect to the Company and its Subsidiaries (other than title to the Shares held by the Investors 
and their respective legal standing); or (ii) any non- competition or similar agreements that would bind the 
Investors or their Affi l iates. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Article 10, in the event the Investors 
do not receive the Liquidity Preference Amount on account of the EOD Exit Price, the price per share for the 
Shares held by the EOD Drag Shareholders shall be adjusted downwards and/or the Conversion Ratio shall 
be adjusted such that the Investors receive the Liquidity Preference Amount. 

(c) The sale of Shares by the Investors and EOD Drag Shareholders, as the case may be, to the EOD Drag Buyer shall be 
completed within a period of 120 (one hundred twenty) days from the date of the EOD Exit Notice. The EOD Drag 
Shareholders shall co-operate in good faith to obtain all Consents and approvals that may be required to consummate 
such sale of Shares, including Consents from the lenders, if required. For the purpose of computing the said 120 (one 
hundred twenty) day period, any time taken for receipt of necessary regulatory approvals shall be ignored provided such 
approvals are obtained within a period of 120 (one hundred twenty) days from the date of the Offer Period. 

10.4   All costs and expenses relating to actions contemplated under an Event of Default under this Article 10 (including all 
registration, filing, qualification and similar fees, attorney and accounting fees and disbursements, diligence fees, statutory 
fees, registration fees and brokerage, discount, underwriting, selling and distribution costs) shall be borne by the Company. 

10.5  If the Investors do not receive the Liquidity Preference Amount post completion of any of the actions set out in Article 10.3.2of 
Part B of these Articles, the Parties shall work together to enable the Investors to receive the Liquidity Preference Amount. 

11. ACQUISITION OF SHARES FROM PUBLIC SHAREHOLDERS 

11.1 As long as the Investors hold any Shares, if any Public Shareholder intimates the Company or the Promoters or the Other 
Founding Shareholders of their intent to Transfer all or part of their Shares to any of the Promoters or the Other Founding 
Shareholders (such Shares, the “ PS Shares” and such intimation, the “ PS Intimation”), the Investors shall have the right to 
acquire such PS Shares along with the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders in the proportion set out in 
Article 11.4of Part B of these Articles (the “PS Purchase Right”). 

11.2 On receipt of the PS Intimation, the Company or the Promoters or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the case maybe) shall, 
immediately but not later than 2 (two) Business Days from the receipt of such intimation, send a written notice (“PSOffer 

Notice ”) to the Investors indicating the total number of PS Shares that are proposed to be Transferred by such Public Shareholder, the 
name and identity of such Public Shareholder, the price per PS Share at which such PS Shares are proposed to be sold and any other 
terms and conditions of the proposed Transfer. 

11.3 Within a period of 7 (seven) days from the date of receipt of the PS Offer Notice (the “PS Acceptance Period”), the Investors 
shall, by written notice, communicate to the Company, the relevant Promoter and/or the Other Founding Shareholders (as the 
case maybe) of their intent to purchase the PS Shares in accordance with the PS Offer Notice, subject to Article 11.4of Part B 



-----57-----  

of these Articles below (the “PS Acceptance Notice”). Without prejudice to the foregoing, if the Investors do not issue the 
PS Acceptance Notice within the PS Acceptance Period, it shall be deemed that the Investors do not intend to exercise the PS 
Purchase Right and the Promoters shall be entitled to purchase all of the PS Shares notwithstanding the provisions of Article 
11.4of Part B of these Articles below. 

11.4 Subject to issuance of the PS Acceptance Notice by the Investors within the PS Acceptance Period, the Investors on one hand 
and the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders on the other hand shall be entitled to acquire the PS Shares in a 
ratio of 1:4. This provision is illustrated by the following example: 

If the PS Shares being sold by the Public Shareholder equals 100 (one hundred) PS Shares, the Investors shall be entitled to purchase 
20 (twenty) PS Shares and the Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders, together, shall be entitled to purchase 80 (eighty) 
PS Shares. 

12. COVENANTS OF AVINO 

12.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the obligations of each of the Individual Promoters as set 
out in the Transaction Documents shall apply mutatis mutandis apply to Avino. 

13. TERMS OF THE SERIES A CCPS 

The Shareholders hereby agree and acknowledge that the terms of the Series A CCPS as set out Annexure 2to Part B ofthese Articles shall 
form an integral part of these Articles. 

14. INTENT AND EFFECT OF THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND THE ARTICLES 

14.1 The Promoters, the Other Founding Shareholders, the Investors and the Company undertake to ensure that they, their 
representatives, proxies and agents representing them at general meetings of the Shareholders and general meeting of the 
Subsidiaries shall at all times exercise their votes and, through their respective nominated directors (or alternate directors) at 
board meetings and otherwise to the extent permitted by Law, act in such manner so as to comply with, and to fully and 
effectually implement, the spirit, intent and specific provisions of the Transaction Documents and the Articles. 

14.2 The Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders shall not act in any manner nor cause the Company, its Subsidiaries and/ 
or the Key Management to act in a manner that is prejudicial to the rights of other Parties. The Promoters and the Other 
Founding Shareholders shall not act in any manner nor do any deed or thing under the Transaction Documents and these 
Articles that would derogate or adversely affect the rights of the Investors. 

14.3 Subject to applicable Laws, the Promoters and the Other Founding Shareholders undertake to fully and promptly observe and 
comply with the provisions of the Transaction Documents and these Articles and charter documents of its Subsidiaries to the 
intent and effect that each and every provision thereof shall be enforceable by the Parties inter-se and in whatever capacity. 

15. SUNSET ARTICLE 

15.1 Even after the expiry of the Special Rights Period: 

15.1.1 The Investors shall be entitled to Claim indemnity under clause 10 of the SSA in relation to Losses arising out of or in 
relation to or in connection with any Claims for any events that have taken place prior to the expiry of the Special 
Rights Period. 

15.1.2 The provisions of this Article 15.1, clause 11 (Confidentiality)of the Agreement, clause 18 (Notices)of the Agreement 
and clause 19 (Governing Law and Dispute Resolution) of the Agreement shall also survive expiry of the Special 
Rights Period. 

15.1.3 The following provisions of these Articles shall survive the expiry of the Special Rights Period: 

Article 3.6 of Part B of these Articles Co-Sale rights 

Article 3.7 of Part B of these Articles Transfer of Investors’ Shares 

Article 4.1 of Part B of these Articles Anti-dilution rights 

Article 4.2 of Part B of these Articles       Pre-emptive rights, subject however that Investors or any transferee to whom the 
Investors Transfer their Shares shall not be entitled to pre-emptive rights if such 
Investors or transferee holds less than 1% (one percent) of the Share Capital post 
such transfer, unless such transferee is an Affiliate of the Investors in which case 
both the Investors and such Affiliate shall be entitled to pre-emptive rights on their 
combined Shareholding. 

Article 4.3 of Part B of these Articles           Information Rights 

Article 4.4 of Part B of these Articles Liquidity Preference 

Article 5.10 of Part B of these Articles Right to appoint Observers 

Article 5.22 of Part B of these Articles   Rights of Indemnitees 

Article 7of Part B of these Articles              Exit Option for the Investors, in case the Investors are not provided a complete 
exit by the Company. 

15.2 Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, if the Company and the Promoters have failed to provide a complete exit 
to the Investors pursuant to the terms provided in Article 7of Part B of these Articles and as a result the Investors hold less than 
5% (five percent) of the Share Capital (“Residual Shareholding”), the Investors shall continue to have all the rights that they 

have under the Agreement and these Articles as if the Investors hold equal to or greater than 5% (five percent) of the Share Capital, 
including the right of the Investors to appoint Directors in terms of Article 5.2of Part B of these Articles and the rights of the Investors 
pursuant to Article 6 read with Annexure 1 to Part B of these Articles. 

15.3 In the event that the Investors transfer their Residual Shareholding to any transferee (which is not an Affiliate of the Investors), 
such transferee shall be entitled to the following rights under these Articles: 
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Article 3.6 of Part B of these Articles      Co-Sale rights 

Article 3.7 of Part B of these Articles      Transfer of Investors’ Shares 

Article 4.1 of Part B of these Articles       Anti-dilution rights 

Article 4.2 of Part B of these Articles  Pre-Emptive Rights, subject however that such transferee shall not be entitled to pre- 
emptive rights if such transferee holds less than 1% (one percent) of the Share Capital 
post such Transfer 

Article 4.3 of Part B of these Articles   Information Rights 

Article 5.10 of Part B of these Articles     Right to appoint Observers. 

16. INDEMNIFICATION 

16.1 The Indemnifying Parties shall jointly and severally indemnify, defend and hold harmless, promptly upon demand, at any time 
and from time to time, the Indemnified Parties, in the manner of and in accordance with the SSA. 

17. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

17.1 Not a Promoter. The Shareholders acknowledge and agree that the Investors are Financial Investors. The Company and the 
Promoters shall not classify the Investors as ‘promoters’ of the Company for any reason whatsoever and shall ensure that their 
Shares are not subject to any restriction (including making disclosure requirements, providing a lock-in, or other restrictions 
such as providing collateral or pledge or guarantee for loans, etc.), which are applicable to promoters under any applicable 
Law; provided however that the foregoing understanding shall be without prejudice to any rights or privileges of the Investors 
pursuant to their investment in the Company. 

17.2 More Favourable Rights. The Company, the Other Founding Shareholders and the Promoters shall not, without the Investor 
Consent, grant rights to any Person, other than rights which are subordinate to those granted to the Investors and provided 
such rights do not adversely affect the rights of the Investors herein. In the event the Promoters and the Other Founding 
Shareholders have any rights, privileges or protections or terms favourable than those offered to the Investors, then the 
Investors will enjoy similar rights and privileges or protections. 

17.3 Further Assurances. The Parties agree to exercise their voting rights over the Shares held by the Parties, do all such further and 
other things, execute and deliver all such additional documents, to give full effect to the terms of these Articles. The 
Parties undertake that they will do or procure to be done all such further acts and things, execute or procure the execution of all 
such other documents and exercise all rights and powers, direct and indirect, available to them in relation to any Person so as to 
ensure the complete and punctual fulfilment, observance and performance of the provisions of these Articles and generally that 
full effect is given to the provisions of these Articles. 

17.4 Assignment. Except as provided in these Articles, no Party shall be entitled to, nor shall they purport to, assign, transfer, charge or 
otherwise deal with all or any of its rights and/or obligations under the Agreement and these Articles nor grant, declare, create or 
dispose of any right or interest in it, in whole or in part provided that without prejudice to the rights of the Investors, the 
Investors shall be entitled to assign any or all of their rights and/or transfer any or all of their obligations hereunder to any 
Affiliate or any associate of the Investors or any fund or entity managed by the Investors or its Affiliates or its associates in which 
any of the Investors is a general or a limited partner or any Affiliate or associate of such fund or other entities subject to such 
Person executing a Deed of Adherence to the Agreement and such assignment is accompanied with the transfer of any or all of 
the Investor Securities held by such Investor, in accordance with these Articles and the Agreement.Provided that, save and 
except any assignment by the Investors to any Competitor pursuant to Article 10.3of Part B of these Articles, the Investors shall 
not assign pursuant to this Article 17.4 to a Competitor prior to the expiry of 63 (sixty three) months from the First Closing Date. 

17.5 Rights to apply to Subsidiaries and joint ventures: Unless expressly specified otherwise in these Articles, the rights of the 
Investor with respect to the Company in terms of these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to each Subsidiary and/or joint 
venture of the Company to the extent that such rights can be applied to such Subsidiaries and joint ventures. 

17.6 Representative of the Promoters. 

17.6.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Promoters agree that their rights and obligations under 
the Transaction Documents, the Charter Documents and/or attached to the Shares held by the Promoters (“PromoterRights”) 

shall be exercised and enforced only through Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal. 

17.6.2 Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal is hereby authorised by the Promoters to do and perform all acts, deeds and matters on such terms as 
Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal may deem fit for the performance of the obligations of the Promoters under Transaction Documents and 
the Charter Documents as fully and effectually in all respects as each of the Promoters could do if personally present. Mr. 
Sandeep Jawanjal shall represent the Promoters (to the extent he is acting as their representative under this Article 17.6 as a 
single block of shareholders and shall not discriminate between the group which he represents. 

17.6.3 All actions and omissions including the exercise or enforcement of Promoter Rights by Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal on behalf of the 
Promoters shall be binding on the Promoters. 

17.6.4 Each of the Promoters agrees to ratify and confirm all and whatsoever Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal shall do or purport to do or cause 
to be done by virtue of this Article 17.6. 

17.6.5 Any act by any Promoter in breach of this Article 17.6 shall be null and void and not binding on of the other Shareholders. 

17.6.6 Other than as may be required to give full effect to the terms of the Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents, it is 
agreed that all economic benefits attached to the Shares owned by the Promoters shall accrue to the relevant Promoters 
holding such Shares. Further, it is agreed that the rights given to Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal are intended in giving Mr. Sandeep 
Jawanjal rights to deal with all obligations which the Promoters have towards the Investors under the Transaction Documents 
and the Charter Documents. Such right shall not be construed to give Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal any authority to deal with the 
Shares held by the Promoters in a manner other than to allow the Investors to exercise their rights as contemplated under the 
Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents. 
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17.6.7 The Promoters confirm and warrant that: (i) the provisions of this Article 17.6 will not conflict with, result in a breach of, or 
constitute a default under any contract, understanding or agreement to which the Promoters are a party or by which any of them 
may be bound; and (ii) it has the necessary approvals as may be required in terms of any contract, understanding or agreement 
to which the Promoters are a party or by which any of them may be bound to give effect to the subject matter of this Article 17.6. 

 

17.7 Representative of the Other Founding Shareholders. 

17.7.1 Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, the Other Founding Shareholders agree that their rights 
and obligations under the Transaction Documents, the Charter Documents and/or attached to the Shares held by the Other 
Founding Shareholders (“OFS Rights”) shall be exercised and enforced only through Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal. 

17.7.2 Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal is hereby authorised by the Other Founding Shareholders to do and perform all acts, deeds and matters 
on such terms as Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal may deem fit for the performance of the obl igat ions of the Other Founding 
Shareholders under Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents as fully and effectually in all respects as each of the 
Other Founding Shareholders could do if personally present. Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal shall represent the Other Founding 
Shareholders (to the extent he is acting as their representative under this Article 17.7 as a single block of shareholders and 
shall not discriminate between the group which he represents. 

17.7.3 All actions and omissions including the exercise or enforcement of OFS Rights by Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal on behalf of the Other 
Founding Shareholders shall be binding on the Other Founding Shareholders. 

17.7.4 Each of the Other Founding Shareholders agrees to ratify and confirm all and whatsoever Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal shall do or 
purport to do or cause to be done by virtue of this Article 17.7. 

17.7.5 Any act by any Other Founding Shareholder in breach of this Article 17.7 shall be null and void and not binding on the other 
Shareholders. 

17.7.6 Other than as may be required to give full effect to the terms of the Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents, it is 
agreed that all economic benefits attached to the Shares owned by the Other Founding Shareholders shall accrue to the 
relevant Other Founding Shareholder holding such Shares. Further, it is agreed that the rights given to Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal 
are intended in giving Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal rights to deal with all obligations which the Other Founding Shareholders have 
towards the Investors under the Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents. Such right shall not be construed to give 
Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal any authority to deal with the Shares held by the Other Founding Shareholders in a manner other than to 
allow the Investors to exercise their rights as contemplated under the Transaction Documents and the Charter Documents. 

17.7.7 The Other Founding Shareholders confirm and warrant that (i) the provisions of this Article 17.7 will not conflict with, result in 
a breach of, or constitute a default under any contract, understanding or agreement to which the Other Founding Shareholders 
are a party or by which any of them may be bound, and (ii) it has the necessary approvals as may be required in terms of any 
contract, understanding or agreement to which the Other Founding Shareholders are a party or by which any of them may be 
bound to give effect to the subject matter of this Article 17.7. 

17.7.8 Without prejudice to anything contained in this Article 17.7,the Other Founding Shareholders shall execute a power of attorney 
in favour of Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal conferring a right on Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal to exercise all voting rights attached to their 
Shares on their behalf 

18. CONFLICT BETWEEN THE TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS AND THE ARTICLES 

18.1 In the event of any conflict between the Transaction Documents and these Articles and/or the charter documents of 
the Subsidiaries, the provisions of the Transaction Documents shall prevail and these Articles and the charter documents of 
the Subsidiaries shall be forthwith modified and/or amended by the Company, its Subsidiaries, the Individual Promoters, the 
Corporate Promoter and the Other Founding Shareholders to remove such conflict and to make these Articles and the charter 
documents of the Subsidiaries consonant with the Transaction Documents. 

                                            ANNEXURE 1 

                                          FUNDAMENTAL ISSUES 

1. Changes in capital structure: 

(a) Alteration or change in the rights, preferences or privileges of any of the securities, Series A CCPS, preference shares, Equity 
Shares or any other class of Shares or convertible instruments; 

(b) Creation (by reclassification, bonus issue, rights issue or otherwise) of any new class or series of Shares having rights, 
preferences or privileges senior to or on a parity with the preference shares or Equity Shares; 

(c) Issue any fresh equity or equity linked instruments (including preference shares, convertible debentures, warrants or any other 
quasi equity instrument) either as a public offering or private sale or issue of shares; 

(d) Any decision to make an initial public offering or list the Shares in any stock exchange (including a QIPO / IPO), valuation, stock 
exchange and key terms; 

(e) Repurchase any outstanding shares of the Company’s capital stock excluding repurchase of Shares from existing Public 
Shareholders which shall be in the ratio of 4:1 in favour of the Promoters and the Investors; and 

 

(f) Any change in the capital structure of the Company not contemplated above. 

2. Corporation action, mergers and acquisitions, amalgamation, re-structuring, de-merger, joint venture or similar action including: 

(a) Any merger, acquisition or consolidation by or of the Company; 

(b) Formation or acquisition of any Subsidiary or business or the entry into any partnership or joint venture; 
 

(c) Liquidation, dissolution, disposition, sale, license or transfer of all or substantially all of the Assets of the Company and/or its 
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Subsidiaries; 

(d) Reorganize or restructure Company, its Affiliates, and / or Subsidiaries as a result of any tax or regulatory issues; 

(e) Recapitalization, reclassification, split-off, spin-off or bankruptcy of the Company; 

(f) Take steps to wind-up or dissolve or the making of an administration in order in respect of the Company; 

(g) Any Corporate Event; and 

(h) Any change in the registered name or trade name of the Company. 
 

3. Indebtedness and Creation of Liens: 

(a) Incurrence of Indebtedness, factoring debts, or capital commitment and capital expenditure in excess of INR 30,000,000 (Indian 
Rupees ThirtyMillion only) other than in the Ordinary Course of Business over and above the amounts provided in the Business 

Plan approved by the Investors and the Board for such relevant period; 

(b) Any change in the liability structure of the Company including off-balance sheet items, such as leasing and any Encumbrances, 
Transfer, pledge and creation of lien beyond up to INR 30,000,000 (Indian Rupees Thirty Million only) over and above the amounts 
approved in the Business Plan for the relevant period and other than in Ordinary Course of Business; 

(c) Instigation or settlement of any Litigation or arbitration material to the Company, save and except for the collection of debts 
arising in the Ordinary Course of Business; 

(d) Making any loan or granting of credit to anyone other than in the normal course of business, except to the employees of the 
Company but not exceeding INR 1,000,000 (Indian Rupees One Million only) in any Financial Year to any 1 (one) employee; and 

(e) Giving any guarantee, indemnity or suretyship other than in the Ordinary Course of Business. 

4. Business and Operations: 

(a) Make any treasury investments by way of deposits, loans or subscription to Shares and debentures other than normal treasury 
investments made as per the investment policy approved by the Board, but specifically excluding mergers and acquisitions, joint 
ventures or other strategic investments; 

(b) Any treasury operation of a non-standard nature excluding investments for the purpose of maintaining the ‘Statutory Liquidity 
Ratio’ applicable to the Company in accordance with the requirements laid down by the RBI; 

(c) Investments in pass through certificates wherein the cash collateral is equal to or more than 5% (five percent); 

(d) Purchase of any real estate other than as provided in the annual Business Plan; 

(e) Acquisition or disposal (including the lease to a third party) of Assets other than at market value or an arm’s length basis; 

(f) Any related party transactions between the Company and its Promoters and/or the Other Founding Shareholders, Directors or 
their Affiliate organisations, firms, subsidiaries or other connected persons and entities, where monetary transactions or special 
rights / privileges are granted (except those agreed upon at the time of investment); 

(g) Transfer / modify / sell / vest / sub-contract any of the contracts entered into by the Company of a value more than as specified in 
the Business Plan; and 

(h) Purchase of securities, either private or publicly traded, for speculative or non-strategic investment purposes, other than 
purchase of or investment in high-grade money market securities. 

5. Senior management and their compensation: 

(a) Establishment of any bonus, profit sharing, share option, or other incentive scheme for directors and / or employees, or the 
variation of the terms of any such scheme beyond what is agreed in the Business Plan; 

(b) Increase in the total compensation of the 15 (fifteen) most highly compensated employees of the Company in a 12 (twelve) month 
period; and 

(c) Appointment, termination, amend the terms of appointment or determination of the compensation of the Chairman, CEO, 
Managing Director, President, COO, CMO, CIO, Credit Head, and CFO, or anyone acting in those capacities. 

6. Enter into transactions with Affiliates (“Affiliates” defined as members, directors, officers, key management employees, Promoters/ 
Founders or any person controlling, controlled by, under common control with or otherwise affiliated with, or a member of a family of, 
any such person) other than on terms based on arm’s length basis. 

7. Change or appoint internal auditor. 

8. Make any speculative or non-speculative transaction by way of futures, options or any other derivative instrument for business 
purposes of otherwise. 

9. Purchase of securities, either privately or publicly traded, for strategic investment purposes. 

10. Undertaking of any new business or any material change in the scope, nature, structure and / or activities of the Company. 

11. Business Plan and annual budget: 

(a) Approval of the annual Business Plan (including a short, medium and long-term Business Plan of the Company); 

(b) Approval of operating budgets at the start of each financial year and any significant variations thereto; 

(c) Any material changes from the annual Business Plan approved by the Investors and the Board; 

(d) Engage in any business materially different from that described in the then current Business Plan, change the name of the 
Company or cease any business undertaking of the Company; 

(e) Entering / investing / participating in any new business initiative by the Company and / or the Promoters or Other Founding 
Shareholders; 
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(f) Incur cumulative capital expenses of more than a mutually agreed amount in quarter unless a higher amount is approved in an 
approved Business Plan; 

(g) Borrow funds in any form or issue trade guarantees for incurring expenses or capex or debt in excess of 15% (fifteen percent) over 
and above the sums mentioned in the Business Plan approved by the Board; 

(h) Alter / revise its Business Plan, create new Business Plans or deviate therefrom; 

(i) Creation of any Encumbrance of any Asset of the Company or entering into any agreement whether written or oral in order to 
acquire, sell, lease, transfer or dispose in any way of any Asset of the Company other than as per approved Business Plan; and 

(j) Transfer / modify / sell / vest / sub-contract any of the contracts entered into by the Company of a value more than 10% (ten 
percent) of the limits approved Business Plan. 

12. Operating without a Business Plan or annual budget. 

13. Amend its Charter Documents or the Transaction Documents. 

14. Sell substantial assets of the Company. 

15. Any amendment or change of the rights, preferences, privileges or powers of, or the restrictions provided for the benefit of the Investor 
under the Transaction Documents, including actions affecting the Investor’s shares for a financial year. 

16. Declare or pay any dividends or declare or make any other distribution, directly or indirectly, on account of any Shares or preferred 
stock and/or common stock now or hereafter outstanding; provided the Investors will not unreasonably withhold the dividend policy as 
of the Effective Date of paying Re 1 (Indian Rupee One only) per Equity Share as dividend. 

17. Approve, amend or administer the 2019 ESOP Plan or any stock option plan or management incentive plan. 

18. Allow disposal of Shares of the Promoters and/or their nominees. 

19. Annual accounts including the following: 

(a) Declaration or payment of any dividend; 

(b) Change materially the accounting methods or policies unless required by applicable Law; 

(c) Change / Appoint a statutory auditor; 

(d) Approval of annual accounts; and 

(e) Change the accounting year. 

20. Board and committees: 

(a) The appointment or removal of any Director, or the making of any payment to a Director or any person connected with a Director 
otherwise than as approved by the Investors, the Board and the Shareholders; 

(b) Delegation of any powers of the Board; and 

(c) Increase or decrease the authorised size of the Board or any committee thereof. 

21. Intimation to the Central Government for investigation into the affairs of the Company. 

22. Intimation to the Central Government for investigation into the affairs of Company by Serious Fraud Investigation Office. 

23. Any change in the registered office of the Company. 

ANNEXURE – 2 

TERMS OF SERIES A CCPS 

The rights, terms and conditions attached to the Series A CCPS are set out in this Annexure 2. The terms of the Series A CCPS set out in this 
Annexure 2 are without prejudice to the other rights available to the Investors under the Transaction Documents and these Articles. This 
Annexure 2 forms an integral part of these Articles. 

1. Conversion. 

1.1. The Series A CCPS issued to the Investors shall compulsorily convert into Equity Shares upon the occurrence of any of the 
following events: 

(a) Listing of the Equity Shares under a QIPO or IPO (“Public Offering”); or 

(b) Expiry of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) months from the date of the issuance and allotment (“Investment Period”). 

1.2. The Investors may convert all or part of the Series A CCPS into Equity Shares any time prior to the expiry of the Investment 
Period or the Public Offering at the sole discretion of the Investors. 

1.3. In the event the Investors exercise their rights to convert all or part of the Series A CCPS in accordance with the Transaction 
Documents, the Investors, shall notify the Company of the date on which the conversion of the Series A CCPS is proposed to 
take place (“Conversion Notice”). The Conversion Notice shall also set out the number of Series A CCPS proposed to be 
converted and the Equity Shares to be allotted upon conversion of the Series A CCPS which shall be determined based on the 
Conversion Ratio determined in accordance with Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2. 

 

1.4. Within 15 (fifteen) days of receipt of the Conversion Notice, or within 15 (fifteen) days prior to the expiry of the Investment 
Period or immediately prior to the filing of a ‘RHP’ in connection with the Public Offering, as the case may be, the Company shall 
and the Promoters shall procure that the Company shall convert the Series A CCPS, in accordance with the Conversion Ratio 
determined in accordance with Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2. The Promoters and the Company undertake that the 
conversion of the Series A CCPS under this paragraph shall take place without any delay or any further discussion or approval 
from any other Party whatsoever. For such purpose, the Company and the Promoters agree that all necessary approvals 
including those from the Board and the Shareholders: 

1.4.1. have been obtained to issue the relevant number of Equity Shares upon conversion of the Tranche 1 Series A CCPS as a 
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condition precedent to the First Closing Date. 

1.4.2. will be obtained to issue the relevant number of Equity Shares upon conversion of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS as a condition 
precedent to the Second Closing Date. 

1.5. The Promoters and the Company shall provide all necessary co-operation and assistance for conversion of the Series A CCPS 
into Equity Shares pursuant to the Conversion Notice. 

1.6. In the event that upon such conversion, the Equity Shares proposed to be issued to the Investors are fractional in number, then 
the number of Equity Shares shall be rounded off to the next whole number. 

1.7. Subject to the rights granted to the Investors under the Transaction Documents, the Equity Shares so issued and allotted to the 
Investors shall carry, from the date of conversion, all rights pari passu with the Equity Shares existing as of date. 

1.8. The Company shall take all necessary Consents and requisite steps under applicable Law including filing of necessary forms 
with Governmental Authorities to effect the conversion of the Series A CCPS in terms of the Conversion Notice. 

1.9. The Company shall at all times after the First Closing Date, maintain sufficient authorized share capital for issue of Equity 
Shares for the above purpose and for the purpose of conversion of the Series A CCPSin accordance with the Conversion Ratio 
arrived pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2. 

2. Conversion Ratio 

2.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of the SSA and subject to Paragraph 2.4 of this Annexure 1,the conversion ratio for the 
Primary Investment Amount shall be such that it shall entitle the Investors to an equity stake in the Company (including Tranche 
1 Series A Equity Shares allotted on the First Closing Date) on a Fully Diluted Basis computed in terms of and in accordance 
with the Transaction Documents (the “Tranche 1 Conversion Ratio”). 

2.2. Subject to the terms and conditions of the SSA and subject to Paragraph 2.4 of this Annexure 1,the conversion ratio for the 
Additional Primary Investment Amount shall be such that it shall entitle the Investors to an equity stake in the Company (against 
the Additional Primary Investment Amount and including the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares allotted on the Second Closing 
Date) on a Fully Diluted Basis computed in terms of and in accordance with the Transaction Documents (the “ Tranche 2 
Conversion Ratio”). 

                              (with respect to each of Paragraph 2.1 and 2.2 above, the applicable conversion ratio shall be referred to as the “Conversion Ratio”).   
It is clarified for the avoidance of doubt that any reference to adjustment to Conversion Ratio under these Articles and the Transaction 
Documents shall also include any change to the terms of the Conversion Ratio. 

2.3. Conversion Ratio on part conversion. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, in the event that the 
Series A CCPS are converted into Equity Shares in more than one tranche, the number of Equity Shares to be issued upon each 
tranche of conversion of the Series A CCPS shall be calculated such that upon conversion of all the Series A CCPS, the 
aggregate of Equity Shares issued upon conversion and the already held Equity Shares is equal to the total Equity Shares that 
the Investors are entitled to, had the Series A CCPS been converted in one tranche. 

2.4. Adjustment to Conversion Ratio. The Conversion Ratio shall be appropriately adjusted in terms of and accordance with the 
Transaction Documents to give full effect to the provisions of the Transaction Documents. 

3. Dividend: 

3.1. The Company shall be liable to pay a fixed dividend in terms of and accordance with the SSA. 

3.2. Dividends shall be payable on an annual basis and shall be paid by the Company within 30 (thirty) days of the date of declaration 
of dividend. 

3.3. In addition to the above, in respect of any Series A CCPS which are yet to be converted into Equity Shares, in the event that the 
Company declares dividend to its Shareholders holding Equity Shares, the Investors shall be entitled to participate in the 
dividend against such Series A CCPS, which shall be an amount equivalent to the positive difference between (a) the dividend 
which the Investors would be entitled to had such Series A CCPS been converted into Equity Shares as per the Conversion 
Ratio; and (b) the dividend payable by the Company on such Series A CCPS under Paragraph3.1 and/or Paragraph3.2of this 
Annexure (as the case maybe). The dividend payable to the Investors pursuant to this Paragraph 3.4 shall be simultaneously 
paid along with the dividend payable to any Shareholder holding Equity Shares. 

3.4. Based on the above, subject to any adjustment in the Conversion Ratio as per the terms of the Transaction Documents and 
these Articles, the entitlement of the Investors to dividend shall be as per the terms provided in the Transaction Documents. 

4. Voting: 

4.1. The Investors shall be entitled to attend all general meetings of the Company and vote thereat along with the Shareholders. To 
the extent permitted under applicable Laws, the voting rights of the Investors shall be determined on an As If Converted Basis 
determined as per the Conversion Ratio and shall be exercisable in the manner set out in the Agreement. 

4.2. Based on the above, the voting rights of the Investors at any general meeting of the Company, subject to applicable Law and 
any adjustment in the Conversion Ratio as per the terms of theSSA, shall be as per the terms provided in the Transaction 
Documents. 

5. Alteration of terms of issue: 

                  Investor Consent shall be obtained, for any amendment/alteration of the terms of issuance of the Series A CCPS. 
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Annexure 2 

 

Definitions. In this Annexure 2, unless the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise provided in this Annexure 2, the following 

expressions shall have the following meanings: 

 

“2019 ESOP Plan Options” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“ACPE Tranche 1 Series A CCPS” means 4,98,889 (four lakhs ninety eight thousand eight hundred and eighty nine) fully paid-up cumulative 

compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of the Company having a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each, 

carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum and carrying the rights set out in this Annexure 2; 

 

“ACPIF Tranche 1 Series A CCPS” means 56,667 (fifty six thousand six hundred and sixty seven) fully paid-up cumulative compulsorily 

convertible participating preference shares of the Company having a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each, carrying a coupon 

of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum and carrying the rights set out in this Annexure 2; 

 

“Additional Primary Investment Amount” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“Additional Primary Investor Securities” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“As If Converted Basis” means as if all instruments, options or securities issued and allotted by the Company had been converted into 

Equity Shares of the Company in accordance with the terms of its issuance 

 

“Avino Charter Documents” mean the memorandum of association and the articles of association of Avino; 

 

“Avino” means Avino Capcons Private Limited; 

 

“Board” means the board of Directors of the Company; 

 

“Company” means Berar Finance Limited; 

 

“Corporate Event” means any Shares split, issue of Shares including by way of bonus, consolidation of Shares or reduction of Share 

Capital, reconstruction, combinations, amalgamations, merger, demerger, recapitalisations and similar other event; 

 

“Charter Documents” mean the memorandum and articles of association of the Company; 

 

“Director(s)” means a director of the Company; 

 

“Equity Shares” mean fully paid-up equity shares of the Company of face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten only) each; 

 

“First Closing” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“First Closing Date” means the date when the First Closing occurs;  

 

“First Tranche Post Money Equity Valuation” means Pre-Money Equity Valuation plus the Primary Investment Amount as may be 

adjusted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the SSA; 



-----64-----  

 

“Fully Diluted Basis” shall mean that the calculation is to be made assuming that all outstanding securities (whether or not by their terms 

then currently convertible, exercisable exchangeable or granted) whether or not due to the occurrence of an event or otherwise, have been 

converted, exercised or exchanged into the maximum number of Equity Shares issuable upon such conversion, exercise and exchange, as 

the case may be, and giving effect to any accrued anti-dilution protection rights attached to such securities; 

 

“Governmental Authorities” has the meaning ascribed to it in the SSA; 

 

“Investors” mean collectively, the Amicus Partners Private Equity I LLP and Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I; 

 

“Investor Consent” means the prior written consent of the Investors;  

 

“IPO” means an offering to the public of equity shares/ordinary shares/common shares of the Company, except for a QIPO;  

 

“Law” has the meaning ascribed to it in the SSA; 

 

“Pre-Money Equity Valuation” has the meaning ascribed to it in the SSA; 

 

“Primary Investment Amount” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“Promoters” mean Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Avino, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF) and Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF); 

 

“QIPO” means closing of a public offering of Equity Shares, managed by one of the reputed investments banks, with listing on BSE Limited 

or National Stock Exchange of India Limited or such other stock exchange as may be approved by the Company and the Investors in writing, 

with gross proceeds of the issue being at least the QIPO Amount at the QIPO Valuation;  

 

“QIPO Amount” has the meaning ascribed to it in the SSA; 

 

“QIPO Valuation” has the meaning ascribed to it in the SSA; 

 

“Shares” mean the Equity Shares, preference shares or any other class or series of shares or securities that may be issued by the 

Company from time to time; 

 

“SHA” means the shareholders’ agreement dated December 20, 2019 between the Company, the Investors, Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. 

Sandeep Jawanjal, Avino, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal and Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, as amended; 

 

“SSA” means the share subscription agreement dated December 20, 2019 between the Company, the Investors, Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Mr. 

Sandeep Jawanjal, Avino, Maroti Jawanjar (HUF), Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF), Mrs. Bakul Jawanjal and Mrs. Jyoti Jawanjar, as amended; 

 

“Second Closing Date” has the meaning ascribed to the term in the SSA; 

 

“Second Tranche Post Money Equity Valuation” means Second Tranche Pre-Money Equity Valuation plus the Additional Primary 

Investment Amount, as may be adjusted in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Transaction Documents; 

 

“Series A CCPS” means the (i) Tranche 1 Series A CCPS; and (ii) Tranche 2 Series A CCPS; 

 

“Tranche 1 Series A CCPS” means the aggregate of the ACPE Tranche 1 Series A CCPS and the ACPIF Tranche 1 Series A CCPS; 
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“Tranche 2 Series A CCPS” means 3,80,953 (three lakhs eighty thousand nine hundred fifty three) fully paid-up Tranche 2 Series A 

cumulative compulsorily convertible participating preference shares of the Company having a face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupees Ten 

only) each at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only), carrying a coupon of 0.1% (zero point one percent) per annum and 

carrying the rights set out in Annexure 2 to be issued to the Investors in terms of the SSA as part of the Additional Primary Investor 

Securities; 

 

“Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares” mean 5,71,428 (five lakhs seventy one thousand four hundred twenty eight) fully paid-up Equity 

Shares at a premium of INR 200 (Indian Rupees Two Hundred only) per Equity Share to be issued to the Investors in terms of the SSA as 

part of the Additional Primary Investor Securities; and 

 

“Transaction Documents” mean the SHA, the SSA, the Charter Documents, the Avino Charter Documents and any amendments executed 

thereto, and shall include any other document executed in relation to the SHA or the investment by the Investors in the Company. 

 
1. Conversion.  

 

1.1. The Series A CCPS issued to the Investors shall compulsorily convert into Equity Shares upon the occurrence of any of the 

following events: 

 

(a) Listing of the Equity Shares under a QIPO or IPO (“Public Offering”); or 

 

(b) Expiry of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) months from the date of the issuance and allotment (“Investment Period”).  

 

1.2. The Investors may convert all or part of the Series A CCPS into Equity Shares any time prior to the expiry of the Investment Period 

or the Public Offering at the sole discretion of the Investors. 

 

1.3. In the event the Investors exercise their rights to convert all or part of the Series A CCPS in accordance with the SSA, the Investors, 

shall notify the Company of the date on which the conversion of the Series A CCPS is proposed to take place (“Conversion 

Notice”). The Conversion Notice shall also set out the number of Series A CCPS proposed to be converted and the Equity Shares 

to be allotted upon conversion of the Series A CCPS which shall be determined based on the Conversion Ratio determined in 

accordance with Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2.  

 

1.4. Within 15 (fifteen) days of receipt of the Conversion Notice, or within 15 (fifteen) days prior to the expiry of the Investment Period 

or immediately prior to the filing of a ‘RHP’ in connection with the Public Offering, as the case may be, the Company shall and the 

Promoters shall procure that the Company shall convert the Series A CCPS, in accordance with the Conversion Ratio determined 

in accordance with Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2. The Promoters and the Company undertake that the conversion of the Series 

A CCPS under this Paragraph 1.4 shall take place without any delay or any further discussion or approval from any other Party 

whatsoever. For such purpose, the Company and the Promoters agree that all necessary approvals including those from the Board 

and the Shareholders:  

 

1.4.1      have been obtained to issue the relevant number of Equity Shares upon conversion of the Tranche 1 Series A CCPS as 

a condition precedent to the First Closing Date. 

 

1.4.2       have been obtained to issue the relevant number of Equity Shares upon conversion of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS as 

a condition precedent to the Second Closing Date.  

 

1.5. The Promoters and the Company shall provide all necessary co-operation and assistance for conversion of the Series A CCPS 

into Equity Shares pursuant to the Conversion Notice. 
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1.6. In the event that upon such conversion, the Equity Shares proposed to be issued to the Investors are fractional in number, then 

the number of Equity Shares shall be rounded off to the next whole number. 

 

1.7. Subject to the rights granted to the Investors under the Transaction Documents, the Equity Shares so issued and allotted to the 

Investors shall carry, from the date of conversion, all rights pari passu with the Equity Shares existing as of date.  

 

1.8. The Company shall take all necessary Consents and requisite steps under applicable Law including filing of necessary forms with 

Governmental Authorities to effect the conversion of the Series A CCPS in terms of the Conversion Notice.  

 

1.9. The Company shall at all times after the First Closing Date, maintain sufficient authorized share capital for issue of Equity Shares 

for the above purpose and for the purpose of conversion of the Series A CCPS in accordance with the Conversion Ratio arrived 

pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this Annexure 2.  

 
2. Conversion Ratio 

 

2.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of the SSA and subject to Paragraph 2.4 of this Annexure 2, the conversion ratio for the 

Primary Investment Amount shall be such that it shall entitle the Investors to an equity stake in the Company (including Tranche 1 

Series A Equity Shares allotted on the First Closing Date) on a Fully Diluted Basis computed on the following basis (“Tranche 1 

Conversion Ratio”): 

 

(Primary Investment Amount / First Tranche Post Money Equity Valuation) X 100 

 

2.2. Subject to the terms and conditions of the SSA and subject to Paragraph 2.4 of this Annexure 2, the conversion ratio for the 

Additional Primary Investment Amount shall be such that it shall entitle the Investors to an equity stake in the Company (against 

the Additional Primary Investment Amount and including the Tranche 2 Series A Equity Shares allotted on the Second Closing 

Date) on a Fully Diluted Basis computed on the following basis (“Tranche 2 Conversion Ratio”): 

 

(Additional Primary Investment Amount / Second Tranche Post Money Equity Valuation) X 100 

(with respect to each of Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 above, the applicable conversion ratio shall be referred to as the “Conversion 

Ratio”). It is clarified for the avoidance of doubt that any reference to adjustment to Conversion Ratio under the Transaction 

Documents shall also include any change to the terms of the Conversion Ratio. 

 

2.3. Conversion Ratio on part conversion. Notwithstanding anything contained in the Transaction Documents, in the event that the 

Series A CCPS are converted into Equity Shares in more than one tranche, the number of Equity Shares to be issued upon each 

tranche of conversion of the Series A CCPS shall be calculated such that upon conversion of all the Series A CCPS, the aggregate 

of Equity Shares issued upon conversion and the already held Equity Shares is equal to the total Equity Shares that the Investors 

are entitled to, had the Series A CCPS been converted in one tranche.  

 

2.4. Adjustment to Conversion Ratio. The Conversion Ratio in Paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 of Annexure 2 shall be appropriately adjusted 

to give full effect to the SSA with respect to the entire Primary Investment Amount and the Additional Primary Investment Amount, 

including:  

 

(a) For any Corporate Event;  

 

(b) As per the provisions for Anti-Dilution under clause 4.1 of the SHA;  

 

(c) As per the indemnity provisions under Clause 10 of the SSA; and 
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(d) To give effect to Liquidity Preference Amount (as defined in the SHA) including under Clause 3.6.7.2, Clause 3.7, Clause 

4.4, Clause 7 and Clause 10 of the SHA. 

 

 Notwithstanding anything contained in Paragraph 2.4 of this Annexure 2, the Conversion Ratio of the Series A CCPS shall not be 

affected by an issuance of the Shares issued pursuant to the 2019 ESOP Plan Options.   

 
3. Dividend:  

 

3.1. The Company shall be liable to pay a fixed dividend equivalent to an annual per share dividend of 0.1% (zero point one percent) 

of the face value of the Tranche 1 Series A CCPS calculated on and from the First Closing Date. Such dividend shall be payable 

in preference to any other class of Shares.  

 

3.2. The Company shall be liable to pay a fixed dividend equivalent to an annual per share dividend of 0.1% (zero point one percent) 

of the face value of the Tranche 2 Series A CCPS calculated on and from the Second Closing Date. Such dividend shall be payable 

in preference to any other class of Shares. 

 

3.3. Dividends shall be payable on an annual basis and shall be paid by the Company within 30 (thirty) days of the date of declaration 

of dividend.  

 

3.4. In addition to the above, in respect of any Series A CCPS which are yet to be converted into Equity Shares, in the event that the 

Company declares dividend to its Shareholders holding Equity Shares, the Investors shall be entitled to participate in the dividend 

against such Series A CCPS, which shall be an amount equivalent to the positive difference between (a) the dividend which the 

Investors would be entitled to had such Series A CCPS been converted into Equity Shares as per the Conversion Ratio; and (b) 

the dividend payable by the Company on such Series A CCPS under Paragraph 3.1 and/or Paragraph 3.2 above (as the case 

maybe). The dividend payable to the Investors pursuant to this Paragraph 3.4 shall be simultaneously paid along with the dividend 

payable to any Shareholder holding Equity Shares.   

 

3.5. Based on the above, subject to any adjustment in the Conversion Ratio as per the terms of the SSA, the entitlement of the Investors 

to dividend shall be as follows: 

 

Shareholder 

Percentage of total dividend declared after 

First Closing Date but before Second 

Closing Date* 

Percentage of total dividend declared after 

Second Closing Date*  

 

Amicus Capital 

Private Equity I LLP 12.56% 18.09% 

Amicus Capital 

Partners India Fund I 1.43% 1.98% 

*Assuming the ESOPs have not been converted into Equity Shares. 

 
4. Voting:  

 

4.1. The Investors shall be entitled to attend all general meetings of the Company and vote thereat along with the Shareholders. To the 

extent permitted under applicable Laws, the voting rights of the Investors shall be determined on an As If Converted Basis 

determined as per the Conversion Ratio and shall be exercisable in the manner set out in the SHA.  

 

4.2. Based on the above, the voting rights of the Investors at any general meeting of the Company, subject to applicable Law and any 

adjustment in the Conversion Ratio as per the terms of the SSA, shall be as follows: 
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Shareholder 
Nature of 

Security 

Voting Rights on and from the 

First Closing Date* 

Voting Rights on and from the Second 

Closing Date** 

 

Amicus Capital 

Private Equity I LLP 

Equity Shares 10.95% 15.66% 

Equity Shares and 

Series A CCPS* 

12.56% 18.09% 

Amicus Capital 

Partners India Fund 

I 

Equity Shares 1.24% 1.71% 

Equity Shares and 

Series A CCPS* 

1.43% 1.98% 

 

* The right of the Investors to exercise voting rights attached to the Series A CCPS on an As If Converted Basis or Equity Shares 

allotted pursuant to the conversion of the Series A CCPS, is subject to the provisions of applicable Law.  

** Assuming the ESOPs have not been converted into Equity Shares. 

 
5. Alteration of terms of issue: 

 

Investor Consent shall be obtained, for any amendment/alteration of the terms of issuance of the Series A CCPS. 
  



-----69-----  

 

 

Annexure 3 

Valuation Report 

 

 

 
17th August 2020 
 
The Board of Directors 
Berar Finance Ltd 
Avinsha Tower 
Mehadia Square 
Dhantoli 
Nagpur 440 012 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Sub: Report on Share & CCPS Valuation of  Berar Finance Ltd  
 
We refer to the engagement letter dated 1st August 2020 requesting us to conduct an Share Valuation of your Shares as on 30th June 2020 
for the purpose of Issuance of “Equity Shares” &  “Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares” under section  42 of the Companies Act 
2013. 
 
We have performed the Valuation analysis to enable the stakeholders to ascertain the Share value of Berar Finance Ltd. Based on the 
assumptions and limiting conditions as described in this report, as well as the facts and circumstances as of the valuation date, we have 
determined the  Share value of the business. 
      
Distribution of this letter and report are to be distributed only in their entirety and are intended for and restricted to the Company/Stakeholders 
for Business Analysis purposes and may also be disclosed to the company’s financial auditors & legal counsel. This report is not to be used, 
circulated, quoted or otherwise referred to, in whole or in part, for any other purpose or to any other party/person for any purpose without 
the express written consent of our firm. However, it may be submitted or referred to, in whole or in part, any registration report or in 
documents submitted to stock exchange authorities subject to our explicit written consent. 
 
The approaches and methodologies used in our work is an expression of an opinion regarding the fair representation of financial statements 
or other financial information, whether historical or prospective, presented in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
 
No change in any item or part of the valuation report shall be made by anyone other than our firm and we shall bear no responsibility for 
any such unauthorized change. The working papers for this engagement are being retained in our files and available for reference. Unless 
otherwise stated in this valuation, the Company has not considered or incorporated the potential economic gain or loss resulting from 
contingent assets and liabilities or events existing as on the transaction date. 
 
We express no opinion on and accept no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the financial information or other data provided 
to us by the company. We assume that the financial & other information provided to us is accurate and complete, and we have relied upon 
this information in performing our valuation report. 
 
We have relied upon the representations of the owners, management except as specifically stated to the contrary in this report. We have 
not attempted to confirm whether or not all assets of the business are free and clear of liens and encumbrances or that the company has 
good title to all assets. 
 
Our valuation judgement shown herein pertains only to the subject business, the stated value standard as at the stated Valuation date and 
only for the stated valuation purpose. The various estimates of value presented in this report apply to the Valuation Report only and may 
not be used out of context presented herein. 
 
We have relied on the financial statements, projections and other input/data provided by your company to ascertain the  Share  value of 
your business. 
 
Purpose of Valuation: 
The Management has engaged us for ascertaining the Share Valuation of the Company on a GOING CONCERN basis vide Engagement 
letter dated 1st August 2020. The Company proposes to issue “Equity  Shares” &  “CCPS” under Section 42 of the Companies Act 2013. 
The Valuation has been done using the principles laid down in the Valuation Standards laid down by Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India and applicable with effect from 1st July 2018. 
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Executive Summary: 
 

Engagement Summary Berar Finance Ltd through its Director, Mr Sandeep Jawanjal has engaged 
M.B. Brahme & Co. Chartered Accountants & Registered Valuers to ascertain 
the Share Value of Business.  

Subject of Valuation Share Valuation Report 

Standard of Value Fair Value (FV) as per Accounting standards & fair value measurements. 

Premise of Value In continued operation as a going concern. 

Effective Date 3oth June 2020 

Value Conclusion Value to Equity Shareholders – Rs 210/- per share & Value of CCPS is Rs 
210/- per share. 

Intended Users  Berar Finance Ltd , its financial & legal advisors and financial auditors. 

 

 
An overview of NBFC Regulations: 
A Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) is a company registered under the Companies Act, 1956 engaged in the business of loans and 
advances, acquisition of shares/stocks/bonds/debentures/securities issued by Government or local authority or other marketable securities 
of a like nature, leasing, hire-purchase, insurance business, chit business but does not include any institution whose principal business is 
that of agriculture activity, industrial activity, purchase or sale of any goods (other than securities) or providing any services and 
sale/purchase/construction of immovable property. A non-banking institution which is a company and has principal business of receiving 
deposits under any scheme or arrangement in one lump sum or in installments by way of contributions or in any other manner, is also a 
non-banking financial company (Residuary non-banking company). 
Financial activity as principal business is when a company’s financial assets constitute more than 50 per cent of the total assets and income 
from financial assets constitute more than 50 per cent of the gross income. A company which fulfils both these criteria will be registered as 
NBFC by RBI. The term 'principal business' is not defined by the Reserve Bank of India Act. The Reserve Bank has defined it so as to 
ensure that only companies predominantly engaged in financial activity get registered with it and are regulated and supervised by it. Hence 
if there are companies engaged in agricultural operations, industrial activity, purchase and sale of goods, providing services or purchase, 
sale or construction of immovable property as their principal business and are doing some financial business in a small way, they will not 
be regulated by the Reserve Bank. Interestingly, this test is popularly known as 50-50 test and is applied to determine whether or not a 
company is into financial business. 
 
NBFCs lend and make investments and hence their activities are akin to that of banks; however there are a few differences as given below: 
i. NBFC cannot accept demand deposits; 
ii. NBFCs do not form part of the payment and settlement system and cannot issue cheques drawn on itself; 
iii. deposit insurance facility of Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation is not available to depositors of NBFCs, unlike in case 
of banks. 
Housing Finance Companies, Merchant Banking Companies, Stock Exchanges, Companies engaged in the business of stock-broking/sub-
broking, Venture Capital Fund Companies, Nidhi Companies, Insurance companies and Chit Fund Companies are NBFCs but they have 
been exempted from the requirement of registration under Section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 subject to certain conditions. 
 
NBFCs are categorized a) in terms of the type of liabilities into Deposit and Non-Deposit accepting NBFCs, b) non deposit taking NBFCs 
by their size into systemically important and other non-deposit holding companies (NBFC-NDSI and NBFC-ND) and c) by the kind of activity 
they conduct. Within this broad categorization the different types of NBFCs are as follows: 
I. Asset Finance Company (AFC) : An AFC is a company which is a financial institution carrying on as its principal business the financing 
of physical assets supporting productive/economic activity, such as automobiles, tractors, lathe machines, generator sets, earth moving and 
material handling equipments, moving on own power and general purpose industrial machines. Principal business for this purpose is defined 
as aggregate of financing real/physical assets supporting economic activity and income arising therefrom is not less than 60% of its total 
assets and total income respectively. 
II. Investment Company (IC) : IC means any company which is a financial institution carrying on as its principal business the acquisition of 
securities, 
III. Loan Company (LC): LC means any company which is a financial institution carrying on as its principal business the providing of finance 
whether by making loans or advances or otherwise for any activity other than its own but does not include an Asset Finance Company. 
IV. Infrastructure Finance Company (IFC): IFC is a non-banking finance company a) which deploys at least 75 per cent of its total assets 
in infrastructure loans, b) has a minimum Net Owned Funds of Rs 300 crore, c) has a minimum credit rating of ‘A ‘or equivalen t d) and a 
CRAR of 15%. 
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V. Systemically Important Core Investment Company (CIC-ND-SI): CIC-ND-SI is an NBFC carrying on the business of acquisition of 
shares and securities which satisfies the following conditions:- 
(a) it holds not less than 90% of its Total Assets in the form of investment in equity shares, preference shares, debt or loans in group 
companies; 
(b) its investments in the equity shares (including instruments compulsorily convertible into equity shares within a period not exceeding 10 
years from the date of issue) in group companies constitutes not less than 60% of its Total Assets; 
(c) it does not trade in its investments in shares, debt or loans in group companies except through block sale for the purpose of dilution or 
disinvestment; 
(d) it does not carry on any other financial activity referred to in Section 45I(c) and 45I(f) of the RBI act, 1934 except investment in bank 
deposits, money market instruments, government securities, loans to and investments in debt issuances of group companies or guarantees 
issued on behalf of group companies. 
(e) Its asset size is Rs 100 crore or above and 
(f) It accepts public funds 
VI. Infrastructure Debt Fund: Non- Banking Financial Company (IDF-NBFC) : IDF-NBFC is a company registered as NBFC to facilitate 
the flow of long term debt into infrastructure projects. IDF-NBFC raise resources through issue of Rupee or Dollar denominated bonds of 
minimum 5 year maturity. Only Infrastructure Finance Companies (IFC) can sponsor IDF-NBFCs. 
VII. Non-Banking Financial Company - Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI): NBFC-MFI is a non-deposit taking NBFC having not less 
than 85% of its assets in the nature of qualifying assets which satisfy the following criteria: 
a. loan disbursed by an NBFC-MFI to a borrower with a rural household annual income not exceeding Rs 1,00,000 or urban and semi-urban 
household income not exceeding Rs 1,60,000; 
b. loan amount does not exceed Rs 50,000 in the first cycle and Rs 1,00,000 in subsequent cycles; 
c. total indebtedness of the borrower does not exceed Rs 1,00,000; 
d. tenure of the loan not to be less than 24 months for loan amount in excess of Rs 15,000 with prepayment without penalty; 
e. loan to be extended without collateral; 
f. aggregate amount of loans, given for income generation, is not less than 50 per cent of the total loans given by the MFIs; 
g. loan is repayable on weekly, fortnightly or monthly instalments at the choice of the borrower 
VIII. Non-Banking Financial Company – Factors (NBFC-Factors): NBFC-Factor is a non-deposit taking NBFC engaged in the principal 
business of factoring. The financial assets in the factoring business should constitute at least 50 percent of its total assets and its income 
derived from factoring business should not be less than 50 percent of its gross income. 
IX. Mortgage Guarantee Companies (MGC) - MGC are financial institutions for which at least 90% of the business turnover is mortgage 
guarantee business or at least 90% of the gross income is from mortgage guarantee business and net owned fund is Rs 100 crore. 
X. NBFC- Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) is financial institution through which promoter / promoter groups will be 
permitted to set up a new bank .It’s a wholly-owned Non-Operative Financial Holding Company (NOFHC) which will hold the bank as well 
as all other financial services companies regulated by RBI or other financial sector regulators, to the extent permissible under the applicable 
regulatory prescriptions. 
 
Background & Business overview 
 
Berar Finance Ltd was incorporated in Nagpur on 22nd August 1990 under Registration No: 11-57829 having a Permanent Account No 
AAACB5861B. The Current Directors of the Company are Mr Maroti Jawanjar, Chairman & MD, Mr Shantaram Mahakalkar, Mr Viswhas 
Pathak, Mr Ashok Kachore, Mr Dattatraya Dalal, Mr Atul Sarda, Mr Mahesh Parasuraman and Mr Sandeep Jawanjal.  
 
Business overview: 
The Company started operations in 1990 and headquartered in Nagpur. The Company is a deposit taking NBFC engaged in financing of 
2Wheeler and 2 W refinancing and used car finance. The Company targets business in the semi-urban and rural areas and is present across 
the states of Maharashtra, Chattisgarh, MP, Telangana, Karnataka & Gujarat. The Promoters have over 3 decades of experience in lending 
business and the Company has a dividend paying history of over 24 years. 
 
The Company has a multi brand focus of Hero, Honda, Bajaj, TVS, Maruti etc. The Company offers flexible repayment options of 12 to 36 
months as per requirements of customers. The company believes in minimal documentation and fast in-principle approvals. 
 
The Product Portfolio focusing on semi urban and rural customers is as below : 
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The shareholding pattern in the company is as given below : 
 
Shareholding Pattern  
 

A. Promoter Group                    43.98% 

B. Institutional Investor                 13.64% 

C. Public  (*)     42.38% 

______ 
TOTAL                   100.00% 

______ 
 
(*) Public Shareholding comprises of close friends & relatives of promoters 
 
The Financial Performance & Key indicators of the Operating Performance are below 

 
 
Source of Information  
We have examined the following as sources of information: 
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1. Audited Financials for the year 2019-20. 
2. Historical Financial data and ratios for the years 2014-15 to 2019-20. 
3. Unaudited Financial Statement upto 30th June 2020. 
4. Terms of Issue of CCPS. 
5. Company’s Profiles and other sources of information & statement of facts submitted. 
6. Discussions with the Directors and CFO. 

 
Details of Valuer 
M.B.Brahme & Co., Chartered Accountants is a five year old Proprietory firm specializing in Business Valuations, Brand Valuations and 
Valuations under IBC code, RBI Act. M B Brahme is a Commerce Graduate, LLB, ACA and ACS having 26 years of experience in Corporates 
as a “Finance Professional” having worked for multinational companies like Otis Elevator, Hindustan Ciba Geigy, TOTAL Oil Ind ia Pvt Ltd 
and has knowledge of Economic, Corporate laws, mergers and acquisitions and Valuations. Mr Brahme has passed the Registered Valuers 
Exam conducted by Insolvency & Bankruptcy Board of India under Asset Class “ Securities/Financial Assets” and as such is competent to 
issue Valuation Reports under Companies Act & IBC. 
 
Assumptions & Limiting Conditions: 
 
1. Our opinion is intended for the use of Berar Finance Ltd Management. Under no circumstances shall we bear any liability to a third 

party that will receive our opinion with/without our consent. 
  
2. For the purpose of this report, the company ( Berar  Group) has given us the historical audited financial statements & other 

documents & information of Berar Finance Ltd. We are not responsible for the independent examination of the information obtained 
and therefore have not conducted independent examination of the said information other than general prima facie reasonability 
tests. 

 
3. In this Report, we have made reference to forward looking information provided to us by the Company’s management. Forward 

looking information is uncertain, future oriented information based on information available to the Company as of the transaction 
date, including expectations or intentions by Company management as of the valuation date. Should these estimates by the 
Management fail to materialize, actual results may materially differ from results estimated or inferred from this information as much 
as it has been used in this Report. 

 
4. Financial opinion is not considered an exact science and is supposed to reflect in a reasonable and fair manner, the situation as 

of a given time, based on known data, assumptions and estimates made. Changes made to major variables and/or to information 
may change the basis for these assumptions and therefore may also change the conclusions accordingly. 
 

5. This Valuation is not a due diligence and it does not purport to include all information, tests or any other information included in a 
due diligence including checking of company contracts and agreements. This opinion does not constitute legal advice or opinion. 
We have interpreted various documents reviewed solely for the purpose of this opinion. 

 
Analysis of Valuation Technique. 
The Valuation of NBFC can be done using the Asset approach and/or the Income approach: 
 

A. Under the Asset Approach, the Net Asset Value ( or Book value ) of the company per share is worked out dividing the Net Worth 
by the Number of shares. In arriving at the Net worth the Tangible Assets or Investments held by the Company at Book value are 
revalued to arrive at the latest / accurate BV of the Company. The Book Value of comparable companies in similar business as 
the valued company is worked out and BV Multiple is multiplied by the BV of the company to arrive at the Fair value of the Company 
per share. 

 
B. Under the Income Approach, the Price Earning Multiple (PE) of comparable companies in the same line of business is worked out 

and multiplied by the Earnings per share of the Company ( EPS) giving the Fair value of the Company. 
 
An average of both the fair value methods will give the Fair Value per share of the company. Since the Legal entity is a closely held company, 
its shares are not easily marketable, hence a discount of 12% is assumed as Discount for Lack of Marketability ( also called “DLOM”) 
 
Valuation Analysis : 
 
The Fair value calculated as per the Asset approach or the Book value multiple & FV as per Income approach or the PE multiple is given 
below : 
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The detailed working of the Net Asset Valuer per share of the Company is provided in in Annexure I below. The detailed workings of the BV 
and PE Multiple of comparable companies is provided in Annexure II  & the Summary of Historical Financial data is provided in Annexure 
III below. 
 
Conclusion / Summary : 
 
The Fair value per share is an average of the FV per share using both the BV and PE multiples which is provided below : 

 
 
In short, the FV per share of the company is Rs 210/- per share. 
 
Valuation of Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference Shares (CCPS”)  
 
Terms of Issue of CCPS  
 
The key rights, terms and conditions attached to the CCPS are set out herein below:  
1. Conversion.  

1.1. The CCPS shall compulsorily convert into Equity Shares upon the occurrence of any of the following events:  
a) Listing of the Equity Shares under a QIPO or IPO (“Public Offering”); or  
b) Expiry of 19 (nineteen) years and 11 (eleven) months from the date of the issuance and allotment (“Investment Period”).  

1.2. The holders of such CCPS may convert all or part of the CCPS into Equity Shares any time prior to the expiry of the Investment 
Period or the Public Offering at the sole discretion of such holders.  
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1.3. Subject to the rights granted to the holders of the CCPS under the Transaction Documents, the Equity Shares so issued and 
allotted to the holders  of the CCPS shall carry, from the date of conversion, all rights pari passu with the Equity Shares existing 
as of date.  

 
2. The conversion ratio shall be appropriately adjusted to give full effect to the Agreement with respect to the entire primary investment 

amount, including:  
a) For any Corporate Event like additional share issue, bonus issue, reclassification, capital reduction etc;  
b) Anti-Dilution;  
c) Indemnity provisions; and  
d) Liquidation preference provisions.  

 

3. Dividend:  
3.1. The Company shall be liable to pay a fixed dividend equivalent to an annual per share dividend of 0.1% of the par value of the 

CCPS calculated on and from the First Closing Date. Such dividend shall be payable in preference to any other class of Shares.  
3.2. Dividends shall be payable on an annual basis and shall be paid by the Company within 30 (thirty) days of the date of declaration 

of dividend.  
3.3. In addition to the above, prior to the conversion of the CCPS, in the event that the Company declares dividend to its Shareholders 

holding Equity Shares, the holders of CCPS shall be entitled to participate in such dividend against the CCPS held by them, which 
shall be an amount equivalent to the positive difference between (a) the dividend which the holders would be entitled to had the 
CCPS been converted into Equity Shares; and (b) the dividend payable by the Company on the CCPS under Paragraph 3.1. The 
dividend payable pursuant to this Clause 3.3 shall be simultaneously paid along with the dividend payable to any shareholder 
holding Equity Shares.  

 
4. Voting:  

4.1. The holders of CCPS shall be entitled to attend all general meetings of the Company and vote there at along with the other 
Shareholders. To the extent permitted under applicable Laws, the voting rights of the CCPS holders shall be determined on an 
As If Converted Basis and shall be exercisable in an agreed manner. 

 
Valuation of CCPS 
 

A. Under the Asset approach, valuation of equity shares is made on the basis of Net assets of the Company. This method is not 
applicable in the present case as the shares being valued are not equity shares but CCPS.   In the case of  ACIT vs. Golden Line 
Studio Pvt. Ltd,1 the Mumbai Bench of the Income Tax Appellate Tribunal (“Tribunal”) ruled that for the purposes of determining 
whether excessive premium has been charged on the issue of redeemable preference shares (“RPS”), the fair market value 
(“FMV”) of the RPS which is determined to ascertain the taxable amount, should not be calculated on the basis of the net 
asset value (“NAV”) of the issuing company. In doing so the Tribunal has made a clear distinction between the valuation of 
equity shares and the valuation of preference shares, appreciating that they both stand on a different footing. The ruling further 
clarifies that solely because premium charged is perceived as excessive, it cannot be considered as unexplained in nature for the 
purposes of taxation of unexplained cash credits under Section 68 of the Income Tax Act (“ITA”) 

B. Under the Income approach, the PE multiple is also used to value equity shares of a company where Earnings per share of the 
company is multiplied by the PE multiple by Industry PE multiple. This method is also not applicable in the present case since the 
Shares are not equity but CCPS and the Price Earning Multiple applies to Equity Shares and not Preference Shares. Hence we 
cannot consider this method of Valuation. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
Hence having regard to the above terms & valuation methodology of  CCPS, our discussions with the Company management and the 
likelihood of the CCPS converting to Equity Shares at a ratio of 1:1, the fair value of the CCPS per share at the time of the issue would be 
same as that of the Equity Shares of Rs 210/-  (Indian Rupees Two hundred and ten only) per share. 
 
 
Disclaimer 
 The information contained herein is absolutely confidential and is intended only for the purpose stated above. 
 
 We have arrived at the Value of Shares based on inputs provided by the management at various stages including the Information 

Memorandum prepared by Investment Bankers,  Financial Projections, Balance sheet as on 31st March 2020 & 30th June 2020,  
cashflow, Working capital & Capex estimations. The valuation is based on purely quantitative  information and the sustainability of 
business. The quality of profits, the asset return relationship etc have not been dealt with for valuation purpose. We have no 
obligation towards events, trends or transactions relating to the company or the market / economy in general and occurrence, 
subsequent to the date of the report. 

 
 We hereby confirm that we have no direct or indirect interest in the Share valuation conducted under this assignment and as such 

there is no conflict of interest. 
 

http://www.nishithdesai.com/information/news-storage/news-details.html#c1
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 Further we are not responsible for the use of information and finding in this report by third party. Any person/ party intending to 
invest in the  business of Company shall do so after seeking their own due diligence procedure to ensure that they are making an 
informed decision. 

 
 Our liability for this valuation assignment shall not exceed the fee payable to us. 
 
 Our recommendation of the Share value should not be considered as our advice to take buy or sell decision. 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. A copy of the Report and the detailed working papers from which it was prepared has 
been retained in our files. If you have any questions concerning this Share Valuation report, please contact us. 
  
For M B Brahme & Co 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Reg No: 141249W 
 
CA M B Brahme 
Registered Valuer – “Securities/Financial Assets” 
Reg no: IBBI /RV /06 /2019 /10663 
Dated: 17th August 2020  
Place: Mumbai 
 
UDIN No: 20039385AAAAAJ5831 
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ANNEXURE I 
Calculation of Net Asset Value  Per Share of the company 
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ANNEXURE II 
 
Calculation of BV & PE Multiples of Comparable Companies 
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ANNEXURE III 
SUMMARY OF FINANCIALS 
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Annexure 4 

 

Current Shareholding Pattern of the Company 

 

Name of the Shareholder Equity Shares Shareholding 

Maroti Jawanjar 10,21,194 10.70% 

Jyoti Jawanjar 2,74,550 2.88% 

Sandeep Jawanjal 3,22,518 3.38% 

Bakul Jawanjal 1,01,000 1.06% 

Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF) 1,17,700 1.23% 

Radhemohan Jawanjal 1,400 0.01% 

Maroti Jawanjar (HUF) 8,68,954 9.11% 

Avino Capcons Private Limited 14,88,484 15.60% 

Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 11,68,346 12.25% 

Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I 1,32,707 1.39% 

Other Corporate Shareholders 3,050 0.03% 

Public Shareholders 38,01,150 39.84% 

ESOPs 2,40,000 2.52% 

Total 95,41,053 100.00% 
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Annexure 5 

 

Pre-Issue and Post-Issue Shareholding Pattern of the Company 

 

Sl. 

No.  
Category 

Pre-Issue Post-Issue 

No of Shares 

held 

Percentage of 

Shareholding 

No of Shares 

held 

Percentage of 

Shareholding 

A Promoters’ Holding     

1 Indian     

- Individual 27,07,316 28.38%  27,07,316 26.42% 

- Bodies Corporate 14,88,484 15.60%  14,88,484 14.52 % 

 Sub-total 41,95,800 43.98%  41,95,800 40.94 % 

2 Foreign promoters - 0.00%   - 0.00% 

- Subtotal (A) 41,95,800 43.98%  41,95,800 40.94 % 

B Non-promoters’ holding     

1 Institutional investors 13,01,053 13.64% 
20,07,798 

 
19.59 % 

2 Non-institutional investors     

- Private Bodies Corporate 3,050 0.03% 3,050 0.03% 

- Directors and relatives 8,12,266 8.51% 8,12,266 7.93% 

 Indian public 29,84,334 31.28 % 29,84,334 29.12% 

- 
Others [including non-resident 

Indians (NRI)s]* 
2,44,550 2.56 % 2,44,550 2.39% 

-      

- 
Sub-total (B) 53,45,253 

 

56.02% 60,51,998 

 

59.06 % 

- 
GRAND TOTAL 95,41,053 

 

100% 1,02,47,798 

 

100% 

[* Includes share transfer to Investors Education and Protection Fund and options outstanding as part of the Employee Stock Option Plan 

2019 of the Company]  
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors are glad to present the 30 th Annual Report and the audited accounts of your Company for the financial
year ended 31.03.2020 (“F.Y.2019-20”).

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The business operations of the Company continued to grow satisfactorily during the year, as evident from the following
figures :

( ` in lacs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Amount Disbursed during the year 43,670.39 34,416.82

Gross Receivables under Management (AUM) 47,619.59 36,841.13

Receivables sold under Securitisation 1,497.05 956.10

Gross Income 11,419.20 8,956.08

Profit (before extra-ordinary items) 2,373.51 2,077.27

Net Profit (after Tax) 1,691.27 1,471.95

APPROPRIATION OF PROFITS

The operations have generated a Net Profit (after tax) of ` 1,691.27 lacs (P.Y: `  1,471.95 lacs) for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020.

Your Directors propose to appropriate the same as under:

( ` in lacs)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

Net Profit (after Tax) 1,691.27 1,471.95

Add: Balance Brought Forward 153.83 149.12

Disposable Profit 1,845.10 1,621.07

Appropriations:

- Dividend paid during the year 80.00 80.00

- Dividend Distribution Tax 16.44 16.44

- Transfer to Statutory Reserve 423.00 370.80

- Transfer to General Reserve 1,100.00 1,000.00

Balance Carried Forward    225.66     153.83

DIVIDEND

Your directors recommend a dividend of `  0.50 per Equity Share as against `  1.00 per Equity Share in the previous
financial year. The reason behind the move is the conservative call taken by the Company having regard to the
current COVID-19 situation. Though profits of the Company have increased, it has been decided to conserve cash
and increase the reserves that can be used for business expansion and as a buffer against any crisis.

FUNDING RESOURCES

I. Bank Facilities-As on date, a consortium of bankers comprising of Bank of Maharashtra, IDBI Bank, Punjab National
Bank, AU Small Finance Bank and IDFC First Bank are providing CC facility of `  65.00 Crores. IDFC First Bank
joined the consortium with initial exposure of `  10.00 Crores during the year.

1

BERAR FINANCE

Annual  Report
2019-2020

Created with Print2PDF. To remove this line, buy a license at: http://www.software602.com/



ii. Fixed Deposits- As on 31.03.2020 total fixed deposits amounted to `  9,252.18 lacs,of which public deposits amounted

to `  8,558.53 lacs. The following table provides the details of the flow of public deposits during F.Y2019-20:

Particulars ` in lacs

Public Deposits at the beginning of the year 7,075.99

Less: Public deposits repaid / renewed during the year 3,458.28

Add: Public Deposits accepted / renewed during the year 4,940.82

Public Deposits at the end of the year 8,558.53

`  564.51 lacs of deposits (from 282 deposit accounts) matured during the year were unclaimed as on 31.03.2020.

Of these 37 deposit accounts totalling to `  66.50 lacs are still unclaimed on the date of this report. Periodic
reminders are being sent to the depositors for repayment/renewal of deposits.

iii. Terms Loans- Your Company has availed term loans for working capital from various lenders at favourable terms
and at reasonable rate of interest. The outstanding balance of such loans as on March 31, 2020 is ` 26,829
lacs.The term loans offer ready availability, their repayments match maturity of receivables offered as security
and has retained its position as the main source of funding during the year.

iv. Term loan for office premises - The Company acquired in 2017 the 1st and 2nd floors of Avinisha Tower, Dhantoli,
Nagpur admeasuring about 8,100 square feet for accommodating the growing needs of the business. The Company
took term loan of `  750 lacs from Bank of Maharashtra for the said purpose.The outstanding balance of such

loans as on March 31, 2020 is `  303.32 lacs.

v . Assets Securitised-During the year, the Company raised resources to the extent of `  1,754.11 lacs through
securitization of receivables.

vi. Share Capital by Preferential Allotment: With the view to strengthen the capital base, your Company raised the
capital by offering and allotting shares on preferential basis as under:

Investors No. of equity Amount received No. of CCPS* Amount received Total amount

shares al lotted (in ` ) (in ` ) (in ` )

(A) (B) (A)+(B)

Amicus Capital
Private Equity I
LLP 9,97,778 17,96,00,040 4,98,889 8,98,00,020 26,94,00,060

Amicus Capital
Partners India
Fund I 1,13,333 2,03,99,940 56,667 1,02,00,060  3,06,00,000

Total 11,11,111 19,99,99,980 5,55,556 10,00,00,080 30,00,00,060

(*CCPS means Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference Shares)

POSTPONMENT OF EXTRA-ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

The 1/F.Y. 2020-2021 Extra-Ordinary General meeting (“EGM”) scheduled to be held on April 13, 2020 was postponed
following the Government guidance against public gathering on account of COVID-19 and same was intimated to
the members of the Company on April 8, 2020 through notification in the newspapers viz.Times of India & Maharashtra
Times. The EGM was conveyed for approval of the following three items namely;

a. To approve the amendment, re-statement and entrenchment of the Articles of Association of the Company;

b. To regularize the appointment of Mr.Mahesh Parasuraman (DIN:00233782), Additional Director as a director liable
to retire by rotation; and

c . To revise the terms and conditions of the employment agreement of Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal (DIN : 01490054),
Executive Director of the Company.

Now these items will be considered at the ensuing 30 thAnnual General Meeting of the Company.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Financing of two-wheelers continues to be the mainstay product of your Company. With a view to broadbase the
business, your Company ventured into other loan products like financing agri-equipment,office equipment, commercial
vehicles, cars and personal loans during the year. Your Company has a strong network and presence in rural and
semi-urban India which has demonstrated strong growth potential. Your Company has recorded satisfactory growth
in business with a 26.88% increase in disbursement and 27.50% increase in gross income during F.Y 2019-20.

BRANCH NETWORK

Your Company plans to reach customers through expansion of its branch network across strategic locations in Central,
Western and Southern India. During F.Y 2019-20, your Company opened new branches at Dhamatari, Belgavi, Seoni,
Dewas, Balodabazar, Kamareddy, Bardoli, Narsighpur, Vidhisha, Ratnagiri, Vyara, Navsari, Saraipali, Nirmal, Manmad.
During the current financial year upto the date of this report, the Company has also opened new branches at Nadurbar
in Maharashtra.

At present, your Company has a total network of 67 branches, comprising 33 in Maharashtra, 9 in Madhya Pradesh,
11 in Chhattisgarh, 8 in Telangana, 4 in Gujarat and 2 in Karnataka.

Your Company plans to add few more branches during the financial year 2020-2021.

RESERVE BANK OF INDIA GUIDELINES

Your Company has been following guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”) including those related
to  prudential  norms for income recognition, asset classification, provisioning of bad and doubtful debts, Capital
adequacy and concentration of credit and investments.Your Company has a comfortable capital adequacy ratio of
23.83% (as against 15% prescribed by RBI) as on 31.03.2020. Under the new regulatory framework of RBI, your
Company is classif ied as Systemically Important Asset Finance Company- Deposit Taking .

Reserve Bank of India vide its notification no.RBI/2018-19/130 DNBR (PD) CC.No.097/03.10.001/2018-19 February
22, 2019 harmonized different categories of NBFCs. According to this notification, your Company falls under the
category of  Investment & Credit Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions entered into by the Company with related parties were in the ordinary course of business and on
an arm’s length basis.The Company did not enter into any material transaction with related parties under Section
188 of the Companies Act,2013 (“Act”),during F.Y. 2019-20. Form AOC-2, as required under Section 134(3)(h) of
the Act, read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)Rules,2014 is attached as part of this Report vide Annexure
IV(i). Further, the Company’s Policy on Related Party Transactions is attached as part of this report, vide Annexure
IV(ii).

Further details on the transactions with related parties are provided in the accompanying financial statements.

CREDIT RATING

Your Company’s cash credit facilities, public deposits schemes and NCDs have received credit rating as under:

S c h e m e s Credit Rating Agency Rate of Grade

Fixed Deposits BY ICRA Ltd. MA-(Stable) Investment Grade
Cash Credit Facility BY ICRA Ltd. BBB (Stable) Investment Grade
Non-convertible Debentures(NCDs) BY ICRA Ltd. BBB (Stable) Investment Grade

STATUTORY AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT

Chartered Accountants M/s .Pravin Dhiran & Co. (Firm Registration No.: 133656W)have been appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the 29 thAnnual General Meeting of the Company for a period of 5 years from the conclusion
of that Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 34 th Annual General Meeting at such remuneration and out of
pocket expenses, as may be mutually agreed between Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors.

REPORTING OF FRAUD BY THE AUDITORS

The Auditors did not report any fraud during the year.
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INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s. Somalwar Sahasrabudhe and Associates, (Firm Registration No.135726W) Chartered Accountants, perform the
duties of Internal Auditors of the Company. The Audit Committee regularly reviews their reports including the audit
findings as well as adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control measures.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

The Board of Directors of the Company on 9thJune 2020 have appointed  M/s. SPZ & Associates, Company Secretaries

(Firm Registration Number S2015MH305600) as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for F.Y. 2020-21.

DIRECTORS

Mr. Shantaram Krishnarao Mahakalkar (DIN No. 00379988), Non-Executive Director, retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for reappointment.

The private equity investors namely Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP and Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I
had nominated Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman (DIN:00233782) as their representative Director on the Board and pursuant
to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its Meeting held on 20 th February,
2020 appointed Mr. Mahesh Parasuraman as an Additional Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.  He
shall hold office as an Additional Director upto the date of ensuing 30 thAnnual General Meeting of the Company.The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has recommended his appointment as a Non-Executive Non-
Independent Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.

The Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under
Sec 149(6) of the Act .

All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they satisfy the “fit and proper” criteria as prescribed in Chapter
XI of RBI Master Direction No. DNBR. PD. 008/ 03.10.119/2016-17 dated 1st September 2016 and that they are not
disqualified from being appointed/continuing as Directors in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATMENT

As required under Section134(3)(c) of the Act,your Directors confirm that:

1 ) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with
proper explanations relating to material departure, if any;

2 ) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

3 ) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4 ) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

5 ) The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

6 ) There is a proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND THE REMUNERATION POLICY FOR KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY

Your Company has adopted the Policy on Remuneration of Directors and the Remuneration Policy for Key Managerial
Personnel  and Employees of the Company in accordance with the provisions of sub-section (4) of Section 178
of the Act. The Nomination & Remuneration policy mainly covers the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a Director and the Remuneration Policies for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other senior managerial employees, functionality of Nomination & Remuneration committee meeting. The said policy
is available on the Company’s website www.berarfinance.com.

4

Created with Print2PDF. To remove this line, buy a license at: http://www.software602.com/



RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company, being in the business of retail financing has to face inherent risks like credit risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and operational risk. The survival and growth of any financing entity largely depends upon carefully managing
these risks. The Audit Committee, Risk Management Committee and Assets Liability Management Committee review
and monitor these risks at periodic intervals.

The Company manages credit risks through stringent credit norms and continues to follow the time-tested practice
of personally assessing every borrower before committing credit exposure.

Liquidity risk and interest rate risk arising out of maturity mismatch of the maturity of assets and liabilities are managed
through regular monitoring of the maturity profiles.

Operational risks arising from inadequate or failed internal process, people and systems or from external events
are adequately addressed by the internal control system and are continuously reviewed and monitored by a dedicated
team of people.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The internal financial controls of the Company are commensurate with its size, scale and complexities of its operations.
The Company has robust policies and procedure which interalia, ensure integrity in conducting business, timely preparation
of reliable financial information, accuracy and completeness in maintaining accounting records and prevention and
detention of frauds and errors. The internal financial control with reference to the financial statements were tested
and reported adequate and operating effectively.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Quality organization needs quality people. To the Company, its people are the most valuable resource. Your Company
is putting a strong emphasis on attracting, training and retaining the right talent with focus on merit and performance.

Your Company takes pride in having committed and competent employees at all levels, equipped to deliver a variety
of products and services to the rapidly growing customer base. The relationship with employees continues to be
cordial.

During the F.Y 2019-20, the Board of Directors granted the Employee Stock Options to select employees pursuant
to “Berar Finance Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2019” the details of which are attached to the Board Report
as AnnexureVI.

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE POLICY

Your Company has put in place a policy for prevention, prohibition and redressal against sexual harassment of women
at the work place, to protect women employees and enable them to report sexual harassment at the workplace
in line with the requirements of ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace(Prevention,Prohibition & Redressal)
Act,2013. An Internal Complaints Committee (“ICC”) headed by a women employee has also been constituted for
the purpose. All employees (including permanent, contractual,temporary,trainees) are covered under this policy. No
complaints of sexual harassment were received during F.Y 2019-20.

The Company has complied with provisions relating to constitution of internal complaints committee under The Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace(Prevention,Prohibition & Redressal)Act,2013.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF INSTITUTE OF COMPANIES SECRETARIES OF INDIA

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the
Board of Directors (SS–1) and General Meetings (SS–2).

MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

The provision of Section 148 of the Act, are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, there is no requirement
of maintenance of cost records as specified under Section 148(1) of the Act.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

Pursuant to Section 186(11) of the Act, the provisions of Section 186(4) of the Act requiring disclosure in the Financial
Statements of the full particulars of the loans made and guarantees given or securities provided by a Non-Banking
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Financial Company in the ordinary course of its business and the purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security
is proposed to be utilized by the recipient of the loan or guarantee or security are exempted from disclosure in
the Annual Report. Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186(4) of the Act, the details of investments made
by the Company are given in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to sub-section 3(a) of Section 134 and subsection (3) of Section 92 of the Act, read with Rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of the Annual Return as at 31st March,
2020 in Form No. MGT-9, is appended as Annexure V and forms part of this Report. The Annual Return of the Company
as at 31st March 2020 has  been  placed  on  the  website  of  the Company and can be accessed at https:/
/www.berarfinance.com/AGM 2020.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS
OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND THE COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals that would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

OTHER PARTICULARS

Particulars of employees and particulars regarding conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange
ensuring and outgo, are not applicable to the Company.

Your Company, being an NBFC registered with the RBI, the provisions of Section185 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.

Annexures forming part of this Report:

1. Management Discussion and Analysis: Annexure I

2. Report on Corporate Governance: Annexure II

3. Report on CSR Activities: Annexure III

4. Form AOC-2: AnnexureIV(i)

5. Related party Transaction Policy: AnnexureIV(ii)

6. Annual Return(Sec. 92(3) of Act): AnnexureV

7. Disclosure under Employee Stock Option Plan:Annexure VI
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Annexure I

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

F.Y.2019-2020 was a challenging year for the economy in general and financial services industry in particular. While
the economy was recovering from the effects of demonetisation and implementation of GST, it witnessed a slowdown
with the GDP growth reducing from 5.2% in April-June 2019 to 3.1% in January-March 2020 coupled with the liquidity
challenges in the NBFC sector. As a result, the financial services industry whose prospects are very closely linked
to the economic growth faced multiple challenges including concerns on liquidity and asset quality. However, the
Company was able to navigate these challenges effectively and recorded strong growth in its loan-book without
compromising on asset quality during F.Y 2019-20 which is indicative of the fundamental strength of its business
model.

Market Scenario

Your Company’s operations is primarily focused on Central India. This part of India is characterised by rich natural
resources, rural population with agriculture and agri-based industries being an important source of employment and
livelihood. As a result, demand for products like two-wheelers and cars in these geographies are indirectly related
to the performance of the agriculture sector.

The demand for vehicles in the first half of the financial year was encouraging but towards the second half of
the financial year there was a general decline in all segments of auto-sales, mainly due to impending switchover
to the BS-VI norms from April 2020 as well as general economic slowdown.Demand in the last few weeks of F.Y 2019-
20 was also impacted by the nationwide lockdown owing to COVID-19.

Your  Company’s  primary business is financing two-wheelers with focus on semi-urban and rural areas. These
regions have witnessed significant economic development in the past few years driven by the factors like diversification
and increase of income from alternative sources (e.g. dairy farming, agro-industries), increased Governments pending
on infrastructure projects etc. These factors provided employment to the people that helped improve their standard
of living and consequently demand for various products including two-wheelers, cars, commercial vehicles, consumer
durables, agri-equipment. The demand has been further boosted by availability of credit from organized players like
NBFCs.

Outlook

While the long-term outlook remains positive, the near-medium term outlook is expected to be challenging given the
current COVID-19 situation across the country and its effect on economy. Growth prospects will depend on multiple
factors, including how the COVID-19 pandemic evolves across the country. Implementation of fiscal and monetary
policy support, the liquidity support granted by the RBI is yet to show any impact given that several areas across
the country continue to be impacted by intermittent lock-down. However, the Company’s prospects are not expected
to be less impacted given that rural India has been relatively less affected by the pandemic. A bountiful rabi harvest
followed by efficient procurement, the recent increase in Minimum Support Prices (“MSP”) of crops and the prospect
of normal monsoon augur well for the agriculture sector and should lead to growth in sales of vehicles and farm
equipments which will benefit the Company.

Your Company has broad-based its product portfolio to take advantage of the growing demand for such products
is offering products like agri-finance, consumer finance, car finance and personal loans. Your Company expects
a sustained growth in business and profitability with such a diversified portfolio.

Berar Finance Limited expects to maintain its performance in F.Y. 2020-2021 and sustain its growth trajectory. The
approach would be to continue with the growth momentum while balancing risk.The management believes that the
Company is in a strong position to meet the increased demand of funds caused by inability of public sector banks
to lend owing to asset quality challenges and liquidity challenges faced by smaller and unorganized financiers.

Performance During the Financial Year 2019-2020

The performance of the Company during the year was satisfactory, in the backdrop of growing competition, slowdown
in economy and year end emergence of COVID-19.
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( `  in Lacs)

Particulars 2018-19 2019-2020 Change %

Total Income 8,956.08 11,419.20 +27.50

Total Cost 6,878.81 9,045.69 +31.50

Profit Before Tax 2,077.27 2,373.51 +14.26

Profit after Tax 1,471.95 1,691.27 +14.90

Earnings per Share (Fig in ` )

Basic 18.40 20.81 -

Diluted 18.40 20.61 -

Risks and Concerns

The Company has a policy to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to promote a proactive approach
in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with business. The Company has to manage various risk including
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and operational risk. The Company is aware of multiple risks and keeps
a constant vigil to manage the same to its advantage. Your Company has built a robust risk management framework
over the years.

The main focus of your Company has been to ensure a diversified loan portfolio, improve credit quality, reduced
mismatch in assets and liabilities and  lower cost of funds. The Risk Management Committee and Assets Liability
Management Committee have been working constantly to meet these objectives. The Company has been largely successful
in managing the risks and concerns inherent in the business of a finance company. With multiple lenders and other
sources of funds, the Company is assured of easy availability of funds at lower cost for its growing business.
Your Company does not perceive any threat to the business growth with profits.

Customer Service

Your Company continues to remain customer focused. Once a Berar customer- always a Berar customer is a key
motto of the Company. Customer data and status is available online at all branches. Accepting that time has value,
the  Company provides prompt services while sanctioning/disbursing loans as well as post-disbursement services.
Customers enquiries and complaints are attended instantly. Secondly the Company is known for its customer friendly
and transparent finance schemes. There are committed employees at Head Office level as well as branch level to
attend to customer enquiries, to offer prompt services and attend customers complaints urgently. Even during the
pandemic and  consequent  lockdown,  the customer connect was maintained while the entire staff was working
from home. In line with the policy announced by Reserve Bank of India the Company granted moratorium to the performing
customers in respect of installments upto 31st August 2020.

Annexure II
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Berar Finance Limited has been following robust governance practices since its inception. Your Company continues
to maintain the highest standard of integrity and transparency in operations, excellence in service to all stakeholders
and strong Corporate Governance standards.

1) Board of Directors

All the members of the Board are eminent persons with considerable experience and expertise in finance,accounting,banking
and academics. The Company is immensely benefited by the range of experience and skills that the Directors bring
to the Board.
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The Composition of the Board as on 31st March 2020 is as follows:

Name of Director Category DIN No of Board Meeting(s) Whether attended AGM
Attended during 2019-20 held during 2019-20

Mr.Maroti Jawanjar Promoter 00379916 8 Yes

Mr.Shantaram Mahakalkar Non-Executive Director 00379988 7 Yes

Mr.Ashok Kachore Non-Executive Director 00380102 5 Yes

Mr.Dattatraya Dalal Non- Executive Director 00380199 7 Yes

Mr.Vishwas Pathak Independent Director 00452917 8 Yes

Mr.Atul Sarda Independent Director 02161209 6 Yes

Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal Promoter 01490054 7 Yes

Mr.Mahesh Parasuraman* Non-Executive Director 00233782 0 No

*Mr.Mahesh Parasuraman was appointed as an additional director at last board meeting of F.Y. 2019-20 held on
20.02.2020.

Board Meeting

The Board of Directors formulate the broad business and operational policies, periodically review the performance
and engages itself with strategic issues concerning the Company.

During the year under review, meetings of the Board of Directors were held as follows:

Date

1. 11.05.2019 5. 23.11.2019

2. 28.06.2019 6. 19.12.2019

3. 31.08.2019 7. 23.12.2019

4. 12.10.2019 8. 20.02.2020

Except Mr.Mahesh Parasuraman, none of the other Directors is holding directorship in other companies.

Mr.Mahesh Parasuraman holds directorship in the following companies:

1. Capital Small Finance Bank Limited;

2. AAUM Investment Advisers Private Limited;

3. Wonderchef Home Appliances Private Limited;

4. D2C Insurance Broking Private Limited; and

5. D2C Consulting Services Private Limited.

Remuneration of Directors

At present, Independent Directors/Non- Executive Directors are not paid any remuneration, except sitting fees for
attending Board meetings and Committee meetings. Details of sittings fees paid are as under:

` `

Mr.Shantaram Mahakalkar 24,000 Mr.Ashok Kachore 8,000

Mr.Vishwas Pathak 38,000 Mr.Atul Sarda 28,000

Mr.Dattatraya Dalal 20,000

During the year under review the Company paid ` 161.99 lacs towards remuneration to Mr. Maroti Jawanjar, Managing

Director and Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal, Executive Director.

(Details provided in note no. 22.19 of notes to the financial statements).
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2) Audit Committee

The  Board  has set up the Audit Committee with two Independent Directors.The members of the committee are
Mr. Sandeep Jawanjal(Executive Director), Mr. Vishwas Pathak (Independent Director) and Mr. Atul Sarda(Independent
Director). Mr. Atul Sarda is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

For  F.Y. 2019-20, the Audit Committee  meetings  were held on 26.06.2019, 12.10.2019, 13.01.2020 and 20.03.2020.Mr.
Atul Sarda & Mr.Vishwas Pathak have attended all the aforesaid committee meetings. Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal was absent
on committee meeting dated 12.10.2019. The Statutory Auditors of the Company were invited to the above meetings.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial accounting policies, adequacy of internal control system and system audit
and interacts with statutory auditors, internal auditors and senior executives. The committee reviews the audit plan,
interim and annual financial results of operations, and observations of internal and external auditors.

3) Risk Management and ALM committee

The Board has set up Asset-Liability Management (ALM)Committee and Risk Management Committee pursuant to the
requirement of the RBI. As on date each Committee consists of Mr.Maroti Jawanjar (Chairman), Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal
and Mr. Shantaram Mahakalkar as members of the said committee. The ALM Committee regularly reviews the Company’s
assets and liabilities and Risk Management Committee regularly reviews its quality and business risk. The Internal
Auditors also report to the Committee from time to time for the purpose of risk management.

For F.Y. 2019-20, the ALM committee meetings and Risk Management Committee meetings were held on 28.06.2019,
14.10.2019, 13.01.2020,  20.03.2020. All the members have attended the aforesaid  meetings except Mr. Shantaram
Mahakalkar who was absent on 14.10.2019 for both the committee meetings.

Business risk evaluation and management is an ongoing process within the organization. The Company has a strong
risk management framework to identify monitor and minimize risks as also identify business opportunities.

The objectives and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises the following:

1. Oversight of risk management performed by executive management.

2. Reviewing the policy and framework in line with legal requirement and RBI guidelines.

3. Reviewing risk and evaluate treatment including mitigation action.

4. Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation, and reporting risks.

5. Within the overall scope as aforesaid, the Committee reviews risk trends, exposure and potential impact analysis
and mitigation plan.

4) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Committee was constituted in pursuance of section 178 of the Act.As on date the Committee consists of the
following members:

Name of Directors Designation

Mr.Vishwas Pathak Chairman
Mr.Atul Sarda Member
Mr.Dattatraya Dalal Member

For F.Y.  2019-20,  the Committee  meetings  were held  on 26.06.2019 and 12.10.2019, 23.12.2019, 20.02.2020
and 20.03.2020. All the members have attended the aforesaid meetings except Mr. Dattatraya Dalal who was absent
for the meeting on 12.10.2019.

The broad terms of reference of this Committee include recommending a policy relating to remuneration and employment
terms of Managing Directors, Executive Directors, senior management personnel, adherence to the remuneration and
employment policy, preparing the criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as Directors or senior management
of the Company.

The  Committee ensures, fit and proper status of the Directors to be appointed / reappointed and recommend their
appointment / reappointment to the Board of Directors.
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5) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

As on date the composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name of Directors Designation

Mr.Shantaram Mahakalkar Chairman
Mr.Ashok Kachore Member
Mr.Dattatraya Dalal Member

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee reviews redressal of complaints from shareholders, depositors etc.

For F.Y. 2019-20, the Committee had only one meeting which was held on 20.03.2020. All the Committee members
have attended the meeting.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. No complaints were received during the year from shareholders
and depositors.

6) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

As required under Section 135 of the Act, the Company has formed a CSR Committee comprising the following members.

Name of Directors Designation

Mr.Maroti Jawanjar Chairman
Mr. SandeepJawanjal Member
Mr.Vishwas Pathak Member

For F.Y. 2019-20, the Committee meetings were held on 23.12.2019 and 20.03.2020.All the committee members have
attended the aforesaid meetings.

7) Fund Management Committee Meeting

During the financial year 2019-2020,the Board of Directors of the Company had constituted committee named as Fund
Management Committee to delegate borrowing powers under Sec 179(3)(d) of the Act. The main function of the
Committee is to avail the borrowing facility (fund based or non–fund based) upto Rs. 500 Crore during a financial
year which includes various credit facilities by way of overdrafts, cash credits, term loan, opening of letter of credit,
issuing of guarantees including deferred payment guarantees and indemnities, negotiation and discounting of demand
and or usance bills and cheques inland as well as foreign and such other facilities as may be agreed upon from
time to time, between the lender and Company.

The Committee comprises following members of the Board namely:

Name of Directors Designation

Mr.Maroti Jawanjar Chairman
Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal Member
Mr.Vishwas Pathak Member

Delegation of borrowing powers to this committee is on yearly basis. At present the Committee has borrowing powers
unto ` 500 Crore.

For F.Y. 2019-20, the Committee met on 30.12.2019 and 06.03.2020. All the committee members have attended the
aforesaid meetings.

8) Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review the Independent Directors met on 20.03.2020, interalia to discuss:

1. Evaluation of the performance of Non-independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.

2. Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of non-executive
Directors.

3. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.
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All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

9 ) General Body Meetings

The particulars of last 3 years Annual General Meetings(AGM) are as under:

Financial Year Day Date T i m e Place

2018-2019 Saturday 21.09.2019 4.00 P.M. Arjuna Celebrations, Pande Layout,
Khamla, Nagpur-440025

2017-2018 Saturday 08.09.2018 4.00 P.M. Arjuna Celebrations, Pande Layout,
Khamla, Nagpur-440025

2016-2017 Saturday 02.09.2017 4.00 P.M. Celebration Centre, N. Ambazari Road,
Nagpur-440010

The particulars of Extra-Ordinary General Meeting (EGM) are as under:

Day Date T i m e Place

Monday 03.02.2020 3.00 P.M Arjuna Celebrations, Pande Layout,
Khamla, Nagpur-440025

Details of the Special Resolutions passed at the AGM, EGM and Postal Ballot held during the last three years:

Sr. Detail of resolution Date of No. of No. of % of votes % of

n o passing votes in votes i n votes in
favour against favour against

1. To give approval for making
investments, loans, giving
guarantee or providing security
under section 186 of the
Act upto ` 1,000 cr. 08.09.2018 43,11,742 1,700 99.96 % 0.04%

2. To re-appoint Mr. Vishwas
Pathak as Independent
director 21.09.2019 45,52,700 2,000 99.96 % 0.04%

3. To re-appoint Mr. Atul Sarda
as Independent director 21.09.2019 45,52,700 2,000 99.96 % 0.04%

4. To Increase Borrowing limits
from ` 400 crores to ` 2,000
crores under Section180(1)(c)
of  Act 21.09.2019 45,44,300 10,200 99.78 % 0.22%

5. To authorize Board to create
charge on the assets of the
Company under Section 180(1)
(a) of the Act. 21.09.2019 45,44,600 6,000 99.87 % 0.13%

6. To Approve ‘Berar Employee
Stock Option Plan 2019’* 07.12.2019 42,77,100 3,800 99.92% 0.08%

7. To insert clause 4A after
clause 4 in the Articles of
Association of the Company
thereby authorizing the Company
to alter its Authorized Share
Capital. 03.02.2020 47,98,240 0 100 % 0%
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8. To accord authority to the
Company to issue preference
shares by inserting clause 4B
after proposed clause 4A in the
Articles of Association of the
Company thereby undertake the
consequent amendment to the
Articles of Association of the
Company; 03.02.2020 47,98,240 0 100 % 0%

9. To authorize the issuance of the
Tranche 1 Series A CCPS to the
“Investors”(Amicus Capital Private
Equity I LLP (“ACPE”) and Amicus
Capital Partners India Fund I
(“ACPIF” and together with ACPE,
 the “Investors”). 03.02.2020 47,98,240 0 100 % 0%

10. To authorise the issuance of
Tranche 1 Series A Equity
Shares and Tranche 1 Series A
CCPS through Private Placement. 03.02.2020 47,98,240 0 100 % 0%

11. To remove clause no.13 of the
Articles of Association of the
Company requiring a director to
hold qualification shares. 03.02.2020 47,98,240 0 100 % 0%

*The Special Resolution was passed through postal ballot and e-voting.

The Special Resolutions from Sr.no.1 to 6 were  passed through E-voting and Ballot Paper/ Postal Ballot as per
the procedure prescribed under Section 110 of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014 under the overall supervision of the Scrutinizer, Mr. Amit K. Rajkotiya, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No.
5162) Nagpur.

The  Special Resolutions from Sr.no.7 to 11 were passed through E-voting and Ballot Paper as per the procedure
prescribed under Section 110 of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 under
the overall supervision of the Scrutinizer, Mr. Sunil Purushottam Zore, Practicing Company Secretary(CP No.11837)Nagpur.

10) Details of Shares transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund(IEPF) during
F.Y.2019-20 and unclaimed dividend due dates:

The details of outstanding shares in Berar Finance Limited Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority, Ministry
of Corporate Affairs

Particulars Aggregate Number Outstanding shares lying
of shareholders  in Berar Finance Limited

IEPF Account

Opening Balance as on 1stApril 2019 5 2,800

Less: Requests received for transfer / delivery
during 2019-20 and Shares transferred / delivered
during 2019-20 0 0

Add:Transfer of shares to Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority of Ministry of Corporate
Affairs during 2019-20(Shares transferred on 2
5.09.2019) 3 1,750

Balance as on 31stMarch 2020 8 4,550
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The Company sends statutory reminders to shareholders before transfer of their shares/unclaimed dividend to IEPF.
The Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend are requested to contact the Company immediately.

Following dividends are transferable to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) on the respective duedates,
as under, in accordance with the provisions of Section 124(5) of the Act.

Nature of Dividend Transferable to IEPF on

Final Dividend 2012-13 2nd September, 2020

Final Dividend 2013-14 22nd September, 2021

Final Dividend 2014-15 26 th October, 2022

Final Dividend 2015-16 26 th September, 2023

Final Dividend 2016-17 2nd October, 2024

Final Dividend 2017-18 8 th October, 2025

Final Dividend 2018-19 21st October, 2026

Reminders are sent to members for encashing their unclaimed and unpaid dividends, on a regular basis through speed
post at their address registered with the Company. Members who have not yet made claims are, therefore, requested
to contact the Company/Registrar and Share Transfer Agents immediately.

11) Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

In order to ensure that the activities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and transparent
manner with highest standard of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour, the Company has adopted
a Vigil Mechanism and Whistleblower Policy. The mechanism of reporting under this policy is in place and a copy
of the policy is posted on website of the Company. No personnel have been denied access to the Chairman or
members of the Audit Committee.

Annexure III
REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1.A Brief Outline of Company’s CSR Policy

The Company’s CSR Policy was approved at the Board Meeting held on 05.03.2015. The said policy is available on
the Company’s website www.berarfinance.com.

Berar Finance Limited as a good corporate citizen, has adopted CSR as strategic tool for sustainable growth and
has decided to contribute to the development of the communities as a whole. In doing so, the Company aims at
building a better, sustainable way of l ife for the weaker section of society,

The  five  major  areas in  which the Company plans to work shall include Education, Healthcare, Environmental
Sustainability, Poverty Alleviation and Promoting Sports. The objectives of the Company for the above activities shall
be as fol lows:

i. Education- Our endeavour is to spark the desire for learning and enlighten minds. We may undertake to
fulfill this objective by way of providing quality education initiatives or by financial assistance to the poor
and needy students, education assistance to mentally handicapped children, assistance to undertake or to
impart vocational training, adult education programs, girl education, other related infrastructure etc.

ii. Health Care- Our goal is to render quality healthcare facilities which we may provide by way of undertaking
preventive healthcare programs including but not limited to settings various camps and related infrastructure
services, providing of sanitation and making available safe drinking water, direct assistance to critically ill
patients etc.

iii. Environmental Sustainability -For addressing this objective, we may undertake afforestation, planting of trees,
maintain public garden, playground cleanliness and such other similar programmes or activities focused towards
maintaining ecological balance, quality of soil, air and water, conservation of natural resources etc.

iv. Poverty alleviation and livelihood enhancement projects/women empowerment -To help poor people to help
them to earn their livelihood thereby helping them to come out of poverty line. This also includes activities
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to boost women empowerment. This will be through providing income earning assets like sewing machines,
pressing machine, washing machines etc.

v . Promoting Sports - This includes providing financial assistance for organizing sports events, reimbursing
the cost incurred by financially poor /needy sports boys/girls for playing any sport.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

The following are the members of the CSR Committee of the Company:

Name Designation

Mr.Maroti Jawanjar Chairman
Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal Member
Mr.Vishwas Pathak Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for Last 3 financial years.

Profits for past 3 years ( `  in lacs)

2018-2019 2,077.27
2017-2018 1,768.80 Average Net Profit ( ` 1,792.90 lacs)

2016-2017 1,532.62

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 3)

The Company is required to spend ` 35.86 lacs. During the financial year, the Company had spent ` 35.88 lacs.

5. Details of CSR Spend

Details of CSR spend during F.Y. 2019-20.

Sr. Implementing Agency Activities identif ied Location of Am ount
No.  project  spent(in ` )

1 Shri. Sant Jagnade Maharaj Bahu Providing educational help to poor
Udhyashiya Shikshan Santha, Nagpur needy children and financial

assistance to abandoned children. Nagpur 5,51,000

2 Rotary Club of Nagpur South East. Creating health awareness in rural
and tribal women. Nagpur 51,000

3 Sarakshi Netralaya Financial assistance to critically ill
and needy patient Ms.Shobha Pathak
for treatment of eye disease Nagpur 50,000

4 Vishwa Hindu Jankalyan Parishad Upliftment of poor tribal people of
Udasa and Devlapar villages
of Nagpur District. Nagpur 5,00,000

5 Anjani Eye Hospital Financial assistance to critically ill
and needy patient,Mr. Purab
Kumbhare for treatment of eye
disease Nagpur 80,000

6 Suwarna Mahotsav Ayojana Encouraging various sport activities
Samittee (Constituted by Vidhyarthi and conducting Indian games and
Uvak Krida Mandal) Athletics. Nagpur 50,000

7 Uday Mahila Seva Santha Promoting and encouraging sports
activity by giving financial Umred
assistance. (District:Nagpur) 39,125

8 Tidake Mahavidyalay Promoting heath care& Sports. Nagpur 91,475
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9 Silaigram Women empowerment Providing
sewing machines for earning
livelihood. Wardha 75,160

10 Amrapali Utkarsh Sangha Promote education of poor
abandoned children Nagpur 3,00,000

11 Central India Institute of Quality health care facilities to
Medical Science(CIIMS) needy poor. Nagpur 4,00,000

12 Sandnya Sanwardhan Santha Promote special education to
mentally challenged children Nagpur 4,00,000

13 Jeevoday Education Society Imparting education to mentally
challenged children Nagpur 4,00,000

14 Maharogi Sewa Samiti Upliftment of tribal people of Warora
Hemalkasa by eradicating hunger, District:
poverty and malnutrition. Chandrapur 4,00,000

15 Cause to Connect Foundation Promote the upliftment and livelihood
of disadvantaged and underprivileged
rural youth across India Pune 1,00,000

16 Sure Tech hospital Financial assistance to the poor patient
Mr. Prashant Nagdeote
for critical health treatment. Nagpur 1,00,000

Total 35,87,760

Annexure IV(i)
Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section(3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts)Rules,2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts /arrangements entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188  of the Act including certain arm’s length transactions
under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis.

All transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties were on an arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis.

The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length basis
were not material in nature.

Nagpur  M.G.Jawanjar
27.07.2020 Chairman

Annexure IV(ii)
Policy on Related Party Transactions

(As per Master Directions of Reserve Bank of India requiring Non-Banking Financial Companies to formulate a
Policy on Related Party Transactions.)

The Company shall enter into transactions with related parties only on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of
business, supported by agreement or formal letter. If the transaction is not in the ordinary course of business and not
on arm’s length basis, then, necessary compliances under the Act and Rules framed thereunder will be adhered to.

For the purpose of the above clause, transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction
/ transactions to be entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year,
exceeds 10% of the annual turnover of the Company as per the last audited financial statements of the Company.

The above policy is subject to change from time to time.
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FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.03.2020

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN U65929MH1990PLC057829

2 Registration Date 22-08-1990

3 Name of  the Company BERAR FINANCE LIMITED

4 Category/Sub-category of  the Company PUBLIC COMPANY /  LIMITED BY SHARES /   NBFC

5 Address of the Registered off ice  & contact detai ls AVINISHA TOWER, MEHADIA CHOWK, DHANTOLI, NAGPUR-440012
PH. NO.0712-6663999
www.berar f inance.com Emai l  :  in fo@berarf inance.com

6 Whether l isted company N O

7 Name, Address & contact detai ls of the Registrar & BIGSHARE SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
Transfer Agent,  i f  any. 1ST FLOOR, BHARAT TIN WORKS BUILDING, OPP. VASANT OASIS,

MAKWANA ROAD, MAROL, ANDHERI (EAST),  MUMBAI 400059

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

(Al l  the business act ivi t ies contr ibut ing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shal l  be stated)

S .  No . Name and Descr ipt ion of  main products /  services NIC Code of the Product/service %  to total turnover of the
c o m p a n y

1 NBFC ENGANGED IN ASSET FINANCING & OTHER
FINANCIAL SERVICES 64920 100

2

3

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S N Name and address of  the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ Subsidiary/  Associate % of Applicable
shares Section
held

1

2 NOT APPLICABLE

3
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN

(Equity share capital breakup as percentage of total equity)

( i )   Category-wise Share Holding

Category No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
 of  [As on 1-Apri l -2019] [As on 31-March-2020] during the

Shareholders y e a r

Demat Phys ica l Total % of Total Demat Phys ica l Total % of Total

Shares Shares

A.  Promoters

(1)  Indian

a) Individual/  HUF  - 27,03,316 27,03,316 33.79% 27,07,316 - 27,07,316 29.71% 0.15%

b) Central Govt - - - 0.00% - - 0.00% 0.00%

c) State Govt(s) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

d) Bodies Corp. - 14,88,484 14,88,484 18.61% 14,88,484 - 14,88,484 16.34% 0.00%

e) Banks /  FI - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

f) Any other - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

Sub Total  (A)  (1) - 41,91,800 41,91,800 52.40% 41,95,800 - 41,95,800 46.05% 0.10%

(2 )  Fore ign

a) NRI Indiv iduals - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

b) Other  Indiv iduals - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

c) Bodies Corp. - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

d) Any other - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

Sub Total  (A)  (2) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

TOTAL (A) - 41,91,800 41,91,800 52.40% 41,95,800 - 41,95,800 46.05% 0.10%

B. Public Shareholding
1.  Inst i tut ions

a) Mutual Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

b) Banks /  FI - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

c) Central  Govt - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

d) State Govt(s)  - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

e) Venture Capital
    Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

f) Insurance Companies - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

g) FIIs - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

h) Fore ign Venture
   Capi ta l  Funds - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

i) Others (speci fy) - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

- I n s t i t u t i o n a l  I n v e s t o r s - - - 0 . 0 0 % 1 1 , 1 1 , 1 1 1 - 1 1 , 1 1 , 1 1 1 1 2 . 2 0 % 0 . 0 0 %

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - 0.00% 1 1 , 1 1 , 1 1 1 - 1 1 , 1 1 , 1 1 1 1 2 . 2 0 % 0 . 0 0 %

2.  Non- Inst i tut ions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian - 3,450 3,450 0.04% 750 2,300 3,050 0.03% -11.59%

i i )  Overseas - - - 0.00% - - - 0.00% 0.00%

b) Indiv iduals -

i)  Individual 17,85,085 17,85,085 22.31% 67,250 16,98,485 17,65,735 19.38% -1.08%
shareholders hold ing
nomina l  share cap i ta l
upto Rs.  1 lakh
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i i )  Individual - 20,16,865 20,16,865 25.21% 9,26,516 11,04,349 20,30,865 22.29% 0.69%
   shareholders
   holding nominal
   share capi tal  in
   excess  o f
   Rs  1  lakh

c) Others (specify)

Investor Educat ion 2,800 - 2,800 0.04% 4,550 - 4,550 0.05% 62.50%
& Protect ion Fund.
No vot ion r ight  in
respect of these shares
Non Resident  Indians - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Overseas Corporate
Bodies - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Foreign Nationals - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Clear ing Members - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Trusts - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Foreign Bodies -  D R - 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%

Sub-total (B)(2):- 2,800 38,05,400 38,08,200 47.60% 9,99,066 28,05,134 38,04,200 41.75% -0.11%

Total  Publ ic  (B) 2,800 38,05,400 38,08,200 47.60% 21,10,177 28,05,134 49,15,311 53.95% 29.07%

C. Shares held by
    Custodian for
    GDRs & ADRs - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Grand Total
(A+B+C) 2,800 79,97,200 80,00,000 100.00% 63,05,977 28,05,134 91,11,111 100.00% 29.17%

( i i )  Sharehold ing of  Promoters

S N Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in
shareholding

during the
y e a r

No. of  Shares % of total % of No. of  Shares % of total % of

Shares of Shares Shares of Shares

the  Pledged/  the Pledged/

c o m p a n y encumb c o m p a n y encumb

ered  to ered to

total total

shares shares

1 MAROTI JAWANJAR 10,21,194 12.76% 10,21,194 11.21% 0.00%

2 JYOTI JAWANJAR 2,74,550 3.43% 2,74,550 3.01% 0.00%

3 SANDEEP JAWANJAL 3,22,518 4.03% 3,22,518 3.54% 0.00%

4 BAKUL JAWANJAL 1,01,000 1.26% 1,01,000 1.11% 0.00%

5 RADHEMOHAN JAWANJAL 1,400 0.02% 1,400 0.02% 0.00%

6 MAROTI JAWANJAR(HUF) 8,66,954 10.84% 8,68,954 9.54% 0.23%

7 SANDEEP JAWANJAL(HUF) 1,15,700 1.45% 1,17,700 1.29% 1.73%

8 AVINO CAPCONS PVT. LTD. 14,88,484 18.61% 14,88,484 16.34% 0.00%
*
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( i i i )  Change in  Promoters’  Shareholding (p lease speci fy ,  i f  there is  no change)

S N Particulars Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulat ive Shareholding
of the year during the year

No. of  shares % of total shares No. of  shares % of total  shares

1 MAROTI JAWANJAR

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 10,21,194 12.76% 10,21,194 11.21%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 10,21,194 11.21%

0.00% 10,21,194 11.21%

At the end of the year 10,21,194 11.21%

2 JYOTI JAWANJAR

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 2,74,550 3.43% 2,74,550 3.01%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00%  2,74,550 3.01%

At the end of the year 2,74,550 3.01%

3 SANDEEP JAWANJAL

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 3,22,518 4.03% 3,22,518 3.54%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 3,22,518 3.54%

At the end of the year 3,22,518 3.54%

4 BAKUL JAWANJAL

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 1,01,000 1.26% 1,01,000 1.11%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 1,01,000 1.11%

At the end of the year 1,01,000 1.11%

5 RADHEMOHAN JAWANJAL

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 1,400 0.02% 1,400 0.02%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 1,400 0.02%

At the end of the year 1,400 0.02%

6 MAROTI JAWANJAR(HUF)

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 8,66,954 10.84% 8,66,954 9.52%

Changes dur ing the year 26.07.2019 Transfer 2,000 0.03% 8,68,954 9.54%

At the end of the year 8,68,954 9.54%

7 SANDEEP JAWANJAL(HUF)

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 1,15,700 1.45% 1,15,700 1.27%

Changes dur ing the year 20.12.2019 Transfer 2,000 0.03% 1,17,700 1.29%

At the end of the year 1,17,700 1.29%

8 AVINO CAPCONS PVT.LTD.

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 14,88,484 18.61% 14,88,484 16.34%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 14,88,484 16.34%

At the end of the year 14,88,484 16.34%
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( iv)  Shareholding Pattern of  top ten Shareholders

(Other  than Directors,  Promoters and Holders of  GDRs and ADRs):

S N For each of the Top Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulat ive Shareholding
10 shareholders of the year during the year

No. of  shares % of total shares No. of  shares % of total shares

1 A M I C U S  C A P I T A L  P R I V A T E

E Q U I T Y  I  L L P

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year - 0.00% - 0.00%

Changes dur ing the year 20.02.2020 Allot 9,97,778 10.95% 9,97,778 10.95%

At the end of the year 9,97,778 10.95%

2 RAVINDRA KACHORE

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 2,33,484 2.92% 2,33,484 2.56%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00%  2,33,484 2.56%

At the end of the year 2,33,484 2.56%

3 NARENDRA KACHORE

At the  beg inn ing  o f  the  year 1,98,482 2.48% 1,98,482 2.18%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 1,98,482 2.18%

At the end of the year 1,98,482 2.18%

4 A M I C U S  C A P I T A L  P A R T N E R S

I N D I A  F U N D  I

A t  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  year - 0.00% - 0.00%

Changes dur ing the year 20.02.2020 Allot 1,13,333 1.24% 1,13,333 1.24%

At the end of the year 1,13,333 1.24%

5 AJAY KUMAR PATNI

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 1,00,000 1.25% 1,00,000 1.10%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00% 1,00,000 1.10%

At the end of the year 1,00,000 1.10%

6 KIDILE PRAKASH

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 62,650 0.78% 62,650 0.69%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00% 62,650 0.69%

At the end of the year 62,650 0.69%

7 PARAS  MUTHA

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year  50,000 0.63% 50,000 0.55%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 50,000 0.55%

At the end of the year 50,000 0.55%

8 CHANDAN MUTHA

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 50,000 0.63% 50,000 0.55%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00% 50,000 0.55%

At the end of the year 50,000 0.55%
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9 AGRAWAL VIDUSHI

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 48,500 0.61% 48,500 0.53%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00% 48,500 0.53%

At the end of the year 48,500 0.53%

10 AGRAWAL CHANDA

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 43,000 0.54% 43,000 0.47%

Changes dur ing the year  - 0.00% 43,000 0.47%

At the end of the year 43,000 0.47%

(v)  Shareholding of  Directors and Key Manager ia l  Personnel :

S N Shareholding of each Date Reason Shareholding at the beginning Cumulat ive Shareholding
Directors and each of the year during the year

Key Manager ia l
Personnel

No. of  shares % of total shares No. of  shares % of total  shares

1 MAROTI JAWANJAR

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 10,21,194 12.76% 10,21,194 11.21%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 10,21,194 11.21%

At the end of the year 10,21,194 11.21%

2 S H A N T A R A M   M A H A K A L K A R

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 29,900 0.37% 29,900 0.33%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 29,900 0.33%

At the end of the year 29,900 0.33%

3  VISHWAS PATHAK

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 27,600 0.35% 27,600 0.30%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 27,600 0.30%

At the end of the year 27,600 0.30%

4 ASHOK KACHORE

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 24,034 0.30% 24,034 0.26%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 24,034 0.26%

At the end of the year 24,034 0.26%

5 DATTATRAYA DALAL

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 1,13,816 1.42% 1,13,816 1.25%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 1,02,71,13,816 1.25%

At the end of the year 1,13,816 1.25%
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6 ATUL SARDA

At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 13,200 0.17% 13,200 0.14%

Changes dur ing the year - 0.00% 13,200 0.14%

At the end of the year 13,200 0.14%

7 SANDEEP JAWANJAL

At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 3,22,518 4.03% 3,22,518 3.54%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 3,22,518 3.54%

At the end of the year 3,22,518 3.54%

8 MAHESH PARASURAMAN
At  the  beg inn ing o f  the  year - 0.00% - 0.00%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% - 0.00%

At the end of the year - 0.00%

9 DEEPALI BALPANDE
At the  beg inn ing o f  the  year 41,900 0.52% 41,900 0.46%

Changes dur ing the year 0.00% 41,900 0.46%

At the end of the year 41,900 0.46%

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.(Amt. ` )

Particulars Secured Loans excluding Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at  the beginning of  the f inancial  year

i ) Principal Amount 2,53,36,05,006.00 - 69,95,76,174.00 3,23,31,81,180.00

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

i i i ) Interest accrued but not due 82,14,573.00 - 6,99,23,633.00 7,81,38,206.00

Total  ( i+i i+i i i ) 2,54,18,19,579.00 - 76,94,99,807.00 3,31,13,19,386.00

Change in  Indebtedness dur ing the f inancia l  year

* Addition 1,81,50,00,000.00 - 53,10,23,873.00 2,34,60,23,873.00

* Reduction 1,08,81,13,397.00 - 37,53,06,102.00 1,46,34,19,499.00

Net Change 72,68,86,603.00 - 15,57,17,771.00 88,26,04,374.00

Indebtedness at  the end of  the f inancial  year

i ) Principal Amount 3,25,62,50,640.00 - 84,82,01,723.00 4,10,44,52,363.00

ii) Interest due but not paid - - -

i i i ) Interest accrued but not due 1,24,55,542.00 - 7,70,15,855.00 8,94,71,397.00

Total (i+ii+ii i) 3,26,87,06,182.00  - 92,52,17,578.00 4,19,39,23,760.00

N o te : Deposits include deposits from Directors, their relat ives and inter-coprorate deposits of ` .  6,93,65,053.00
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A . Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-t ime Directors and/or Manager

S N .Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

Name Mr.Marot i  Jawanjar Mr.Sandeep Jawanjal ( ` )

Designation Managing Director Execut ive Director

1 Gross  sa la ry

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sect ion 17(1) of

the Income-tax Act,  1961 33,60,000.00 27,10,000.00 60,70,000.00

(b) Value of perquisi tes u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act,  1961 - - -

(c) Prof i ts in l ieu of salary under sect ion 17(3) Income-tax

Act,  1961 - - -

2 Stock Option - -  -

3 Sweat  Equi ty - -  -

4 Commission -

-  as % of prof i t 50,05,000.00 40,95,000.00 91,00,000.00

-  others,  speci fy                       -

5 Others, please specify(PF Contr ibut ion & Gratui ty) 4,03,846.00 6,24,888.00 10,28,734.00

Total (A)  87,68,846.00 74,29,888.00 1,61,98,734.00

Cei l ing as per the Act 2,43,51,495.00

B. Remuneration to other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount

( ` )

1 Independent Directors Mr .V ishwas Mr.Atul Sarda Mr.  Mahesh
Pathak Parasuraman (NED)

Fee for attending board committee meetings 26,000.00 20,000.00 - 46,000.00

Commission - - - -

Others, please specify(Board Meetings) 12,000.00 8,000.00 - 20,000.00

Total (1) 38,000.00 28,000.00 - 66,000.00

2 Other Non-Execut ive Directors(NED) Mr.Shantaram Mr.Ashok Mr.Dattatraya
Mahakalkar Kachore  Dalal

Fee for attending board committee meetings 14,000.00 2,000.00 10,000.00 26,000.00

Commission  - - - -

Others, please specify(Board Meetings) 10,000.00 6,000.00 10,000.00 26,000.00

Total (2) 24,000.00 8,000.00 20,000.00 52,000.00

Total (B)=(1+2) 62,000.00 36,000.00 20,000.00 1,18,000.00

Total Managerial Remuneration 1,63,16,734.00

Overal l  Cei l ing as per the Act  2,43,51,495.00
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C. Remunerat ion to Key Managerial  Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Key Manager ia l  Personnel Total Amount

Name Ms. Deepali  Balpande ( ` )

Designation CEO CFO C S

1 Gross  sa la ry

(a) Salary as per provis ions contained in sect ion

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 -  - 14,74,952.00 14,74,952.00

(b) Value of perquisi tes u/s 17(2) Income-

tax Act ,  1961  -  - -  -

(c) Prof i ts in l ieu of salary under sect ion

17(3) Income- tax Act,  1961 -  - - -

2 Stock Option  -  - - -

3 Sweat  Equi ty  - - -  -

4 Commission -  -  - -

-   as % of prof i t -  - - -

-   others,  speci fy  - - - -

5 Others, please specify(PF contr ibut ion & Gratui ty)  - - 1,52,958.00 1,52,958.00

Total - - 16,27,910.00
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

T y p e Section of the Brief Description Detai ls of Penalty/ Authori ty [RD / Appeal  made,
Companies Act Punishment/ NCLT /  COURT i f  any

Compounding  (give Detai ls)
 fees imposed

A.  COMPANY Penalty,  Punishment,  Compounding : N I L

B.  D IRECTORS Penalty,  Punishment,  Compounding : N I L

C.  OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT Penalty,  Punishment,  Compounding : N I L
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Annexure VI

Requirements under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014

Summary of Status of ESOPs Granted

The position of the existing schemes is summarized as under -

Sr.No. Particulars ESOP 2019

I. Details of the ESOS

1 Date of Shareholder’s Approval 07.12.2019

2 Total Number of Options approved 240,000

3 Vesting Requirements Time based vesting

4 Exercise Price or Pricing formula (Rs.) `  95

5 Maximum term of Options granted (years) 5 years

6 Source of shares Primary issuance

7 Variation in terms of ESOP Nil

II. Option Movement during the year

1 No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the year 0

2 Options Granted during the year 132,000

3 Options Forfeited / lapsed during the year 0

4 Options Vested during the year 0

5 Options Exercised during the year 0

6 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options 0

7 Money realised by exercise of options (Rs.) 0

8 Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year 132,000

9 Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year 0

III Weighted average exercise price of Options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price NIL

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NIL

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 95.00

Weighted average fair value of options granted during the year whose

(a) Exercise price equals market price NIL

(b) Exercise price is greater than market price NIL

(c) Exercise price is less than market price 110.41

The weighted average market price of options exercised during the year
No options Exercised during the year

Remaining Contractual life of options outstanding 4.73
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IVEmployee-wise details of options granted during the financial year 2019-20 to:

(i)Senior managerial personnel :

Name No. of options granted

Sewak Bhisikar 10000

Shyam  Pimpalkar 10000

Someshwar Dhonge 10000

Rajesh  Hinge 8000

Avinash Timande 7000

V. Manohar 7000

Rahul Lonkar 6000

Asawari Karve 6000

Pragyanand Jaiswal 4000

Mahesh Thakre 4000

Rahul  Puri 4000

Vaibhav Raut 4000

Anup Deshmukh 4000

Ujjwal Jain 4000

Akhilesh Pathak 4000

Chandrashekhar Chitriv 4000

Rajkumar  Wagh 4000

Sandip Sabale 4000

Mukesh Chaudhari 4000

Roshanlal Sahu 4000

Pratipal Jawanjar 4000

Chandrakant  Patil 4000

Nitin Sirsat 4000

Amrut Raut 4000

Digamber  Mahalle 4000

(ii)Employees who were granted, during the year, options amounting to 5% or more of the options granted during
the year

Name No. of options granted

Sewak  Bhisikar 10000

Shyam  Pimpalkar 10000

Someshwar Dhonge 10000

Rajesh  Hinge 8000

Avinash Timande 7000

V.  Manohar 7000
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(iii)Identified employees who were granted option, during the year equal to or exceeding 1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at the time of grant.

Name No. of options granted

Nil

Method and Assumptions used to estimate the fair value of options granted during the year:

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Option Pricing model

The Assumptions used in the model are as follows:

Date of grant Particulars

1.  Risk Free Interest Rate 6.29%

2.  Expected Life  4.26

3.  Expected Volatility 30.50%

4. Dividend Yield 0.00%

5. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant (Rs.) 180.83

Assumptions:

Stock Price: Share price is taken as informed by the Company

Volatility: The historical volatility over the expected life has been considered to calculate the fair value.

Risk-free rate of return: The risk-free interest rate being considered for the calculation is the interest rate applicable for a maturity
equal to the expected life of the options based on the zero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities.

Exercise Price: Exercise Price of each specific grant has been considered.

Time to Maturity: Time to Maturity / Expected Life of options is the period for which the Company expects the options to be live.

Expected divided yield: Expected dividend yield has been calculated as an average of dividend yields for five financial years preceding
the date of the grant.

Diluted Earnings Per Share pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options

calculated in accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 20                                                             20.61

The stock-based compensation cost calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the period April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 is
11,17,391. If the stock-based compensation cost was calculated as per the fair value method prescribed by SEBI, the total cost to
be recognised in the total cost to be recognised in the financial statements for the period April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 would be
Rs.14,08,686. The effect of adopting the fair value method on the net income and earnings per share is presented below:

Pro Forma Adjusted Net Income and Earning Per Share

Particulars Rs.

Net Income as reported 16,91,27,375

Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost 11,17,391

Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost  14,08,686

Adjusted Pro Forma Net Income  16,88,36,079

Earning Per Share: Basic

As Reported 20.81

Adjusted Pro Forma 20.78

Earning Per Share: Diluted

As Reported 20.61

Adjusted Pro Forma 20.58
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Members,
BERAR FINANCE LIMITED

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of BERAR FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the
balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2020, its profit (or Loss)* and cash flows for the year ended on that date

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code of ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfi l led our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw attention to note 2.1 to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainty caused by Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic with respect to the Company’s estimates of impairment of loans to customers and that such estimates
may be affected by the severity and duration of the pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701, Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Company as it is an unlisted
company.

Other Matter:
Additional considerations on account of COVID-19

Pursuant to the Reserve Bank of India circular dated 27 March 2020 (‘RBI circular’) allowing lending institutions to offer
moratorium to borrowers on payment of instalments falling due between 1 March 2020 and 31 May 2020 which was later
further extended upto 31 August 2020, the Company has extended moratorium to its borrowers in accordance with its Board
approved policy. In Management’s view and considering the guidance provided by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India, providing moratorium to borrowers at a mass scale, based on RBI directives, by itself is not considered to result in a
Significant Increase in Credit Risk (SICR) for such borrowers. The management of the company is of the opinion that there is
no significant deterioration in the asset quality and no additional provision towards Expected Credit Loss (ECL) is required.
Given the unique nature and scale of the economic impact of this pandemic, and its timing being close to the year end, the
Management estimate is based on various uncertain variables, which could result in actual credit loss being different than that
being estimated. In view of the high degree of Management’s judgment involved in estimation of ECL, accentuated by the
COVID-19 pandemic, we refrain to comment upon the validity of the management’s estimate.
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Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report but does
not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s board of directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting
standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that
the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the extent applicable;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed as a director
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

( f) With  respect to  the  adequacy  of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been paid/provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial
statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For PRAVIN DHIRAN & CO.
 Chartered Accountants FRN: 133656W

Nagpur PRAVIN DHIRAN Partner
Dated: July 27th, 2020 M.No. 115580

 UDIN- 20115580 AAAAD 02542
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report to the members of

Berar Finance Limited of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of f ixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in a phased manner which, in our
opinion, is  reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of i ts assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain f ixed assets were physical ly veri f ied by the management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c ) Accord ing to  the in format ion and explanat ions g iven to us,  the records examined by us and based on the
examinat ion of  the conveyance deeds /  registered sale deed provided to us, we report  that ,  the t i t le deeds,
comprising al l  the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the
Company as at the balance sheet date.

(ii) The Company is in the business of providing finance services and does not have any physical inventories. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3 (ii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted unsecured loans to one bodies
corporate, covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

a ) The terms and condi t ions o f  the grant  o f  such loans are,  in our  opin ion,  pr ima fac ie ,  not  pre judic ia l  to  the
Company’s interest.

b ) The principal and interest are repayable on demand. Interest is being charged annually at rates not less than bank
rate declared by Reserve Bank of India.

c ) As the principal and interest is repayable on demand, and as per information given by the company, such demand
has not been raised during the year, there is no overdue

( iv) The company has given the loan to group concern Avino Capcons Pvt. Ltd. in the ordinary course of its business and
interest is charged on such loans at rates not less than bank rate declared by Reserve Bank of India. Thus, provisions
of sect ion 185 of Companies Act,  2013 are complied with. The company had made investment in shares of Avino
Capcons Pvt. Ltd. of Rs.2,90,000/- which has been received back during the year and as on 31/03/2020, the balance
is NIL. According to information and explanations given to us, apart from these, the company has not given any loans
or given any guarantee or  secur i ty ,  nor made any investment  and the provis ions of  sect ion 185 and 186 of  the
Companies Act, 2013 are complied with.

(v ) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under with regard to deposits accepted from the public. No order
has been passed on the Company by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India
or any Court or any other Tribunal in this regard.

(v i ) Central Government has not specified for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(vii) (a)  According to the records of the company, the company has been general ly regular in deposit ing undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Tax (GST)
and other material statutory dues, as applicable to i t  with the appropriate authorit ies. There were no arrears of
undisputed statutory dues at the end of the financial year which were outstanding for more than six months from
the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information furnished and explanations given, there are no dues in respect of income tax, sales
tax, wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except the following:-

Name of the Nature of Disputed Amount under Amount paid* Period to which Forum where
Statute  Dues Dispute  the amount relates  dispute is pending

Income-tax Income-tax 7,45,844 1,49,170 FY 2016-17 or Commissioner of
Act, 1961 AY 2017-18  Income-tax (Appeals)

* paid under protest
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(viii) In our opinion and according to the informat ion and explanat ions given to us,  the company has not defaul ted in
repayment of any dues to banks or financial institution or debenture holders.

( ix) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, the Company has not raised any money by
way of init ial public offer or further public offer.

Further,  monies raised by the Company by way of term loans were appl ied for the purpose for which those were
raised, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for immediate uti l isation were gainfully invested in l iquid
assets payable on demand.

(x ) Based on the audit procedures performed and representations obtained from the management, we report that no
material fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the
course of our audit.

(x i ) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and accord ing to  the in format ion and exp lanat ions g iven by the management ,  we repor t  tha t  the manager ia l
remuneration has been paid /  provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company as prescribed under section 406 of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the Management, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet, the
Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Act in respect of the private placement of equity shares and
preference shares during the year.  During the year,  the company has made pr ivate placement through issue of
11,11,111 number of  equity shares and 5,55,556 number of  Cumulat ive Compulsor i ly Convert ible Part ic ipat ing
Preference Shares. According to the information and explanations given by the Management, we report that the amount
raised have been used for  the purposes for which those were ra ised,  though id le/surplus funds which were not
required for immediate utilisation were gainfully invested in liquid assets payable on demand.

( xv ) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the company,
the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to
in section 192 of the Act.

xv i ) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements
and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the provisions of Section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are applicable to the Company and the company has registration under section 45-IA
of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For PRAVIN DHIRAN & CO.
 Chartered Accountants

FRN: 133656W
PRAVIN DHIRAN

Partner
Nagpur M.No. 115580
Dated: July 27th, 2020 UDIN- 20115580 AAAAD 02542
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f)  under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report to the members
of  Berar Finance Limited  of  even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause ( i )  of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

W e have audited the internal  f inancia l  contro ls over f inancia l  report ing of  BERAR FINANCE LIMITED  as at  March 31, 2020, in
conjunct ion with our audi t  of  the f inancial  statements of  the Company for  the year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s  management is  responsib le for  establ ish ing and mainta in ing internal  f inancia l  contro ls  based on the internal
control over f inancial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in  the  Guidance Note  on Aud i t  o f  In te rna l  F inanc ia l  Cont ro ls  Over  F inanc ia l  Repor t ing  issued by the Ins t i tu te  o f  Char te red
Accountants of  India (“ ICAI”) .  These responsibi l i t ies include the design, implementat ion and maintenance of  adequate internal
f inancial controls that were operating ef fectively for ensuring the orderly and eff icient conduct of  i ts business, the safeguarding of
i ts assets, the prevention and detect ion of  f rauds and errors,  the accuracy and completeness of  the accounting records, and the
t imely preparat ion of  re l iable f inancial  informat ion, as required under the Companies Act ,  2013.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibi l i ty is to express an opinion on the internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing of the Company based on our
audi t .  W e conducted our  aud i t  in  accordance wi th  the Guidance Note on Audi t  o f  In terna l  F inanc ia l  Cont ro ls  Over  F inanc ia l
Report ing (the “Guidance Note”) and the standards on audit ing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of  the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of  internal f inancial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those standards and the guidance note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing were established and maintained and i f  such controls operated effectively in al l
material respects.

Our audit  involves performing procedures to obtain audi t  evidence about the adequacy of  the internal f inancial  controls system
over f inancial reporting and their operating ef fectiveness. Our audit of  internal f inancial controls over f inancial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating ef fectiveness of internal control based on the assessed r isk. The procedures
selected depend on the audi tor ’s  judgement ,  inc lud ing the assessment  o f  the r isks  o f  mater ia l  miss ta tement  in  the f inanc ia l
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

W e bel ieve that the audit  evidence we have obtained, is suff ic ient and appropriate to provide a basis for  our audit  opinion on the
Company’s internal f inancial  control system over f inancial report ing.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal f inancial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
rel iabi l i ty of  f inancia l  report ing and the preparat ion of  f inancial  statements for  external  purposes in accordance wi th general ly
accepted account ing pr inc ip les .  A company’s  in terna l  f inanc ia l  cont ro l  over  f inanc ia l  repor t ing  inc ludes those po l ic ies  and
procedures that ( i )  pertain to the maintenance of  records that, in reasonable detai l ,  accurately and fai r ly ref lect the transactions
and disposit ions of the assets of  the company; ( i i )  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit  preparat ion of  f inancial  statements in accordance wi th general ly accepted account ing pr incip les,  and that receipts and
expenditures of  the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and ( i i i )  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or t imely detection of unauthorised acquisit ion, use, or disposit ion of
the company’s assets that could have a material  ef fect on the f inancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of  the inherent l imitat ions of  internal f inancial  controls over f inancial  report ing, including the possibi l i ty of  col lusion or
improper management of  overr ide of  controls, material  misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of  any evaluation of the internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing to future periods are subject to the r isk that
the in terna l  f inanc ia l  cont ro l  over  f inanc ia l  repor t ing may become inadequate because o f  changes in  condi t ions,  o r  that  the
degree of  compl iance with the pol ic ies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In  our  op in ion and accord ing to  the  in fo rmat ion  and exp lanat ions g iven to  us ,  the Company has,  in  a l l  mater ia l  respects ,  an
adequate internal  f inancial  control  system over f inancial  report ing and such internal  f inancial  controls over f inancial  report ing
were operating effect ively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over f inancial  report ing cr i ter ia establ ished by the
Company consider ing the essent ia l  components o f  in ternal  contro l  s tated in  the Guidance Note on Audi t  of  In ternal  F inancia l
Controls Over Financial Report ing issued by the ICAI.

For PRAVIN DHIRAN & CO.
 Chartered Accountants FRN: 133656W

PRAVIN DHIRAN Partner

Nagpur M.No. 115580

Dated: July 27 th, 2020 UDIN- 20115580 AAAAD 02542
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2020

Particulars Note As at As at
No. 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder's Funds
a) Share Capital 3 9,66,66,670 8,00,00,000
b) Surplus 4 1,08,41,98,601 65,26,43,114

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
a) Long-term borrowings 5 1,84,96,52,577 1,46,06,79,070

b) Long Term Provisions 9 1,79,89,346 1,39,08,543

(3) Current Liabilities
a) Short-term borrowings 6 58,58,38,282 48,83,83,451
b) Trade payables 7 35,90,809 19,01,426
c) Other current liabilities 8 1,85,88,56,891 1,44,72,09,786
d) Short-term provisions 9 3,07,04,070 3,49,60,525

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,52,74,97,246 4,17,96,85,914

II. Assets

(1) Non-current assets
a) Property, Plant  and Equipments

(i) Tangible assets 10 17,88,39,386 16,65,41,134
(ii) Capital work-in-progress -- 2,60,000

b) Non-current investments 11 8,74,24,957 7,76,31,704
c) Deferred tax assets (net) 23.3 1,37,07,213 88,86,680
d) Long term loans and advances 12 1,49,30,13,476 1,08,64,67,889

2) Current assets
a) Current investments 11 4,86,000 --
d) Cash and cash equivalents 13 45,58,42,870 24,36,99,102
e) Short-term loans and advances 12 3,29,61,09,894 2,59,41,69,115
f) Other current assets 14 20,73,450 20,30,290

TOTAL ASSETS 5,52,74,97,246 4,17,96,85,914

As per our Report of even date attached On Behalf of Board of Directors

S/d
For Pravin Dhiran & Co. M.G. Jawanjar
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director)
FRN : 133656W

S.M. Jawanjal
Pravin Dhiran (Executive Director)
M. No. 115580
/d
Place : Nagpur D.R. Balpande
Date : 27-07-2020 (Company Secretary)

/

Sd
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PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020

Note For the Year For the Year
Particulars No. 2019-2020 2018-2019

I. Income
Revenue from operations 15 1,12,76,49,844 88,60,24,588
Other Income 16 1,42,70,141 95,83,827

                            I. Total Revenue 1,14,19,19,985 89,56,08,415

II. Expenditure
Employee benefit expenses 17 14,91,64,234 9,87,78,377
Administrative & Other expenses 18 23,69,54,894 19,80,72,095
Financial costs 19 45,67,55,566 35,58,03,981
Depreciation & amortization expenses 10 65,51,367 51,19,367
Provisions and Write off 20 5,51,42,620 3,01,07,109

                        II. Total Expenditure 90,45,68,681 68,78,80,929

lll. Profit before extraordinary items and tax (l-ll) 23,73,51,304 20,77,27,486

lV. Extraordinary Items 23.6 1,15,07,420 --

V. Profit before tax (lll-lV) 22,58,43,884 20,77,27,486

VI. Tax expense
(1) Current tax 21 6,00,00,000 6,25,00,000
(2) Prior Year Tax 21 15,37,042 --
(3) Deferred tax 23.3 (48,20,533) (19,67,639)

Vl. Total Tax Expenses 5,67,16,509 6,05,32,361

Vll. Profit
Net Profit after tax for the year (V-Vl) 16,91,27,375 14,71,95,125

Total 16,91,27,375 14,71,95,125

Vlll. Earning per equity share : (Annualised)
(1) Basic 20.81 18.40
(2) Diluted 20.61 18.40

See accompanying notes forming part of
the financial statements

As per our Report of even date attached On Behalf of Board of Directors

S/d
For Pravin Dhiran & Co. M.G. Jawanjar
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director)
FRN : 133656W

S.M. Jawanjal
Pravin Dhiran (Executive Director)
M. No. 115580
/d
Place : Nagpur D.R. Balpande
Date : 27-07-2020 (Company Secretary)

Amount in `
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31st MARCH 2020

(Amount in `   )

PARTICULARS 31.03.20 31.03.19

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITY

Net prof i t  before taxation 22,58,43,884         20,77,27,486

Adjustment for :

Depreciat ion 65,51,367             51,19,367

(Profit)/ Loss on sale of Securities Investments (2,90,000) (4,32,542)

(Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (1,24,978) --

Interest paid on Term Loans 31,46,79,533         22,49,85,676

Interest  received on current & long term investments & interest on Fixed deposit (1,10,01,557) (85,68,949)

Dividend received (1,14,661) (70,725)

Operating profit before working capital changes 53,55,43,588         42,87,60,313

Adjustment for Decrease/(Increase) in Operating Assets (1,10,85,29,526) (76,19,12,860)

Adjustment for Decrease/(Increase) in Operating Liabil i t ies 3,23,88,597           3,33,89,444

Cash Generated From Operations (54,05,97,341) (29,97,63,104)

Income-Tax Paid (7,38,80,514) (6,09,71,771)

(a) Net cash  inflow from operating activity (61,44,77,855) (36,07,34,875)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY

Purchase of Fixed assets/ Capital W IP (1,86,64,640) (4,68,06,304)

Sale of Fixed Assets 2,00,000 --

Purchase of Securit ies Investment -- (31,49,276)

Proceeds from Sale of Securit ies Investment 5,80,000             14,87,997

Purchase of Government Securit ies (1,25,12,190) (98,84,750)

Proceeds from Sale of Government Securit ies  --                4,00,000

Interest  received on current & long term investments & interest on Fixed deposit 1,10,01,557             85,68,949

Dividend received 1,14,661                   70,725

(b) Net cash inflow from investing activity (1,92,80,612) (4,93,12,659)

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY

Proceeds from Issue of equity shares & CCPS (Net of expenses) 28,76,21,818 --

Proceeds from Bank & Financial Institution Borrowing (Net of Repayments) 72,68,86,603         60,21,01,821

Proceeds from Fixed Deposits (Net of Repayments) 15,57,17,771         11,13,72,218

Interest paid on Term Loans (31,46,79,533) (22,49,85,676)

Dividend & Div idend Tax Paid (96,44,425) (96,44,425)

(c ) Net cash inflow from financing activity 84,59,02,234         47,88,43,938

Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 21,21,43,768           6,87,96,405

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 24,36,99,102         17,49,02,697

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  45,58,42,870         24,36,99,102

Composition of cash & cash equivalents :

Cash in hand 1,44,15,148           2,28,42,740

Bank balances  44,14,27,722         22,08,56,362

The above cash flow statement is prepared as per Indirect method set out in AS-3 issued by ICAI
As per our Report of even date attached On Behalf of Board of  Directors

For Pravin Dhiran & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 133656W M.G.Jawanjar

(Managing Director)
Pravin Dhiran
M.No 115580 S.M.Jawanjal

(Executive Director)

Place : Nagpur D.R.Balpande

Date: 27/07/2020 ( Company Secretary)

/d
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NOTES  FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information

The Company is a registered non-banking finance company engaged in the business of providing finance. The Company
is registered with the Reserve Bank of India as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) with effect from 24 November
1998, with Registration No. 13.01109. The Company primarily deals in the financing of two-wheelers, used car finance,
commercial vehicle finance and personal loan etc. The Company is a systemically important NBFC as per Reserve Bank
of India . The company was re-classified from Asset Finance Company to Investment & Credit Company (NBFC-ICC)as
per RBI notification no. 097/03.10.001/2018-19 dated 22-Feb-2019. The Company is having its head office at Nagpur
and currently having 66 branches as on 31.3.2020.

2. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles to comply in
all material respects with the notified Accounting Standards (‘AS’) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read
together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank
of India (‘RBI’) as applicable to a Non-Banking Finance Company (‘NBFC’). The financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by
the Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year except for the change in accounting policies
explained below. The complete financial statements have been prepared along with all disclosures.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Management is satisfied that the Company shall
be able to continue its business for the foreseeable future and no material uncertainty exists that may cast significant
doubton the going concern assumption. In making this assessment, the Management has considered a wide range of
information relating to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital
resources. The outbreak of COVID-19 has not affected the going concern assumption of the Company.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the criteria set out in Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of the products and services and the time between acquisition of assets
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current/non-current classification of its assets and liabilities.

Estimation of impairment allowance on financial assets amidst COVID-19 pandemic

Estimates  and  associated  assumptions,  especially  for  determining  the  impairment  allowance  for Company’s
financialassets, are based on historical experience and other emerging factors on account of the pandemic. The Company
believes that the factors considered are reasonable under  the current circumstances. The Company has used early
indicators of moratorium and delayed repayment metrics observedalong with an estimation of potential stress on probability
of default and exposure at default due to COVID-19 situation indeveloping the estimates and assumptions to assess
the expected credit losses on loans. Given the dynamic nature ofthe pandemic situation, these estimates are subject
to uncertainty and may be affected by the severity and duration ofthe pandemic.

A) System of Accounting

(i) The Company follows the mercantile system of accounting and recognises income and expenditure on an accrual
basis except in case of significant uncertainties.

(ii) Financial Statements are based on historical cost. These costs are not adjusted to reflect the impact of changing
value in the purchasing power of money.

(iii) The preparation  of  financial  statements  in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenueand
expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities as on the date of financial statements. The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon Management’s evaluation of therelevant facts and
circumstances as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from thoseestimates. Any revision
to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.
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B) Fixed assets, depreciation/amortisation

Tangible fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets

(i) Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis for all tangible assets on straight line method over the useful life of
assets, except buildings which is determined on straight line method (SLM).

(ii) Useful  lives  of assets are determined by the Management by an internal technical assessment. Where  such
assessment suggests a life significantly different from those prescribed by Schedule II – Part C of the Companies
Act, 2013, the useful life is as assessed and certified by a technical expert.

(iii) Depreciation on leasehold improvements is provided for on straight line method over the primary period of leaseof
premises.

(iv) Depreciation on addition to assets and assets sold during the year is being provided for on a pro rata basis with
reference to the month in which such asset is added or sold as the case may be.

(v) Assets having unit value up to Rs. 5,000 is charged off fully in the financial year of purchase of assets.

Intangible assets and amortisation thereof

Intangible  assets,  representing  specialised  software etc.  are  recognised  at  cost  and  carried  net of  amortisation,
consistent with the criteria specified in Accounting Standard 26’ Intangible Assets’ as prescribed by Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006. Intangible assets are amortised systematically over the useful life of the assets. Accordingly,
most software cost are generally amortised as an intangible equally over a period of sixty months unless it has a shorter
life.

C) Impairment of assets

An assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of asset is determined. If the carrying value of
relevant asset is higher than the recoverable amount, the carrying value is written down accordingly.

D) Investments

(i) Investments maturing within twelve months from the date of acquisition and investments made with the specific
intention to dispose off within twelve months from the date of acquisition are classified as short-term/current investments
and are carried at their cost or market value/net realisable value, whichever is lower. Investments maturing within
three months from the date of acquisition are classified as cash equivalents if they are readily convertible into
cash.

(ii) Investments other than short-term/current investments are carried at their cost of acquisition. Long-term investments
maturing within twelve months from the close of the year (i.e. current maturities) are reclassified as current investments.
Provision for diminution in value of investments, if any, is made if, in the opinion of the Management, such diminution
is other than temporary.

(iii) Long-term fixed income securities are stated at cost less amortisation of premium/discount as the case may be.
[Refer E(ii)(c) below].

E) Revenue recognition

(i) Income from financing activity

Interest, finance charges, service charges etc. are recognised as income on accrual basis with reference to the
termsof contractual commitments such as interest subsidy and finance agreements entered into with borrowers,
as the case may be, except in the case of delinquent assets provided for where income is recognised only when
realised. Interest subsidy income is recognised when right to receive payment is established.

(ii) Income from investment

a. Dividend is accrued when the right to receive is established i.e. when declared by the investee entity.
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b. Interest on securities is accounted for on accrual basis except where the ultimate collection cannot be established
with reasonable certainty.

c. In order to reflect the contracted yield as interest income, the premium/discount on fixed income securities
is amortised with reference to the ‘yield to maturity’ prevailing on acquisition.

(iii) Income from assignment

a. In case of assignment of loans, the loans assigned are de-recognised when all the rights, title, future receivables
and interest thereof along with all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the purchasers of
assigned loans. On de-recognition, loss arising is recognised upfront, however, premium is amortised based
on receivablesover the remaining tenure of loans.

b. Income on retained interest in the assigned asset, if any, is accounted on accrual basis except in case ofnon-
performing assets wherein interest income is recognised on receipt basis as per NBFC prudential norms.

c. Servicing fee received is accounted for based on the underlying deal structure of the transaction as perthe
agreement

(iv) Gain/loss on sale of non-performing assets

Gain/loss on sale of non-performing assets is recognised in line with the extant RBI guidelines.

(v) Other income

Other income is mainly accounted on accrual basis, except in case of significant uncertainties.

F) Receivables under financing activity

(i) Receivables under financing activity represent principal and matured finance charges outstanding at the close of
theyear but net of amount written off.

(ii) The  Company  assesses  all  receivables  for  their recoverability and accordingly makes provisions for non-
performing assets in note no. 9 to the financial statements. However, the Company ensures that the said provisions
are not lower than the provisions stipulated in the applicable RBI Regulations/Guidelines.

(iii) A general provision, as required by RBI Regulations/Guidelines, is also made by the Company on the standard assets
outstanding which is disclosed under ‘Long-term provisions’ in note no. 9 to the financial statements.

G) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they are incurred. The cost in
relation to raising of funds through securitization of receivables under financing activity is also charged to Statement
of Profit and Loss.

H) Employee benefits

(i) Gratuity: The provision for present liability of future payment of gratuity is made using the projected unit credit
method is recognised at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The company does not make
any contribution to approved gratuity fund but instead set-asides sum required as provision out of yearly profits.

(ii) Privilege Leave: Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of
service, as per the rules of the Company. As accumulated leave can be availed and/or encashed at any time during
the tenure of employment, the liability using the projected unit credit method is recognised at the actuarially determined
value by an appointed actuary. As a policy, the company makes annual payment of eligible leave in excess of
30 days and only 30 days leave in aggregate is carried forward.

(iii) Provident fund: Provident fund contributions are made to Employee Provident Fund Organization established under
EPFO Act, 1952 by government of India. Employees contribution is deducted from his salary and paid along with
required contribution by the company. Company’s contribution to EPF/ ESI is recognised as expense in Statement
of Profit & Loss. Defined contribution to Employees’ Pension Scheme, 1995 is made to Government provident fund
authority.
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I) Income tax

Provision for taxation is made on the basis of the taxable profits computed for thecurrent accounting period in accordance
with the Income Tax Act,1961. The Company has decided to avail scheme under section 115BAA for concessional tax
rate w.e.f. AY 2020-21. Deferred tax resulting from timing differences between book profits and tax profits isaccounted
for at the current rate of tax or the substantively enacted rate of tax to the extent the timing differences are expected
to crystallise, in case of deferred tax liabilities with reasonable certainty and in case of deferred tax assetswith reasonable
certainty that there would be adequate future taxable income against which deferred tax assets can be realised. However,
deferred tax asset arising on account of unabsorbed depreciation and business losses are recognised only if there
is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there would be adequate future taxable income against which
the same can be realised/set off.

J) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a realisable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingentliability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not,
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

K) Employee Stock Option Scheme

The Company has issued Employee Stock Option Scheme on 23-Dec-2019 to eligible employees as per Employees Stock
Option Plan, 2019. Cost of benefit to the employees on account of issue of shares at discount under ESOP is recognised
as an expense by the Company. The said cost is determined on the basis of difference between intrinsic value of
shares of the company and the exercise price as per ESOP, 2019 in accordance with paragraph 40 of Guidance Note
on ESOP issued by ICAI. The Option does not carry any right to dividend or voting. Refer Note 22.20 for details.

L) Investments

Long term investments yielding specified return are stated at cost plus income accrued thereon while those yielding
unspecified return are stated at cost. Provision for diminution in value of long-term investments is made only if such
diminution is other than temporary in the opinion of the management.

Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair value. The comparison of cost and fair value is done separately
for each category of investments.

M) Expenses on Issue of Shares/ Debentures/ Deposits:

(i) Issue of Share Capital: The expenses incurred for issue of additional share capital (equity/ preference) by way
of private placement under section 42 of Companies Act, 2013 and issue of Stock Options to Employees under
section 62(1)(b) of Companies Act, 2013 is adjusted against premium received on issue of shares as per section
52 of Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) Issue of Debentures/ Deposits: The expenses incurred for issue of debentures or deposits, being a recurring
fund raising activity, is charged to statement of Profit & Loss.

N) Cash & Cash Equivalents:

Cash Flow statement is prepared as per Indirect Method as per AS-3 issued by ICAI. Cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprise cash and cheques in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks
and other short term highly liquid investments where the original maturity is three months or less.

42

Created with Print2PDF. To remove this line, buy a license at: http://www.software602.com/



43

3. SHARE CAPITAL
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Authorised
Equity shares, `  10/- each
125,00,000 equity shares (P.Y 150,00,000) 12,50,00,000 15,00,00,000

Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference  shares, `  10/- each
25,00,000 Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference Shares (P.Y Nil) 2,50,00,000 - -

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-Up
Equity shares, `  10/- each 9,11,11,110  8,00,00,000

91,11,111 Equity shares fully paid-up

0.1% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference  shares, `  10/- each 55,55,560 - -
5,55,556 Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference  shares, `  10/- each

TOTAL 9,66,66,670 8,00,00,000

The Company has two classes of shares. 91,11,111 equity shares of `  10 each per share   and 5,55,556 Cumulative

Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference  shares of `  10/- each per share.

Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. Voting rights of Preference shares is according to Sec
47 of the Companies Act,2013.

31,00,000 Equity shares out of issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital were allotted as Bonus Shares by
capitalisation of  Share Premium and General Reserve.

Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference Shares of INR 10 each are convertible to equity shares in
accordance with the terms of the Investor Agreement. The holders of these shares are entitled to a cumulative dividend
of 0.1%.

The reconciliation of the number of Equity & Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating Preference  shares outstanding
as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 is set out below:

Particulars of Equity Shares As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Number of shares as at the beginning 80,00,000           80,00,000
Add: Private Placement during the year 11,11,111 - -

Number of shares as at the end 91,11,111           80,00,000

Particulars of 0.1% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating  As at  As at
Preference  shares 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Number of shares as at the beginning - - - -
Add: Shares allotted during the period  5,55,556 - -

Number of shares as at the end  5,55,556 - -

The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of paid up equity share capital of the Company as at 31st March,2020
is set out below:

Name of the shareholder No. of shares % held as at 31-Mar-20

M/s Avino Capcons Pvt Ltd 14,88,484 16.34%
Mr.Maroti Jawanjar 10,21,194 11.21%
Mr.Maroti Jawanjar (HUF)  8,68,954 9.54%
Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 9,97,778 10.95%

The details of shareholders holding more than 5 % of paid up 0.1% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible Participating
Preference shares of the Company as at 31st March,2020 is set out below:

Name of the shareholder No. of shares % held as at 31-Mar-20

Amicus Capital Private Equity I LLP 4,98,889 89.80%
Amicus Capital Partners India Fund I  56,667 10.20%
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4. RESERVES & SURPLUS

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

A. Statutory Reserve
Opeing Balance 19,89,95,000         16,19,15,000
Add: Transferred from Surplus 4,23,00,000           3,70,80,000

Closing balance  24,12,95,000         19,89,95,000

B. General Reserve
Opeing Balance 43,82,65,000         33,82,65,000
Add: Transferred from Surplus 11,00,00,000         10,00,00,000

Closing balance  54,82,65,000         43,82,65,000

C. Securities Premium
Opeing Balance -- --
Add: Premium on issue of Shares 28,33,33,390 --
Less: Expenses related to Issue of Shares (Private Placement) 1,23,78,242 --

Closing Balance 27,09,55,148 --

D. Share Options Outstanding Account
Opening balance -- --
Add: Option granted during the year 11,17,391 --

Closing Balance 11,17,391 --

D. Surplus in the Profit & Loss Statement
Opeing Balance 1,53,83,114           1,49,12,416
Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss 16,91,27,375         14,71,95,125

Amount available for appropriation 18,45,10,489         16,21,07,541

Less Appropriations:
Dividend Paid during the year 80,00,000              80,00,000
Dividend Distribution Tax 16,44,427              16,44,427
Amount transferred to Statutory Reserve 4,23,00,000           3,70,80,000
Amount transferred to general reserve 11,00,00,000         10,00,00,000

Closing Balance 2,25,66,062 1,53,83,114

TOTAL 1,08,41,98,601  65,26,43,114

The Company has transferred 25% of the profit after tax (as against 20%) required to the Statutory Reserve in
accordance to the provision of Section 45-IC Reserve Bank of India Act,1934.

5. LONG TERM BORROWINGS

Secured Amount in `

Particulars Non- Current Current
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Term Loans
a)From Financial Institutions 1,03,83,94,179 54,59,22,935 73,41,94,603 47,51,47,467
[ Refer Note 5.1 & 5.2  ]
b)From Banks 54,12,38,580 57,90,87,375 36,90,40,538 45,32,78,351
[ Refer Note 5.2 & 5.3  ]

1,57,96,32,759 1,12,50,10,310 1,10,32,35,141  92,84,25,818
Unsecured

Fixed Deposits 27,00,19,818        33,56,68,760 65,51,97,760      43,38,31,047
[ Refer Note 5.4 ]

27,00,19,818 33,56,68,760 65,51,97,760 43,38,31,047

`  1,84,96,52,577 1,46,06,79,070 1,75,84,32,901 1,36,22,56,865
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5.1 Secured by First charge on specific receivables under Hypothecation Agreements other than those  hypothecated
to banks.

5.2  Terms of Repayment for secured borrowing including current maturities.
Amount in `

Particulars Repayment Period Non Current Current
Starting from

a)Term Loan From Financial Institutions
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Aug-17 41 months -- 1,30,82,575

Term Loan of `  1200.00Lakhs Nov-18 41 months 4,53,96,808 2,40,48,713
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Apr-17 38 months --  20,98,736
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Oct-18 38 months 2,43,05,577 2,80,78,053

Term Loan of `  400.00Lakhs Dec-18 38 months 1,11,11,114 1,11,55,493
Term Loan of `  300.00Lakhs Dec-18 38 months 83,33,342  83,66,617
Term Loan of `  300.00Lakhs Dec-18 38 months 83,33,342 83,66,616

Term Loan of `  300.00Lakhs Jun-19 38 months 1,33,33,340  83,76,604
Term Loan of `  300.00Lakhs Jun-19 38 months 1,33,33,340 83,76,604
Term Loan of `  400.00Lakhs Jun-19 38 months 1,77,77,780  1,11,68,809

Term Loan of `  500.00Lakhs Oct-19 38 months 2,77,77,792 1,41,80,146
Term Loan of `  500.00Lakhs Oct-19 38 months 2,77,77,792 1,41,80,146
Term Loan of `  500.00Lakhs Oct-19 38 months 2,77,77,792 14,180,146

Term Loan of `  500.00Lakhs Nov-19 38 months 2,91,66,680 1,39,74,874
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Oct-16 50 Months -- 1,70,81,820
Term Loan of `  2000.00Lakhs Dec-17 50 Months 5,52,90,603 4,48,89,487

Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Aug-19 50 Months 6,25,39,625 2,55,46,452
Term Loan of `  1500.00Lakhs Nov-19 50 Months 11,25,47,346 2,58,28,055
Term Loan of `  1500.00Lakhs Jan-20 38 Months 9,33,93,697 3,12,77,441

Term Loan  of `  1000.00Lakhs May-17 36 months --  16,75,338
Term Loan  of `  1500.00Lakhs Mar-18 36 months -- 54,373,776

Term Loan  of `  1000.00Lakhs Mar-19 36 months 3,17,36,532 3,38,68,585
Term Loan  of `  1500.00Lakhs Aug-19 36 months 6,89,43,726 4,82,34,849
Term Loan  of `  1400.00Lakhs Jan-20 36 months 8,75,38,285  4,26,44,657

Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Jul-18 38 months 1,67,58,475 3,11,63,136
Term Loan of `  1500.00Lakhs May-19 30 months 6,09,79,319 4,91,89,627
Term Loan of `  450.00Lakhs Jun-19 26 months 83,59,537 1,94,97,504

Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Sep-19 38 months 6,02,03,766 2,59,82,302
Term Loan of `  1200.00Lakhs Feb-19 37 Months 4,00,00,000 3,06,55,459
Term Loan of `  1250.00Lakhs Jan-20 26 Months 5,90,03,008 5,07,29,074

Term Loan of `   500.00Lakhs Mar-20 25 Months 2,66,75,561 2,19,22,909
1,03,83,94,179 73,41,94,603

b)Term Loan From Banks
Term Loan of `  500.00Lakhs Dec-16 53 Months 10,41,640  73,93,221
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Dec-16 53 Months 1,68,43,861 1,50,98,468

Term Loan of `  2500.00Lakhs Nov-20 41 months 21,52,77,775  3,73,76,335
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Aug-19 41 months 13,33,33,344 5,83,33,324
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Apr-18 24 months --  41,61,810

Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Nov-17 39 months --  2,18,10,511
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Dec-17 37 months -- 2,44,55,092
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Nov-18 37 months 2,43,24,316 3,01,83,089

Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Aug-19 37 months 4,72,22,218 3,09,15,698
Term Loan of `  1500.00Lakhs Jan-19 51 Months 8,35,78,548  2,76,13,636
Term Loan of `  1000.00Lakhs Feb-19 24 Months --  4,49,26,958

Term Loan of `  750.00Lakhs Nov-19 18 Months 4,61,6,878 5,14,40,199
Term Loan of `  750.00Lakhs Apr-17 60 Months 1,50,00,000 1,53,32,197

54,12,38,580 36,90,40,538

5.3 Term Loan taken for Office Premises is secured by equitable mortgage of Office premises situated at 1st & 2nd Floor at Avinisha

Tower, Dhantoli, Nagpur.  It is further secured by personal guarantees of Mr. M.G.Jawanjar, Mrs Jyoti Jawanjar and Mr. S.M.Jawanjal.
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5.4  Maturity profile and Rate of interest of Unsecured loans(Fixed Deposits) are as set out below:

Rate of Interest Upto 1 Year 1-3 Years

9.00% 8,69,29,907 --
9.25% 12,74,35,425 1,94,26,222
9.50% 9,00,10,855 11,99,09,428
9.75% 10,59,95,851 11,76,77,011
10.00% 13,41,60,520 1,30,07,157
10.50% 11,02,78,768 --
11.00% 3,16,155 --
11.50% 70,279 --

Total 65,51,97,760 27,00,19,818

6. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS Amount in ¹

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Secured
(a) Loans from Banks
Cash Credit from Banks 58,58,38,282 48,83,83,451
[ Refer Note 6.1 to 6.4]

 58,58,38,282         48,83,83,451

6.1 Secured by first charge on Hypothecation loan receivables present and future, ranking pari passu, excluding
assets which are specifically charged to others lenders.

6.2 Secured by equitable mortgage of Office premises situated at Amravti, Akola, Chandrapur, Chhindwara, Raipur
and Nagpur office 3rd Floor.

6.3 Secured by hypothecation of furniture/Fixture/Computers/Equipments in the above office premises.

6.4 It is further secured by personal guarantees of Mr. M.G.Jawanjar, Mrs Jyoti Jawanjar and Mr. S.M.Jawanjal.

7. TRADE PAYABLES Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Sundry Creditors
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 35,90,809 19,01,426

35,90,809 19,01,426
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8. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current Maturities of Term Loans 1,10,32,35,141 92,84,25,818
[ Refer Note 5.1 & 5.2  ]
Current Maturities of Long Term Deposits 59,87,46,929 40,59,88,830
[ Refer Note 5.4 ]
Other Payables
(a) Statutory Remittances 3,10,53,212 2,91,51,716
(b) Security Deposits 2,01,68,526 1,51,61,126
(c ) Other Expenses Payable (Refer Note 8.1) 4,57,95,754 3,65,87,613
(d) Other Credit Balances 30,91,733 37,62,961
(e) Unclaimed Dividend 3,14,765 2,89,505
(f) Unclaimed Deposits 5,64,50,831 2,78,42,217

1,85,88,56,891 1,44,72,09,786

8.1 Other Expenses Payable includes commission payable, salary to staff and other payables.

9. PROVISIONS Amount in `

Long Term Short Term
As at As at

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Provision for employee benefits
For Gratuity -- -- 1,11,23,902 83,09,574
For Earned Leave -- -- 66,32,199 50,41,833

-- -- 1,77,56,101 1,33,51,407
Others
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advances
Tax & Tax Deducted at sources) -- -- (37,30,514) 86,12,958
Provision for NPA -- -- 1,66,78,483 1,03,66,959
Contingent Provision Against Standard
Assets 1,79,89,346 1,39,08,543 -- --
Provision on Securitisation -- -- -- 26,29,201

1,79,89,346 1,39,08,543 1,29,47,969 2,16,09,118

1,79,89,346 1,39,08,543 3,07,04,070  3,49,60,525

9.1 Provision for Income tax (Net of Advances Tax & Tax deducted at sources) comprises:

a.  Advance Income Tax: `    6,00,00,000/- (P.Y. `  5,25,00,000/-)

b. Tax Deducted at Source : `   37,30,514/- (P.Y. `  10,00,421/-)
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11. INVESTMENTS Amount in `

Particulars Non- Current Current
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

In Government Securities- Quoted 8,17,52,790 6,97,26,600 4,86,000 --
(Refer Note 11.1 & 11.3)
In Equity Shares- Quoted fully paid up 81,19,473 81,19,473 -- --
(Refer Note 11.2)
In Equity Shares- unquoted fully paid up
 Avino Capcons Pvt Ltd. -- 2,90,000 -- --
(Refer Note 11.2)
Other Investments 6,58,881 6,58,881 -- --

9,05,31,144 7,87,94,954 4,86,000 --

Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of
Investments  in Government Securities 17,75,440 11,63,250 -- --

Less: Provision for Diminution in Value of 13,30,747 -- -- --
Quoted Shares (of the nature of
permanent diminution)

8,74,24,957 7,76,31,704 4,86,000 --

Note - Non Current Investments (Amount in ` )
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Particulars Date Face NOS./ ` Face NOS./ `
of Value Per UNITS Value Per UNITS

Maturity Share ` Share `
TRADE INVESTMENTS, AT COST
11.1. Government Securities -

7.80%GOI BONDS 2021 — -- 4,67,400 — — 4,67,400
8.28%GOI BONDS 2027 — -- 4,72,250 — — 4,72,250
8.03% Govt.Of India FCI Bonds 2024 — -- 9,59,000 — — 9,59,000
8.23% Govt.Of India FCI Bonds 2027 — -- 6,00,000 — — 6,00,000
8.30% GOI FCI Special Bonds 2023 — -- 10,36,200 — — 10,36,200
7.94% GOI Bonds 2021 — -- 9,16,500 — — 9,16,500
8.26% GOI Bonds 2027 — -- 5,08,750 — — 5,08,750
8.26%GOI BONDS 2027 — -- 9,92,000 — — 9,92,000
8.83% GOI BONDS 2041 — -- 5,80,500 — — 5,80,500
8.24% GOI BONDS 2027 — -- 9,93,000 — — 9,93,000
8.83% GOI BONDS 2023 — -- 21,11,400 — — 21,11,400
8.24% GOI BONDS 2027 — -- 5,12,850 — — 5,12,850
8.35% GOI BONDS 2022 — -- 92,70,000 — — 92,70,000
8.15% GOI BONDS 2026 — -- 90,72,000 — — 90,72,000
8.26% GOI BONDS 2027 — -- 35,89,250 — — 35,89,250
7.88% GOI BONDS 2030 — -- 24,97,500 — — 24,97,500
7.16% GOI BONDS 2023 — -- 82,45,000 — — 82,45,000
7.88% GOI BONDS 2030 — -- 21,57,000 — — 21,57,000
7.88% GOI BONDS 2030 — -- 37,80,000 — — 37,80,000
7.59% GOI BONDS 2029 — -- 46,10,250 — — 46,10,250
7.88% GOI BONDS 2030 — -- 59,85,000 — — 59,85,000
7.40% GOI BONDS 2035 — -- 9,22,200 — — 9,22,200
7.88% GOI BONDS 2030 — -- 15,51,750 — -- 15,51,750
7.40% GOI BONDS 2035 — -- 74,10,800 — -- 74,10,800
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7.73% GOI BONDS 2034 — -- 16,08,000 — -- --
7.50% GOI BONDS 2034 — -- 12,55,200 — -- --
7.40% GOI BONDS 2035 — -- 78,26,250 — -- --
7.50% GOI BONDS 2034 — --     18,22,740 — --                        --

TOTAL (1) 8,17,52,790 6,97,26,600

11.2. INVESTMENTS IN QUOTED EQUITY SHARES
Equity Shares of :

Sundaram Finance Ltd. 10 1000 9,32,863 10 1000 9,32,863

Bajaj Finance Ltd. (Ref. Note 11-2-1) 2 2000 -- 2 2000 --
ITC Ltd 1 1500 3,48,587 1 1500 3,48,587
Bank Of Maharashtra 10 1000 53,704 10 1000 53,704
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Ref. Note 11-2-3) 1 2000 9,63,126 1 1000 9,63,126
IDFC First Bank Ltd. (Refer Note 11-2-2) 10 13900     7,61,851 10 13900 7,61,851
Punjab National Bank Ltd 2 1000         1,24,574 2 1000 1,24,574
HDFC Ltd. 2 1000  17,85,494 2 1000  17,85,494
Kotak Mahindra Bank Ltd. 5 1000 11,73,947 5 1000 11,73,947
Yes Bank Ltd. 2 2000 7,70,068 2 2000 7,70,068
Reliance Industris Ltd. 10 1000 12,05,261 10 1000 12,05,261

TOTAL (2) 81,19,475 81,19,475

Note 11-2-1: Company has received bonus share in the ratio of 1:1 on 10/09/2016

Note 11-2-2: Company has received 13,900 share of IDFC Bank Ltd against 1000 share of Capital First Limited, on merger of Capital First Ltd into
IDFC Bank Limited

Note 11-2-3: Share of HDFC Bank Ltd Split from the Face Value of `2 to `1 on 20/09/2019

11.3. UNQUOTED, AT COST
Equity Shares Of
Avino Capcons Pvt. Ltd. -- -- -- 10 29000 2,90,000

TOTAL (1+2+3) 8,98,72,265 7,81,36,075

Aggregate Market value of quoted equity investments ` 1,20,33,250 (P.Y. ` 1,64,70,375)

11.4. Current Investments 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Particulars Face NOS./ ` Face NOS./ `
Value Per UNITS Value Per UNITS

Share ` Share `
TRADE INVESEMENTS, AT COST
Goverment Securities -
8.12% GOI BONDS 2020 -- 4,86,000      -- --         --

4,86,000      --         --
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12. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Amount in `

Particulars Long Term Short Term
As at As at

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Other Loans & Advances
Secured Considered Good
Hypothecation Loans -(Refer Note 12.1 & 12.3) 1,44,85,99,329 1,06,98,12,419 3,06,47,68,195 2,44,44,58,186
Loans Against Deposits -- -- 36,84,972 29,82,837

Unsecured Considered Good
Hypothecation Loans -(Refer Note 12.1 & 12.3) 4,63,140 4,44,683 31,15,906 32,50,437
Personal Loans -(Refer Note 12.1 & 12.3) 3,26,39,983 1,04,38,142 5,66,41,555 1,09,47,760
Advances to Dealers -- -- 16,67,83,821 13,06,42,677
Other Advances (Refer Note 12.2)    6,23,697 4,67,527 9,10,537 16,60,180
Advances to Employees -- -- 2,04,908 2,27,038

1,48,23,26,149 1,08,11,62,771 3,29,61,09,894 2,59,41,69,115

Deposits - Unsecured Considered Good
Security Deposits for Rented Premises 36,84,075 29,50,000 -- --
Other Deposits               46,61,276 2,24,112 -- --

              83,45,351 31,74,112 -- --
Loans & Advances -Unsecured Considered Good
Avino Capcons Pvt Ltd               23,41,976 21,31,006 -- --

              23,41,976 21,31,006 -- --

      1,49,30,13,476 1,08,64,67,889 3,29,61,09,894 2,59,41,69,115

12.1 Long term Other loans and advances include Non  Performing  Assets of `1,83,33,165/ (P.Y `   88,58,752).

12.2 Long Term Other Advances include Income Tax  receivable  4,07,527 & Income Tax deposited under appeal  `  1,49,170.

12.3 Short  term Other loans and advances include Non Performing Assets of `  10,67,43,461 (P.Y `  6,59,70,816).

13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

I. Cash And Cash Equivalents
(a) Cash-on-Hand  63,95,297 89,07,303
(b) Cash in Transit 80,19,851 1,39,35,437
(c) Balances with banks
In Current Accounts 16,91,99,129 16,07,30,563
In Deposits Accounts (Refer Note 13.1 & 13.2) 21,56,00,086 1,25,30,958

II. Earmarked Balances with banks
Unpaid Dividend  3,04,087 2,89,501
III. Bank Deposits with more than 12 months maturity 5,63,24,420 4,73,05,340

Fixed Deposit (incl. acc. Intt.) (Refer Note 13.1 & 13.2)

45,58,42,870 24,36,99,102

13.1 Bank deposits include `  1,43,90,019 provided as collateral for assets securitised.
13.2 In accordance with the Reserve Bank of India directives, the Company has created a floating charge on the statutory liquid

assets comprising bank deposits of `  4,26,44,363/- In favour of trustees representing the deposit holders of the Company.
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14. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest Accrued on Govt. Securities 12,30,050 11,35,090
Stamps in Hand 8,43,400 8,95,200

 20,73,450 20,30,290

15.  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest 82,13,50,660 66,34,54,436
Other Operating Revenues
Bad Debt Recovered 33,99,439 31,23,607
Sale of Agreement  4,97,64,214 3,78,52,878
Processing Fees 12,57,37,150 10,51,61,565
Other Financial Charges 12,73,98,381 7,64,32,102

1,12,76,49,844 88,60,24,588

16. OTHER INCOME
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest on Bank Deposits 50,83,151 37,29,854
Interest on Investments 59,18,406 48,39,095
Dividend received 1,14,661 70,725
Profit on Investment Sale 2,90,000 4,32,542
Profit on Sale of Asset 1,24,978 --
Miscellaneous income 27,38,945 5,11,611

1,42,70,141 95,83,827

EXPENSES
17.  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Salaries 12,12,73,952 7,71,96,461
Staff Welfare Expenses 3,37,668 2,98,524
Ex-gratia/Bonus 50,48,678 40,20,154
Commission to Managerial persons 91,00,000 90,00,000
Share Based payments to employee (Refer 20.20) 11,17,391 -
Contribution to PF,ESI & Other Funds
ESI Employer’s contribution 21,53,580 20,21,876
Provident Fund - Employer’s Contribution 50,85,222 35,08,127
Gratuity 32,44,943 17,19,963
Earned Leave Provision 18,02,800 10,13,272

14,91,64,234 9,87,78,377
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18.  ADMINISTRATIVE and OTHER EXPENSES
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Rent 1,13,89,804 79,34,193
Rates & Taxes 3,35,364 2,75,023
Goods & Service Tax 3,70,86,469 1,57,67,458
 Payment to Auditors  (Refer Note (18.1) Below 2,90,000 2,22,000
Directors sitting fees 1,18,000 88,000
Legal & Professional Charges 2,53,72,817 1,76,97,692
Advertisement Expenses 19,26,287 8,27,985
Marketing Commission 4,02,51,244 4,69,17,196
Business Sourcing Commission 7,79,74,579 7,16,94,270
Conveyance & Travelling 69,44,265 51,19,210
Courier & Postage Charges 39,06,999 33,20,098
Computer Charges 8,60,818 7,61,039
Electricity Charges 30,31,524 22,40,283
Office Car Expenses 1,39,803 72,925
Printing & Stationery 71,50,122 54,93,620
Telecom Charges 45,91,255 35,41,870
Office Expenses 36,74,640 26,59,287
Office Building Maintances 4,53,381 2,82,839
CSR Contribution 35,87,760 19,13,192
Securitisation Expense -- 26,29,201
Misc Expenses 78,69,763             86,14,714

23,69,54,894 19,80,72,095
18.1 Payments to Auditors Comprises
•   For Statutory Audit 1,35,000 1,42,000
•   For Tax Audit 45,000 45,000
•   For GST Audit and Other Attest Services 1,10,000 35,000

19.  FINANCE COST
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Interest on Bank Borrowings 5,36,03,932 5,42,33,653
Interest on Deposits 8,06,31,992 6,93,13,257
Interest on Term Loans 31,46,79,533 22,49,85,676
Bank Charges 78,40,109 72,71,395

45,67,55,566 35,58,03,981

20.  PROVISIONS AND WRITE-OFF
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Bad Debts Written Off 4,28,07,356 2,58,79,363
Provision/(Reversal) for NPA 63,11,524 15,54,651
Provision for Standard Assets (Refer Note 20.1) 40,80,803 26,21,344
Provision against Investments 19,42,937 51,751

5,51,42,620 3,01,07,109

20.1 The Company has made a provision on the standard assets @ 0.40% for Current Year (P.Y @ 0.40%).
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21. TAX EXPENSES
Amount in `

Particulars As at As at
31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

Current Tax
Income Tax 6,00,00,000          6,25,00,000
Prior Period Income Tax ( Refer 21.1) 15,37,042 --
Deferred Tax (48,20,533)           (19,67,639)

5,67,16,509          6,05,32,361

21.1 Prior Period Income Tax includes income tax paid  for FY 2017-18 `  3,86,621 and FY 2018-19 `  11,50,421

Notes 22: Additional Information to Financial Statements

22.1. Previous Year’s figures have been regrouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

22.2 Provisions and Contingencies

Break up of Provisions and Contingencies shows under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Accounts Current Year Previous Year

Provision for Depreciation on Investment 19,42,937 51,750

Provision towards NPA 63,11,524 15,54,651

Provision made towards Income Tax 6,00,00,000 6,25,00,000

Provision for Standard Assets 40,80,803 26,21,344

22.3 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPA

a. Concentration of Deposits Amount in Cr

Particulars
Total Deposits of Twenty Largest Depositors 13.68

Percentage of Deposits of Twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits 14.79%

b Concentration of Advances Amount in Cr

Particulars

Total Advances of Twenty Largest borrowers 2.58

Percentage of Advances of Twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 0.56%

c. Concentration of Exposures Amount in Cr

Particulars

Total Exposure of Twenty Largest borrowers 2.85

Percentage of Exposure of Twenty largest borrowers to Total Exposure 0.62%

d. Concentration of NPA Amount in Cr

Particulars

Total Exposure of Top Four NPA Accounts 0.24
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22.4 Movements of NPAs

Particulars Current Year Previous Yea

i. Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 2.35% 1.81%

ii. Movements of NPAs (Gross)
a. Opening Balances  7,48,29,568       6,59,61,464
b. Addition during the year 10,45,00,610       6,23,77,749
c. Reduction during the year 5,42,53,552       5,35,09,645
d. Closing Balance 12,50,76,626       7,48,29,568

iii. Movements of Net NPAs
a. Opening Balances 6,44,62,609       5,71,49,156
b. Addition during the year 9,40,07,430       5,54,56,323
c. Reduction during the year 5,00,71,896       4,81,42,870
d. Closing Balance 10,83,98,143       6,44,62,609

iv. Movements of provisions for NPA
a. Opening Balances 1,03,66,959         88,12,308
b. Provision made during the year  63,11,524         15,54,651
c. Write-off/ Write back of excess provision -- --
d. Closing Balance 1,66,78,483       1,03,66,959

As per RBI revised notification, the Company has classified the accounts as NPA in which the Installment/Interest is overdue
for 3 months.

22.5 Sector wise NPAs

Percentage of NPA to Total
Sr. No. Sector  Advances in that Secto

a. Agriculture & Allied activities 12.18%
b. M S M E 0.00%
c. Corporate Borrowers 0.00%
d. Services 0.00%
e.  Unsecured personal loans 0.55%
f. Auto loans 85.52%
g. Other personal loans 1.75%

22.6 Customers Complaints

a. No of Complaints pending at the beginning of the year --

b. No. of Complaints received during the year 4

c. No. of Complaints redressed during the year 4

d. No. of Complaints pending at the end of the year --

22.7 Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2019-
20, to the extent the Company has received intimation from the “Suppliers” regarding their status under the Act.

As at  As at
31.03.2020  31.03.2019

Principal amount remaining unpaid (but within due date as per MSMED Act) -- --

Interest due thereon remaining unpaid -- --

Interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 alongwith the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period -- --

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been
paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest
specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 -- --

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid -- --

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises -- --

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
collected by the Management. This  has been relied upon by the auditors.
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22.8 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, a CSR Committee has been formed by the Company. The Company has made
CSR expenditure for activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. As per section 135 (5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend, in every financial year, at least two per cent of the average net profit of the
company made during three immediately preceding financial years in pursuance of its Corporate Social Responsibility. Average
net profit for 3 years works out to ¹ 1792.90 and hence 2% required expenditure is ¹ 35.86 lakhs. During the Year, the Company
has spent ¹ 35.88 Lakhs on CSR activities and has thus complied with the provisions of section 135.

22.9 Disclosure of Frauds reported during the year vide DNBS.PD.CC.NO. 256/03.10.042/2011-12 Dated March 02,2012:

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial statements and
as per the information and explanations given by the management, we report that no fraud on or by the Company was noticed
or reported during the course of our audit

22.10 Capital Amount in `

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

i) CRAR (%) 23.83% 19.09%
ii) CRAR - Tier I Capital (%) 23.47% 18.73%
iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 0.36% 0.36%
iv) Amount of Subordinated debt raised as Tier-II Capital -- --
v) Amount raised by issued of Perpetual Debt Instruments -- --

22.11 Investments Amount in `

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

1 Value of Investments

(i)  Gross Value of Investments

(a) In India 9,10,17,144       7,87,94,954

(b) Outside India -- --

(ii) Provision for Depreciation

(a) In India 31,06,187         11,63,250

(b) Outside India -- --

(iii)  Net Value of Investments

(a) In India 8,92,41,704       7,76,31,704

(b) Outside India -- --

2 Movement of Provision held towards depreciation on Investments

(i) Opening Balances 11,63,250 11,11,500

(ii) Add: Provision made during the year 19,42,937               51,750

(iii) Less: Write off/Write-back of excess provision during the year -- --

(iv) Closing Balances 31,06,187         11,63,250

22.12  The Company did not entered into any derivatives contract or sold/purchase any non performing financial assets.
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22.13 Disclosures relating to Securitisation ( `  in lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

No of SPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions 2 1
Total amount of securitised assets as per books of the SPVs sponsored 1,856.47 1,109.37
Total amount of exposures retained by the applicable NBFC to comply with
MRR as on the date of balance sheet

a) Off-balance sheet exposures
First loss -- --
Others -- --

b) On-balance sheet exposures
First loss (In the form of Fixed Deposit) 138.45 38.78
Others -- --
Amount of exposures to securitisation transactions other than MRR
Off-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to Own Securitisations
First loss -- --
Others -- --
Exposure to third party Securitisations
First loss -- --
Others -- --
On-balance sheet exposures
Exposure to Own Securitisations
First loss -- --
Others -- --
Exposure to third party Securitisations
First loss -- --
Others

22.14 Exposure to Capital Market Amount in `

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

i) Direct Investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures
and unit of equity- oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively
invested in corporate debt 86,19,475         89,09,475

22.15 The  Company  has  given  unsecured  loan  of `8,92,81,538  as  a  personal  loans to the borrowers.  Personal  loans are
fully/partly secured by assignment/pledge of life insurances polices, shares and other securities.

22.16 The Company has not obtained registration from any other financial sector regulators.

22.17 During the year no penalties has been imposed by RBI or any other regulator.

22.18 The Company has been assigned rating of “ICRA BBB /(Stable)” for Bank Facilities. The Company has also been assigned
“ICRA MA- (Stable) “  for Fixed Deposit programmer.

22.19 Details of Managerial Remuneration

 Particular 2019-20 2018-19

Salary 60,70,000           55,50,000
 Commission 91,00,000           90,00,000
 Contribution to Gratuity 7,26,334               5,70,809

 Other Allowances & Perquisites 3,02,400               2,73,600

 Total 1,61,98,734         1,53,94,409

22.20 Share Based Payments
Company has instituted an Employee stock option plan and has granted ESOP to senior management in accordance with the
terms of the plan as mentioned below.
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 Particulars ESOP 2019

 Board Meeting date
 Options granted 132000
 Exercise price(per Share) 95
 Date of grant 12/23/2019
 Maximum term of Options Granted 5 Years
 Market price immediately prior to grant date 180.83
 (Intrinsic Value)

Option Movement during the year

1 No. of Options Outstanding at the beginning of the yea --

2 Options Granted during the year 1,32,000

3 Options Forfeited / lapsed during the year --

4 Options Vested during the year --

5 Options Exercised during the year --

6 Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options --

7 Money realised by exercise of options ( `  ) --

8 Number of options Outstanding at the end of the year --

9 Number of Options exercisable at the end of the year --

Measurement of fair value
The Fair value of the options issued has been arrived at using Black Scholes Model.
The key assumptions used in computing the fair value are:

Date of grant Particulars

1. Risk Free Interest Rate 6.29%

2. Expected Life 4.26

3. Expected Volatility 30.50%

4. Dividend Yield 0.00%

5. Price of the underlying share in market at the time of the option grant ( `  ) 180.83

The  stock-based  compensation  cost  calculated as per the intrinsic value method for the period April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020
is 11,17,391. If  the  stock-based compensation cost was calculated as per the fair value method, the total cost to be recognised
in  the  financial  statements  for  the  period  April 1, 2019  to March 31, 2020  would be `14,08,686. The  effect  of adopting the
fair value method on the net income and earnings per share is presented below:

Adjusted Net Income and Earning Per Share

Particulars `

Net Income as reported 16,91,27,375

Add: Intrinsic Value Compensation Cost  11,17,391
Less: Fair Value Compensation Cost  14,08,686
Adjusted Pro Forma Net Income 16,88,36,079

Earning Per Share: Basic
As Reported 20.81
Adjusted Pro Forma 20.78

Earning Per Share: Diluted
As Reported 20.61
Adjusted Pro Forma 20.58

22.21 Contingent Liabilities
The Company has preferred an Commissioner appeal against the demand raised of `745,844  by the Income Tax department for the
AY 2017-18.
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Notes 23: Disclosure under Accounting Standards

23.1. Employee Benefits

 The details of employee benefits are as given below:

a) Provident Fund:

Retirement  benefit  in  the  form  of  Provident  Fund  are  defined  contribution schemes and the contributions are charged to the
Profit & Loss Account of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are due.

b) Gratuity:

The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen days salary last drawn
for each  completed  year of service depending upon the date of joining. The same is payable on death, separation from  service,
or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years of continuous service or on death.

c) Leave Encashment:

The  Company  has  been  accounting  for  provision  on  account  of  leave  encashment  on  retirement  based  on  actuarial  valuation
carried out as at the Balance Sheet date.

d) Disclosures:

(i) Defined Benefit Plans 2019-20 2018-19

Non Funded Non Funded Non Funded Non Funded
Gratuity Leave Gratuity Leave

Encashment Encashment

a) The amount recognised in the Balance sheet as at 31.03.2020
1) Present Value of defined Benefit Obligation 1,11,23,902 66,32,199 83,09,574 50,41,833
2) Fair value of plan assets NA NA NA NA
3) Funded Status-Surplus/(Deficit) (1,11,23,902) (66,32,199) (83,09,574) (50,41,833)
4) Less: Unrecognised Past service cost - - - -
5) Net assets/(liability) (1,11,23,902) (66,32,199) (83,09,574) (50,41,833)

b) The amounts recognised in profit & Loss Account
1) Current service cost 15,72,253 9,08,760 10,29,251 5,41,110
2) Interest Cost 6,43,992 3,90,742 5,19,266 3,19,161
3) Expected return on plan assets NA NA NA NA
4) Actuarial(gain)/losses 10,28,698 5,03,298 1,71,446 1,53,001

5) Net expenses/(gain) recognised in Profit & loss A/c. 32,44,943 18,02,800 17,19,963 10,13,272
c) The changes in the present value of the defined benefit
    Obligation during the year

 1) Opening defined benefit Obligation 83,09,574 50,41,833 67,00,205 41,18,205
2) Current service cost 15,72,253 9,08,760 10,29,251 5,41,110
3) Interest Cost 6,43,992 3,90,742 5,19,266 3,19,161
4) Actuarial(gain)/losses 10,28,698 5,03,298 1,71,446 1,53,001
5) Benefits Paid 4,30,615 2,12,434 1,10,594 89,644
6) closing defined benefit Obligation 1,11,23,902 66,32,199 83,09,574 50,41,833
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22.21.  Asset Liability Management Maturity Pattern of certain items of Assets & Liabilities

Upto 30/31 Over 1 month Over 2 month Over 3 month Over 6 month Over 1 Year & Over 3 Years
Particulars days upto 2 months  upto 3 months upto 6 months upto 1 Year upto 3 Years upto 5 Years Over 5 Years Total

Deposits 23,73,74,204 4,92,26,691 2,95,97,646 8,43,03,779 25,46,95,440 27,00,19,818 -- -- 92,52,17,578

Advances (Net
of Provision) 27,37,22,332 26,65,66,836 25,85,24,145 92,77,99,933 1,38,49,18,899 1,48,17,02,452 -- -- 4,59,32,34,597

Investments -- -- -- -- 4,86,000 1,92,73,375 1,23,51,600 5,89,06,171 9,10,17,146

Borrowing 5,16,64,055 2,79,56,102 8,63,91,421 28,76,35,320 1,23,54,26,525 1,49,41,13,323 8,55,19,436 -- 3,26,87,06,182
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d) Actuarial Assumptions:
 (i) Discount Rate 6.75% Per annum
 (ii) Mortality Rate India Assured Lives (2006-08) Ultimate Mortality Rates
 (iii) Future Salary Increase 6% Per annum
 (iv) Withdrawal Rate 1%
(v) Method applied 58 Years

Notes:-
(i) The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and
other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
23.2. Computation of Earnings per share :

Basic  earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the equity shareholders by
the   weighted   average  number  of  equity  shares  outstanding  during  the  period.  Earnings  considered  in  ascertaining   the
Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period after deducting preference dividends and any attributable tax thereto
for  the  period. The  weighted   average  number  of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted  for  events,  such as  bonus  shares,  other  than conversion of potential equity shares, that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose  of  calculating the diluted earnings
per share,  the net  profit  or  loss  for  the  period  attributable  to  the  equity shareholders and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Particulars For the year ended 31st March

        2020 2019

A) BASIC
(i) Computation of Profit (numerator)

a. Profit after tax ( ` ) 16,91,27,375 14,71,95,125
b. Less: Dividend attributable to preference shareholders
    (including tax thereon, if any) 94,971 --

Profit for Equity Shareholders (I) 16,90,32,404 14,71,95,125

(ii) Computation of weighted average number of shares (denominator):
a. Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 80,00,000 80,00,000
b. Add: Weighted average number of equity shares issued and outstanding during the year 1,21,766 --

Adjusted weighted average equity shares  (II) 81,21,766 80,00,000

EPS (Basic) ( `  )                                      [I/II] 20.81 18.40

B)  DILUTED
(i) Computation of Profit (numerator)

Profit after Tax ( `  )                              (I) 16,91,27,375 14,71,95,125

(ii) Computation of weighted average number of shares (denominator):
a. Number of shares outstanding  at  the beginning of the year 80,00,000 80,00,000
b. Add:  Weighted  average  number of equity shares issued and outstanding during the year 1,21,766 --
c. Add: Weighted average number preference shares issued and outstanding at

the close of the year (Dilutive Equity Shares upon future conversion) 20,816 --
d. Add: Number of options outstanding at the close of the year (Dilutive Equity

Shares under outstanding ESOPs) 62,333 --

Adjusted weighted average equity shares (II) 82,04,915 80,00,000

EPS (Diluted) ( `  ) [ I/ II ] 20.61 18.40
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23.3. Deferred Tax (Liabilities) / Assets (Net)
The breakup of deferred Tax assets / liabilities is as under:

S N. PARTICULARS Current year

31.03.20( `  ) (Credit)/ Changes 31.03.19( ` )

A) Deferred Tax Assets -

For Gratuity Provision 32,39,280 (8,19,532) 24,19,748

For Non Performing Assets Provision 78,04,642 (7,35,616) 70,69,026

For Earned Leave Provision 19,31,296 (4,63,114) 14,68,182

For Other Provision 39,72,419 (31,91,726) 7,80,693

Deferred Tax Assets 1,69,47,637 (52,09,988) 1,17,37,649

B) Deferred Tax Liability -

 For WDV of Fixed Assets 32,40,424 3,89,455 28,50,969

Deferred Tax Liabilities 32,40,424 3,89,455 28,50,969

 NET  DEFERRED  TAX  ASSETS / (liability) 1,37,07,213 (48,20,533) 88,86,680

23.4.SEGMENT REPORTING

In terms of business segment the company is dealing in only one major segment  “Auto/Vehicle Loan” and geographically
all its operations are controlled from one place. Hence no disclosures is needed in accordance with the requirement  of
AS-17 on “Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

23.5. Final Dividend

Final dividend of `  46.50Lakhs ( ` 0.50 per share) has been recommended by the Board for the year ended 31st March,
2020 for the Equity as well as for Preference Share Holders The Central government vide notification dated 30.03.2016
has amended the Companies (Accounting standard) Rules, 2006. According to the amended rule, the dividend declared
after the balance sheet date shall not be recorded as a liability in the previous year. Therefore the Company has not
recorded ¹ 46.50lakhs as liability for proposed dividend as at 31st March 2020. However the same will be recognised
as liability on approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

23.6 Extraordinary Item

A demand towards service tax of `  1,78,85,877 for the period 01/04/2013 to 30/06/2017 and `  5,04,547 01/04/2017 to
30/06/2017 was raised against Company, the Company has preferred an appeal with Commissioner of Central Excise
& Service Tax, Nagpur. However the Company has paid the tax dues under Sabka Vishwas - (Legacy Dispute Resolution)
Scheme, 2019 (SVLDRS scheme) announced in Finance Act No.II 2019 and has withdrawn the appeal. This has been
shown as Extraordinary item in the statement of Profit & Loss account.

23.7. Related Party Disclosures : (With Whom the Company has transactions)
Related Party Disclosures  as stipulated by AS-18-Related Party Disclosures, issued by ICAI are given below:

Key Management Personnel : 1)Mr. M.G. Jawanjar, Managing Director
2)Mr. S.M. Jawanjal, Executive Director
3)Mrs Deepali Balpande, Company Secretary

Relative of Key Management Personnel
1)Mrs Jyoti Jawanjar
2)Mrs Bakul Jawanjal
3)Radhemohan Jawanjal
4)Mrs Vaishali Charde
5)Mr.Ravindra Balpande
6)Aaryan Balpande
7) Shounak Balpande
8) Arjun Jawanjal

Enterprises on which Key Management Personnel &
their relative can exercise significant influence 1)Avino Capcons Pvt Ltd

2)Maroti Jawanjar(HUF)
3)Sandeep Jawanjal (HUF)
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(Figures in `)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS FOR YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020
The nature and volume of transactions of the Company during the year

with above related parties are as follows.

Nature of Relationship Key Relatives of Enterprise on which Relative of
Managerial Key Managerial Key Management Personnel can

Nature of Transaction Personnel Personnel Exercise Significant Influence

2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-19

PAYMENTS

Remuneration 1,80,40,158 1,56,11,662 10,99,820 9,77,646 -- --

Interest on Deposits 5,42,997 2,72,681 3,44,200 4,68,591 32,674 3,13,836

Loans Granted 29,60,000 18,00,000 -- -- -- 30,00,000

Deposits Repaid 4,88,775 45,93,113 26,14,425 22,55,799 2,20,240 1,12,65,783

Equity Dividend 13,85,612 13,49,062 4,06,550 4,12,450 24,73,138 20,51,538

RECEIPTS

Interest on Loans 1,59,945 16,288 -- -- 2,10,970 1,45,562

Repayment of Loans
Granted 30,60,173 5,05,761 -- -- -- 10,14,556

Deposits Accepted 44,45,000 35,70,000 14,50,361 11,22,089 1,70,000 4,00,000

BALANCE
OUTSTANDING

LOANS GRANTED
Opening Balance 13,10,527 8,00,592 -- -- 21,31,006 --

Closing Balance 13,70,299 13,10,527 -- -- 23,41,976 21,31,006

DEPOSITS ACCEPTED
Opening Balance 27,20,916 34,71,348 42,97,917 49,63,036 3,51,210 1,09,03,157

Closing Balance 72,20,138 27,20,916 34,78,053 42,97,917 3,33,644 3,51,210

As per our Report of even date attached On Behalf of Board of Directors

S/d
For Pravin Dhiran & Co. M.G. Jawanjar
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director)
FRN : 133656W

S.M. Jawanjal
Pravin Dhiran (Executive Director)
M. No. 115580
/d
Place : Nagpur D.R. Balpande
Date : 27-07-2020 (Company Secretary)
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SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

(As required in terms of paragraph13 of Non-Banking Financial
(Deposit Accepting or holding) Companies prudential norms(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007)

( `  in lacs)

No. Particulars Amount Amount
Outstanding Overdue

LIABILITIES :

1 Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon
but not paid :

a ) Debentures : Secured -- --

Unsecured -- --

(Other than falling
within the meaning of
public deposits)

b) Deferred credits -- --

c) Term Loans 26,828.68 --

d) Inter-corporate Loans and Borrowing -- --

e) Commercial Paper -- --

f) Public deposits (Including deposits from directors and

their ralatives) 9,252.18 564.51

g) Cash Credit & Working Capital
Demand Loan 5,858.38 --

Total 41,939.24 564.51

2 Break-up of (1) (f) above (outstanding
public deposits inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid) :

a ) In the form of unsecured debentures -- --

b) In the form of partly secured debentures
i.e. debentures where there is a
shortfall in the value of security -- --

c) Other Public Deposits 9,252.18 564.51
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( `  in lacs)

No Particulars Amount
Outstanding

ASSETS :

3 Break-up of  loans and advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (4) below]

a ) Secured 36.85
b) Unsecured

4 Break-up of leased assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities

i ) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :
a ) F inancial lease --
b) Operating lease --

i i ) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors :
a ) Assets on hire --
b) Repossessed assets --

i i i ) Other loans counting towards AFC activities
a ) Loans where assets have been repossessed --
b) Loans other than (a) above 46,085.70

5 Break-up of Investments :
Current  Investments :

1. Quoted :
i ) Shares :a)Equity --

b)Preference --
i i ) Debentures and bonds --
i i i ) Units of mutual funds --
iv) Government securities 4.86
v) Others (Please specify) --

2. Unquoted :
i ) Shares :a)Equity --

b)Preference --
i i ) Debentures and bonds --
i i i ) Units of mutual funds --
iv) Government securities --
v) Others (Please specify) --

Long Term Investments :

1. Quoted :
i ) Shares :a)Equity 81.19

b)Preference --
i i ) Debentures and bonds --
i i i ) Units of mutual funds 5.00
iv) Government securities 822.39
v) Others (Please specify) --

2. Unquoted :
i ) Shares :a)Equity --

b)Preference --
i i ) Debentures and bonds --
i i i ) Units of mutual funds --
iv) Government securities --
v) Others (Please specify) 1.59
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6 Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in (3) and (4) above                 ( `  in lacs)

Category Amount net of provisions

Secured Unsecured Total

(i) Related parties

(a) Subsidiaries — — —

(b) Companies in the same group — — —

(c) Other related parties — 23.42 23.42

(ii) Other than related parties 46,063.34 35.79 46,099.13

Total 46,063.34 35.79 46,122.55

7 Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted)

Category Market Value/ Breakup Book Value
or fair value of NAV (Net of

Provisions)

(i) Related parties
(a) Subsidiaries -- --
(b) Companies in the same group -- --
c) Other related parties -- --

(ii) Other than related parties 924.97 872.52

Total 924.97 872.52

8 Other information    ( `  in lacs)

Particulars Amount

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related parties --

(b) Other than related parties 1,250.77

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related partied

(b) Other than related parties 1,083.98

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt --

S/d
As per our Report of even date attached On Behalf of Board of Directors

S/d
For Pravin Dhiran & Co. M.G. Jawanjar
Chartered Accountants (Managing Director)
FRN : 133656W

S.M. Jawanjal
Pravin Dhiran (Executive Director)
M. No. 115580
/d
Place : Nagpur D.R. Balpande
Date : 27-07-2020 (Company Secretary)

 ( `  in lacs)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
( `  in lacs)

YEAR PAID-UP NET TOTAL PROFIT PROFIT DIVIDEND
CAPITAL WORTH ASSETS BEFORE TAX AFTER TAX R a t e % AMOUNT

1990-91 1.44 1.50 3.03 0.06 0.06 -- --

1994-95 20.75 38.14 74.88 6.45 5.80 26.00% 4.07

1995-96 26.00 44.40 124.95 8.07 6.09 20.00% 5.04

1996-97 30.00 48.94 174.86 11.16 5.15 14.00% 3.72

1997-98 30.00 52.72 224.24 19.15 10.00 16.00% 4.80

1998-99 30.00 59.80 223.71 20.22 12.97 16.00% 4.80

1999-00 30.00 61.41 247.47 16.47 8.55 16.00% 4.80

2000-01 36.00 70.22 280.79 17.78 9.15 16.00% 4.92

2001-02 50.00 109.28 374.83 31.84 22.74 17.00% 7.70

2002-03 80.00 187.27 748.88 55.55 34.57 18.00% 14.40

2003-04 102.55 256.21 865.80 81.84 52.70 18.00% 15.55

2004-05 102.55 307.02 1,155.50 112.80 75.73 20.00% 20.51

2005-06 163.50 452.20 1,392.69 126.43 83.88 22.00% 26.04

2006-07 310.00 715.98 1,956.10 153.81 101.36 22.50% 44.64

2007-08 * 620.00 780.25 2,619.22 228.63 153.54 * 12.50% 90.67

2008-09 700.00 978.58 3,486.60 336.82 218.98 13.00% 100.66

2009-10 700.00 1,119.71 4,100.69 379.84 247.60 13.00% 106.47

2010-11 700.00 1,361.79 5,206.99 545.56 355.98 14.00% 113.90

2011-12 750.00 1,695.14 6,377.90 601.90 399.37 14.00% 116.01

2012-13 800.00 2,099.90 9,076.85 732.20 492.46 15.00% 137.70

2013-14 800.00 2,534.23 11,125.49 863.19 574.74 15.00% 140.39

2014-15 800.00 3,091.63 14,788.92 1,053.41 677.75 12.50% 120.35

2015-16 800.00 3,818.09 19,770.39 1,246.93 822.74 10.00% 96.29

2016-17 800.00 4,713.26 26,660.71 1,532.62 991.47 10.00% 96.29

2017-18 800.00 5,950.92 32,937.95 1,768.79 1,237.65 10.00% 96.44

2018-19 800.00 7,326.43 41,796.85 2,077.27 1,471.95 10.00% 96.44

2019-20 966.67 11,808.65 55,274.97 2,258.44 1,691.27 5.00% 46.50

*2007-08  Consequent upon issue of bonus shares in the ratio of 1:1
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